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OVERVIEW

At the heart of our community

Fuller's pubs and hotels have been at the heart of their communities for over
175 years and the coronavirus pandemic has brought the special place that pubs
hold in the nation's heart to the fare. During the past year, our pubs and the
amazing teams that work in them have fed key workers, fooked after the homeless,
run community stores and helped out at vacaine centres.

But communities are not just your local neghbourheod. Our tearn members
are a community of their own, as are our customers, our suppliers and our
shareholders. All are of equal importance and throughout this report we want
to show you how we work with those communities.

Never has the enduring appeal of the great British pub been so strong and,
across the Fuller’s estate, we are looking forward to continuing to serve
our communities for many years to come.



Financial and QOperational Summary

Resihient performance inan evtranrdinary yoar that started and ended with cur entire
P ¥y
pub eslate chsed, and with wocial dig[angmg For 16 months to date

Closure of the entre estate for average of 71% of the year due to Cowd restrictions

H\gh custorner demand while sites were open gives us confidence in aur ability
to rebound strongly as restrictions are egsed

Business rerains firmly underpinned by our predominately freehold estate ol wconic,
high quality pubs and hotels

Proactive E52 millon' equity issue successfully completad in April 2021 Lo stiengthen
the Bulsnce Sheet and ensure the Company exts the pandem.cin the best
possble position

No full year dividend proposed in light of pandermic impact on trading performance,
butintention to return to progressive dividend policy at the apprapriate time,

1

Net of expenses.

Strategic Update

Continued investment in our predominate'y freehald estate duning perieds of enforced
closure Lo ensure we reopened in excellent condition, including 10 transformational
refurbiskment schemes ard one new opening - The White Horse, Wembley

Strang performance in our hotels and pubs with rooms, when restrictions permitted,
beneﬁtmg from a sirong boomin stdycauons

Completed the integratian of Cotswold Inns & Hotels, whick has delivered

immediate benefits

Transitional Services Agreement with Asahi successfully completed

Successfur roll out of digital solutions such as Order & Poy and enhanced central booking
syﬁterm irﬂprovmg the d\gltd\ cuslomerJoUmey

Streamlined Lteams both at house level and in cur suppert centre rcady to deliver
future growth.

FY 2021 RPN

£m L

Revenue and other incomre 73.4 319.7
EBITDA (13.1) 539
Group statutory (loss)/prafit before tax (59.2) 166.2
Basic (loss)iearnings per share’ (87.31)p 5.81
Adjusted {loss)/profit before tax® (48.7) 19.4
Net debt excluding lease habiives® 218.1 178.9

Altfigures above are from continuing operations except for Group statutory (loss)/profit before tax which
includes discontinued operations.

Earnings befere separately disclosed items, interest, tax, depreciation and smortisation.

2 Per40p ‘A’ or ‘C'ordinary share.
3 Adjusted Uoss)a’proﬁt befare tax 15 the (Iuss)fproﬁt before tax excluding separately disclosed items.
4 Net debt comprises cash and short-term deposits, bank overdraft, bank loans, CCFF, debenture stock

and preference shares.
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I'rm not sure that even the most robust

of business continuity exercises could have
prepared us, the industry or the country,
for the year that we have just endured.
Being Chairman of a closed hospitality
business has been challenging throughout,
frustrating most of the time, and yet often
very rewarding due to the amazing team
of people that work at Futler’s.

I am delighted to see the way Sirnon and the
Freritive Team have nsed this ex! ranrdinary
period of enforced dosure to review, plan
and wmplement new ways of working, which
Fas enabled the Company Lo emerge fram
the pandemic an even stronger business. « , .
The rall Gutofdlé\t:ﬂ iniLiatives such as FU”er SIsa COmpa ny
Order & Pay improve the experience for
our customers and are developments that

that has always prided

add value to the buswness.

itself on its long-term

, | [ ;i h A,
Mearwh lo, the investment we have made Strategy aﬂd vision, and
i providing stunming beer gardens and
cutwide trading space has increasad the
numnber of covers in sorme of our maest

papular pubs and will make the alfresco

that continues to stand
us N good stead and

expenence more appealing for our

remains unchanged."

custamers throughout the whole year.

We have kept all our people at our heart
during the last year - thase in our pubs
and hotels, the support centre team, and

Equity raise net of expenses

£52m

our Tenants - provding support in a wide
variety of forms_ | am proud of the actions
the tearm have taken during the year from
the decision to top up furlough payments

to ensure evaryone recerved 80% of their

wages and the salary sacnfice made in the Covid Corporate Financing Facility

accessed

F100m

first lockdown by the Board and Executive
Tearn, to the suspension of commercial
rent for our Tenants.

Our People Team has provided access to
emoticnal and financial support for team
members who need it, and sccess to online
training for thase team mambers who
wanted an additional stimulus during the
long months of lockdown, Meanwhile
Simon has provided regular video blogs to
keep the entire team infermed, up Lo dale
and, rrequcmly, entertaned while aur
tearm members and Tenants have pr.iycd
dChive rQ\‘E‘\ m thelr COFﬂmurhUC‘% PrOV\dlng
meals for the homeless, working in vacaine
centres and undertaking numerous
velunteenng opportunities.

During the yeor, we announced ihe
departure of our Finance Director
Adarm Councell, who will be returning
Lo the services sector later in the year,

Adam has made an important and valued
contribution to Fuller’s dur ng one of the
most difficult chaplers inits history and
wo thank him and wish hirrowell in bis new
role. Post year end, we were delighted

to announce that Nail Smuth, a highly
experienced Finance Director who hos
spent much of his career in the pub sector,

will be joining us tater in the year Neil wll
be an excellent addition to Fuller’s, the
Executive Team and the Board and we look
forward to we\comme birn ta the Fuller's
family and working closely with him in

the future.
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Fuller’s 1s a company that has always prided
iself onits long -term strategy and vision,
and that continues to stand us in good
stead and remains unchanged. Cur
predominately freehold estate provides
the base for our business and, while we
may tweak the tactics in the shart term

to reflect ever Chamgmg situabions, we are
excited about getting back on track ta
continue to deliver our \Dng term strategy
and return to growth

DOUCLIOADDY

Trading with social distancing s like

tradmg with are arm behind your back and,
inlight of the year we have just endured,
we have had to take actions that are
outside the morm. These include the equity
raise undertaker at the start of the new
financial year and the decision not to
propose a dvidend this year. | realise the
latter s disappainiting for our sharehalders
ard | thank thern for their engong
understanding in these difficult imes,

The Board recognises the mportance

of dwviderds to our sharehaolders and hopes
to resurme dvdend payments once the
business s again trading profitably on

SIUBWIENIG |PIDLPLL

4 sustained basis.

| would like to thank all my collesgues at
Fuller’s [or their layalty and perseverance
in the face of this unprecedented
pandemic, and ther enthus'asm to get
back to their role of welzoming and

emLorLammg our customers once agan.

UOI][’LUJOJU‘ ]PUOWIPPV’

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

8 July 2021



STRATEGIC REPORT

At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR CUSTOMERS

Creating beautiful, future proof
spaces so families and friends can

reunite and relax

The various restrictions imposed during the year on our
business have been difficult to negotiste for both our teams
and our custornars - but out of adversity comes innovation

and adaptation. Gardens have become more important
than ever and we've carried out a wide range of investments
in our pub gardens and outside spaces during the ysar with
gazebos, purpose built structures and jumberellas making

these beautiful spaces even better - like this one at
The Mayfly in Stockbridge. Going out and staying out

has never been more enjoyable.
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OUR PURPOSE:

Happy teams serving
happy customers

QUR VISION:

We create exceptional
experiences full

of style and spirit —
characterful pubs and
hotels where everyone
feels they belong..
and where people
leave happier than
when they arrived

The Antelape, Belgrovio

Doing the right thing hos never been more
important and our teams hove strived to epsure
that we keep our customers - and ourselves - safe
ond secure with additional cleaning, foce masks
ond loshings of sanitiser.

STRATEGIC REPQRT

At a Glance

OUR YALUES:

1. Doing things

the right way

Deep pride and genuine enjoyment
for the business we're in

Integrity, quality, care and attention
to detall in everything we do

Total dedication and passion for
everything we do

- Also about doing the right thing, not
Just doing things in the right way o
« Bringing a positive ‘can do’ attitude to

The Alice Lisle, Ringwood
The Fuller’s family 15 a huge collection of smaller
fomilies - in each one of our pubs and hotels.

any challenge, always going above and
beyond for our customers.

2. Being part of the family

« A'family business’, in the
breoadest sense

+ Bringing a family ethos and feeling
to how we wark - one team pulling
together, in each pub and hotel, and
slso together across Fuller’s

» Awarm sense of belonging — everyane
together, including our customers

+ Where every member of the family is
valued for bringing something special

+ Laoking out for each other, in
a warm environment built on trust
and empowerment

+ Supporting and respecting each other...
and challenging when needed

.

Taking the long-term view, not always
about short-term gain.

3. Ce|ebrating individuality

+ Nurturing the individuality, spirit

and unique character of each person,
pub and bedroom, because that’s
what makes us special

Believing that it’s the individuals

who create a great experience...

and make that experience come slive
Embracing the freedom of thought,
creativity and diverse personafities
that make us who we are

Where everyone can be who they are..
and make a real difference.

6
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Managed Pubs and Tenanted Inns (%)

4. Always asking

what's next? _. . .

32%

i Fuller's Managed Pubs and Hotels within
+ Always asking what's next?... for the M25
?LII' PBOP!Eb, FOF;)T-I‘F :u‘stomers, Fuller's Tenanted Inns within the M25 13%
or our pubs and hotels . . [
« A restless passion to continuously Fuller's Managed Pubs and Hotels 23%
improve, experiment and make _ outsdethe M25
things better Fuller's Tenanted Inns outside the M25 32%
- Encouraging new ideas and — e e
creativity in our people
- Outward laoking, in touch with ST v
our market and customers Revenue by division (%)
« Always changing for the better,
but never changing for change’s sake
. Embracing the best from our past,
thinking creatively about our future. o
Fuller's Tenanted Inns 13%
Fuller's Managed Pubs and Hotels 87%
Number of employees at year end
0
2
7 : | 5
— 3
3 6 Analysis of Managed revenue - Rural/Suburban/Urban (%) 5
) g
Rural 30%
The Swan, Cotswold Inns & Hotels L
Our purchase of Cotswold Inns & Hotels included Suburban 48%
The S t Bibury, th St .
e 2Wwana 1 Ufy ong Of e areas true gEmS Urbﬂn 22./.
T
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The Beor, Oxford &
Well, we do encourage people to celebrate therr =
individuality, as can be seen here at The Beor in g
Oxford - whoever the masked bear is, we promise =
the welcome will be friendly. EN
=
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SUPPORTING OQUR NEIGHBOURHOODS

Keeping doors open to serve
and support the local community,
and to provide more than just
a place to eat and drink

When the Government closed pubs in March 2020,
The Red Lion, Ealing decided to find 2 way to keep the doors
open. Licensee Edin Basic, acutely aware of his rale in the
community and his reputation for great ltalian food, decided
to buld on this with a community stere, in the pub,
majoring on autstanding ltalian preduce. With rosemary
fecaccias, freshly baked by Edin every morning, Parma ham,
antipasti and a wide range of Italian cheeses, la dolee vita
remained very much present in this quiet corner

of West London.

9
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As D write this, the country is still awaiting
the start of the return to normality, and
we laok back on a year that started and
ended with our entire Pub estate closed.
During the year, we have traded for the
equivalent of just 29% of the financial
year — and this is reflected in our fiscal
Perfurmance with revenue’ down 77%

to £73.2 million (2020: £316.0 million).

/\gdmst tus backdrop, I want to start this
review of the year by paying trbute to the
incredible tearr of people that work 4t
Fuller's From my Executive Team to 4l
our team members in eur pubs, hotels and
support centre, and our Terants, all have
deall with the ups and downs of the past
year with positvity and opurmism - Tilling
thewr Ume during the many penods of
furlough by working al vaccine centres,

as delvery drivers, in food banks or serving
and supporting ther local commumtics.
AL various Limes, we have had 98% of the
whole team furlovghed and whenever we
have been ready to open up again, they
have been match it and delivered a great
Fuller’s expenience in the most challenging
of circumstances. | would like to personaly
thank thern all most whole heartedly for
their dedication, commitment and loyalty.

We have now reopened the entire estalte,
albeit with continued social distancing and
table service restrictions, and have used the
past year wisely - investing in our pubs and
haotels, accelerating digital projects and
rightsizing our tearns. While 1t may have
been an unusual year in terms of revenue,
we have emerged in the best passibie
position operationsily as the country stands
ready to begn shaking off the spectre

of caronavirus.

We started the year with a clear strategy,
purpass and vision. While the pandamic
may have altered the short-term tactical
actiity that delivers the strategy, the
Obemrchmg prlmc7p|9x ire unchimged
This clesr focus, amed at Gehverimg
sustairuhle returas for the lang tesm,

15 as relevant as ever and with our pubs
and hetels reopered and Lrading agam,
Wi gre optimistc about the future

1 From continuing eperations.

“Looking after our
teams and Tenants
has been a priority
during the pandemic
and communication
has been at the heart
of that.”

Revenue and other income

F/3.4m

Capital investment

£16.5m

Prudent approach to navigating

the pandemic

During the year under review, we have
accessed the vanous Government relief
L‘]md CoOronavirys SUPPDFL maogsures
avalable Fer much of the year, we have
had 98% ol cur team members on the
Caronavirus Job Retention Scheme
(“CIRS™), with the Company topping up
all salaries ta B0%. We also put in place
E100 million oFFundmg through the Cowid
Corpcrdte Flr\.mcmg Fa:\“t)f COFE™
and have berefited from the varicus grants
that have been on offer, the suspension
of business ratas and the hospitality VAT
reduction. We are grateFul for all of these
rreasures, but despite this our average
caskburn during the periods of tota’
closure has been £4-5 million per month
With the per\ods of enforced closure
fasting longer than anyone could have
anticipated and a commitment 1o exil
the pandemic in a posttion of strength,
wo decided at tne end of the financial
year to undertake an equity raise,
successfully generating £52 million

of net preceeds in April 2021,

Locking after our teams and Tenants

has been a pronty during tne pandemic
and corrmunicatior has been at the
heart of that. We led the industry in
cancelling commercial rent shead of the
Government’s enforced closure and this
was very well receved. For cur tearrs

i our Managed Pubs and Hotels, and

in the suppet centre, the Fuse digital
communication system we implemented
back in 2077 proved to be a popular ard
useful taol, providing o quick and instant
way to share information and video
messages, which have been really well
recoived We alse hosted o number of
webinars when we had more detailed
infarmation to impart and these became
a regular fixture prior to each reopening
The succass of these webinars has cermented
tneir place in our communications toolkit
and s ancther positive \edmmg that we will

take forward

One of the areas we have pad particular
sitention to s the health and wellbeing
of our teams dur ng the pandermic.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive’s Review continued

Through Fuse, we have shared hints, tips and
courses on copng and regularly promoted
the wide range of support an offer from

the Licensed Trade Charity. We provided
supermarket vouchers for those most
m\pdcted during the tougF third lockdawr
The response from our team members

has been very positive We also provided
Fuller's vouckers ta team memaers wiha
volunteered in thair local cormmunities while
furloughed for them o share with their

“The onset of the

coronavirus pandemic

feliow volunteers by way of thanks.
On recpening our 2state, we rook Forced us to rethink
4 rationat apprcsch Decisions were taken .
on a site by site bass and were based on our CUStomerJOUl—ney,
tne data available from a range of wources

both internal and external - an approach

which a'lowed us to m nimise .osses for the

removing contact points

and improving our use

periods nwhich tne oslate was partislly
recpenad Following the fast lockdown,
we reopenea 21 Managed Pubs and
Hatels on or soon after 12 April 2027 with
outside trading only, with the remaindar
of the estate opering on 17 May 2021

of digital techno|ogy.”

Positioning the business

for long-term growth

At the start of the year, we completed the
nlegratian of the suppert functions for
both Bel & The Dragor and Cotswald
Inns & Hotels, and the delivery of the
Trarwitiona' Serveces Agreemcﬁt TSA™
w th Asabl We also comp’eted the sale of
the Stabie Pizza ana Cider Lirited ' The
Stable"), aleasehold nuwness. to Three
Joes Thinstreamlbined the busingss and
allews us to focus on the sreas that will
driva our groth in the fature

These actions, combined with the sale of
the Fuller’s Beer Busiress in Apnl 2019,
provided an oppartunity to make further
changes i our centra! functiors - creating
aleanar, more efficient. support centre
toam designad to ass sl » dedicatec pabs
ard hotels bus ness,

This exercse was comelated inthe Frst Ralf
af the year and we are card dert we mae
tng night pesele rtke nght paaces to
corpinue te grow tne basiness i the Toture,
beth crganeal y, and Lhrough acgas toes

prrents 32 e Accroprn e rme

erened The sz and compoytien
af surteams 1t nouse levsl sne, 4 thouge
~erade s rumber of regundances thoae

s kcp', g nmo By [ oh gk

b stbur the Foller's ey
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During lockdown we intreduced a new
range of anling learaung oppariueiues to
re'p our Leams develop botn personaslly
and professonally, The courses were
delivered through Fuse ard focused on
wellbeing and developing important Iife
skills, everything from dcquinng rov digita)
skills to learning 3 new largusge Duning
the year 1,616 courses were completed
with the most popular courses beirg
around managing time, marsgirg

omot ors, and welbeing

F\ﬂz]“y. toc underpin the righl tearn, we
need the right systems and we have used
the downtime during the yesr Lo dent.fy
an apprepriate, Nirst-class central firance
systerm. As a result, we will be roling ou:
our now Micresoft Business Central
sefvware package m October this yoar

- simphfying our ardenng and aceounts
processes and crucisly improving the flow
and understarding of data to the businass.

Innovative solutions for a digital future
The oreet of the coronavirus pandem ¢
Forced us ta rethink cur customer journey,
remaoving contaclk ponts and MErovIng
our use of digital technalogy. While these
were mplemented as 4 solation ta an
immediate prob’em, the \c‘:rn:ngs we have
taker and tha success of these projects,
bave now rmace them a permanent featurs

of cur business

The pre-vsit raurney s row key to cur
custamer, from search ng and viewing Lo
booking ard ordering. This encompasses
a myrad of digital touck poines for the
consumer in beth pubs and hotels that,
10 ach eve oplirral efficency and
africton.ess journey, all nzed te be
seamless'y interlirked This work is on
schedule and iniuial eanarcements e
central sed Dook'ngs ard Order & Da,/

gre worklrg well

Toe Order B Paoy sciution was potn plsce
for tne bzl reopening of the evtate i
July last year. The systa™, wheh g lows

< e the

castamers o scan a GR cac
meru, pace 0raes and pay  all e thous
F2nngtoles e the tsbie, wart "or 5 team
remben or doanizad 2030 prowen

Eoth suczessiu' and popular with weam |

mermbers 3rad custerers Ve e

premw drines



The improvernents Lo our beoking platform
shorten the cu%tomcrjourney and
e -confirmed bockings now account for

nearly two-thirds of all reservations made.

tMeanwhile, the central sales team has been

instrurnental in encouraging customers to
look outside our peak periods and, where
necessary, consider alternative Fuller’s
venues to deal with demand - broadening
car pe(]k trddlpg times dnd reducﬂg |O\'t
sdles, Durmg Ju|y and Augu%i last yer,
our central sales toam delivered over

one milkan covers

At the tal end of 2019, we adapted our
accommeddtior marketing strategy to
focus an the dormestic tourismn market

4 decisicn that has beer virdicated with
the up\lFt N staycations since the ocutbroak
of the pdr\de}m\t, Access to this marxet
hd\ beer\ FUr[hCr bODStE‘d by \C(‘lrﬁh EHSIHC
DP-’:lrﬁl\C‘d thE‘ Flﬂdcr‘,_ FDCdﬁlﬂg on
ACqUINNG new custorners, around key
domesuc haliday activities such as dog
frierdly hotels in the New Forest This
drave bookings in cur hoters and pubs with
rooms and 15 of our accommodation sites
had record aceemmeodation weeks despite
the pandemic In the Cotswold Inms &
Hotels busingss, which we acquired in
Oretober 2013, we worked particularly
hard Lo bui'd a good digital customer
Journey far peeple bocking and our
success s reflected in the website
conversion rate nsing 28% with 2 19%
rise in direct website revenue.

This digrial customer journey underpins
our marketing strategy and key to this

15 cur single customer view database.
During the year this database has grown
by 42% to L6 million people, of which
over 500,000 are opted in and fully
contactanle. The largest data sources were
our booking engine, Design My Night,
ard Wireless Social, our wafi provider,
The Cotsweld Inns & Hotels database
alsa saw strong growth, increasing by
103%, and we have grown the Fuller's soaial
media dudience too during the yaasrwith
Incredsos dcross Facehook, Twitter

and [nstagram of 12%,15% snd

20% fcspcct\ve|y

White cur pubs miy hove been closed for
mwch of the year, cur webste was very
much oper for business. We had more
custormer engagerment thar ever on aur
new p\,b finders  with visits up 55 7%
agairst the prior year, largely driven by
our Pubs Reopening finder,

Tempestuous Times

Even coronavirus couldn't stap our ever popular
Shakespeare in the Garden from taking place.
Never has The Tempest, performed here ot The
Windmill in Portishead, been more oppropricte.
[@weareopenbar

Instagram followers

18,300

Number of people on our database

1.6m

Az all digital paints of interaction, we
colicet data  which helps us understand
what consumers are buying and how tney
are behaving. Th's gives us tho abil 1y Lo
communicate edgliy r]r]d eFF\CleﬁL‘Y \N|Lh
cur customers and potentm\ customers
and continues to successiully convert

to increased bockings. {tis supparted

by incredible n-pub act vity mncluding
Shokespeore in the Gorden snd the
forthcoming Comedy on Tap

This mix of digital communicatons
promot ng exc'ting in-pub actity drives
spend per head, attracts new customers,
ara provides more reasons for existing
customers to visit, We will continue to
mondar which dlg\[-ﬂ levers translate inta
the highest profit and censtantly review
and revise our online communications, while
not jeopardiing the legendary personal
hospitahity for which Fuller's s famaus,

Well-invested pubs in

stunning locations

The fourdatior of our busincss s our
oredominately freehold pub estate and
investrment in the estate s a key tenet

of Fuller’s success. While many of our
compettors suspended their capex
programmes during the pandemic, we did
the opposite - maamising this opportunity
to camplete planned investments and
bringing forwasd others to take advantage
during the enforced clasure.

During the year, we have completed alarge
number of inveszment schemes including
10 transformational refurbishments at sites
including The Coach & Herses in Soho,

The Elephantin Finchley, The Fox & Pelican
at Grayshottn Hampshire ard The King's
Arms Hotel in Woodstock, We have two
further ongoing schemes that began in the
fast financial year - The Kingswood Arms
in Kingswood near Banstead, which oocned
towards the end of June, and The Red Lion
in Werdaover, which openad on 7 Juby 2021
as our seventh Bei & The Dragon ote We
also opened one brand new site during the
year - The White Horse st Wembley, in
the shadow of the iconic Wembley Arch
and perfectly poised to benefit from the
delayed Earcocan Championships

We have alse used the closure per od

Lo urdortake smaller schemes across

4 nurmber of Cotswold inns & Hotels

and Bel & The Dragon sites, completing
waorks to further enhance theve aready
wonderful properties,

PACIAL D/\O
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive’s Review continved

The pandemic has put a firm focus on
sutside spaces and pub gardens - which
have seen an incredsed level of investment.
We invested heavily in wanlorisation”
projecis dunng the year and we will be
investing a further £4 million in cver 90
schemes durning this financial year, ready
for the avtumn. Ouiside spaces can row
be pre bocked ana our customers are
mare sccustomead to being in the open air
Witn a hugc range of inrovative solutions,
including stretch tents, gant teepees,

huts, sheds and pergolas to keep custorners
wiarm and dry, we expect to vea this trend
cenznue. Thore is ro doubt that the status
of the pub gerden hos been clevated and the
:ICVE‘WOP"HE_’V”_ OF z‘]ﬂd \ﬂ\/ejl"ﬂcﬂt i, thESC'
cutstand.ng arcas w ll ersure that the pub
garden s now a year round assot, net just
for erjoying on the August Bank Holiday

Tenanted Inns

Cur hlg'n auaity Tenanted Inns contrue
Lo prdy animMpcrtant siralegic role n cur
balarced estaie and, at ine very start of
the pandemiz, we took the dec sian to
suspend commercisl rent for our Terants
dur rg penods of clasure Tre bonefits
OF r,hl‘s dCC;SLO"l Arc ruow belqg [‘Cdli\@d A%
our Terants used the advIngs Lo mprove
their pLby sna nave ermerged from the
pandemic debt free sndir pole position
for recpering When trading has been
posuble, we have taken a bespoke view
oy pub to ersure s far and sppropriale
rent has been charged.

Througheut the lockdown, we have kept
our Tenants nformed vath bps and traming
materials to help them through the closure
penods and to reopen safely and profitabiy
We kac also pravided support on menzal
hesli and refunded unopencd kegs

and gasks to further help with cash flow,

Inreturn, our Tenarts bave boen quick to
recpen wnen allowed Alopeneain July
2020 alpeit some were 3l 1tie cout ous
kdown

endee, but the pubs traced wor, well

ard opened a fow weeks alter |

durng the summeorn macng the mest of

tre Gaeerament’s Ear Cut ro Help Cut

scherme ke the Miarspedestate, Lrad g

slawes as restnicuiors tghtereain the

autumn, and et ooty strugaled threugh

e stagaered spen ag arg closng o

cem ard were 3'tcady ciosed
|

Duning the 'ockdown, we progressed with
plans toimprove the training and nduction
process for Terants with the sddition of
anew team member, whase «ole focus

15 arcund recruiting new Tenants and
ensuring they are fully inducted and
supported s they start their partnership
we th Fu“or'\ This has becn weH re\:ewcd
ang has beer instrumentalin reducing
vacancies inour lenanted lmns. ©am
delighted to say that lain Rippon has
proved 1o pe an cxcelient leader for our
Teranted Irns business and when our
Tenanted pubs started to reopen from
April, we did rot have a single vacarcy,

An evolving and engaging

ESG strategy

This year has seen o major change inour
spprodch to corporate social responsib lity
with an evolved Ervironmental Seaial
Governarce ("ESG™) pragramme row
integral Lo our business strategy Under
the banrer of Life is too good to waste,

we have three work streams covening the
environment, cur cammunities ard our
people. We are in the precess of recruiting
aaedicated Head of Sustainab ity to drive
the ESG programme - and i particular

the envircnment and community elements.

Eot Out te Help Out

The Government's Eat Out to Help Out scheme
definitely helped encourage customers to come
back to the pub lust August - and it gove us fots
ko shaut about on socral media.

FEatQutToHelpCut
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Qur new approach Lo addresang ESG wll
see our commitmaent to these three areas
underpin our strategy, our dec.sion making,
and our vision, We have always tooked to
reduce owr carbon footpring, and now it

will be 4 requirement 1n our nvestment
caxe We have always played arclen

our communites  dand we will bring the
community more ino the busingys and
ensure that our suppart s not just financial,
but a holistic ard integrated approach to
working with aur char Ly partners.

Under the framework of Our peaple are tao
good ro woste, we will focus an three areas
- wellbeing, genuine careers and belonging
Onclusion) This forms part of the wider
peopic plin to create a compelling people

prepcsiton under the banner True to You,

Looking forward to the future

The end of restrictions 1 now Just *Tdays
aw sy and our pubs and hotels are perfoct'y
placed to benchit fram grow ng consumer
confidence and the return of narmal 1 fe.
Pubs are social spaces that thrive on
sponianeity - a quick pint, staying for
abit lenger to chat Lo somsone at the bar
o just wa'king past s beavuiul pub garden
and geciding to stop fora b te to eat
withaout prcbookmg g table. | krow that,
HCr355 QUP astate, our toams are oxcited 1o
cee these bebaviours return.

"he boom n staycatiors and desire wo get
back out with friends has led ta strong
trad ngn parLs of our estate - part cularly
Cotswold Inrs & Hotels and gur rural pubs
vith rooms - and there s an ncredibly
busy season to come with rumrerous

wead ngs and 4 hign fevel of advince
bookings, Weth cur entre cslate oper,

Ike for like sales for the 12 weeks to 3 July
2021 are runrung at 76% of 2073 levals,
cash generatior 1s strong and oar net
debtievels are below where they were

pre pandemic The mpeortance of our
porfecuy balsreed estate has come r Lo
play wath d ffe-enl pimis of the business
snouing different recorery trajectanes
37d v ate e, caviartabie with the

— .
o™ 4y s Current Dosison

We a2 rclear ot ofprontes for e
~oxt 12 mantbs We wr contrue to deler
Qurslrategc goalsoineest o oour estate,

-rd mplerrert gur nes central firsazo

ermpove bramd urd “amther worc arcund

LT3 gal Sl morrey il De



progressed and we will, as ever,

keep a watching brief on appropriate
opportunities in the market. In the

short term, we will continue to address
cha'lenges around recruitment and supply
chan, which are huving animpact night
across the hospitality sector.

The clements that combine Lo make
Fulior's such an Ar1azIng COrmpany have
been reiterated many tmes before and are
always worth repesung, The foundations
are our icomic, predominately frecheld,
well invested estate of stunning pubs and
hotels, which are geographically southern
based and caver city, town, village and
rural lecations. At our heart are the
amazing tearm members and entrepreneurnial
Tenants that make up the Fuller’s family,
and we are driven by a clear, consistent,
lang-term strategy. Combined with our
strong Balance Sheet, a cash generative
business and the fact that the endurnng
appeal of the high-quality British pub has
never been stranger, we look to the future
with conf.dence

&mm
SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

8 July 2021

{@TheAngelAndCrownRichmond

The Angel & Crown in Richmond did an
amazing job of feeding the homeless during
lockdown, pmvfding a tukeuwcy meal and,
later, essenticls including clothes and toiletries.
The pub was widely recognised for this amazing
contribution to the community.

Thanks to
you, this
year we have
achieved...

({@only_a_pavement_away / @Fullers

A team from Fuller's was defighted to
participate in a 48 hour relay for the chority
Only o Pavement Away, which finds careers in
hospitality for people who are, or ore in danger
of becoming, homeless.

@elephantinn / @NoahsArkHospice /
@NLondenHospice

With some remoining stock at The Elephant
in Finchley nearing the end of its shelf hfe
during the first lockdown, general manager
Bart Stachecki and his colleagues decided to
sell 1t off for charity to locol residents, rarsing
valuable funds for two Jocal hospices.

15

{@EpilepsyAction

Leah Murrell, our deputy manager at The Mifl
at Llstead, ron on online fundraiser for Epilepsy
Action to say thanks for all the help she had

received from the charity since being dingnosed.

(@Pennies_garguk

We are proud to be o supporter of Pennies

and delighted to see this excellent initiative hit
a real mifestone when it cefebrated 100 million
micro-donations made by customers across its
retoif portners.

@beehivepub

The Beehive in Eghom opened a food market
inits car park with a delivery service for those
who couldn't make it. In @ further step to
maintain links with its requlars, the pub olso ran
a virtual pub quiz through its Focebook page
during fockdown.

@ploughinnealing

Many of our pubs showed their support for key
workers with picture displays in their windows.
They also jomned in when the nation clapped for
corers - like Richard Covanagh, the general
manager ot The Plough in Ealing, end his family

seen here on their balcony.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Business Model

DESCRIPTION

Customer Offer

We are famous for delicious, (resh, season 4l

food and an extensive range of boers, wines,

spints and soft drinks as well ay over 1,000

boutique bedroams We bave a zlear vision to

deliver memorable experiences that ersure our i
customrers leave happier than when they arrived

lconic Properties :
Our predorminantly frechold estate s manly

locazed in the South and South East of England.

It1s 2 great balanze with rural, suburban and Lrban

stes. ltinciudes some truly icon:c sites such

a» The St & West in Od Portsrrouth and

The Churchill Arms in Notting Hill

Tenanted Inns Estate
Qur Tenanted estate s animportant part of our
balanced business and is highly cash generat ve

People

Qur pcopie make the real difference 1o our
business Whether desling with corsumers o
colleagues, they deliver outstand ng service from
bar to beardroom Cur purpose ¢ happy teams,
Rappy customers - and we strive Lo ansure trat
cveryone knows the key rale they pay in devering
that purpase, wisior and strategy.

Digital Technology

This encompasses a myniad of d g tal teuch ooints
for the censumer n oot pubs and hatels shat,

tc achizve Optlmg‘ effic cnoy and a foctionless
Journey, al meed to be scamlassly interlinkad

Im addition, cantiauea deselopmert o our 4 g.al
technologies and systeres further enbanca cur

custorer knowladge 3nd understaraing and cre

o
ef* cencies noLrinterns! proc

Financial Strength

Curstrorg Bi'irce Shaet ard prudent 1porzac

shmanagement craure Lk at ae arc vl plazea

gron batk organ cally ang throlgh acgns bon
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HOW WE CREATE VALUE

Managed Estate
The purchases made by the customer are the
majonty contrbution Lo cur revenue and orof ¢

Tenanted Inns
The reverue strears from tn s part of the
Eusiness include rert and income frem the sa'e

cf beers, wanes and spirits to our Tenants

Supplier Collaboration

We wark with aur supphiers far mutus! Bensfit,
creansgd stingtiee products that can orly be
cryjoyed st Fallers, Trsineldes oaspoxe ond ke

cur . 07Gon Horter Srroked Salmon ind ce-

simke Pack Farm It atse ineludes
notk

creams Tram
beers snd wings thit are unique Lo cur DLDs
througs the Larg Term Supply Agreement st

Asann sed through smal supp' - calliboratiors



OUTPUTS

Revenues

We gonerite rovenues fram the day ta day
operations i our Managed Pubs and Hote s, as well
as from our Tenanted Inrs estate. In addition, we
generate some rentdl revenue from unlicersed
properties. Another source of income 15 robates
from third parly supglicrs, which we recewve by
dCh‘CVl’—]g PUrChd\\ﬁg tdrgetﬁ through h\ghcr HI‘J“CH
I aur Mdndggd [‘lnd TC‘ﬂt‘]ﬁLed pub%

Cash Flow

We have a hughly casn generative business and

a carefu approdck 1o our Nnancial managerment
By ensuring thal we d\Wdys prc.\duco mere than
Cr\ough revenue Lo cover our costs, we mamntan
our iquidity which allows us to expand bath
arganically and through acquisitiors,

Reinvestment and Refurbishment

By mantining h}gh stardards in terms of both
structure and décor, we pratect our assels. We also
rcgu|dr|y investin upgridir\g our properties with
transformationdl schemes that reffecl changing
markets and custormner behaviour [nadditior,

W nveslin new properties  both sing'e and,

il appropriate, group acquisiuans in ine with our
strategy (sco page 18]

THE YALUE WE SHARE

Custormers

Cuar customers leave happier than thoy arrved,
%Howmg a momorable, prem um exper ence
{scc our purpase and vis'or. page 6).

Shareholders

Prior to the recent pandemic, our progressive
dwidend pelicy had shown incressing returns for
over seven decades, The Board hopes to resume
drvidend payments once the business 1 agair
trading proF|t<ib|y 20 4 sustained bass.

People

Ovr tearn members tell us that they enjoy being part
of the Fuller’s Tamily and that they appreciate our
mvestrment in their weltbeing, We provide best-in-
class training and development programmes and
genuine opportunities to develap through internal
career progression. Our palicies ensure that we have
a respectful and inclusve working envirenment and
a consistent approach to supporting our people.

Communities

We strive to play akey rale m the communities ard
neighbourhoads in which we operate with support
forlocal events and groups. We support a number
of chanives, including Special Olympics G3

at g corporate level and, where passible, offer

matched furding for aur support centre employces

and genersl managers where thoy are under taking
fundraising actrates
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While it may have been a strange year,

we have continued to pursue our strategy
— with the addition of a fifth key element,
focused on ESG. Here we review the steps
we have made over the past year.

To deliver a distinctive
customer experience across
the whole Fuller’s estate

Building genuine partnerships

while sourcing the right range of
authentic products to give Fuller’s
competitive advantage

Optimising the custemer’s journey
digitalty, both at central and local level
to drive a seamless interaction and
improve conversion rates

Broadening the appeal of our pubs and
hatels ta new and existing custormers
through a targeted offer and relevant
omni-channel marketing

Surprising and del;ghting our customers
in our venues by managing their
experience, pre, during and post visit,

Progress:

This year has beer fundamenta'ly
Impacied b),- ostale closuras and

oper stonal sestrictions due to the
coronavirus pandermic ard asscointed
lockdowns Aowever, v have continued
to work wath our suppl e o ersure we
have the best and wost re esant products
in our por‘f@m and are in the best passble
FOSILION 45 we reture to business 1 usual,
We have alsc worked to ensure cur
cuslomar jodrney ard offer 15 relovant,

wel presented and cormmun cated

Wa have cont rued to dal ver memarakle

EXPEF‘E’TCQS ki3 LF‘ aur e,ef—pcpu‘ar

Shoksspeare in the Garden pragramre
-~

tﬂk\ﬁg slicena Coud secure enaronmen:

dunirg the pancem <, when recaived

& h4ntist TTOM AAUCIRNCEs

AIross cut e46T3e

Imara.ements P igirz udes muostrrents
our outs de spacos. which Fase bocorme <2,
1o rrading poyt pardeso the desclopment
DFC:%Q; BracEssts LS IMProsc 1 Cusiamer

Jourre, arg arbancemen

book. resar e and conf e table, - gl
sontaredb,mroast e sco s ety o

d gty commur st

STRATEGIC REPORT

Our Strategy

Priorities:
Buld on our sngie customer view
ditabase to further imprave the wuccess
of our targeted & mal campaigns
Map tne role of technology in the
customer jcurney and maximise the
use of digital tools i building wa'es and
improving the customer's digital journay
Centinee te deliver inngvative and
excilng custormer experiences
in asale and secure envwrarment
feasurement of cur success through
investad like for ke sales growth and
Net Promoter Score

Influences:
Customers need an expericrice
thal carnot be replicared at heme
We need to adapt cur aperstion Lo
meel changes in behaviour and
expectations Foi\:\wmg on frorm the
coronavirus pandem’c and changes
to work/home ife batance
Monitor and respond to charges in
zonsumer trends, pdrtlcuhr\y araund
hea'thier 1festyles

24

To grow by carefully
targeted acquisitions and
deve|opments that enhance
our premium business

- To maintain the fabric of the
estate, ensuring high standards
and legal compliance for both
colleagues and customers
Streamlined project process,
utilising skills within the team
and pool of designers, delighting
customers and enhancing our offer
Maximise the potential fram our
exceptional estate, improving
operational efficiency,
premiumisation and stand out
Keeping appraised of potential
acquisition epportunities to add
value and by continuous assessment
of our estate.

Progress:
Durngtne year we comrpletzd the ful

imegrat ar of Cotseac lrrs & —ote <,

1zqared dunng tne prescos frarzal year

Cotswald Inns & Hota s ar excenenl
Froatr e oostrgbusress, 344 rg 200

bedracms to sur estate, and thos area

pe-izrred comparatoel, e ldunrg

yeiemth sy ca o boirg e in Loz
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We a'so opened The White Horse at
Wembley
of the wconic Wemb ey Arch, amidst 4 new
development of 6,000 homes

a groat new pub in the snadow

During the periads of enforcad closure
this ycar we have taken the opportunity

te complete a furge number of investment
schemnes including 10 transformatenal
refurbishments We have alsc mestod in
outside spaces and pub gardems inorder to
maximise the use of these spaces outside
of the summer months.

Priorities:
To comrplete further cutdoar projects
te maximise the garden trading ares
T conlinue with our programme of
MYESTMONL M OUr 85Lale T onsurc we
always have the best pub i the arca
To seek further acqu sit ons that
enhance cur estate ind increase our
customer base
Measurerrent of aur success through

operanicns revenue and profit growth

Influences:
AcrailabiliLy of high qualty sites
and opoortunities

3

To build a leaner cost
base by investing and
improving processes

Building genuine partnerships that
keep input costs in check and give
Fuller's competitive product advantage
Drive collaboration by creating
effective cross-functional teams

A relentless and agile approach to
continuous improvement and efficiency,
with decisions backed by data

Taking responsibility for our future

by putting a value on sustainability

in every decision.

Progress:
T=s year ms5v pzer heaun yimpacied by
corarg.tus and the asscomted restng oo

ama procedarss that ba.e beer racessasy

du-rgihe peraos puss a0 sesr asle

t= trage W ccosyiully implamantae

irarge ot sves And procedares,
~oohoas Order & Pa,wbich al ows he

Coaizmier 1 perasg the mieru, plaze




of the coronawirus outbreak, These
procosses are now embedded in our
operations and b ave stood us in good
stead as wo move Lhrough the reopering
phases during the now fimancial year,

Durihg the year, we have also enhanced
the way we use our cenlral booking system
and team This has further improved the
customer jeuracy and increused auto
conlirmed resorvat ons welh better
scheduting of bookings, and ensuring we
offer suitable alternative venues within the

estate where sites are fully booked.

Foliowing a full review of the supply chain,
we huve moved te a new ordering system,
tnat sees orders placed twice weekly and
delvered tws days later, dr\vmg better
planming and Forocasting, whilst improving
eTicieney for aur suppliars,

During the year we have dentified,
planned and are already well underway
with the project te trans tion to 2 mars
suitable finance systemn far a focused
pubs ard hotels busines, which will
both simplify our ordering and accounts
processes and improve the flow of data
to the business.

Priorities:

. Comp|ete ‘mp\emomduon and raoil
aut of the rew Microsoft Business
Central sefltware package during
auturmn 2021

- Buld on our single view customer
databasc by |dcnl\fy|r‘|g key intaraction
pointsin the cusLomOrJoumCy and
digital solutions toimprove the
customer journcy
Measure our success through
gross profit marg ns, Net
Promoter Score, contactable
database numbers and marke—tmg
campaign return on nvestment,

Influences:
Changes m consurrer benaviour due to
the impact of the coronavirus pandemic
Increased customrer use of digital
techro'ogy
Impartance of %mfeguardmg personal data.

o

Supportin these
objectives iy recruiting,
developing and investing
in the Eest people

A modern, transparent and fair
reward package that attracts

and retains the right people and
incentivises high performance

An inclusive workplace where
wellbeing is taken seriously, and
everyone has a place and a voice
Genuine opportunities for a career
and a strong talent pipeline with
the right skilis for the future

A compelling and differentiated
employment brand coupled with

a best-in-class recruitment experience.

Progress:

During the panderric, the health and
we”be;ng of cur teams has been supported
in several ways. We hava shared hints,
tips and courses, provided access to
resources, regular video updates and
more targeted support in the ferm of
supermarket vouchers for those most
impacted. During the year 1,616 online
courses were completed om a rarge of
subjects as diverse as managing time
and learning 4 new language.

We supported our Tenants during the
pandermic in a variety of ways, including
suspending commercial rent during
periods where they were unable to trade
ard by signposting saurces of franciat and
emotional suppert. As a result, sur Tenants
have beenin a position of strength as they
reopened their pubs.

Pricrities:
Continue to find the best psople
through a strong employer brand -
work s well underway in this area
Ensure we are fit for the future with
the right orgamisational structure,
capability and roles
EHHUFC aur pOOp|C CXPC‘rleﬁCe Eﬂgr]gc‘u
our teamn members, fuiftls their needs
and ambitiors, and encourages the best
peaple to stay at Fuller’s
Lndertake an employee savsfucnon
survay during the current full year
Continue to roil out our new employer
brand  Trueto You  andsupport this
with onpoing persondl developmrent and
carecr progression

19

Measure our success through staff
Lurnower, .‘lpp\lcat\om rumbers per role,
number of successful apprenticeships
and staff engagement.

Influences:
lrmpazt of potenual changes 1o the size
ard composit on of our workferce n
the hight of caronauvirus and changing
consurrer behaviour
mpact of Brexit or the lsbour market
pool within the hospitality industry
Avalabihity of labour with apprepridte skills

S

A clear ESG strategy under

Life is too good to waste

A road to net zero delivered through
energy and waste management
reducing our carbon footprint
Supporting the communities in which
we operate through charity links and
community-based initiatives
Supporting our teams through training
and development, health and wellbeing,
and a sense of belonging.

Progress:

ESG has always been important to us,

but this yeor we have added thes as our
fitth strategic prionty to recogniee ity
importance at the heart of the business
and will report prograss on this im our

next Annual Report We arein the process
of tiring a dedicated Head of Sustanabihity
who willbe responsible for implementing
the programme and setung and delvering
KPls against it. Further detals on the

Life is too good to waste imit-ative can be
found in the Corporate Social

Rcspomslb-hty P{eport on page 34,

Priorities:
Establishing a road to nat zere through
energy ard waste management,
reducing our carban footprint
Increasing our support for our
charity partners
Crea:mg aninclus ve worcplace,
cortinuing our runge of welloeing
ritiatres and carecs planning

Influences:
Impact of Government regulation and
ircentives on environmental imitiatives
Meaa and consurner focus on
ESG related ssues
Extermal infiuences such as coronavirus
or Brexit provide addittonal chal enges
to the welloeing of cur teams,

N\L}I/’\JO/\O

0]
Q
<
5]
£
2
=
I}
s}

S}UOL‘LJO]UJS ‘UDUL’U\;‘

UOIIPLUJOJU| ‘[‘UOI]\F)F)V



STRATEGIC REPORT

At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR EMPLOYEES

Feeling like a team even though
we couldn't be together -
keeping our people connected,
motivated and engaged

With our tesm members spread across the South of England,
regular communicatien during the pandemic was essential.
Our digital learning and communications platform, Fuse, was
used for frequent infarmative and entertaining videos from
the Chief Executive and for online learning to keep our
teams engaged. At 2 house level, it was much the same.
Take The Victaria in Paddington, where Chris Cochrane and
Helen Wilson kept in touch with their team through
a combination of WhatsApp, quizzes and even a collaboration
video with all the tearn submitting their contributions
individuslly to create something unique for The Vie.

20

FULLER S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



O(_Oﬂ{_ﬂé

Governance

Financial statements

Additiondl information

21

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2021



STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review

ADAM COUNCELL
FINANCE DIRECTOR

“The focus during the long periods
of closure was to ensure that the
Group emerged strongly once the
estate reopened, with continued
investment in capital projects and
our digital offering”

22
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Financial Position and Performance
Al Fipures below are for the continuirg
operations of the Group,

Group revenue and other income fell by
7%, sgnifying the detrimental impact

that the enforced closure of cur business
unsurprisingly had on the results. On
awerage our pubs were anly open to tradz
for 29% of the days wathin the FY21
firancral year and even whilst open they

el Ll dLJl' \g Ll I\.Jl‘,'l Il C‘)L‘ [[SATSINEN

The S\gﬁ\ﬁcﬂﬂt dQC‘\ﬂE‘ N revenue reSUlLCd [g}
an adjusted loss before tax of E48.7 milion
(FY20Q: profit of £19.4 milion} and statutory
loss before tax of £57.8 milhon (FY20.
prafit of E8.4 million). In periods whare

we nave beer abe to trade, albe't with
restnctions, trading has been encouraping
with positive cash generation and like for ke
sales in Managed Pubs and Hotels at 20%
duning the penod between 4 July 2020

ard 5 September 2020, Sirce then the
restrictions becarre mare onerous, resultng
in the eventual closure of our entire ostate
around the end of Dccombcr, wrtil thase
pubs with outsice space could recopen on

12 /\pr|| 2021

The focus during the lang periods of
closure was to ensure that the Group
cmorgcd erong\y once the ostate
reopencd, with continued investment

i capital projects and our digital of fering
Heowewver, 1L alse meant ensuring we
oratected our financial position and kept
cash burn to a minimum. The Group
implemented a number of mitigating

act ors to reduce cash outflows and
maintain hiquidity, including the decision
not to pay & duidend for FY20 and FYZ1,
no bonuses for FY20, avoluntary salary
reduction by the Board and Executive
Team members of 25% and 20%
respectively, and carrying out an exercise
to mghtalze tedms across the entire pub
estate ond strearline the support function,

As well as reducing costs internally, the
Group also participated in Government
Aibatves to protect the viability of the
business, ncluding the CJRS, Eot Cut to
Help Out scheme and Business Rates grants.
Trrough the var ous schemes the financial
results benelited by £479 millon. The Group
was also confirmed s an chigiblessuer under
the CCFF scheme and ssued cormmercial
paper of 100 O milhan. Even with al tne
medsures put in place and the Assistance
recaved from the Government, cash burn
was around £4 5 million per month

Like for like sales when open

807%

Net debt excluding leases

£2181m

Shortly after the end of the financial

year the Group rased £52 million, net of
expenses, through the issue of new equity.
This leaves the Group in a strong financial
position vath sensible levels of debt given
our asset nch Balanee Sheet It from this
position of strength Lhat the business will
be able ta maxirmise the oppor tunitics open
ta it 45 the ecanomy reopens and trading
aln- mamenlum.

On 7 June 2020, the Group sold The
Stable to Three Jocs [or an enterprise
value of E0 5 mitlon, which resulted
maloss on disposat of EOG mllon.

As The Stable was sold durmg the por\od,
the results have beer reported within
discontinued operations. The arnounts
shown as discontinued gparations within
the Francal statemants ace an operating
lass of £0.2 mithon as welt as the loss on
disposal. As part of the transaction,
Fuller’s retained ownership of the fiie
frechold properties assocated with

The Stble bus.mess
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Finance Costs

Tota' net firance costs (befere separately
disclosed items) have increased bry

£O0 8 million to £8 .4 million. The increase
v driven by the interest cost recognised on
the urwind of the lcase habihues This has
incredsed by £0.6 million because of rent
concessions received during the course of
the financ.1l year which have been treated
a5 lease modifications and remeasured at
Aar \WCFE(!\C‘d IHCr[‘mE‘HLd‘ bOrrG\Nlng rate
BR™) from tne IBR used ot imcoptlcn
Interest on losrs has remained in ine wath
priOr ye ar dE“x‘D\VtE' thC dVCr(‘.gE‘ moqth‘y
borrowings incredasing by £74 millien,

as this was offeet by the lower interest
rates on the CCFF

Tre net intemost expense or our defined
benefit pension scheme s shown wthin
separately disclosed items as the charge 15
driven by market conditions at sn arbitrary
paintin time and 15 rot associated with cur

undor|y|ng tmdmg

Separately Disclosed ltems

The net pos.ton on separate'y

disclosed items of £91 million expense
{2020, 011.0 millign expense) comprises
principally £129 millior of imparment on
arumber of properties. nght-of-use assets,
lease recewable and goodwill. Additionally,
£1.9 milion of rearganisation costs were
recognised in the period which include
redundancies as a result of the pandemic
as weil as costs associated with the hive

Up O‘F Bel &The Drdgoﬂ (1ﬂd COtS\NO‘d ‘hﬂﬁ
& Hotels These casts were marginally
DFF‘:E‘{ by ES 8 mlH;Dﬂ pFOF\L on d\‘\PO‘Sﬂl
rECOgﬂlsed I rE|.’itiOﬂ to seven PrDPertieg

most of which were unlicensod properties

Tax

Afull ana'yes of the tax charge for the
year is set out n note 7 to the fimancial
statemenls Tax has been provided for

st an effective rate of 18.3% on adjusted
losses (2020 restated: 371% on adjusted
profits) from corunuing operations. The
overal effective tax rate of 16 8% 15 due to
the scparately duclosed itemns being taxed
At an offectve tax rate of 2.7%.

A pror year sdjustment to the nat deferred
tax hiability has been recognised in the year,
n ’CHPC‘CLO"dﬂ understatement 11 the

base cont of property, plant and equipment
recoverdble on a sales basis, This has
resulted in anincrease of £4.0 million in net
assets at 31 March 2019 and a reduction

N\B}I-JDJ‘\O
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review continued

52 weaks N
ended
27 March
201
Revenue and other income £m s
Mamaged Pubs and Hozels 64.0 286.3
Tenanted Inns 9.2 297
Jnallocatad 0.2 37
Group revenue and other income from continuing operations 734 3197
52 weeks .
ended
27 March
2021
Adjusted (loss)/profit by segment Em o
Managed Pubs and —otels (26.1) 306
Torantea lans 1.2 1.8
Uralocaied (15.4) (15.4)
Operating (loss)/profit from continuing operations {40.3) 27.0
Finarce costs (8.4) (7.6)
Adjusted (loss)/profit from continuing operations (48.7) 194

24

of £10 millon to the profit after tax
for FYZ0. The net deferred tox habiby
at 28 March 2020 has reduged by
£4.0 millon from £171 millien to

E13 1 reheon,

Durmg the year the S\gmﬂcan: fax revenues
the Group generates for the Governmen:
fell by 82%. Duning the 52 weeks ended

27 March 20217, the tota! Lax contribution

of the Group to the UK Exchequer was
£159 million (2020, €879 rullon) n

taxes borne and taxas collectea on behaf

of collesgues, custarrers and supplers, This
signficantreduct'on comprises a reduction
in VAT payments of £31.7 million to just

0 2 million in the yedr (FY20 €319 million)
and a corporation tax recaipt of £3.4 milion
due to the losses incurred. The business rates
hol duy resulted in 5 Sdving SF£13.6 million.

Pension

The def ned benefit persion scheme
deficit has decreased oy £1.2 milion w0
£3.5 millior (2020 £4.7 millior) wath botn
the fair value of scheme assels ara present
value of pension okligstions incredsing
substantally. The presertvalue of pension
cbligations incressed by £'3.8 milion

te £147.3 milion, which wis driven by
adecrease in the discourt rate from
240% t0195%, This was offset by an
increasa of the fair value of ~cheme assats
by £20 G mi'lien from £123.5 million 1o
143 8 mlhen Stangaerd delicit recovery
paymerts of £2 3millon were alsa made
during the Ninancial year.

Shareholders’ Return

'm hight of the closure of the estate for
the majonty of the financ al year tne
Board 1« not propos rg the payment
of a fnal dividend

Cunng the per od ne ‘A ordirary 400
shares ware purchased inio treasury
(2020:487C0 A ord mary 400 shaes
for E0 & milica), Tre middle -markest
custation of the Company’s ordrary
shares st the erd cf the franc s yeam was
85%p. The h ghest prco dur ng the y=ar
was BROp, whilz the
Tre Compiny's ma

losest wss 230p

ot cap Lisat an
al 27 Moarch 2020wz £474 & il o
(Z020 E332 8 mil' on)



202
Cash flow Em
EBITDA 13.n
Interest . (4.5)
Tax 34
Waorking capital (5.1
Penwon contributions and share transactions (2.6)
Cash available for discretionary spend (21.9)
Capital experditure (16.5)
Soparately disclosed items (1.5}
Property disposals 10.8
Dividend- “ (0.1
Disposal of Stable (0.2)
Cash flow (29.4)
MNon-cash mavement 13.2
Net debt movement (16.2)

2040
Sources of finance Em
Bank debt 207.7
Other debt 27.5
Cash (7.1)
Total net debt excluding leases 2181
Lease liabilities 89.9
Total net debt 308.0

Cash Flow and Net Debt

Overall net debt at 27 March 2021 has
increased by £39 2 million te EZ18.1 milion
excluding leases. due Lo the enforced
closure of the business for a substantial
part of the financial year Including leases,
net deot has increased by £16.2 miflion to
E308.0 milhon, reflecting a reducton n
lease liabilities of £23.0 millian driven by
the sale of The Stable (£10.5 milion) and
anumber of rent concess ons receved in
the year that were treated as lease
modifications (£10.0 million).

Working capital outflow of £57 millien

was partly due to the amounts outstanding
from the Government for the CJRS as
well as the reduction in the VAT liability
compared to the pricr year.

Sources of Finance

A 27 March 2027 the Group has

£319.5 milhan of avalable facihities, of whicn
£292 million was schedu'ed to mature
within the rext 12 mortns. Our undrawn
committed faciliney at 27 March 2027 were
EB4.0 million, with o furtber 171 millicr
of cash held on the Balarce Sheet,

In June 2020, the Group ‘ncreased its
available faciles by accessing the CCFF
programme and 1ssuing E100 milhign

of commercial paper.

Since year end, the CCFF was repaid in
May 2021 and the Group agreed an Armend
and Extend Refinancing of its existing

debt faciliies with its relationship banks,
extending the matunty of the E192 millon
of debt Faclites 1o 19 February 2023 and
amemdmg the financial covenants to a
minimum liquidity level to 31 March 2022
The Group also raised a further £52 rllion,
net of expenses, frorm an equw'ty rdisc in

Apnl 2021,

£20 milion of cur borrowings st

27 March 2021 were hedged using

swaps at a blended interest rate of 2.30%
[exciudmg bank rﬂargm], The interest rate
swap agreements in place will allow us to
cont nue to borrow a portion of our bank
deot at u lixed nterest rate untll 2022,

e Greups Tnanc ng s 4 mix o pank

The Greup g

debt. debentures, cumulative preference
shares, overdraft, cash and short term

depouts, as disclosed in notes 24, 26 and
28 Other f.nancial assets and Labilities
such as trade receivables and payables
arise through the Group's eperating
activiies. The Group does not trade in
Minarcial instrurments

Financial Risks and Treasury Policies
The Group operates a centratised treasury
Functien, which contrels cash management
and borrovangs and the Group's financial
nzke. The objectives of the funcyon are

to manage the Group's linancial risk,

to secure cosl effective Funding Tor the
Group's operalions, and Lo minimise the
adverse effects of fiuctuations in the
financial markets on the value of the
Group's financial assets and habilities,
onreported profitability, and on the

cash flows of the Group.

Transactions of a speculative naturc are
prohibited. The Group’s treasury actwvities
are governed by policies approved and
monitored by tne Board.

Going Concern Statement

The Group'> business activities, Logcthor
with the Facrors \me\y to affect ity future
deve\opmorﬂ, perForrndnce and position
are set out in the Strdiog\c Reporton
pages 4 to 38. The financial position of
the Compuny, its cash {lows, net debt zrd
barrawing facilities and the maturity of
those Facilitios are sel out above and on

pages 13612141

In addilion, there are further details in

the financial statements on the Group's
financial r:k management, objectives and
polcies innote 28. Tne Directors have
outhned the assessment approach for
going concern in the accourting policy
disclosurcin note 1 of the corsclidated
financial statements

There is a matenal urcerta nty that under

a downside scenario the Group would
breach its covenants within the going
concern penad Lo 27 Decermber 2022

and thes may cast sigificant doubt about
the Group's ability Lo cortinue as a going
concern as discussed in note 1; however,

the Bouard mas 4 ressonable expectation that
the Company has adequate resources to
continue In operationa, existence for the
foreseeable future. For these reasans, they
continue to adopt the gong corcen basis in
prepaning the Annual Report and Accounts
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Viability Statement

The Corporate Governance Code requrres
that the Directors have cons.dered the

v ability of the Group over an appropriate
period of time selecica by them. The
Duectors have chosen Lo avsess this over
three financial years through ta March
2024 as this ahgns with the Group's
strategic planming eycle ara s supported
by the forecasts that are presented and
spproved by the Board It takes irto
conaideration the Group’s current pesition,
the potential impact of the principal risks
documentad on pages 28 Lo 30 in the
Surategic Report as well as the wncertamty
regarding contiruing impacts of the
corenavirus pandemie Given the
continuad uncertamty over Lhe triding
condit ons in the UK, the Directors believe
that amy longer term farecasts are difficult

to determine al present,

The Graups base case assumes that even
though the estate was “ully open fram May
2027, sales n FY22 wall st |l be lrﬂp-jcted
oy reducucr in international travel, stow
return to affices snd continued mpact 61
consumer confidence. In FY23, the sales
wil continue Lo be mpacted by the
pandeic but to alaseer degres wilh sales
returning to pre pardeic level by FY24.

The Group's longer torm forecasts

take nts account the principal nsks and
uncer taint es as detailed on pages 253 o
30, The most sigraficart rsk continues

to be tre panderic and the continued
impact itimposas on trading, especially
on interndations. tournsm ard the shift

i people werking more from home
Lenger term risks include f mancing as

the Group's eurrent fund.ng arrangerents
expire in February 2023 and the Group
will need to be dble to source suitanle
financing at s muiar leves to thowe
currently agreeq Other lerager tarm
sources of nsk nclude cast inflanian
C(‘]US'Ed by mdrket urcerts r\L), ![T]D(]Ctlr'g
costs such as wages, utlines and food
Cansamer derand shfisirciud rg s mase
2 workng fromheme ind 3 cartnoed

srard taviards Fea\tly | Fg;t‘ 2y, dywel

as the UK econamy and s bl 1yt

rezgver, Mpact the lorger tarm

STRATEGIC REPQORT

Financial Review continued

The Group has lva madefled 2 “downside
case” which assumos there wili be three
months of fult lockdawn in FY22, being
December 2021 through to February
2022, arnd a further three months with
severe restiiclions akin to these
expenenced in Cetober 2020 Inthe
dewnside it will tuke longer to recover
from the pandermic and therefore under
tis scenano, w thout addinoral migating
action, the covenants in June 2022
through to December 2022 wou'd

be broached

g announced on 31 March 2021, the
Group agreed ar Amend ard Extend
Refinsneing of its sxisting debt fac Ities
withits relat onship barks, extending the
mraturity of the E192 milien facihities o

19 February 2023 and amerding the
fnancial covenants to a minimum hauidity
level to 21 Marcn 2022

QOn the same day 4 was alvo snnousced
that the Group proposed placing new A
shares up to approonately 20% of existng
issued A ordinary share capital. The
refinancing of the facilities was condit-oral
on the successful equily rarse, D 20 Apﬂ|
the equity raise was approved by the
shareholders at the Extracrdirary General
Meerng ("EGM™} und the net prozeeds
2FUS2 rwlan wace racened the same aay

In Jurne 2020, tne Group increased ity
averlable facilities by accessing the CCFF
programme which issued 2100 million

of commercia. paper The CCFF was
repay sble in May 2021 4nd was repa-d
using the Group's available facil tes and
the proceeds of tne equity rase.

Other acbons that have been
rrplementad tc reduce the cash
exoenditure each monih incluge

fur oughing the maor Ly of tne staff,
wemparsry pay cots for tne Man
Besrd snd Fxzcotive Directors, taking
advanzege of business rates Falidays
as sgreed by the Governmaent gy well
32 3pply rg for grarticcome and ine
canc he fra dradend for
both 2020 310 2021 year ands
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Inthe "base case”, the ririmum hquidity
requirements sre not forecast to be
breached, nor are the covenants when
they revert te minimum ‘everage and
nterest cover in June 2022 The
“dowrade case” shows that when the
covenants revert they wi'l be breached
unless sufficient alternate strategies
could be implementad. Gven the Group
would breach covenants under the
“downside case” and althougn severe
Lis stil plausible, ths gives rise to

4 matoral uncertairty over the going

concern assumption

Takirg account of the Groups current
position, the material uncertainzy
descrbed above, the principal nisks facing
the business and the sensitiaty analysis,
a5 well as the potentia mitigaling actions
that the Compdﬂy could take, and the
expenence that the Company has in
adapting the busness to change, the
Board has a reasorable expectat or that
the Compaﬁy will be ab'e to continue in
operation and meet its Labilites as they
“all due over the peried of the

wability assessment.

. Larmmncall

ADAM COUNCELL
FINANCE DIRECTOR

£ July 2021



At the heart of our community

SUPPORTING OUR SUPPLIERS

Always working with our suppliers
to develop new ideas for mutual
benefit that give the customer
something to smile about too

Laverstoke Park Farm already supplies our very popular
range cf ice-creams and our buffale mozzarella. But halloumi
- now that has always had to come from Cyprus. We love
UK-based produce though, so undeterred we set out
together ta take this popular European cheese and give
ita very British twist. The result is our unique buffalomi.
This fun, delicious and innovative new addition to our menus
is made from the high qua“ty milk of the Laverstoke Park
Farm buffalo and Hampshire CDWS, mllk! and iS already

proving to be very Popu]ar with our customers.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Management

Muanaging risks effectively s key to
ensuning that we achigve our strategic
objactwves irthe ’ong term and
cantinue to defiver the bigh standard
our customers, people and

sharenclaers expect.

RISK MANAGEMENT

and strateg ¢ risks. Tnese rnisks are ther
assoyved and Apuropriete mivgabion and
managemert plans sre implemented to
reduce tne potentidl ikehhood and
impact The suitability of these act'ons

i reviewed through robust reporting ard
moritonng which creates a feedback

Responding to the

Coronavirus Pandemic

During the course of the last year the risk
relaling to corondviras was prodctive\y
mdr\ded [alaNt ‘MCC\EL\’J ﬁr\d EOWC\\TES

dm\y basis by the Executive Team

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

loop enabling & cantirusus improvernent
The foliowing sets out the prircipal

The rick munagement process process t@ bein place regarding ~sk
managed by the Executive Team and
s overseen by the Audit Comm tiee

which is furthar supported by the

ranagemert. The includos reviswing risks the business faces st present

ownersn'p and accountablity of risks tnat may impact future performance.

ard cortre's azross the Exccutive and This analysss s not intencad to be
exsernal sudit pracess. Both the
Exccutive Team and the Aodi

Comrmttee repert to the Main Boara.

Management Learms, a comprehensive list of oll risks actively

managed by tho business The key

Risks are proactively mansged fimancial r sks are deraled in nore 28
throughout the year Regular nsk IS

. to the financal staterments
Risk Management Process cLne ° i

: ‘ reporting is made to the Executive
Risks oredertifed, conaiderad and

Tezm ard then reperted to the

observed at all levels of the businass Audil Commitzen

includ ng opcrdtiomﬂ. administrative

Emerging Risks

Description Risk mitigation

UK ECONOMY

There has been s sevece rrpact to the UK (ard

The risk s kept under review 35 we wnplement our strategy. fuinforms the cvel
of hqud ty we target to keep in the bus ress, the way inwhich we irvest in our
g|©bdD economy From corondvirus the fuil \mpac‘, d\'.er'S\rIC::I astate to mdnage fuctuat onsin d|FFe’enL Pdrts of the cconomy
of which nas yet to be understood, In sdditian, nag the ﬂ@wawhty we laox forin future |easmg srrangements
the measures which the Government has pat

in place huve cost cilhons of pounds, ail of which

mill evertual'y be recouped Lh'o-_.gh taxalior.

Strategic Risks

Description Risk mitigation

CORONAYIRUS AND
FUTURE PANDEMIC

The coronavros gutbreak has had a sesmic impact

We have undertaken s significart nightsiz mg activity across cur estate and central
support office to reduce our angoing cost base. We have taken advantage of

the Governrrent support for business through the job retention scheme, business
on our ndustry. This has most ebviously been rates holiday for the hosptality sectar, made use of the Bank of England Cowd
through the closure of i our pubs and hotels o hele. Corporate Finaraing Fazility ard increased our iqu-diny levels throngh anequty
bt the spread of the wius, folowed bytheenforred  rase We contirue to partaken dscussions vath Goverrment and irade bodies
soci! distancing and cther restnctions 43 we have to influence the future rmposing and hiting of any restrictions

reopened Tne gudelnes irow lavws in sorme cases, .
) W2 continue 1o monitor our cast base or @ marthly and weedy pass. On asite

ard Gevernment restriclions have changed regularly

level we reviews week'y pro’ tikliny and rev ew tha cost of closure and subaquert

and are lkely 1o zerorue 1o charge There are

. renpening versus slower trid ng per ods 1o moake the gptmal decimors.
charges i tme boha wour of sur custamers ang e s

ther ptterns in L sting oar differert sitas We ra.ointraguced clear corara, rus pracedoros orall olr s tas which are

2o rogularly
Tz kealtn and ssfety of ourteam membes 1 ERE

2rtes ind senascimplemented spproor ale Gaong “armard vz = -y morizenng sur ek flow to ersore ve marta e

messurss for snem o carry out tha - 7o ey il sppropriate losel of 1quid L cortnuz to keep adersined estarg and res aw e

fox mhzy riolzases

compos torinths |-gﬁt ol zorrznt a0t reg

) - ATrarrore
Trorz s arincrzned ka'bood of subsequer: &

gong forward keaping sirerg ties otk Gavernmer: buldie g snoour carrer:

irdemize, ¢ Ler artirel, mav strams of 4 oo,

sperse plie, arg sy ring ang er‘hﬂ.n:mé aur :ex:b\‘uty r

vom

- ',-r‘dC"‘W ora
of sme currertssra s Tho —pact F

[l Sdelant=1d

CLITCrmEr

rewclots 4
- ‘ T8 ard operal sna proceds
of angthergimdem 2 s ieely tobe s milar 1o ke = ¥
sfibacorrentor o

cuapone
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Description

Risk rmutigation

CONSUMER DEMAND SHIFTS
The business™ success is attributable toits ability
to anticipate and react to consumer demand

There have been accelerated changes caused
by the ?mpch ol caronaviras ir\ciudmg, but
not imited to, working from home, cashless,
people buy rig aleohol for consumption in the
homre, demard shfincity venues versus rural;
and 2 cortinued trend towards healthy and
estyle choices.

Maragement moritor and research consumer trends and run trials of now technologies

We gather consumer feedback through Net Promoter Score surveys, customer

Compbrnti ﬂﬂd Oﬁ‘\FE‘ 'jﬂd ‘Socldl med\d FOVICW S

We analyse retall pricing and market share dats to ensure we are competitive but

stll prermium

fr addibon, throuph the experience oFdedhng with coranavirus, the business has
become more flexibie ir dealing vath changes in operational measures, preduct and

servce offerngs,

HEALTH AND SAFETY
The health and safety of our employecs and
custaomers 1y 4 kc‘y prworlly FC‘F us

Operdimg g |»_1rge ﬂur‘ﬁber OF sites \VI"CFEH:\CS
the chal.enge of ensuring the highest health
and safety standards are adhered to.

There 15 a risk of 4 customer suffering from falure
to deliver aur allergens policies ard procedures.

We have a comprehens. ve traning prograrrme in place for our ernployees coverirg
all aspects of health and safety

All sites comp|oto arsk assessment ard are roguirod to undertake detailed week\y
and monthly compharce checks which are then subject to review by our in house
hea'th and safely team. Live nisk assessrmerts and appropriste adjusiments to sites
to comply with Government guidelines and restrictions .n response 1o coronavirus
srein place The allergen procedures we have implemented to manage the nsks are
over ard abave whal s legally required, and are continuously reviewed, to ensure
CONLro's remain appropriaie.

We cantinue to ut lise the services of expert third party health and safety auditors
16 undertake annual audits on al our sites and parform detailed invastigatiars in

instarces where an incident does accur,

RECRUITMENT AND RETENTION
OF EMPLOYEES

The recruitment and retention of high calibre
employees s fundarrental to our abiity to delver
a distinctive experience for aur customers, and
to suppert our growth agenda. In partieulsr thes
applies to the roles held by the wupport affice
staff. whe may view a career within Fospitality

av less attractive than other parts of the

cconomy currcntiy.

We have succession plansin place for key senior managerent roles and have drawn
upon these when selecting an Executive Team to delver the Board's strategy for
the new pubs ard hotels focused business.

Grven the competiton lor high quality candidates across our sites, we have plans

r the year ancad to significantly improve the process and systems surrounding

our recruitment stralegy to ensure that our offer to all employeesis attractive,

We provide suppert for staff from the EU and have increased the number of chef
apprentice positions for UK cand dates By nvestung n our emmployees and of fering
them real career paths, we are able to differentiate ourselves from the competiton
and ensure that we remain the employer of chaice in a challenging market

We cantinue to review and imprave the entire reward scheme to cnsure that it
competitive 11 both pay and benefits far all team members

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group s mcre-,axmg\y relisnt onits information
systems to operate, and tr.—jdlr\g would be affected
by Any \lgniFlc—mt or prolonged Falures arnd/or
datd loss I addition, the sophistication Ofcybor

attacks contimues Lo meredse.

Cur IT function has a range of facihities and contrals ie place to ensure that in
the event of anissue normal aperation would be restored quickly. These include
a formal T Recovery Plan, online replcation of systems and falover datacentres,
and external support far hardware and software. We continug to intreduce mere
proventive measures to reflect the increased risk,

FINANCING

The current funding arrangements of the
Gusiness are due tc expire in 2027 and there s
arisk that we are unab'e to find suitable finunc'rg
In sddition. interest rates may increase, adversaly
‘mpacting profit, andfor there could be a nsk

of breaching hinanaial covenarts.

We have a good relationship with our current barkers and, given the predominantly
freehold nature of our business, we have the ability to offer mere certamty than
many 'nour sector when rasng firance Alternative financing approaches are
avalible, inzluding equty, as evidenced by the recent funding

Interest rote costs have been managed threugh our ong-term financing
arrgngements grd we have successfully waved covenants and agread new
measures that have mirimised any rsk of breach.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Description

Risk mitigation

COST INFLATION

Market uncertainty and increasing demand 'eads
o cost pressurcs in several areas, such as facd
and drine producuor‘: utiities and staff costs

The Lorg-Term Supply Agreement with Asahi
Eurcpe Ltd s now embedded in our bus ness mocel
and the impact of Brext broadly understood

Qurpreference s to have lorg term agreements in place with owur supplers inang
any price rises ta CPL We have o Lang-Term Supply Agreement i place with Asak,
Europe Ltd for the supply of beer, cider and other beverages, which limits increases
te CPI. Other suppliers are also inked to CPlwith long term agrecments, |

We regularly monitar prices uwing relevant commodity databases, review forward
looking inflstron and all contracts are competitivoly tendered

The margh s monitored internally and our retal pricing s monitared quarterly,
compared Lo our compatitors

Th[ \FTTP'Cmeﬂt\".tIOﬂ Ord new PFOPEFLY mantenance SySLC"TT hai mproved :Oﬂtru“ii

oN property Couts.

SUPPLY CHAIN

There 1s s risk that poor perfermance by our
supphers may damage customer satisfacrion and
could impact the profitability of the Comrpany.
Any large scale ssue with out of stock itemrs
could have a big impact on trade in our businesses
This risk includes any impact from Brexit that has
yob ta fully emerge due to hospital by ¢ osure
either in the UK or EU.

We bave a Lang Term Supply Agreement in p'ace with Asah, Europe Lid for the
supply of beer, cider and other beverages This ensures that products will meet
certain brana performance metrics, and the suoply service s subJect w0 koy
perr'ormamce indicators CKPI7s]

All other key suppliers are subject to service and quality KPl. which are maniLored
an 1 monthly basis,

Our preferencers lor long-term agreements and strong relatonships. The

re atiorship with Asahiand Fuller's 1s now mare mature, and we work with smaler
supplizrs to ensure that they grow nealthy, sustainable businesses outs de of therr
agreemant wath Fuller’s. The supply chain has successfully survived the Cowd ens,
wh.ch gres us confiderce inits ongoing robustress.

SUSTAINABILITY

There s sk that the Falure Lo e1ansge clmate
change risk could rpact prafitability through
taxansn, regulation and supply chain uncertsinty,
naddilien Lo repatatiora darage

We bave developed 3 sustainabiity programee and continue to enhance thes,

We consider the impact of E3G as part of customer, pecole, suppher and Tenarted
strategies and policies going forward

For more details. seo the Corporate Soc al Resporsibility stalement on pages 34
538

WAGE COSTINFLATION

Future labour cast ircreases may mpact the
profitsbility of the busress The princpal drvers
of suzhircreases ac proectiors for “uture
ncreases in the National Living Wige, coupled

with ary potential for o tighteming of labour supply.

The v.o< to the business rerma ns despae the
pandermic, s unemp'ayment, whicn although
Figh during the last year of lockdawns has already
begur to fall.

We a m to mitigate the r'sk of such incredses through 3 cornbination of Mproved
operatonal efficiency and passing the cost or through the prizes we charge
Withaut these apporiunilios, the business would suffer a reduction in erofitability
across both pubs and hatels

Operat ona eff ciency medsures nelude the nghtaizing exercises, use of
technology {Crrder & 2ay app) and madeling labour per ime of day to optimise
sta*frglevels. The introducuion of pay barding as part of the roward rev ew wil
ensure conaistency of pay and prownde an effect e way to manage costs,
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This statement has been prepared in
compliance with The Companies
(Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018,

In arder to comply with Section 172 of the
Companias Act. the Board is required to
take into considerauon the interests of
stakcholder s and include a statement
setting out the way in which Directors
have discharged this duty durng the

year. More imformation about our key
staxehalders and how we angage with
them can ke found in the Strategic Report
on pages 32 and 33

The Board considers that, n complying
with its statutory duties, it has acted

in good Faith to promote the success
of the Company for the benefit of its
shareholders a¢ a whale and considered
the interests of all its stakeholders, and
indoing so had regard to.

7l the likely consequences of any
decision in the long term. For Fuller’s
ardits Bodrd of Directors, this has
a\ways been an mtegra\ part of the
culture of 4 very long-established
business. The long term for Fuller's
means much more than normal
business modelling entails [Lis at the
heart of al' decisions taken by
tne Board

b

puaty

the interest of the Company’s
employees Detals of the normal
cngagemeant process with employees
can be found in the Stakehelder
Engagerment section on page 32 and in
the CSR secuen on pages 37 and 38,
inaddition, more information relating
to speafic engagement in relation to
the coronavicus can be found on pages
3,112, and 14,

P

c) the need to foster the Company’s
business relationship with suppliers,
customers and others. The Board
believes that delivering the strategy
successtully requires strong mutually
beneficial relatiorships with supphiers
and customers and indeed w th
industry bodies that further the
interests of the sector as a whole.
Mare deta's of engagement can

be found in the Corporate Sociy!
Responstulity report on page 34

Section 172 Statement

d) the impact of the Company’s
operations on the community and
the environment. The Board has
developed its commitment to
corporate socul responsibility and
agreed a new Environmental, Social
and Governanee programme. Detals
can be found on page 34,

o

3 the desirability of the Company
maintaining a reputation for high
standards of business conduct. Fuller’s
v well regarded as 3 business because
it has a cons stent recerd of deing the
right thing  one of the most endunng
key values of the busness. This forms
partof the Fullers culture,

;

—r

the need to act fairly as between
members of the Company. The urique
capial structure of Fuller’s as a partly
listed company has always required the
Directors to balance the irterests of

a diverse shareholder base. The focus on
the long term s well understood by the
Cormpany’s shareholders themselves,

Principal Decisions

1) Impact of coronavirus
As detailed in the Charmaen's and Chief
Executive’s Statements on pages 2 to
15, the financial year ended 27 March
2021 has been an extraordinary year
for tne business both starting and
ending with the remporary closure
of the entire business due to the
coronavirus pandemic.

The Board moved quickly te a reutine
of weekly video conference calls and
recerved regular updates Trom the
Executive Direclors regarding the
mpAct of the pdr\dcrmc on the
business and its emplayees, and was

able to act quickly with critical decisions

required in the period. The response

to the coronavirus zrisis is sot out on
pages 3, 1112,and 19 The activives
taken throughout the crisis Rave shown
the Board has paid due regard Lo all
stakeholders and ensured the business
[ ‘Ne” pOSIt\'Oﬂe‘d For ‘Oﬂg Lerm gFOWLh

o)
o

Equity raise

The decis’'on to launch the equity raise
wirs considered very carefully by the
Board. The long periad of closure was
very expensive for the Company, and
every other company in the sectar
The Board concluded that taking

into account shart term funding
requirernents (e, such us repaying the
100 million commercial puper from
the CCFF by end May 20210, the
structure of a non preemptive placing
was the most efficient route and in the
best interests of shareholders, It was
agreed that successful completion of
the placing would equip the Company
with maximurm f nancial flexibility to
ex t the pandem-c strongly and be in
the best possible position to execute
its growth and recovery strategy

The equity raise was approved through
a series of genera' meetings, and a'l
resolutions were passed with greater
than 9%% of votes in favour,

MOIA G/\O

)
Q
z
o]
=
>
2
o
o

$IU2WSIRIC |FISURLI

LOIPLLIC U] [PUDIIPPYY



OUR PEOPLE

Our people are s key asxot and
cribcal to the success of the businass,
They make the cxpenence for the
customer ard deliver our busiress

strategy at every level.

How we Engage

Durmg the panderic, vie had
10 review and evolve the way
we cemmunicate with our
emnployees  and we focused
on uuing our digial leasming and
communicatiors platforrr,
Fuse, to deliver updates, d'gital
tranming to keep people mentally
stimulated, and signpost ng for
emouona’ und mental wellbeirg
suppart (Maore e the Thief
Exccutive's Revicw, page m

Further Information

W il be undertaking a review
oF aur employce ergagement in
the current Tinancial year. We
hive dlso strengrhened our focas
on Diveruity and Inclusion and wil
recort further progress in mext
year's Annual Report We have an
El:|‘._.~:! Oppartun ses Pohoy, which
devgned taersure al coleagues
are reated equaly in torms of
lraining. career de.elopment and
promotion Al team members are
g.en ar landulgence card which

@.e- them g colcague diszount

sor Managee Pubs ord Hotels
~ .

Suaifymgeme ayzes are also
noted 13 patI Cioate N oour

Sy an

gs Re atea Share Optor

Skare Irzerte Plar

And g saroly ol poric o groe

rElarad Bon s arrgmgrTonts

STRATEGIC REPORT

Stakeholder Engagement

OUR TENANTS

Our Terants sre an extens or of the
Fuller's team, although they base
autonomiy in runmng their own
husiness We aim to recrait Tenants
who share our values and phi'osaphy.

How we Engage

We have a4 team of Business
Development Marager led
by an expencnced Head of
Tenanted Operations who
cnsure that cur Tenants are

in the Best place to operate

4 successful business that
delivers a goed return for botn
parties. Dunng the pandermic,
we susperded commeraia’ rant
in lockaowns L ensure they

emerged strongly

Further Information

This year has highlighred the
entreprensuria’ nature of cur
Tenarts. They nave opened

the r pubs as commun ty stores
{sec page 81 and served the
Famecless They are very /able
within therr communities and we
Figh'y value the'r zontr Bution

to our busress,
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QUR SHAREHOLDERS

Qur shareholders range from
“ounding family members Lo retar
snarenolders and large imstitutional
investers. They awn our business and
pravide us with the capital that

enables us to progress our strategy

How we Engage

We maintain a regalar dilogue
with all our shareholders We
actively engage with them as
part of cur investor roadshaves
folowing results presentations
and we are cauly sccessible o
deal with questions ard feadback
tnroughoul the year,

Further Information

Curng the year, we speke 1o
mvestors about our proposed
new Remuneraticn Palicy which
was submitted ta the 2020
Annua' Gereral Meeting and
we launched an cquity rase

1o ensure we exited the
pandemic in the best possibe
posiior Bath proposals were
Lran mcaus Y z‘]OPrD\ICd ar‘d we
tmark cusshsrensiaers for thar

SUDPETT N b process



OUR SUPPLIERS

Anexcellent supply chains a key

tenct of our busiress and we lock for

gcr\uhe pdrmer'ah\ps that provldo
a real point of difference.

How we Engage

We build a solid relationship watn
our supphers that stlows for
mutu-)“y beneficial collaboration
This results ina range that s

vy lable Only ar Fuller's.

Further Information

We work with our suppliers to
morutor consumer trends and
changing tastes. This allows

s Lo evolve ang adant our offer
and menus to reflect these
rnacre trends

LEGISLAIURE

We cperateina hlgh\y reguhted
sector and, espacially durirg the
recent pandemic, we have had
increased dinfogue At both local
and nanonal level.

How we Engage

We regularly meet with both our
local MP and other leg slative
stakeholders including thraugh
membership of both the Sritsh
Beer and Pub Assacistion and
UK Hospitality. We regularly
comtribule to consultations an
ssues that impact our sector

Further Information

The work and engagement that
has been carried out during the
pandemic has strengthened our
relationships and contacts
ameng, particularly, national
pohcy makers and we will
maintain these relstionships
going forwards.
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OUR COMMUNITIES

The Great British pub has always been
al the heart of the community and we
strive Lo uphold that position by being
a good neighbour, supperting worthy
causes and providing employment

How we E ngage

We have recently launched on
ESG prograrmme as i key teret
of our overall business strategy
The it ative, Life s too goad

to waste, includes our
COMMUNIty programme.

Further lnformation

The Life is too good to woste
programme also covers
5ustamabi\ity, which 1s maore
important tham ever to our
custemers, our team members,
and ail our stakeholders, See
page 34 for further infarmation
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility

This year, we have further developed our
Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) strategy under the

Lf'fe is too good to waste banner.

Qur environment

Tris axail ng project coverad thrae
koy areas

We believe cus envirenmenrt s too
good 1o waste

We believe our communities are
oo good to waste

We bel eve our people are tao
good to waste.

Although tne bBuuress has beer closed

for much of tns yoar, we have ronatheless
progressed wth ths programme and ntnig
sect ar vie will doscribe sur 3zh ecemerts

rtnese thrae are g

Wile Fullar’s has leng taken act ors that
o)

mighlighs the Cormpsnay's commitment ¢

T35 the extornsl eny o

oroand wesce t":klng aktoldrmc

redout & our S porfstrancs b are

Qur communities

My part of thrs process, we are rezrailing
adedicatec Foaa of Susranab ity whe will
ke responsible for delivering our ESGplan,
They will take awrershin for settng,
manitoring and reporting on the goals set
and targets met

We will now Lake g ook at some of thase
goils and targets and reporL back g oun

azhievernonts cver the last year.

Our enviranment is too good to waste
Arzed to net zere delivered through energy
and woste manggement redu:mg our
carbon foatprnt

Wi na.s mca s nomber o st des im

1~15 area aeer rocent yoars, nsad ng

o aw -8 LED ! grtimg tirsugnion:
A =d F.bs ard Hote s - using

up o 75% essencrzy and asung sroora

hreo L mMes orgar

arz ainic tolardhl
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Qur people

16 af aur Manoged Pubs and Horels now
have charging points for electric vehicles
("EV"). with rrorgin the pioenre

We have started to recycle our caoxing
o, which has the added benefit of
reducing our refuse costs ana
generating an incame frorm the sdle

of that ail - this process issetto

nse and wil be delvering revan.we

of over (150,200 per annum by

the end of 2021

Eacn year, we save the equivilert

oF over 75 Olymaie swirnring pools

o veaater by us ng waterless urra s

B, using Ecslb clean ng matenia s,

w threcyc ahle packaging, we havo
raducec our use 31 sirgle Lse plastins

-~ I3

0.2- 30 tennes o cardboard per

amrum has been rema.ed from ou-
w.pply cha = through the usc of
re-wssnlz plasie orates sra we expect
o remove 1 furtner 120 icrros

by 2022



While the achieverrents abave focus on
energy consurnption and waste 1ssues,
work undertaken in partnership with cur
supphers also plays a role in reducing our
environmental impact

Proviously, food was ordered for next

day delivery. leading to multiple deliverios
during the week, poor load planming for

our suppliers and, consequently, vehicles
cover ng alotof miles Today, we have
changed this process and our head chefs
and kitchen teams now order less frequently,
with deliveries arrning two days later,

The results of this process are quite
amazing, Withaout any compromise on
freshness, over 60,000 journeys have
been taken off the road by reducing the
Frequency of food defiveries through
better planming and farecasting, Suppliers
can load plan and reute more effectively
and it has the added benefit of creating
amore structured procass in the kitchen.
The strengthened relationship alsa
ritigates supply issues and helps to
reduce our exposure to price volatility
due to both the pandemic and Brext.

When it comes to rainimising food waste,
we hive also used the tme during lockdown
to further impraove on the way we use the
food we buy A great exarnple 15 the use of
whole carcasses with regard to our meat
supphiers - with alf cuts being incorporited
into dishes on our menus, the Fat bemg usod
for dripping and the bones beimg sold at the
crnd With our vcgctdbh:'s, woe look to use
the leaves of celerac, beetroot and cc‘|cry
11 salads - AgAIn chsuring that mirmal food
waste is credated in the kitehen.

While we are proud of our achievernents to
date, we have along way ta go Under the
stewardship of the Head of Sustainability,
we will plot our road map Lo net zere We
have d|roady_]oinod the mdualry's Net
Zera Carbon Forum, which s anather
stop on this rosd We have also dppo(ntcd
a specialist third party, Hospitality Energy
Saving, to complete our annual carbon
reporting and help set the strategy and
road map to net carbon zero.

We will sturt by dent fyir‘g farther
quick wins that can delver immediate
reductions in erergy seang To faaltate
this, we will be rolling out an energy arc
waste dashboard to our managed sites,
which connects to oxisting smuart
meters, 3nd wil be used to drve change

Modern Slavery

We are committed ta scting ethically and with integrity in all cur busingss deal rgs
and relationships and to 1implementing and enforcing effective systems and contrals
to ensure modern slavery 1s not taking place anywhere in our own business arinany
of our supply chains.

Further details can be found an our website,
wwew fullers.co.ukicorporate/esrimadarn -slavery -statemant

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions and Energy Consumption

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021

The annual quantity of energy consumed in kWh
fram (1) the combustion of gas and () the
consumption of fuel far the purpeses of transport,
together with the annual quantity of energy
consumed in kWh resulting from the purchase

of electrcity 42,296,045 83555406

LZO ¢ emissions from the combustian of gas and
fuel at cur facilities as well as fleet vehicle use

{Scope 1emissions) 5,114 8,438
tCC e ermissions from purchased electricity

(Scope 2 emissions) 4,314 8902
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1and Scope 2) 9,428 17,338

Grcup'§ chosen \ntens\ty rmeasurement:

tCOe emissions per E1m of turnover 128.8 527

1 tCO.e are tonnes of carban dioxide equivalent.

The Fo”owirwg rﬁethodo\ogics wore used to caleulate the sbove quantities:

The kWh consumption lgures relevant Lo gas and electnicity were calculated
using invaices received by the Group and sample unit rates

The consumption lgures relevant Lo transport were calculated based on
employee business mileage claims and fugitive ermissions are based on
contractor records.

The Group does not have responsibility for any ermission sources that are not
included in the consolidated financial statements and are outside the boundary
of eperational contral,

Year on year comparison is not possible due to the impacts of coronavirus as well as
the sale of the Brewery n FY20.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility continued

That will be aur first goal  to put
unneocessary energy consumption top

of mind in our team. membears and to
replace energy -heavy equipment The site
dashboard will also include waste to ensure
4 holistic energy infwaste out approach to
our carben footprint

Qur environmental plan for the next year
ard beyend. on whick we will report back
next year, includes the {oi\owmg geals.
We will am to

establish our starting point for each ares
$0 we can set out our road map to net zerg
incorperate ESG in every tender as
part of our assessment critera
undertake a behaviour change prevect in
our Manapged Pubs and molels to
reduce energy consumotion and waste
explore sourcing all of our electnicity
rrl'C\m greeﬂ SOouUrCes

ensure 4 food waste 1s separated

snd cecycled

explore packaging a'larnatives with

our supphers

ensure every holel (with parking)

s ot eastone EV charging po'nt.

Our communities are too good to waste
Supporting the commumties iIn which

we aperste through chortty hinks and
commumty-based mitiatives

Ir hght oF trie extersive closure of aur pubs
ard hotels for so much of the year, cur
abiliy o fundrase  especial y through
the Penmes scheme that has proved so
gererous nrecentyears  hasbeermuch
curtaled. But that has not stopped our
team mermbers from beng acte in

their cammunities

Throughout the pandemic, our team
members volunteered in food banks and
at vicc naton centres, and cooked meals
for key workers Meanah le cur Terants
have feo the homeless and vulnerable, and
opcm?d tnair puba A5 COMMunity storos
195 that car-do spirt that has kepl tne
Fulier’s family bus 4, motvared and at the
Feirts o nur carmmuontiss

Curngtre 0enocs «¢ «

orcceer,

~ar Ccustomers COV‘U"].J(‘d el taloPiNdal=T
gererss ty sra. despete the pande™ o we

ol -

a52d £35,900 througn Benn zs
"

Special Olympics GB: Inclusion in Action
Special Olympics GB is part of o global
movement of people creating o new world of
inclusion and community, where every single
person is zecepted and welcomed, regardless
of ability or disability.

Special Olympics GB is the largest provider

of year-round sports cooching and athfetic
competition in summer and winter Sports for
children and adults of all obilities with inteflectual
disabihities in Great Britam. The chority provides
o competition pathway designed to nurture

ond progress athletes from focal competitions
through to occessing ehite fevel competitions.
Special Olympics uses the power of sport to
change ottitudes and enabfe opportunities for
people with intellectual disabilities to hive active,
healthy, end fulfilling lives. In Greot Britain there
are 105 accredited programmes gcross England,
Scotland and Woles, impacting the fives of 11,361
ndwiduals with an intellectual disabihty, 5,194
volunteers and 2,787 coaches. The charity offers
28 sports for ofl ability levels including those

with profound, multiple learning disabifities and
complex health needs through its Motor Activitres
Training Programme [“MATP").

Inteltectual disabdity is the UK's biggest disobrlity.
There are o totof of 1.5 mithon individuals in the
UK woth on intellectual disability - o number

that is expected to rise to 1.7 mdhien by the end of
2021, Special Olympics athietes are among some
of the most vulnerable in soctety and have been
disproportionately negatively offected by the
Covd-19 pandemic. With no Special Clympics
traming, campetitions or achivity, iife fias been
very different with reduced physical actinty and

tncreased isolation.
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The statistics around intellectual disabilities ore
shocking - 81% of disabled people would like to
be more active, 77% of young disabled adults
(18-34) feel lonely, and eight cut of 10 children
with an intellectual disebifity are bullied. These
startling figures, combined with the fact that
most people with an intellectual disability suffer
soctal exclusion, highlights the important role and
potentiol of Special Olympics GB.

The charity’s work continues to be made possible
through the support of our Fuller's partnership,
which could not be more important as recent
research has identified that 36% of adults have
a connection or are owore of someane with

on intellectuol disability. This equates to nearly
19 mulfion peopff it Great Britain - for higiﬂer

than was previously estimoted.

Finaily, it should be noted that 94% of people
with an intellectual disability ore pot in paid
employment. However, one in two people believe
that Speciol Olympics GB end its sponsors need
to improve this and help find jobs for peaple
with an inteflectuol disobility. This is o grent
opportunity for the Special Olympics GB and
Fuller’s partnership - we can make a significant
difference in transforming the lives of those
people with an intellectual disability.

Tegether we are helping to make the world

a better, healthier and more joyful place

— ane athlete, one volunteer, one family
member at ¢ time. For more information visit

www.!Peciuio.‘yrnpicsgb.org.uk.



We can now alse take Pearies donat’ons,
a5 contactless payments and this will
shortly be sctvated on transactiors made
theough Order & Pay Irour Bel & The
Dragon sites, Pennies raised £2,274 for
the Heads Tagether mental health chanty,
while at Cotewold [nns & Hotels, whicn
will be adepting the Penmies initiatve

Lhis year, E8.275 was raised through
customer donalions for Acorns

childrer’s haspices

We have also rased £33,057 fo- Specidl
O ympcs trrough the sate of Ale & Pie
Tasting Soards and through 2 donation
on our children’s menus during the

pC‘F\OdS WO wire apen.

Our fundraising engeavours have
continued during lockdown, with

a number of team members raising maney
for Special Olympics through the 2.6
Challenge last April, and through varnious
personal endeavours including ruaning,
walking and selling bottled beer that was
due e exprre during lockdown. The team
a1 Bel & The Dragon raised £2,000 for
the Inured Jockeys Fund and Hampshire
Air Ambulance with an online Cheltenham
Prev ew, and the marketing tearn at Pler
House raised aver £2,000 through 5 48
hour refuy for Only o Pavement Away,
which finds jobs in hospitality for homeless
people and those who are in danger of
Becorming homeless, Thisis a charity we
work with on a regular basis bath to raise
money and to prov.de job oppertunities
We have a'so denated & further £50,000
to Onside - the Hammersmith & Fulham
Youth Zone project. This s our second
year of invalvement and we are commitied
to donating £150,000 over a four

year peﬂGd,

Fimi”y, we have continued te supporl

d p|ethord of other charitios Lhrough our
Charities Aud Foundation budget. Over
£70,000 has been donated to a range of
good causes including o number of aleokol
related chanties such as Drinkaware and
the Alcohol Education Trust. We have alsa
denated an average of around £800 each
rmonthin matched funding through our
Gve as you Zarn schermre.

What we have missed this YOl s the
pc‘r‘ﬂoﬂcr% Ch.rl\tl—'\_‘d\ d\n.’]er\ dhd i)h:)‘nc
specidl evonts we hold, in our pubs, 1o ase
money for loca' good causes. With our pubs
and hatels reopened, we expect to see this
in abundance in the rew financial year

Heads Together

In danuary 2018, Bel & The Dragon started
supporting this valuable charity - ond since 2019,
Pennies has helped raise even more. Throughout
Bel pubs, great importance 1s ploced on the
ndividual wellbeing of the team members at each
site. sot’s a natural tie up.
(@HeadsTogetherCampaign

Money raised threugh Pennies

37900

Adults in the UK with an
intellectual disability

1.5m

Gong forwards, we will be focused on
three key aroas:

Centralcharity  bulding awareness
of Special Olympics through fundraising
Initiatiees driven centrally

Local charity inks  bulding
relationships in the community

through local chanty Ik
Communty-based initistives

mnkhg the pub tho hub and bul\dmg

relationshups gt 2 local level.
To do this, we wll

hold regulsr events driver centrally

o rase the Frcmo of Spccid\ O|ympwc5
promote Pennies throughout cur
estate end through all forms of card
and digital transactions

wark with Spacial Olympics athletes

ta tell therr stories

2rcourage our team members te
volunteer at Spocwﬂ O\ympwcs ovents
hald a series orchdrlty ovenls at a local
level to engage our customers ard
address ssues at the heart of our
communitics dnd noigﬁbourhoods
reinvigerste the Give as you Earn
scherne snd pramote matched furding
allocate a day a year for employees

Lo work an a community project,

Our people are too good to waste
Creating an nclusive warkplace, taking care
of aur teams’ wellbeing and providing genume

career OPIDOFfUthE‘S

We are a people busincss  there s na
doubt about that - and we very much

have people at our heart Throughout

the recent pandemic and Lhe vanious
lockdowns, we have focused on helping cur
team mernbers deal with unusual and often
difficult situations - whether they have
been warking throughout or on furlough,

One of the best ways we did this was through
caur FUGe dlg\t:i‘ !edrm\ﬂg .ind communicalions
p\:ﬁtf'orm, This proulded an oxcellent Wiy ta
connect with our team members while they
WETrEr dW(Jy From the Workphce, OF-C Or t}_‘c‘
most successful elements was @ ser ey of bite
sized courses focused on wellbeing ard
geveioping important hfe skils - everything
from ITQUINDG A nevs |ar\guage to |e.,|rr"mg
new digital skills. Take up of these caurses
was ncredible, with team members
comploting 4 total of 1,751 hours of freelife
skills traiming during lockdown und furlough
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility continued

We also used Fuse as a vehicle for regular
vlags from the Chiel Exccutive 1o keen
ovoryone informed, up ta date and
entertained, and we supported this
communicgtion fow with webinars as we
approached the various reopening dates.

Mental health continues to ke a well-
discussed topic for our team members
aﬂd ti‘e W;Cjc‘r Commum[y - rjrid woe thC
bult on the iniLatives we put in place last
yedr. Durlrié tne taughest third lockdown,
over 2,000 team members tuned into
our weekly Wellbeing Podcost. This was
alsa hosted on Fuse, We also launched
Wagestream g systern that allows
early access to wages earned  and cver
1,000 team members signed up to the
Wageostream firancial wellbeing app
Durirg the third lockdown we also
vrowdet supermarket vouchers to those
team members mosl affected by the

Oﬁg@\ﬂg situation

We are in the process of relounching our
employer brand urder the mantra True

te You, 4rd as part of this process we are
sho focusing on better urdarsiandng the
dwersity of gur team We have appoinzea
an:nterral person to he sd up this work and
our goa\ 15 to credla an inclusve workp|ace
where eseryane car thrve, in hne with

our values.

Goirg Farvwards, we will be focused or
support ng cur Leam members’ physica',
mantal, Ninarcial and social wellbeing
Toachieve ths, we will,

imvelie sur peop'e in cresting aur first
Dworaity and Inclusion action plan
+dentfy approprate actions to embed
an inzlugye culture in ail sreas of our
people exper ence
+ rmspour femnale talert and create
bespoke traming ntervent ons Lo
cncourage taerr develcpent
ntreduce a we'ibewr‘-g rocule ax part
of our imductian program—e
tran T00~ mertal be s th Nirst a ders
embed wellbeng im 3l cur eagership
de.c oprrent programmes
praade s sue of fre2 orlina

w.o”b-eir‘bd traimirg

+ set stangards Fompack of nouse

sben s yndartaca roestreni,

ensure rey gerelopmert

Gender Diversity
S at 27 March 2021

Board of Directors (%)

Female 2 22%

Male 7 78%
Senior management (%)

Female 7 50%

Male 7 50%
Other employees (%)

Female 1,630 43%

Male 2,134 S7%

werk with external puriners and trade
bedics to raise the profile of hosoita'ity
4% a great place te have 4 carcer

Life is tao good to waste

This is the most progress «o sirategy we
hs.e c.er mplemented in the CSR/ESG
fe'd ano we are sollng streteh g and
re3surable tarpets We look forvard to
deseloping the i tisties outhined abo.z
uraer the direcuan of sur new Heag of
Siusta nabity ind vtk the suppor: of cur
Esczutia Temmard 4l alr tear mzmbers
Tew Board s com i tiea to the celivery
of t1 5 Drogrimm™e ang w100« TS W T LD

andaiirg you or oun progress © tne futere
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Reporting requirement

Non-Financial Information Statement

Key palicies/standards/frameworks

For additional information

ENVIRONMENTAL CSR Strategy - Qur envirorment CSR Report from page 34
MATTERS
EMPLOYEES CSR Stratepy - Qur people, Alcohol and Drugs  CSR repert from psge 34

Policy, Attendance and Absence Policy, Bullying
and Harassment Palicy, Commurnications Policy,
Compass'onate and Bere wement Palicy, Data
Crotectian Polcy, Discpl nary Palicy, Equdl
Opportunity Pelicy, Family Frizndly Falicy,

Ant -Bribery Policy [cavenirg gifts and hospitaliLy],
Grievance ~olicy, 1T Palicy, Mahile Phons Palioy,
Other Eraplayment Policy, Parenting Policy,
Recruitment Palicy, Redundancy Pelicy,
Residential Accommadation Palicy, Right to Work
Policy, Smaking Pol'cy, Socia’ Meaia Policy, Staff
Accammodation Policy, Stop and Search Folicy,
Stress Poicy, Tutior Policy, Whistleblowing Policy

Stralegiz Report on pages 18 and 19

SOCIAL MATTERS

CSR Strategy - Our communities, Gendar Py
(Gap reperting

CSR Report from page 34

HUMAN RIGHTS

Madern Slavery Statement

CSR erort - pagc 33n pdf[\CUldf

ANTI-CORRUPTION
AND ANTI-BRIBERY
MATTERS

Arti Brlbery po\l:y (c@vc'rmg gwft% and hospliahtyl
Whmt\ebbw‘hg Paiicy

Corporate Gavernance Report frarm page 46

Audit Committee Repert from page 51

PRINCIPAL RISKS
AND IMPACT ON
BUSINESS

These are sel out on pages 28 to 30

BUSINESS MODEL

NON-FINANCIAL
KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Ataglance page 6
See our vision and purpese on page &

Strategic Report on pages 16 and 17

Strategc Report an pages 18 and 19

39

By order of the Board

(Semon

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

5 July 2021
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Driving our strategy

is the Board - a team
of people who each
bring expertise and
experience in different
areas. They set the
strategic direction for
the Company and add
their contribution to the
Fuller’s growth story.

Board structure as at 8 July 2021

Chavn"ﬂ-r "
Exccutve Dreciors 347%
Non-Executive Diroctors 22%
Ingapendent 234

Neaa-Erczurie Directars

GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

MICHAEL TURNER [N
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

Date appointed to the Board: Jiruir, 1945

Experience: & Charterad Account nt 2ith

inbern stion 1 axperence. Michoel joned Fullar’s

e 1973 il runming the Wine Gruision 35 Wose
Drrsctor. Appainted Mrket ng Directorin 19348,
“V‘\mdgmg Director in 1992 Chief Executive in
2002 3nd Chyrmanon 20C7 Charmor of the
Brtish Seer and Pub Associaton 2808 2000
Faster of the Worshupful Comainy of Wirtars
20M-2212

Key external appointments: MNore

My lockdown: With my wife, Diano, staying mainly

in London while { was in Suffoik, I've hod to fearn to
cook. Through the power of YouTube, | can now deliver
@ mean rack of lomb and o lobster thermidor.

ADAM COUNCELL®
FINANCE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: August 2013

E:perience: Jornad from Atk -lstad Restore o',
ctor Started

-
s Growz Finance Do

at Whitbread ple etk sccounts

deprrtment of Tre ~ Group restaarsnt
Jiaser bafore ma, strnetileard Bron-
Fracssubsid 3, af WP ple Juned Ranton

il peor 2003 s hers ke reld g o1miet, of

firarze posisinciuz ng Comrmereyt D reclor
di.sien Fin

a5 and ~austr,

2 rre Bua

Curactzr of Catering 3m3the combinad Cater mg
ind Hosetawdios an ez Tinsil, Finsrce Diractar
of the UK Business Ser. 3 mge Cuylfizd

23 Nccouriant

Key external appaintments: None

My lockdown: I've spent much of lockdown trying
ta get involved in home schooling my children.
Turns aut I'm no match for English homework,

40

SIMON EMENY
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Date appointed to the Board: /1. 1955

Experience: Jonzd in 'S96 fram Biws plc where
hehald . unety of semar opersbions) and stearapic
planmimg roles Appointed tothe Based a3 Retall
Dhrector in M, 1995 A on ging Cheacter Fuller's
‘nns i July 2006, Group J‘ﬁ.ﬁr.jglng Cirectcr in
MNavernter 2010 snd Chicf Executive o dul, 2003
Previcusl, Senmor Independent Director and Charr
of the Remunersticn Cormmittes of Dunelm
Grous ole. An ecenormics graduste and alumnus

af Hirvard Business Schanl

Key external appointments: Non Executive
Zrector of The Mation sl Galler; Company,
Limited and Seriar |nds}p9hdﬁr1 Birector
af wiH Seaith PLC

My lockdown: My wife, Seling, and 1 took the
staycation oppartunity to complete the Coost
to Coast cycle nde - 155 mifes from Whitehoven
to Tynemouth.

FRED TURNER
RETAIL DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: Jurc 2019

Expenence: jomed trig Comrpar, « 2013 35 5n
Operat ons Munsger for Fullar'slnns Sppeimed
Head of "eri~ted Sperst ans in 2015 ard
Tenanted Cirector in 2014 Quialf od 4o

3 Chartered Sccountant « 1tk Gric: Tharnton

LCLLP Zalengirecning araduite
Key external appointments: [Nor o

My lockdown: | turned our house into a crozy golf
course, which the children foved - but it did nearty
result tn divarce!



Key to Committee membership:

A Audi Commitiee

JULIETTE STACEY ANR
SENIOR INDEPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Date appointed to the Board: A arch 2015

Experience: Former Chief Executive of Mane,
Heldings Lirmited Formmer Chief Operating Officer
(UK and Europel and previously Finance Cirsctor
(Corrmercisl UK of Sanlls gle Quahfied

3 Chartered Accountant with Ernst & Young

Key external appointments: None

My lockdawn: | resurrected my fove of interior design
ond deolt with some fang overdue projects - | made
two sets of curtains, four Roman blinds, a number
ﬂfscatter cushions and reupﬁnlstered Er‘ght

dining choirs.

HELEN JONES ANR
INDEPENDENT MNON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: March 2019

Experience: Formerly Group Executre Directer it
Ciffe Nero and Aansging Director of Zizzi, the leshan
cdsual d\r‘lné‘ chum, and Non Exzeutive Dhrecior of
irterntionaf Fast-diring resturant group Vipane SE

Key external appointments: Seriar irndependent
Oireztor 3nd Char of the Envronmreanta!, Seonl
and Gewernunce Cammittee of Halfards Group ple
Other sppantmants include Nan-Executive
Cirector ind Char of the Remuner ation
Commitzee of Virgn Wines UK Ple srd

MNon Erecutive Directar of Premuar Foads Pl

My lockdown: | took my fitness regime on the road
and reconnected with nature during Jockdown with
a doily walk or cycle ride around the beautiful
Buckinghumshire countryside. Less Twitter and
more Twitcher!

N Nominit an Commitlee

R Remurerstion Committee

SIR JAMES FULLER, BT
NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Datc appointed to the Board: Jure 2012

Experience: Ser.edin The Life Guaras frem
1991121993 Employed by the Tompan/from
1593 1o 2003, warkmg in the Tied 1nd Managed
Pub estite snd has since been runnmg his

awin buﬁine']!

Key external appointments: Nane

My lockdown: | renovated the half acre Victortan
walled garden during leckdown, including the creation
of 0 huge vegetable petch to serve the local area.

ROBIN ROWLAND OBE ANR
INDEPENDENT NOMN-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed to the Board: M arch 2020

Experience: Proviously Charman and Chief
Executive of YOI Sushi, Nor -Executine Diractor
of Marstons PLC and Tortills Awarded an OBE
in 2015 for cutstanding services Lo hospitalit,

Key external appointments: Currentl, Eurapean
Opertirg Partner of TrSpan Proate Equity with
Charman snd Non Executive Direztor rolas vath
three portfoho comparies Rosy Thar, Thundertird
and Rasy Mexcana [USA) Independent

Nor -Exccutize Director roles vatk Esthos (Gulf]
uﬁd Cﬁff@ NDrD

My lockdawn: | have taken up bee keeping for the first
time ever and have over 5,000 bees in my new hive,
I'm already getting honey - but ! stilf can’t identify
which one 15 the queen.

. Committee Char

RICHARD FULLER
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Date appointed ro the Board: Ciccember 2009

Experience: Jained the Comgan, e 1384
Apgonted 1 Crasional Dhrector in 1992 and to
the Board i Decernber 2009 with responsibility
e lly for sales then, vdditicnall,, persannel,
zarporite affars and government relstiens
Became Non Executive Director in February
2020 AGMP graduste of Haruard

Business School

Key external appaintments: Charmn of Kempton
Park Racecourse and Master of the Warsh pful

Cempin, of Brewers

My lackdown: I'm in the middfe of foying o 100 yard
hedge - it's a very intricate process of cutting and
staking a combinotion of Howthorn and Hozel to
make ¢ thicker, tidier hedge.

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date appointed: Januar, 2021

Experience: An expenienced compiny secretary
~3nng held positions at s number of ather listed
companes including lmuens 5 PLC. Aldermore
Group PLC (both the listed entit; and the
r2gulited bank) and. most recently, Clarkson PLC
Fallow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Adrministratars.

My lockdown: I've spent lockdown trying to house
train my new puppy. She is a black Springador calied
Winnte end hus made o reol impact on our hives

- and on our carpet!

* Asannounced on 26 February 2021, Adam Councell informed the Board of his intention to step down from his curreat position as Finance Director. Adam will
remain with the Company in order to ensure an orderly handover. and his leaving date will be confirmed in due course. Neil Smith wilt join the Board as Finance
Director at a date to be confirmed, but no later than 1 December 2021.
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The Directars present their report to
sharcho'ders together with the audiied
financial staterments for the S2 weeks
enged 27 March 2021 The D rectory’
Repart and the Strategie Report

(pages 4 to 44) together censliute

zhe rmanagement repart for the purpase
of Rule 4.1.8R of the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules

Other informmation relevant te the report,
ncluding informatior relevant pursuart
the Companics Act 2006 and UK Listing
Rule 9.8 £R, 15 incarporated

s permitted by legslation, weme of the
matters requirad to be ircluded in the
Directors’ Report have imstesd been
included in the Strategic Report as tne
Board conaders them 1o ba of strategic
‘mportance. Specificaly, these are:

Information Reparted in Page(s}

Future business

Our Strategy 15

developments

Employment of Stikeha'der 32

disanled porsans Engagerrent

Employee Stakehelder 3234
G'WE:JECF'TEHI Eng‘]‘;\:‘rﬁerl Jnd
Grcludng C5R

participation

in sFare plang)

Engagement Staxeholozr 32.33
with 5upp|\ers Ené«aéement

custamers and

others

Erminsions CER 35

reperting

Annual General Meeting

The 2021 Annual Gene-al M.':ol_mg
CAGM™S will be held at 1am on Thursaay
23 September 20271 at The George IV,
185 Chiswics High Rosd, Londoan, W4
7DR The Mouce of Maocting which set,
cut the ressluticns to be Droposed has
been posted to snurehatders ard 15
azanable or the Campany s websize

3t www fullers co Lk

Articles of Association
Tre Compary’s Artizles o7 Aszaist on

were adepted i 20140 ~ sceardance vitn

the Compines Azt 2008 the Artices

3 é‘e ngrd ’VC’{‘L\“%

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report

Directors

The names and biographical detals of the
Directors who served on the Soard ard
Boara Comm ttees duning the financial
year and uo the date of this report are
gven on pages 40 ard 4%

Appointment and Retirement

of Directors

Tre Articles of Associat.on {"tne Articles ™)
staze that the Boare may appaint Dircctors
3nd that at the subsequent AGAY,
sharcholders may elect any such Drector.
Altermatively, the Company may directly
appoin: a Direcior. The Articles alss
contan the power for the Compary to
remave any Directer by speaial reselutior
ard sppoint semeang in bis or her plice by
Ordﬁdry resclution. Trere are vanigus other
¢ reumnslances under the Articles whick
would mean that the of ficc of a Cirecior
wauid be vacated, reluding f he ar she

re- gns, or pecomas of unsound mind

or bdﬂkl'dpt,

Alevery AGM cne third of the Directors
who are subiect 1o retiremment by rozatien
or if tneir numiber s rot thres ar any
ruliple of three, then tne numper ngarest
te but not exceeaing one third shal

reure from office but, [ there i anly one
Curactor who 1s subject Lo renirerment by
sotduon, he ar she shall retire, In sdaiton,
Famy Director has al the start of the AGM
been in oFF ce for more than three years
sirce ns or her lasl appointment -

re appoiniment he or she shall retre

at that AGM.

Powers of the Directors

Subject te the Company’s Memorandum
and Arteles of Asscaiation and U<

leg slat on. the bus'ress of the Company
ismaraged by the Board which may
exercise dll ihe powers of the Compary
“he Articles of the Compary nase
3section entitied “Powers and Duties

af the Boara whicn sets out pov
as the r\g)"'_s g establish local boards, e
Izpainl agerts. to delogate ard to appo nit
persons aith the devgnation "Directar’
sthoutirply g that itbe persanas

- -
3 sireciz of the Tomipary  here ire

ars o’ the Aric'ss 2rnted

f.rther -
Al grment o Shares” wettng out the

Soard’s poser i915sue snares ard

purcrase tne Lornany’s Swn shares

soting =
croLsiars corcerming the Campan, s

cosCr T DT ird g =secutty

42

“he Directors have been authori~ed

to allot and 1ssuc ordinary shares

These powers are excraised under
authority of resclutions of the Company

passed alits AGM

Directors’ Indemnities and Insurance
The Articies of Associstion provide the
Direclors witn indemnities ir relation
to ther duties as Directors, including
quailying third party indemnity
provasians fwthin the meaning of the
Companrics Acts).

The Company purchases Directors and
Officers Labiliy insurance whicn gives
appropriate cover for any ‘egal action
brought against its Directers. This imsarance
abs0 covers the Trustees of the Company's
defined benelit pers on scheme.

Directors’ Interests

Deotals of all Drrectors' interests o« at the

end of the firancial year are set aut in the

Cirectors’ Remuncration Report on pages
561078

Dividends

ln view of the coronavimus piademic the
Caompdny pard no interim dividends and
the D rectars decided not 1e recommeand
a hinal dwoderd on tne ord rary shares for
the financia’ year ended 27 March 2021

Total disdends 2F £120 000 relate to the
cumulazve preference dividends which
hl‘]\/@ bCGn Pa\d

External Auditors

The auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, were
appointecd by the Directars during the
year fellowing 5 formal tencer process as
detaled furtker in tne Audt Commitres
Report on pages 511c 35 Erast & Young
LLP have mdicated thair wihngness to
continue 1n office, 3nd 4 reselution that
they be apponied wili be praposea

2t the AGAM

Information Required under the
Listing Rules
“orthe porpzse of LRI B ACR e

Arsreanen required to be o

L=FE.4% car be fzurd in tne Arnysl

Ee)

205 tintre F:! Lo "‘g CCATIT dr‘d I
bareoy ncarparateo by ceference ints
1

t=s Dracrers  Reper



- Information about lang-term incentive-
s disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneratien Report on page &0

- Any waver of emaluments by a Director
of the Compary ar any subsidiary
undertaing 1s disclosed in the
Directory’ Remuneration Report
on page 36.

Political Donations
The Group does not make palincal derat'ons

Purchase of Own Shares

At the AGM held on 10 Soptember
2020, the Company was grven 3n annual
authority to purchase up to 4,851.096
A ordinsry shares to ba held as treasury
shares tc be used im corroction with,
among other purpases, the Long Term
‘neentive Plan (*LTIP™) andfar other
share option schemes Sharchalders wil
be asked to give a vmitar authority to
purchase shares up to 15% of the A’
ardinary capital at the 2021 AGM.

The Companys maximum issued

ardinary share capital durng the year was
£22793,726 comprivng 33,619,834 W
ordindry shares, 89,052 625 ‘8" ordinary
shares and 14,455 218 'C' ordinary shares.

Duning the year the Company did nat
purchase any shares

£.915°A ordinary shares held in treasury
were allocated to participants of the Savngs
Related Share Option Scheme, the Senior
Exccutive Share Opuon Scheme and the
Executive Share Opnion Scheme on
excreise of options, generat ng net cash
proceeds of 14,011, As at 27 March 2025,
atotal of 1,273,146 ‘A ordinary shares and

a total of 4,558,009 3" ordinary shares are
held a5 treasury shares.

Share Capital

Information an the Company‘s financial
nstruments, Cdpwtd\ struclure and related
restrnicthions s givc‘m N notes 28 and 29

to the finangial staterments Details of
ﬁigm\r'\cri.nt s’harehc\dmgx are set out Belovw.

CDmPuLershdre Trustoos Limited holds

a total of 186,337 A crdinary shares on
behalf of emplayecs of the Company who
are participants 0 its SIP This reprasents

0 48% of the 1ssusd ‘A ordinary share
capital {excluding shares held n treasury
inraspect of the shares that have been
u'loca:od_ Computorshlre Trastocs Lrmited

exercies voting nghts in relation Lo less costs, In conyuncl on with tha
Placing, the Company slvo transferred
230,094 B  ordinary shures (ncluding
132,528 '8’ ordinary shares to sansty

applications from the Directors),

those shares, huving consulted with tne

participants about therr voting intentiars.

Subsequent to the ysar end, on

31 March 2021 the Company completed
anon-pre emptive p|acmg of 6,455 447
new ‘A ordinory shares at 830p per
share (the "Placing™) and satished

genersling net cash proceeds of

F109 938 24 less casts. General
Mecungs convened on 20 Apnl 2021
approved the issuance of this additiena!
share capital and the ' ordinary shares
were subscquently adrritted to the

subscriptions from Directors over 13.853
new '/ ardirary shares, gererating net
cash proceeds of 153,580,21010 main market

Substantial Shareholdings

The Company had been rolified under the Disciosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
or 15 aware of the lolowng holdings of voting rights of its [sted issued share capital.

‘A’ ordinary shares of 40p each

¥

st ghes
Asat A
27 March LTINS
2021 oM
BlackRock, Inc 13.47 13.43
Larsdewne Partners (UKD LLP - 8.40
Coiumbia Threadneed's 5.37 5.06

The Cormpny 1k also sware of the followirg interests in 3% or more of the voting nghts in
the twa classes of s unlisled share capita®

‘B’ ordinary shares of 4p each

Asat Azt

27 March 71,

2021 .2

Mr AW M Mitchell & Burges Salmon Trustees Ltd 14.85 14.85
Mr R B F Fuller & Mr R I Turner & Mi P A Shails 7.66 -
Mr R HF Fuller & Mr P J Turner & Mr P A Shells - 7.66
Mr A GF Fuller 5.72 5.74
MrRHF Fuller & Mr P AShels & Mr P JTurmer 4.62 4.62
Dunarden Limited 3.60 3.60
Mr R D Inveranty 3.52 348
Mr G F Inverarity B 3.48 337
Mr M Turner 3.32 3.37
Muss S M Turner . 3.33 3.33
MrRHF Fuller 3.08 3.08
MeT M Turner 3.00 3.00
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*C’ ordinary shares of 40p each

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Report continued

As at A

27 March Sl

2021 z221

M AWM Michell & Burges S slmon Trustees Lig 31.02 31.02
MrT JM Turner 6.20 6.20
Miss S M Turmer 5.25 5.25
MrPAR Carter &SriHF Faller - 4.30 4,30
MW GE Fuller - 424
Mo A G F Fuller & Mr P AR Carter T an 412
Mre D MSE C Turner 3.09 3.09
MrC DWW ilams 3.02 3.02
Mro EA Crigp 3.02 3.02

Post Balance Sheet Events
Post Balance Skeet events ire disclosed
nnole 33 to the firancial statemerts

Significant Agreements

The Group hgs entered into a rumber

of sgreements with the rrajor brewers
operatmgin the UK under which it both
Buys and selly beers, and these agreemerts
may be termingted by the other party
should the Grogp umdergc 4 d’vdr:gc

of cont-ol,

Im the event of 4 change of cantral,

the Ccrr\pfir-y 1 Db\lgcd to mot\Fy 1Ly mMain
pans lendery of such. The tenders shal
not be obliged 1o fund ary new Borrowing
requests and the facimbies will lapse after
30 gays frem the change of cantrol il
terms on which they can contrue have
rot veen agreed. All borrowings including
scerued interest will become repayble
within ten days of such 3 apse

The service agreements of the curren:
Exceutive Directors and the inceming
rew Firance Director include provisions
regarding a change of cartral Further
detals are irc'uded in the Directors
Remuneration Poicy setouton

pages 56 w0 78,

By arder of the Board

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

8 July 2021

Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C
Pler Houso

735 93 Strana on-the-Graer
London Wa 3NN

Registered e Englund under nurmber
ZA'BR2Z
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities in Respect

of the Financial Statements

The Directors are respansible for preparing
the Strategic Repart, the Annus’ Report,
i.he Qemuﬂerﬂtioﬂ Rep@rt r"]r‘d Lhc GrDUP
and Company firancial stalements

mn []CCOrdr_]ﬂCe Wlt}-] nppilc-)bie Uﬂl[ed
K.rgdom law and regulaticns,

Company law requires tne D rectors ta
orepare linancial sLatements for cuch
financial year. Under that law. the
Ohirectors have clecied o preparce the
financial staterments ir accordance with
international aceounting standards in
corformity with the requirements of the
Companmes Act 2006, Under company
lawe, the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are
satisflied that they give a true and farr
viow of the state of affairs and profit or
loss of the Group and Company for the
finarcial pered.

Under the Financial Conduct Authorioy's
Disclasure Guidance and Transparency
Rules, Group financial staterments are
required to be prepared in accordance wath
internaticnal financial reporting standards
("IFR%s") adopted pursuant to Regulation
(ECI Ne1606/2002 asitapples in the

European Union,

. —~ ~
in preparing the Group and Company
financia’ szatements, the Directors are
required Lo.

we ect suitakle dc:oumtmg pouciesin
sccordance with IAS B Accaunting
pelicies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors and then appiy
them consistently;

present infarmatian, inclading
dccouming policwe'\:, N a manrer that
provides relevant, reliable, camparable
and understandable information,
provide additional disclasuras

when corr.phdr“ce with the SpeCIFiC_
reqairements ir IFRSs 15 snsufficient
to enable users to understand tne
Impact Odert;CLJi-:lr transsctions,
other gvents and conditions on the
group ind company Srancil posit on
anc financial performance.

miaka ar assessment of the Company’s
ability to cortinue 35 4 going concern,

statz that the Group and Company

nave complied with internast'enal
accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Comparnies fct
2006 and IFRSs adopted pursuant to
Regulation (ECI Ne 1606/2002 au it
app!ies n the Europenr\ Unignl, subject
to any material departures disclosed and
explared n the financial staterments; and
make judgements and estirnates that are
reasonable and prudent.

The Diractors are rasponsible for keeping
adequate accounting recards that are
sufficient to show and explan the Group's
transactions and disclose with reascnable
accuracy at ary time the financial positicn
of the Group and Ccmpuny and enablo
them to ensure that the finarzial
statemants and the Remuneration Report
corply with the Companies Act 2006
and applicable regulations, including the
requirernents of the Listing Rules und the
Disclosure and Trinsparency Rules
("DTR"] and in the case af the Group
financial statements, wih Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation. Thoy are alse responsible
for sdikegu[irdmg the gumots of the Group
and hence for taking ressonable steps for
the prevention ard deteclion of fraud

and ather irecgularitios.

The Dircctors are rospensible for
preparing the Annual Report in
accordance wLh applicable law ard
regulations. The Directors are responsinle
for the mantenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissermination
of financial statements may differ from
legislation in cther jurisdictions,

Statement as to Preparation
of Financial Statements

The Directors canfirm, to the best
of their knowledge

that these financial statemen:s,
prepared in accordance with
international accounting stardards in
conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Azt 2006 and IFRS:
adopted pursuant te Regulation (EC)
No 606/2002 ss it applesin the
Europear Union, give a true and fair
view of the assets, hab hives, Francial
position and profit of the Group and
Compary takan as 2 whale.
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that the Annual Report and the
Strategie Repartimeludes o far review
of the developmeant and performance
of the business ard the powtion of the
Group and Company teken as g whole,
together with 2 description of the
prmcapu| risks and uncertainties that
they face; and

that they cansider the Annual Report
and the financial statements, taken
454 whoie, prowdea tho information
necessary to assess the Company™
perfarmuance, busiress model and
strategy and s farr, balanced and
understardable.

The Directors of Fuller, Smith & Turner
P.L.C arelsted on pages 40 and 41,

Directors’ Statement as to Disclosure
of Information to Auditors

The Directers who were members of

the Board at the time of approving Lhe
Directors’ Report are hsted on pages 40
and 41, Having made enquinies of felow
UChirectors and of the Company’s auditors,
each of these Directors confrms that:

to the best of each Director’s
knowledge and belief, there 1s no
nformation relevant to the preparation
of this repart of which the Company’s
auditors dars unawsre; and

euch Diractor has taken all the steps

a Director might reasonably be
expectad to b ave taken Lo be aware

of any relevant audit information and to
astabhish that the Company's auditors
are aware of that information.

On behdaTof the Board

dss/ T/

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

5 July 2021
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MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

“The Board recognises
that good corporate
governance is critical to
delivering our strategy
for the long-term
benefit of all
our stakeholders.”

GOVERNANCE

Dear Shareheolder,

1am pleased to present our Carporate
Governance Repert for 2021 The

Board recogrises that good corporate
governance s enbcal to del verng cur
strategy “or the long-term benefit of

all cur stakenalders, while remam.ng
cognisant that arrangements need to be
appropriate for the business, With astong
heritage and as prirarly a family cwned
company. there arc some provisionsin the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
(the "Code™), which we believe are not
apprepriate for Fuller's. [n tne spirit of the
Code and for transparency wo have
summansed these in the takle on the

facrg page

As described i my Charman's Rewiew,
this year nas been unprecedented and
cansequartly the work'ngs of the 3oard
hase had 1o acept. Gwven the exceptional
circuTstances we chcd, 1twas critical
as a Board that we mel more frequently.
InAprd 2020, we moved quickly Lo
sweekly rout re of wdeo conference
calls ta diszuss operstional, finarcisl and
hau dity restters so that we could assess
the impact to the business, and prov de
overslght Lo the Executive Tear,

Inthe Spring of 2021, the Board spent
considarstle t me avaluating the deg sizn
te laurch an equity rsise Ensunng the
nght balarce of debt and equity capralin
abusnessisan important part of erauring
lemg torm success, and sfter very careful
and detaled discussions, the Board
concluded that equity was the correct
route and in the best interests

of skarekalders

Meetngs hase continued to be held
remately for most o the year ard | wo.ld
I ke to thark my fellow Board mermbers
far embrac ng this ~ew way of work ng
and for thair sign.ficant contmibution
durgthe year Speais! recogmiticn ase
goes to the Exccutive Tesm Tor 1

rosparss tothe Cood 2w,

Cur Board Corm ttees nzae 350 baer
sery actiea dur rg the vear and neloed us
~sagate thraugh these estraordings, and
d‘a”eﬁgmg vrecs. —urtherdety lof the -

#rc s regnrtag o pages 4712 73
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Corporate Governance Report

Througn the Nominations Committec,
whioh T chair we have conducted the
sedrch for a new Sinance Directar to
replace Adam Councell, who has decided
toreturn to the service sectar. We are

del gnted Lo have anrounced the
Appaintment of Neit Smith, wheo W:HJOW
us lster in the year. On behalf of the Board,
Pwould alse like to express our appreciat-on
for the contrbution Adam has made
durmg his tenure, which coversd the most
rerrarkable periad in the Company's 176
year histary e has nsen well to the
challenges, and we wish him overy success
'mhis Future enceaveurs

We had intended to conduct an exterraly
faciitated Board eva'uation this year but,
ir the strange times of working remotely,
it was unammously agread that this sheuld
be deferred until the Directars could
meet in persan Consequertly, our Senior
Independent Direcior Juliette Stacey)
ran an internal process this yedar whick
corcluded, despile the challenges
o-esented by coronavirus, that the Board
had perfarmed very effectrvely Our
ntentior 15 that the exterral eva uation
wall E3ke place dunng the currest financil
year, ard myself ard Juleite are currently
conducting a selection process with
potentisl firms to support this exercise

I'was dreappointed that our AGM r 2020
had to be held 45 a closed meeting, but
sharchalders wrl ‘ngpe\[u”y understand that
this was entirely necessary to ensure the
safety o all corcerped. We very much

lock forwird 1o welcaming shareholders

Lo our AGM on 23 Septernber 2021 vwnich,
subject to any Gowvernment guidance

in place at that time wi'l be held at

The Gearge IV in our Chiswick heartland

Aaf ot/

MICHAEL TURNER
CHAIRMAN

840y 2000



Statement of Compliance with the
UK Corporate Governance Code 2018
The Board s committed to maintaining
effective corporate governance and
mtegrity, endbling us to deliver our
strategy for the long-term benefit of 4l

Code Prowision  Detail of non-compliance

our stakekolders. With this in rind, the
Company has apphed the main principles
of the Code throughout the year
However, grven the structure of the G’Oup
- we are a pubhc bsted company but sl

thare are some provisiens of the
Code where we do not comply but
where we do conuider our governance
framework remans appropriate. These
are summarised in the table below.

very much a fdm\ly controlled concern

Further information

PRINCIPLE 1: BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY PURPOSE

5 For engszement witn the workforce, the Campany
does not Wive a director appontad from the workforce.
aformal workforce advivory penel o s des gnated

non cxecutve director

Fuller's haw adopled a people first approachin its response to the pandermic
by engaging effertivel through stronz cemmunication. voth it staff The
Board rece vas regular updates from the CEQ and Director of People to
ernure empleyes matters are understood Nermally there s also regular
enzigoment with employecs through wisits to our pubs and hetels. although
this has understandably been curtalded with the estate closed Over the nest
ya . the Baard will consider whether the designation of 3 Non Evecutive
Director to prosde 4 farmal ok to the Baurd s required

PRINCIPLE 2: DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

1 At least nalf of the Board, exclud\ng the Cheirman
are ot imdependent Non Executive Directars.

The Board considers that membership i well balarced with the night mix

af skills ard experience The presence of Nan-Executive Directors whe are
lorg stand ng Fimily shareholders 15 impor Lant in this professionally run
Family business

PRINCIPLE 3: COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

In accordanco with tho Compdny < Articles of Associstian, 41l Shrectors are
subject to electicn by sharehalders at the Frst AGM after their appaintment
and ta re-election 1t three yearly intecvals As part of the annual Board
cffectivencss review, the perfarmance of the Directors 1s 2valuated and
forms the recommendatior in the Notice of AGH a« to why the Campany
believes anindiadual director should be re-elected In view of the
Company's 528 1ts cwnersnip structure and its history, the Baard i not
~inded Lo mase to arnual re-election of Directors but wil keep tus

FGC'UH’EITIC'TE JF‘.dCF raview

18 Directars are not supject Lo annual re-elecuion
13 The Chairman bas been in post for moare than
n.neyears

The Board considers that the Charman's knowledge and undorstanding
of this long-established family business and its requirements is
extremely valuable

PRINCIPLE 5;: REMUNERATION

33 The pension cantribution rutes for the current Executive
Cirectors arc not aligned with thase avalble te

the workforce

The pension rate for the current Executne Directors represents an existing
contractul) commitment 3nd thor orerall pay In towsrds the lower end of
markel practice The Board wishes to honour these contractual entitlement-
and docs nat conwder 1t appropriate to make a reducbion Urder the
Remuneration Polcy spproved by sharcholders -n 2020, the pensian
apportunity for new Directors (which includes Ned Smuth the incoming new
Finance Director} 1s in hne vath the policy for the majarity of the workfarce

Further rformation on tne Code can be

A Formd\ ECth‘.J‘E‘ OF matters reserved

found on the Financisl Reportimg Counail™

webnite 1l www rrc.org Lk

The Board

Rele and Workings of the Board

Led by the Chmrmdn, Lhc Board 1y
collective'y responsible to the sharchoiders,
for the performance and lcng-term
success of the Group, as wel to other

stakehofders for the wider impact we have
‘ts eole inctudes the ostabl shment, review
and moritoning of the Compary’s sirategy,
approvl of major acquistions, disposs's
and Cap\td\ expc‘nd'turo‘ sckting the
Company's purpose and values, oversesing
the GrC\,p'\ systoms of irterndl controls,
governance and risk m inagerent, and
ersunng that the oppropriate resaurces
are in place te deliver these,

for the Boardis i place, The Board has
delegated some of its respansibilities to
mandated Comrmittess, each o which
coerates under written terms of reference
approved by the Board ard whicn are
availab'e on the Company's website, Al
Cormmittee Chars report aral'y ar the
proceedings of therr Commuttees at the
next meet ngof tne Board, and the

M AJO!\O
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GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report continued

minutes of the maetings of ol Board
Committees (mlh SOme excepuc-ms <n
remuneration maitors) are prouldcd ta
Board members,

The Board delegates all oparational
rmatiers ard execution of the stratepy to
the Executive Tearn (whicn includes the
Execulive Drectoss, the -"f\arket\mg
Director. the People and Talent Dircctor,
and the Preperty Dirceter), The Chairman
ensures that the Executive Committes
orowides accurate and nmely information
fFor Board meetings which is then apen to
debate and challenge by al

Board meetirgs on oy oper dislogue and
constructive challenge on all issues s
encouraged W th a good information

Mow between and prior to Board meetings,
decimions are made na umely manrer
after appropriate questians are deasit vath
The Board has adoprea a procedare, in
accordance with the Cormpany's Arlicles

to cons'der and. f it soes Dt to authaorize
situabicns were 3 Director to have ap
interest that canflicis, or My Fossibly
corflct, weth the interests of

the Company

Board Meetings and Activities
Normally the Soard meets formialey at
least six times, but addivanal mectings
kad to be held this year 1o revicw Lhe
impact of tne coronavrus, At the srart
of the pandemic, the Baard +et weekly
and meetings moved ta an online “ormat
Meet ngs hase cortinuad te be hold on'ine
throughout the year but going forwad
with restrictions ifung it s intended that
meet ngs will be held at the Groun's new
registered offize, Per House, ard alsa
witrn tha retal cstate,

The process for agreaing the agenda s
rranaged by the Compary Secretary in
consultatan watk the Crairman, Papers
s dstrbuted a week nadsanzs v a

3 secura onlne portal [fregurea. the
Board cons ders matters er anad has

bass beteoen scheco ed meet ~gs

Ar Board meetings. the agendas co.

przccts, anal sis o7 tho marker 0 abich
the Gr:.up operates and pe-formarce

Eacm af the Execat we Die

Carpany Secretary sloore, de Lposte-

o ire Board o matiers for whien the

resporsse [me Soard s

g the srmoalbudget imd sk

annual and half year results Sf course,
much of the diseussion this year has
focused an the impact of the coraraverus
parderic and to address the challenges
posed by the enferced closure af' tne
business Cons derabie time was spent
eviluating the decision to faunch an
equity raise and to deal with the
Company's ~efinancing.

Atthe start of 2021, 5 programme

of presentations from membars of the
Executive Teamn and semvor managemant
was resumed The programme gives the
Board expasure ta talent n the busincss
while a'so prov d'ng an opportunity to
engage i Lhe key areas being worked
onand the agreed strategic projects
Prescntations hsve included informancn
abeut the customer journey and digital
transformat an, our peop\e R’J’dLC_‘gy and
our ESC strategy These sassions also
cnable the Board to prov’de feadback
and guidance to the wwdridual presenting.

In adaition Lo scheduled meetings,

the Board also meets overy yaar for an
in-deplh review of the Group's strategy
which incivdes, smong ather tnirgs,
discussions about market trends,
consurner market compettor langscaps
and capital structure, This sces anos
rorma'ly held offaite withiv one of our
venuesin the Estate butin light of the
panderic th s was not possble. Membe-s
of the Executive Team joimed the Baard
ta prov de thor views on the strategy and
while the pancemic may have sltered some
shart-term tactical activity that delwers
this strategy, the Board agreed that the
ceerarching principles were uncharnged.

Tz Non Execut ve Directors from time
o rme meet with mempers of the senior
mandgerment team anc a'sc soend days

cut o the tade with indeadual merrbers

of that weam. Trus belps w0 keep Non
Sxecttive Oirectars un ta date with the
operatizrs of tne Group and 3lvs proy das
the Execur ve Directors and sen or
managerment v th valuan'e fesobacc abour
tme C-:-mp»m, SPECEC ard s oparit ons

A el sithe ainlogus sithin the

pzardrocr, the Nor Executive Diroctors

meet privatel, urder the eadersnp ot the

Senor Indeperdent Dirccter, vthout L

48

meetings allow for the review of :ssues i
faced by tne business, the conunuat.on '
of dilogue or stratogie «ssues, the

discussor of Bosrd appaintments when

appropriale, succeswion planning, and

the provision of suppo-t to the Chanman

ard the Chief Execut.ve in therr rales

Board Committees

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committes monitors the
integrizy of the financial reporting far the
Campany, marages the relatiensnip with:
the external auditors, and oversees the
efectiveness of the risk management and
intarnal control systerms. lts members are
allimdependent Non Executve Directoss
The Audit Commuittec’s report for the year
i sel out on pages 51 to 5%,

The Remuneration Committee

The Remunc-ation Commitiee sets the
Remunarsuion Policy for tne Chairman
and the Execut v Directers, and it also
reviews the remunerslicn framewark for
2tner semor mandgerrert, Its members
are aliindependent Non Executive
Directers, The Remuneration
Comrittee’s report for the yoar is set
out on pages 96 w0 73

The Nominations Committee

The Norminat.ars Committea i chairea
by Michae: Turrer und the other members
are silindependent Nor Executive
Directers. Juhetic Stacey and Felen
Jones have served durng all of the year
and, fallowing appraval by the Board,
Robin Rowlsnd joned the Comm tieze

on 25 sanuary 2027

The Commttee s responsble for eaaing
Lo orocess for appointTent of Directors,
for approva’ by the Board, s thaugh

the ful Board will alsa typical y

infarmal y dscuss Boare and senior
management appointmonts

Aftera competinive process the

Nomngt ons Commettes asgrowod

the sppomntmens ab SFC")CE" ZnuAart to

suoDor e searchi for 2 Finarce D rcgtar

Forentai cardicates cicennfied
and the CED and Peapic and Tilar:

Drracier met with them far rital

i~terozn Short-listed canaidates nere

thon ruted 1o reet tne Char—an 3nd

Sime mernens of the Ne~imaucrs
ormites. a3 4ol aithe Cre

—a.ra Zors deced feeabacs Trom e
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meetings and his breadth of financia, Attendance 2020/21 Audit Nominations  Rermuneration

and scclar C‘XPCriC'nCC; the Neminations Directar Board”  Committee Committee’ Committee

Committee rccommmde.d the Michael Turner 38/28 ~ " _

appontrant of Neil Sruth to the Board

Simaon Emeny 28/28 - - -

Whiist the Board s alert wo the Adarm Courcell 27128 - - -

r\-eed 1o ensure diversity in allits foras Frod Turmer — 2728 - -

15 promoted, the Board helieves -

appointments should be made cn merit SirJarnes Fuller _ 28/28 - - -

and does not want to .-Jdopl Largets that Rickard Fuller 28128 - - - u

Mdy affect s .1b\|\Ly to make the rngnt Heler Jones 28/28. 111 11 a/8 )

decivan for the business ard allics - UB

stakeholders As ard when Board Robir Rowland 28/28 nm - 7_8{.8_ ;j

vacdancies arise and, should the support Juliette Stacey 28/28 1/ 11 8/8 3

of an exccubwve search firm be required, - Q

the Board and the Nominations
Commiiiee will ensure that itonly uses
firme that have signed up to therr
industry’s Voluntary Code of Conduct,
Further nformation on gender dversity
across the business can be faund in the
Corpor:}tc Social Rosporhibiﬁ{y repart
or page 38

Attendance at Board and
Committee Meetings

The table abovr shows the attendance
of Directors at Board and Committee
meetings held during the year

under review

The Baard believes that all of its members
have suff cient ume Lo discharge ther
duties effectively. All Directors are
requred to seek permission before
sccepting ary external appaintmants,
therefore Board members are kept

fully aware of their coileagues’

olther comm tments,

Composition and Balance

of the Board

The Chawman s responsible for leading
the Beard and ensuring its effectiveness
and openness, ard that shareholders are
kept wellinformed. The Chairman does
not have any commitments which
canstrain his ablity ta fulfilhis role. Smen
Emery, the Chief Executive. 15 responsible
for ail operational aspeets of the Group

Durng the period, Adam Councell
arnounced he would be leaving the
Compfmy larer this yoar FOHCW“I’]% )
ardesly handover Neit Smith will jom s
the new Firance Directar no lazer tnan

1 Cecember 2027

On ARPOINLIMEN,, Ao Directorns
undertske o tulored induction pragramme.

1 Includes scheduled and ad hoc meetings, ineluding weekly meetings held in response to the

Covid-19 pandermic.

2 Robin Rowland was appeinted as a member of the Nominations Committee on 25 January 2021,

The Campany has six Non-Executive

D rectors of which three - Michael Turner,
Sir Jarmes Fuller and Richard Fuller

are family members The other three
Nor-Executive Direztors, all of whamn
are deermed indeperdent under the Code,
are experianced business leaders, and
collectively all of the Non Executives
bring 4 wide range of skil's and experience
to the Board Although tne Board
(excluding the Chairman) does not
comprise aL east half ndependent

Non Executive Directors, the Board
considers it is well balanced as it has the
right number of members for the size of
the Group with representation of the
founding families or the Board being
considered very impartant in a compadny
with a lngh proportion of family shareholders
The Directars agree that no ore individual
dorninates discussions and that eack makes
a full and positive contribution.

The Directars’ blogr[]ph{eﬂ Are ©N pages

A0 and 41, Julette Stacey is the Seaicr
Independent Directar. The Senior
independent Director offers support and
adwvice to the Chatrman and all the other
Board members; 15 n regular dialoguc

weth all Board members outude of Board
rmeetings and co-ordinates the viows of the
NO” - EXGCUUVE D\rectorg % dﬂd Wheﬁ
requred. All of the independent Non
Exceutive Directars are determoned by the
Board to be independent in character and
Judgement ard trere are no relationships ar
creumstances which could affect or appear
ta affect ther judgement: all ure apparted
for specif ed terms The actails of the

MNon Executive Direclors respect ve
arrargements are s set out i the Directors
Remuneralion Report on pages 56 to 74

49

D R A

and are swallable for inspectior at the
Companys registered of e,

Succession Planning

The Bodrd centinues to see succession
planning as 4 key issue for a business that
has very low turnover amongst its senior
management and s sull very much
afamily centrolled concern whist aluo
being a putlic sted company.

Successon planming and the develapment
of talentis an omgoﬁg activity r-:gukir\y
discussed by rhe Board and the Exccutive
Tearn and there is a clear plar in piace for the
succession of key roles, Talented ana “eniuical
to retan” ing widuals are ident ficd and each
indradual has their own develapment plan,
owred by the indvidual and supperted and
overseen by their leader and the People &
Talent team. Davelopment plans are
grounded in dsta from assessments and
feedback, and external partners and experts
are engaged to support developrnent

where required

Advice for the Board

Thercisa proccdure in p\ace under

which Directors can obtain independent
professional advice. The Directors alse
have accoss to the advice and services

of the Company Secretary whose
i]ppO\Ptmen[ ‘H—‘d fC‘mOVﬂl 15 3 matter For
the whole Baard. The Compary Secretary
15 responsible to the Board for ensurirg
that Board procedures arc camphed

wth. Tae Directars are satisfied that any
cancerns they raise at 3oarc meetings

sre recorded in the mirutes The Company
MANLAINSY dpDroprigle INsurance cover in
respect of legal action agaunst its Directors
and Officers.
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GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Report continued

Professional Development

Directars are encouraged to atiend
trang courses, mdustry forums and
spec shat briefings relevant to therr role
throughout the year. Occasionally,
speciahists such as the Company s legal
advisorsjon a Board meet ng to brief the
Board on a parucular topic. Executve
Drreciors are permitted to hold one other
pad drectorshup, with the Board's consent,
a5 the Board believes that expenence of
how ather bosrds work enhances the
Dircctors' contnbution te Fuller’s.

Board Evaluation

The Company was due to underiake an
exterraly Faciltated evaluation this year
but, 'might of the impact of Cowd 1901t
was accided thal ar internal process woud
be conducted by the Serior Independent
Direetor. An externally Tae ltated
evalustion wil' take plice next year and

a pracess to select a lirm to nelp wth

this exarcse s currently underway.

This year, the Directars corrpleted

a3 guestionnare cavering the performance
of the Board as ¢ whole snd the Board
commitiees, the evfectiveness of the
Exceutne Directors and Nan-Executive
Dirsciors, koy learrings from the year

Ir question and corwderations for future
areas of focus, The Seror Ingependent
Director sl met with sach Drrector
indiaduslly to discuss therr fredback anc
performarce aver tne year ard, followng
review with the Charman, the findings
were presented to the Board.

Cueral. feedback was posiive and
damronstrated that tne Board and

each of its commuttees had pe-formed
effective’vir dealing win both day Lo-day
and ongoing sLrateg ¢ issues during 3 ery
challerz ng period The Beard recogrised
tnz contripatior and efforts of the
Exgcutina Team Lhrough tne corora. mus
candernic Areas b ghlighted far
onhaqzarent ircludad

Certmung vath mere fregquent afermal
cartact beraoer Bosed meet nas
estzbished nresponse tatne

arara. Tus oardors

Reesiabisking ragu ar forma’ and

~erma Soacd as i to the o der busiras-

35 rENINCI O 0432 ANgIrCrE s r g tha

seer Bosrd ~embers

Supporting succession planning below
Board leve. and developing a strarg
dverse Lalent pipeline

Board Re-election

The Articles o Association of the
Company ensure that all Directors ure
aubject to election by sharcholders at the
first AGM after their apporntment und
tore election at trree yoarly intervals,

Relatians with Shareholders

The Campany has ar ongaing programme
of mdimidual meetings with institutional
shareholders, allowng it to update
srareholdors on the performarce of the
business and the st-ategy lor the future,
and to give them an cppertunity to discuss
corporate gavernarce matters, The
Compary's brokers also contact key
shareholders ro establah f they would ke
ta sec the Chiel Executive and Finance
Directerin the days follewing the
presentation of the prelirminary and nall
yedr results. The Chairman, Richard Fuller
and Sir Jamnas Fuller are the key cortacts
wth the Cempany's family sharehclders
and Sir Jsmes Fuller nas a spearfic role

Lo keep 1 Louch with these sharehclders,
Tre Serior I~dependent Drrector snd

the other Nan Executive Directaors

sre all willing to sltend meetings with
sharebolders or Lo be contacted by
shareholders shauld they have uny
conco ns which Rave rol been resclved
through the normat charnels Tre

Nan Exzcutve Directors nave hac no
R'J\:h fequESL: dUrlﬁg Lhe Ast F‘r’a"\c\-‘]\ ycﬂr.
Al Board members recaive feedback from
tha results preseatations and meetings
with shareholders, ematblng them to keep
intouch with shareho'der opin.on,

Tre Board support- the use of the AGM

3 cormunicate, n partaular with private
i~.estors, ard the Chairmar ang Crinf
Sxecutice make a detaled oresentat en

¢ shareno ders uodatrg therm on tme
Comaany s performance and progross

“h2 Sourd skeer 1o encourage:nst LI orsl
ruastor- 16 atiend the mecting inliee with
tme qutics set oat r the Stovardhie Cade
farrstrenana skarehoders Should they

TS TONCTINY CL07 A0y 15UDs e
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Loor 31 the AGM,

tme Jrecters ard dscuss tte

rotabon Farannd odosl meet g
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The g re=ar arranges [or the Car
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Cormmittecs to answar relevant questions
at the meeting and enceureges all Directers
to be present.

In light of the orgoing risks of Covid, we
held the 2020 AGM a5 2 closed meet'ng
tz ensure the safety of ail concerned,
Shareholders were imvited to submit
quastions on any matters related to the
AGM prior tg the meetirg and answers
were posted or the Company's webs te
afterwards. The Beard plars to hold the
2021 AGM a« mormal this year ar the
basis that all restrictions will kave been
lifted by the time of the meeting, and
preparations are beng made for a physical
mecting to be held on 23 September 2021
at The George IV, subject of course to any
Gaverrment guidance in prace at the bime,

Detals cf the engigoment process with
shareholders regarding the new Directord’
Remunerat on Policy can be feund ir the
Directors Remuneration Pc—port on

poge 66

By order of the Board

RACHEL SPENCER
COMPANY SECRETARY

2 July 2021

Fuler, Srmith & Turner PLC.
Pier House

86-93 Strang on-tbe-Green
Londen Wa 3NN



JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

“The fundamentals
of our risk management
and internal control
framework have been
subject to close scrutiny
during the ongoing

closure of the estate.”

Audit Committee Report

Staternent of the Audit
Committee Chair

Dear Shareholder,

lam pleased to present the Audit
Committee Report for the year ended
27 March 2021,

s reportad last year, we dentfied
Lotunigviius ds di emnerging risk and

whilst our core duties have remained
unchanged, it has been necessary to

flex cur programme of activities and
consequently meet more frequently than
normal In partucular, the fundsmentals of
our risk management and interna’ contral
framework have becr subject Lo close
scrutiny dur'ng the sngoing closure of the
estate and given the uncertanty of the
wnpact of the pandemic on our business.
During the year, we were pleased o
welcome a new Heoad of Finance
Transformat’on and Rk, lan Namey,

lar has helpad us implement charges to
strengtnen our appioach te tne annual risk
assessment, and supported 3 comprehensive
review of our risks, as well as Vmplemen:mg

I

a framowerk which we can use to assess

and ernhance the contrel envicenment.,

Akey ares of work far the Audit
Committec this year has been the

audit terder process which resulted in

the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP
led this process on behal® of the Audi
Committee, but would lke to thark my
fellow Committee members and the wider
finance team for therr support. Given

the engagement of a new audit firm, it
seemed an apprapriats time Lo surnmdrise
arrangements arcund independence

and objectivity, and this has row been
formalised into a written policy The formal
appeintment of Ernst & Young LeP will be
proposed at the AGM, but we have been
do\ightcd with thair suppart durmg the
year end and look forward to developirg
this re'ationship.

Durirg the year, we recerved g ietter fram
the Financial Reporung Council nating
that the Campany’s 2220 Annual Report
and Accounts hud been included in the'r
themratic review of carporate reperting
cn cash flow ststements and |‘qmd\ty
disclosures, We were pleased to note

o1

that the FRC had no specific
questions Lo rase bul, in response

tc points they hl%h\lg)"lcd, we have
reviewed aur disclosures and for thase
aress whicn are sull relevant thiy year
we have made a rumier of changes te
enhance reporting so that itis clearer
and more concise.

Locking anead 1o the rext your, we will
monitar clasely the roll sut of the new
finance system which the Compdny
hasidentified as more sutable for

the busiross ro||owmg the sale

of the Brewery, reviewing both the
robustness of Ninarcisl reporting
from the vystem and simpl leation

of interndl controls management

IT security will alsa be ar area of focus
given tho inzredsed nsk from cyber
atlacks, and we nlend to conduct

a deep dive into the controls in this
arca to help mivgate these threats.

[ wili be attending the AGM on

23 September 2021 and | ook
forward to answer ng any questicns
about the work af the Acdit
Committes then,

J

JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

8 July 201
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GOVERNANCE

AUAit Committee Report continued

Committee Membership

“he Commiitee comprises three
independent Non-Executive Chrectors,
and has a good balance of skills, with
competence and experience in the sector
in which Fuller’s operates, The Chair of the
Cemmittec s & Chartered Accountant
and has a broad range of expericnice n
semior Finance rales, and sna s therefore
considared to meel the requiterment
under the Code that at least ore mermber
should have recent and relevant financial
experience. The Cormmittee 1s ady sed
internally by the Company Secretary,
Q;Echfr Spehcer (Se‘ver\n@ Bt‘qu\r\ Umtl{

3 January 2021), who alwc acts as
secretary to the Commitiee

Meeting Attendance

Aitendance of Committes members ax
scheduled maetings throughout the year
s set aut onoage £9 The Commuttec
norreally meets fours tred year but.
given the unprecadented year, we have
held cleven rrectings. As well as the
additional ngour needed around risk
mandgement with the entire closure of
the business, the formal ties of the FY20
audit process required added sttention

All meetings are sttendea by the external
aud'tors anat the Company Secretary,
ard regular atterdees include the
Charmzr, Cnief Executive and the
Finarce Drector Members of the
r\r‘ﬁr‘ce E‘lnd r\‘ik mir‘:igc"ﬂfﬂt tedarm

alsa attena relevant meetings at the
Committee Chair's request, and reports
are received on occas.an from other
rmembers of the management Leam

as requred by the agenda, ‘

The Audiz Comm ttee mects at least arce
4 year with tne exterral suditors, withour
management prasent, to dacuss any
matters they may wish to rase. The Audit
Comm tice Char 4 50 meets scparately
wath the Cinance Directo and auditors
cuiside of the farmal meeting programme
which helps to dent Ty key areas of focus
and ermerging ssues that may reed to be
added ta the Audit Commuittee’s agenaa.

Responsibilities

The Aud L Commuttee’s responsibilives

are outhned in1ts torms of reference
These were reviewed following the yeasr
erd, including an assessmert of how Le
Aucit Committee had discharged ity
responsibi'ities durng the year, The rovised
terms of reference can ke found on the

Comaoary™ webuite.

The principal responsiblities af the
Audit Commities ure Lo review the
integrty af the Financial reparting for
the Group (ncluding managirg the
relatiorshop witn the auditors} and to
oversce the effectiveness of the sk

rrapagement andinternsl contral systems

Key Activities

The Audit Committer has a detaned
rreeting planner which sets out the key
termns to be coverad 4t ity scheduled
meet.rgs wh chincludes revievang tme
financ-dl statemnents and snnouncemients,
monitering changes in accourting prachices
and peleies, and revicwing decisions with

2 sgnihicart element of judgement

At each scheduled meeting sn update an
risk management s presented, togethar
wath reports on comrplance wath anu
bribery procedures and data protecton,
Inhght of Coad "9 and the entre clesore
of the busingss, there Ads beer z,en

greatort gour arcund potantal nses 37 sing

.
fram the ongzr g uncarianty. In 2021, ke

Aadit Commities recer.ed sr update
rzgard ng the reress ng cskoof allergers
1~d w13 piessed 1o aste the conbinued
idherence to proceaures alrerdy - olace
3 mongate tnis sk, toée‘_)“:' cathtne new

2d

arcas of ek arcamant

52

The Audt Cemmitiee keeps abreast of
regulatory and governance developments
as port of engoing reporting from the
auditars SpL‘C\FIC areas of interost

are scheduled Sepdrdlcly and in 2021

a member of the auditers’ Regulatory &
Public Poicy team gave a presentation to
the Commttes on audit reform proposals
being corsidered by the Gavernment

The effect-venass of the Audit Comritiee
farmed part of the Board 2valuation
process described in the Corporate
Gavernance Report on puge 50

Financial Reporting and
Significant Judgement

The Audit Cammittee monitars the
integnity of the firancial information
published in the intenim and anru sl
finanzial statements and considers the
extent to which suitable accountirg
policies bave been adopled, oreseried
and disclased

Du’\hgl ILs reviewe af the chupvs financial
staterments for the peniod e 27 March
2021, tne Audit Commitiee has reviewed
the key juagements appied in the
preparation of the consolidated “inancial
statements, inc.uding those commuricatea
by the auditors during therr reporting
Tness are described nithe accounting
palcies detaled in note 1o the financial
staternents. T Board was made

Fully awsre of any sigriflicant finsrcial
reporuing 1ssues and judgerrents made

in cennscbon with the propacanen of

te financia statements.



"he keyissues and judgements considered

Koy o counbirgiadgerert

by the Aud.t Comm tlee are detailed in the accompany ng table:

Clowtne sravait s it s ]

Going Concern

The Audit Committee consicered the appropriateness of the poing concern assessment and
associdted judgements arourd materis’ uncertaint'es. The Audit Comrmuttee reviewed the
SCEndros and mitlgat-onﬁ avatablez to the GrGup as disclosed innote 1and 15 satisfed

the disclosures are appropriate.

Iﬁ'\pair“ment Testing of Intangible
Assets, Right-of-Use Assets and
Property, Plant and Equipment

The Audit Committee consicered the propesed imparment of preperty assets, nght of use
assels and goodwill for both the Hall Year Repeort ana the Annual Report The Audit Committee
was satished with the approach presented by management and the judgements made far thase
propernies arr sk of impairment

Deferred tax

Deferred tax accounung on property, plant and equ'pment 15 g complex area and ¢ number

of judgements arc required to determine the value. Deferred tax can be recognised on pubs
based on disposdl, 1n use or a dual basis and o number of different inputs need to be convidercd
to calculate this such as fair value upl\Fts, rolled over gains and indexation. A prior year
adjustment Lo deferred tax ability has been recagrised in respect of an understatement

the base cost recaverable or a sales basis. The Audit Commuttes s satisfied that after the
adjustrment was made to the opering batance, the judgements that managemert applied in tne
currenl year are appropriate. The Audit Commitiee has also conwdered whether sufficient
disclesares have been made in the Arnugl Report for the prior year restatement and 5 satis® ed

they have beer.

Separately Disclosed Items

The Audit Committea considered the nature of items classified as “separately disclosed irems”
in the financial statements The Audit Committee was sati~led that the items management
proposed to be shown as separatety disclosed ‘terms were not inked to the underlyng trading
of the Group. Separately disclosed items include,

costs relating Lo the corporate rearganisation of the Graup, specifically the hive up
of the trade and assets of Bel & The Driagon and Cotswald Inns & Hatars, the endng
of the transitioral serv ces arrangement with Asahi and restructuning dus ta the
coronavirus panderm:c

profit or loss on property disposals

‘mpdirment on properties, right-of-use asscts and goodvill

net intercst expense on the Group's defined benef t peasion plan,

In addition, the Audt Comrmttee raviewad these disclosures within the 2021 Annual Repoert
and Accourts Lo ensure they clearly identified and reconciled to the relevant GAAP measure.

Pension Accounting

The pension habifity 15 senstive Lo the actuanal assumptions spplied 1In measuring futurs cash
outllows, The use of assumptions such as discount rate and iInflation, which have animpact

on the valuation of the defined benefit pension schema, was assessed by the Audit Committes
The Audit Commuttee was salisfied wth the proposed accounting treatment and disclosures
of the Group's defined benehit plan in the financial statemerts

Going Concern and

Viability Statement

The Audit Coramutios assessed the

going concern and viabilily roviews
undertaken by mansgement as detaled
inthe Finarcial Review on pages 25 and
26 This inva'ved looking at potenuial
ravenues, costs and Cash flow modelling
on both a pradert base case and siress

¢ 350 sconano where thare was much
gredtor uncortd niy. The Committen was
satisfied with the »iPP"D.iC}“ prc'ac-nmd by
management nclucing the judgemenis
mace 1n the estimation of future cash Flows
ard the Group's flﬂ&ﬁc\ng‘ and considerng
the high propartion of freckold prooerty
that underpirs the estate.

Fair, Balanced and Understandable
The Audit Commiticn reviewed whether
the 2021 Annual Report, taken as a whole,
was Fair, balanced and understandable and
also whether it prowvided the information
necessary for sharchslders to assess the
Company’s posit-on and performance,
business model snd strategy In making

its assessment the Audit Committae tock

the Fo”owmg into dccount

A timetasle for the production of the
2021 Arnual Report was dgrc:‘d by the
Finance Team and the auditors, watn
overdl' co ordination of the report being
oversecn by the Firsrce Director

Each section of the report was prepared
by 4 member of management with
sppropridate knowledge and experience,
including representatives from finarce,
COMmMUNICALIans, COMpany secretarias
and risk

Maragement's views on each of the key
Judgements which were then discussed
by the Audt Commitlee

Reports and feedback from the
auditors which were pre~zrtad to the
Audit Committee

Beard members recewed drafts of the
report for review which prowidea an
OPportunily to Eroyvac commaents ard
ensure Messaging was cohoaive.
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GOVERNANCE

Audit Committee Report continued

Sellowing ts review, the Audit Corrmittee
confirmed t2 the Beard that the 2021
Annual Report was far, balapced and
understardable, ard the Board's
statement s sol out on odage 45,

Internal Control and

Risk Management

The Board has cvera'l respons bility for the
Group's system of :rternal conirol and
ranagement of rsks and reviewing its
offectiveress. The system was designed
to provde reasonable bur rot ansolute
A55Urance D‘r

« the mitigstion of risks which might
cause tne falure of business objectives
no rateral risstatements or losswes

+ thasa‘oguard g of assets aganst
unauthar sed use o disposal

the maintenance of proper accounting
records and the relisbility of financial
nformanen used within the bus ress
or For publicsticn

complance with appheable lews

snd regulations

The D\rC‘:LC’S, statement an [he
Company's system of inlorra contro s

1552t onl be'ow,

Early in the year the Committee discussed
the Compary s risk rranagemant process
and Lok the ogportunity to do = ful
refresh of the risk register This included
abottom upresew of rsks across all
departrrents, revising or reconfirming
ownership and updating mitgaung actions

and corzrols. This gave the Commuttee
ircreased corl dence in tha risk processes
within the GrOup A'ﬁy mgmf\C&ﬂt
changes tor sks were aiscussed neach

subsequent Commrttee meetirg

Inaddition, dur ng tha year 1 selection
of key rsks viere oresented Lo cither tne
2o the Bzard This has

rcluged rs<s around busiress cont nu ty

Aadit Commit

¥ t)—- tne o asurs B’Td ’E‘jp(:‘l"l’\g C‘: the
Bus ress cue to Towd, assosiment of r sk,

avaung oot people and 1z approecn Lo

E¥laelet ‘-yr\g )

sez dfirgaorsuss y chas

The Group maintars busingss cont nuity
p 1ns and tests these plans on an annual
bass, usual y tow srds Lhe end of the
financial year. Due to the coronavrus
pandernic and the c osure of the estate
for much of the year. it was not pessble
to carry out the anrual exercinc for the
financia’ year ended 27 March 2021,
The Board and Auai: Cormmittee consider
the rapid and thorough response to the
pardemic by the Executive Team, and
the broader management team, a5 solid
audence of the effectiverass of ex sting
disaster recovery and business

conunuity plans

Mdr‘.agemem wichin the Finsree
Cepartrrent sre responsible far the
appropriste mantensnce of firancial
records and processas tnat ensure al°
Frencial .rlormation is relevant, retable,
n1ccordance wth the apphcable laws ard
regulatiors, and dist- buted bork interraly
ind externally 10 a trmely marner.

“he seoping, tendening and implemertaticn
of 3 rew central [narce system, which wll
o hve during the new financ ai year, bas
been an ared of focus for the Finance

Cepartment during th < financia’ year

Through ou: the perod, the Erccutive
Uirectors pro.idad relevant and nmely
financial commentary to the Ssad o
supplement the finarcial report rg, ensunng
the Board ard the Audit Committec were
~formed of the finarcial pasition and

results of the Group

The Board and Audt Cormmittee have
consdered the effectiveress of the Group's
system af internal control, takirg account
af material charges in the operstiors of the
Group fallowing the coronaarus pandermic,

the implementat on of ing Carora, rus Lob

Reteetion Schemre and the Graups vanous
reopening f 30s thal ke beer regured
atvar ous perts doning thie year and agar

a7ler tne yearend.

. - —~
ST ThE DUl
-

trgathor wth wel viroc

ncluding commentary en key business
opperlurities and risks, approvad by Lhe
Execut ve Team and {urther reviewed
by the Board on a consolidated baws
the revicws by the Exccutva Team

of actual menthly results against
budget, together w th corrmentary

an »'gwficant variances and updatas
of bath profit and cash 'ow
expectalions for the year

inaddivon, due Lo the excepticnal
arcumstances of this year, weekly

rev ews of performance of both

profit and cash fow during per ods

of recpening

a detaied invastment approval pracass
requinng Boad suthariation far all
major FfOJectS

posL implernentstion apprasals

cl major capital expenditure projects

FCgU}df VepOft ﬂg Gfiegjj aﬂd
accourung developments to the Board
regulas review of the Group’s risk
regster 4nd discusson of significant
rsks by the Board and Audi
Comeittee, which among other things
tike account of the sigmlicance of
ervironmental, socia” and governance
mattars Lo the busingss

- monitening of acaident statistics and
tne resu ts of heaitn and safety audits

The Graup does not hisve a farmal internal
audit function The Group employ-~ g leam
af retail pus.ness suditers wha men Ler,

in particular, the controls over <tock and
cashin the Maraged Pub estate, Bel &
“he Dragon wites, Cotswold Inns & Hotels
ard, until therr sale, The Stable wites.

Selevant management attend meoungs of
the Audit Comrrittee to d scuss the issues
berg addressed Clear'y, with the business
coosed, thase reviaws were curta lod but
apregramme of actw ties has row been
resured After corsideransn, the Audt
Comm ttec has confirred that the

cesting arrangeents foririernal aud ©

reman jppreprate
ramtme to vme augeest the noeenal

sud tresource with specid sl ox=terna

“en Exteral experine - ascused

o
TER O Z30ETD 5 uiEre (ne Lo b
coneiders o ouwngss may be exposed

Trisyesrsns roivead ae externslroocn

st thie t,DS oA rjr‘d (oo Siatvl “’;rmdfﬂ

gatcrmsl oeperiie w lhe wsed 1o supsor:

GuTCyBer ALty fernn



Whistleblowing

The Audit Commitice s responable for
revicwing the adequacy and secunty of the
Company's arrangements for employees
and cantractors Lo raise concerns abou®
any possible improprietics relating to
Financial reporting or other matters

Since the year end, the Audit Commuttee
has reviewed 4nd updated the Company's
Whistleblowing Pelicy To compiement
the intennal processes already inplace.

4 mechanism Tor concerms Lo be rased
anonymausly, rather than justin
conliderce, has been implemented
through the appemtment of an
mdependc‘r‘l whlst|c'b|owing, SErVICE:
operated by Salecall. Employess are
being notfied of the new arrangements
through the Company’s anline training
ard communications platform,

Any whistreblowing reports are reported
to the Aucit Committee and, at least
arnually, to the Board. Following the
recpening of the business, i standing
report to the Audit Committee on
employes relation matters has been
resumed to provide insight to any
trends within the business.

External Audit

A reparted ast yedr, the Audit Commitiee
decided ta review the oxternal audit
dppointmaont and conduzted a Compc—L\Live
audit tender process. A number of firms
were invited to tender, and shorllisted
firms presented ther proposals o

the Audit Commitice Chair and the
Finance Director Before the final
reconmenddtion to the Board, all

other members of the Committes, the
Charman and the CEQ met the potential
engagement partner of the preferred firm,

Fallowing careful consideration, the Audn
Commutiee recommended the appaintment
of Ermst & Young LLP (“EY") to conduct
the audit of the Groups financial statement-
for the Fnancial year to 27 March 2021,
The'r sector experience was recognised us
partnicularly vwaluable, Grant Tharnten UK
LLP subsaquently resigned,

The avditors are invited to attend all
rreotings of Lhe Audil Committee and
report on bne p|;1n and dppl’C}dCh Tor the
full year audic and nalf year review

The Audit Committee Chair meets the
auditars on a regular basis duning the year
and the Audit Cemmitten meets with the
external auditors, without MAanag@ement
present, at least annualty in arder to allow
both Audt Committee members and the
qudtors to rame any 155ues dlrecHy and to
discuss the suditars’ remit.

The Audit Committee reviewed the
C’FFECTQIVE‘NE‘QR OF EY“& PCFFOFH’]:'H"IC@ Or LhC
external audit process tdkmg Into 4ccount

+ the quahty ard scope of the sudit plan,
and evaluation of delivery ard
performance agmnst the plan

qualifications, efficiency and
performance of the audit team

the communicatiar between the
Corpany and EY

EY's understanding of the Group's
business ana industry secter

the results of the FRCs Audt Qualiy
Inspect’on Report on EY.

After Cormdormg theso rmalters, the
Audit Committoe was satisfied with

the effectiveress of the year end audit
process and recommended to the Board
that EY should be proposad for formal
appointment at the Compamy’s AGM
on 23 September 2021,

During the year, the Company comphed
with the provisions of the Stﬁtutory Audit
Services for targe Compasnigs Market
Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Process and Audit
Committee Qesponwbwllt\es) Order 2014

Auditor Independence

and Non-Audit Services

Auditor independence and objectwity
are safeguarded by a number of control
reasures and, 10 light of the appointment
of EY, the Audir Committee decided 1t
W dn appropridie time to summarise
armangemenls into a formal witten policy
(the “Polcy™). The Policy was approved in
January 2021 and sets out processes for
assessing imdependence and objectivity,
including d'sclosure requirerments of the
aud tors, restrictions on the employment
of the auditars’ farmer ermployees and
the CIrCamstances iﬂ W)"\Ch Lhc audwT.Or%
may be perm tred to urdertake

non-audit services,

The po\lcy 15 11 hne with the
recommendations set out In the FRC's
Guidance on Audit Committees snd the
requirernents of the FRC’s Revised Ethical
Standard 2019 (the “Standard") In respact
of non audit services, only a very shart

list of nen audit services s now perritted
under the Standard, whech are detaled

in the Paley. Previously, authority was

de egated to the finance team to authorise
spend with the auditors for non auditilems
up to £20.000, but under the Palicy il
spend now has to be approved by the Audit
Cormmmittee which ensures full vsibrity,

In 2021, the fees pad te EY for audit
services were 405,000 including
£95,000 for non-recurning audit services,
There were no non-audit services fees pa-d
during the year.

JULIETTE STACEY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE

8 July 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report
p

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

“After careful
consideration
the Remuneration
Committee is planning
to grant a one-off
Recovery LTIP Award
in 2021 to incentivise
management to re-build
the business and profit
levels following the

Covid-19 pandemic.”

Statement of the Remuneration
Cornrmittee Chair

Dear Shareholder,

Cr behalf of the Board, L am picased Lo
present the Remuneration Report for
the 52 weeks endad 27 March 2021,
waick includes sur revsed Directors'
Remuneratan Polcy ("Policy") which
will be put La shareholders for approval
atthe AGM on 23 September 2021

The [ast year has been an extremely
dilficult one for tne hospitality sector.

The outbreak of Covid-19 bas had

a sgrificant impact on the business with
pubs closed fer a comsiderab'e pertion

of the last Financial year and the early part
of this Finarcial year. From the start of the
first lackaown unt! 72 April 2021 cur pubs,
or average, will have been oper an anly
27% of the 388 days During lockdown
cash burn was ¢ £4-S million per month
Al of our wites are now apen but we are
cperating ata much-reduced Capdcity
iring with government gu dunce.

I light of the irpact af the pandemic

o~ tho Dusiness and to supporl the
miragemant of casts, the Executive
Urectors ana other Board members
volunteered Lo reduce thair salares by
25% between [ Apnl 2020 ard 30 June
2020 and 45 | reported last year ng annus’
bonus was paid for FY2020, despite par:

of the performance targets beirg met,

The Rermuneration Committee

"the Committee”) and the Exzcutive
Directars agreed that, given the closure
of the busiiess and our reliance on

go /ernment suppert, nc annual narus
plar woula operate for FYZ1, Stretching
~dusted EPS growtn targots setfor 2078
_TIP 5w 1-ds wero rot met ard thersfore

this asard vl laose

56

Ful'er's s priranly 4 farily owned business
and this ethos s integral to our decision
making Fhrougﬂcu[ the closure of

the busingss, the phy:sc&ﬂ and mental

well baing of our people and their farmlies
has been of paramount importance

to the Boerd and 2l our decisions have
heen made with them at tne centre of

our thinking, We were the first company
to suspend rent for our Tenants during
peneds of elosure which was very well
rec@\vcd‘ For our tedms \n our N\dnﬂgﬂ‘d
Pubs snd Hotels, and in the Support
Centre, our pcop\e Team has p’Owdcd
CLess LO EWDUGWJ‘ dﬂd FmdF\CIaV SUPPOrt
for tearm members, Tris has been cascaded
through aur d\gtal communication system
and has included regular wdeo messages
from the Chief Exccutive. as well s
access to support an offer from the

L censed Trade Chanity We also provadea
supermarket vauchers for those of our
Lzams most impacted during the tough
third icckdown and orovided Fuller’s
wvouchers to tedm members who
voluntegred in their local commuarit ey
while furlougned by way of thanks,

A rumber of wabindrs nave also been
kosted to impart more detaled nformaticn
and these became a regular fixture just
prior to each reopering The success of
those webirars by cemented therr place

In our commurizalons toolkit and s

g pestive learming thot wa wll take forward.

Recovery LTIP Award

I~ \\ght of the cha'lenges the business
faces, the Board 1z concerned abcut the
motivat on and retent on o the Execut ve
Chrectars and 15 therefore m{eﬁdmg o
Erum a4 one of ¥ .Qecovc—ry LTiP Award

in 2021 toincenty se managemen: to
rebuiid the business and profitieels

Tris swara wil ke r addivon te the
rarmal LTIP award



The Recavery LTIP Award will vest based
upan the achieverment of stretzhing
EBITDA targets for FY24 which are
aligned with dc\wcrmg a full recavery

of tho business The Committee has
selected Group EBITDA {excluding IFRS
16) a- the sole meassure of performance for
the Recavery LTIR asit strongly ncentiv ses
operational recovery throughout our
business arnd prowdcs strong ne ormght
for rﬂ-mg]gcment, Fouowmg the erd of the
performance penod, vested shares will be
\ubject tod ho\dmg pc—rlod {or Lwo Yo
For Executive Dlroctors, L awdrd

witl have a value of 25G% of pase salary.
Other serior excculives will also partic pate

in the plan recavirg lower leveis of award.

It s intended that the Recovery LTIP
Award wil' be granted under the oxisting
LTI= ruies and will be subject to the

same terms around discretion to overnde
formulaic cutcormes, malus and clawback
and leavers. We wil be seeking sharehorder
,1p|::rov.1| {or arovised O rectors’ Rermuneration
Palicy and for an amerdment to our LT
Rules Lo enable us to grant this Recovery
LTIP Award Tollowing the AGM,

Other reward elements

Base salanies for Executive Directors
will be increased by 2% in ing with the
increase for the wider workferce For
FY22 the maximum anrual Bonus will
cont:nue to be 100% of base salary with
the annua’ bonus bised 70% on Group
EBJ‘TDA perFDrmdFCE dﬁd BO{}(’) bd\od
on mndividual strategec perforrwmco

For FY22 the maximum LTIP award

will continue to be 125% of baswe 5d|dry
for the CEQ and Relal Direclor based
an the achievement of E2S peiformance

for FY24

Finance Director’s

Remuneration arrangements

As announced on U June 2021, Neil
Srithwill be joining us as our new Finarce
D rector at a date to be canfirmed, but
no later than 1 December 2021 Hs salary
has oeer set at E352,500 per annum,
We appreciate this salary s above the
salary for the former Finance Director,
however, 1t 14 pomtwon-:d SOMC Wy pelow
the salary he recerved in s previous role
of 430,000 Neil will receive a pension
of 5% of base sa|.iry inhne with the
F-er\sion recened by the ma_JOrI[y af

our wider workforce andin line with

our Direciors’ Remuneranior Policy.

His maximrum arnual bonus opportunity
will be 1007% of buse salary and he will

be eligible to recaive an annual LTIP
award of TC0% of base salary. He wil:
also be elgble to paruc’pate in the
Recovery LTIP on o pro rats basie.

Adarm Courcell will step down from the
Board and his role of Finance Directar
later in the year. He will not receve any
payment in leu of not'ce Adam will not
be entitled to parucipate inincentive
armﬂgementa N respect of FY22 and

all his out:t‘md\rﬁg LTIP and ESOS awards

will iapse

Tre Commuttee strongly beheves

that the Recavery LTIF Award s critical
to support the business 1 recovery from
the significant impact of the pandermic
and we hope that you will support our
revised Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
the amendment Lo the LYIP Rules and cur
Annual Remuneration Report at the 2021
AGMen 23 September 2021,

1
g%\/""\;r" .

e
_o—""—/

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

& July 2021
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Report on Directors” Remuneration Policy
The lellowing table sets oul wur Remuneranion Pelicy for Directors (the “Pol ¢y "] This policy wil be put farward to shareholders far
their binding approv st at the Anrual General Meeting to oe nefd or 23 September 2021 and will apply to payments made fram this date

'n developing this Policy, tne Carmittes has cons dered the key principles set out in Provision 40 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code The Committee believes that our Palicy 1n clear and transparent and algned with our culture In normal years ve operate a smple
neentive Framework of an annual borus ard 4 LTIP only Award levels are capped with payeut linked to performarce aganst o hmited
number of measures which arc well inked to our strategy. Stretcning but fair Largets are set This ensures that petertial reward outcomes
are cear and aligned with performance achieved, with the Committee hauing the aiscrebon to adjust pay-outs where this s not conuderea
to be the case.

Pay levels are set taking nto account extermal market levels as well as internal practice ta ensure pay remains competitive whi'e being
equitable w tnen the Compary. Malus and clawback and discretion provisions, LTIP helding penods and sharehold ng guidelines, ircluding

post employment, are in pluce ts mitgate reputational and other risks

Further detals reparding the operabion of the Policy for the corrent fnancial year can be found on pages €4 ta 68, Detalls o how the
g 4 perat ¥ ¥ pag
previous Foucy was appied for the financial yoar ended 27 March 2021 can be found or puges 93 1o 78

Executive Directors (“Executives”)

SRR e abag Mo oz A, Farsmre i = may e
Base Salary  Torecruil retaim and The Committee sets base salary taking Whilst there s no Nat appheable.
reviard hlgh calibre ntc account, maximum salary,
Exccutive Directors to ingroases will narmally

. the .nd wdual's skills, experiznce irg .
delver the Company's F beirline with the
ther perfarmance

strategy. The salary wll typ cdl incredsos

salary levels at other comparies of & simila-
Y P awarded 16 other

ernployees in the Group,

reflect each role, the
size ana complexity
mportance of that )
- pay and canditions elsewhere in the Group.

rcle to the Business f
. - - OWEYEr, INCIr2ases
and the experience the  Any salary incresses are nermully e*focue b ,b thes love!
may be above this love!

indrndual brings toit from 1 Jure oy bE
ZErTIN CIrCLMmst Inces

such as:

where an Execut e
Directar has bear
apponted to the Board
st alower thar typical
market salary to allow
For growth in tre role,
larger incredses may be
awarded to mave salary
pos tion ng cleser to
typica market level s
tne Execur ve Cirector
gains expererce

wnzre an Execut..2

DCrreciorhas beon
promored ar nas
hac 1 changoin
responabr ues
- anEre Lnere tds been
3 Slgn F\C'lr‘t :F-iréc
e

eIk Graci e o

maazz itd csrpest,

CTtme Tgsn satisr,

58



RPN LV

Mas o poa e

S

LRS- SR

To recruit and retam
Exccutrve Dircctors by
provuiding competitive
benef ty which also
protect Exccutives and
provide preventative
carc for them.

The Company offers Executives a range
of benef ts which irclude:

car dllowince

Iife assurance

private medizalimsurance
subscriptions to professional bod-cs
ar other relevant org4msatians
regular medical check ups
permdnent hoalthinsurance

Executve D rectors may participate in the
Share Incentive Plan or Savings Related Share
Option Plan ar any other all employes plans
on the same basis as cther eligible employees

up to HMRC-approved imits.

The Cormmuittee may introduce other benefits
if it considered appropriate to do so.

Executive Directers shali be re'mbursed {or
all reasenable expenses and the Comparny

may settla ANy tax incurred.

Where an Executive Director is requered to
relocate to perfarm ther role, the appropriate
one off or ongeing benefits may be provded
{e.g housing, schooling, etc ).

The cast of the provsion

of allowances arnd berelits

varies Trom year 1o year
dependmg anthe cost to
the Comp.—my and there

i\ no PFCSCHde MAXIMILm

Ymit However, the
Corrmittee moriters
annually the overall cest
sf the bonefiis PI’OvIdC‘d‘
ta ensure that it rermams

4pDrOpridte.

Not applicable.

Arrusl

Borus

To incentiviae
Executive Directors
to deliver performance
in line wath the Group
strategy and Lo align
therr mterests with
those of sharcholders,

Any bonus carned of up te 75% of salary
will normally be paid in cash fol owing
the year end

Any bonus earned in excess of 75% will
norma'ly be deferred inta shares urder the
Bonus and Deferred Bonus plan for taree

yoars sabject to continued employment.

The Committee may decide to pay the entre
bonus in cash where the amount to be deferred
into shares would, in the opimon of the
Comrmittes, be so smalt it 1s adrinistratively
burdensome to apply deferral,

Banuses are not persionable.

Bonuses are based on annual
performance tarpets.

The Committee may, in its discretion adjast
annual bonus payments if it considers that
the outeorme does not reflect the underlying
finanaial ar non finanaial performance

o the partic-psnt cr Lhe Group over the
relevant per'od or th st such payoul level s not
.1ppropr|dto ir the context of circumistances
that were unexpected or urforeseen wher the
targets wore set. When making this judgment
the Committee My take Intc account such
factors as the Committee considers refavant,

Malus and clowback provisions upply, detaled
on page 63,

Maximum annual bonus
opportunity of 100%
of base salary,

Naormally 50% of the
borus shall pay out

for on-target levels of
performance. The arnual
bonus nermally starts

to accrue for meeting
threshold levels of
performance.

The Committec retains
discretion to vary the
level of payout for
threshold and target
performance if it
corsiders it to be
appropriate.

59
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The Committee

shall determine
pCrrCrmdﬂCC modsures
FDr thG bGr\US CdCH )/C‘dr
These may rclude
financial measures (or
Cdep|o proﬂtabﬂwty}
and other meines Frnked
1o the delvery of the
business strategy.

No less than 70%
of the annual bornus
will be based on

\Cm{mcln‘ measures

The Committee has the
discretion in exceptional
circumstances to adyust
the performance
targets and/ar sel
different measures

il everts oceur outaide
of management’s
cortrol or where the
target no longer
satishes its origiral
puUrpase Lo crsdre

that pay 15 aligned

with performance.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

ST ebioraly

Share Plans

Lorg Term
Ircentive
Plan
CLTIP™)

To reward the efforts
of Exccutne Direclors
N ine with the
Company’s objectve
of creating shareholder
value and support
alignment with

shareholder interests

The LTIF alva acts

as aretenton tool.

Awards can b in the form of conditional
shares or in such ather form that tha
Comrmittee detormines has the same
cconomic effect. Awards car be over ‘A’
(h~zed), and "B and 'C' (unl sted) ordinary
shares and the Committee may alter the
distr bution betwaen the different classos
of shares, provided that there is no increase
in the aggregate market value of the award

Awiaras normally vest based or
performance assessed over a peried

not sharter than three years,

Awards granted rom 2020/21 orwards
v I normaily be subiect tc o helding perod
of two years faliowing the end of the

performance peniod

The Comrrittes m Ay, nits discration,
adjust LTIP vesting levels F it conwiders that

the oucome does not reflec: the under'ying

finungial or aon financial pCFFC-rrn-ihce
cf the participart or the Grouo over the
relevant period or that such vesting level
15 rol dppropriste in the conlext of
aircurmstarcas that were unexpected

or uriorescen when the targets were
sot or1n the context of the experence
cf shareko ders or other stakeholders
Wher macirg this judgmrent, the Committee
may take into account such faciors as
the Committee cansiders relesant,

Malus and c'awback prov sians apply,
2s detaled on page 63

The maximur annual
award i rcspcci OF

a financial year 15 125%
of base salary

Normally 25% of awards
vost Tor thresheld levels
of performance

Aveards gfdr‘tcd n
202122 will vest
subject Lo pre tax
adjusted EPS
performance which wil
ncrm'l{ly bE‘ measurod
ever 4 period of three
years

The Committce

may use different
performance modsures
for furure awards ity
deemad appropriate
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Recovery
Long term
Incentive
Plan Award
("Recovery
LTIP
Award”}

Note - itis
intended that
the Recovery
LTIP will be
granted under
the terms of
the LTIP Plan
subject to
shareholder
appraval of

a revised
approach

to individual
award imits
at the 2021
AGM

The Recovery LTIP
Aviard will be granted
cnaone-off basisin
FY22, designed to
support the recovery
of the busingss
followirg the
COVIDAS pandemic
by incentivising
mdragement to
rebuild the busiress
and prefitfevels,

Awards car be in the form of corditional
shares or in such other form that the
Committee determines has the same
economic effect. Awards car be over A
(hsted), ard 'B’ ond 'C (unhisted]) ordinary
shares and the Committee rray alter the
distribution belween the different clusses
of shares, provided that there is no increase
in the aggregate market value of the award,

It s inzended that awards will vost based on
pemtormnm:e over the three financiai yCdrs

202122 10 2023724

Awards wall be subject to a holding period
of two years following the end of the
performance period. other than in
exceptional circumstances,

The Commuittee may, N its discretion,
adjust the Recovery LTHDvcsng levelsifit
considers that the cutcorne does not reflect
the u*‘wder‘ymg financial or ren financral

perForrﬂrmcc of the parlicipant cor the Group

over the relevant period or that such vesting
level iv not appropriate in the context of
circumstances that were unexpected ar
unforcseen when the targets were setarin

the cantext of the experience of shareholder.

or other slakeholders. When making this
Judgment, the Committee may take into
accaurt such factors as the Committes

considers relevant

Malus and clawback provisions apply,
as detalled on page 63

The Recovery LTIP
Aoward will be granted
onaane aff basis
with aw irds iIntended
tobe granted in FY22

ThE MAXPTIUM Qv rd

15 250% of base salary.

29% of the award will ves:
far threshold levels of
performance, 50% of the
award wirl vest for target
levels of performance,
75% of the award wll vest
for very strong levels of
perfarmance and 100%
of the award will vest for
exceptonal performance

Itis intended that

the Recovery LTIP
Aweards will be based
on EBITDA (excluding

IFRS 18] performance.

Executive
Share
Opuon
Scheme

(“ESOS")

To align the interest
of Executive
Directors with those
of shareholders.

A tax-advantaged market value share
option plan.

Executive Directors may be granted market
valug opliors up to @ maxmum total value

set by HMRC.

Opuons vest based on performance over
a three-yeir period

Once vested, options must be exercised
before the tenth anniversary of grant

Exccutives may be
granted and hold
options up to the
maximum value

sel by HMRC
{currently £30,000)

at any one Tme.

An ESOS oplion

will vest in full f the
threshold performance
level 1s achieved.

The ve%tlﬂg O‘F ESOS
options s subject

to the achievernent
of performance
conditions which will
narmally be measured
over 4 period of not
less than three years.

The Committee
ntends to use
adjusted EPS asthe
performance condition

Tre Committee

may, however, use
different performance
measures fitis
deermed appropriate,
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Maw v g ey, o

Hatoe T an st

Pension

To provide Excoutive
Directors vath

\omg term pension
pro\/\MOn\' or

a competitive bavs,

The Company operates a variety of persion
benefits. Exacutive D rectors are erther
deferred members of the defined benefit
pension gan - now closed to future aceruals
- o the Company's defined contribution
pens cn plan or recerve a salary supplement
or a mixture of those.

The maximum annual Mot appheablz
pension contribution or

cash allowance s 17 5%

of base salary. Exacutive

Directors wll normally be

expecled to make o net

contribution of 8% of

base salary thermscluas

Thae Cheef Executive 1s
a momber of the rmam
section of the defined
benefit pens.on plan
whichis ccoved to

future accrual.

Ferany new Executive
Director to the Board
fFrom 1 Apnl 2020, the
pension opportumty
will be in line with the
Dolwcy for the T Gk
of the workforer

Share
awnership

guidel nesy

Aligr the incerests

of Executve Directors
and sharcholders and
encourage ‘ong term
sharcholding ind
corrutmenrt Lo the
Company both in and

past employment.

Executive Directors are expected ta bu ld and
rma.ntain s helding of sharesin the Company
equal to atleast 200% of base salary

Exccutive D rectors are expected to retan
S0% of ary post tax shares that vest under
a0y share incontve Arrangements uatil this
sharemolding 1s reacked.

The Corrmitlee alas Fas a palcy to pra~ote
nterests in shares following cessation of
employment to enable the interest of former
Executre Drectors to remrain al:gned wath the

irterests of sharcholders for an extended period

after leaving emplayrment

rFollowing ceasing to be an Executive Director,
Executive Directors w ll normally be expectad
to maingan a minimum shareholding of 200%
of bise salary (or actual sharebo d'rg Flower)
for tne first 12 monzns fallowirg departare from
the Board and 1070% of base salsry {or actual
-h‘,reho'jmg iFlawar] for the subsequent

12 monins The Committes relains discretior
118 not cansderad

Lz wean.c this guideline o

Approprdte.n tha specmc circurmsisnoes

Naot applicable Net appl.cable
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Non-Executive Directors
Basic ana To attract and retain The foes are pmd 1N cash. There is no maximum Nat app\ucab\e
Additional hugh cal bre Non The foes pa\d to the Chairman are fee feve\ other than as
Fees Executive Directors d ned by the R stion C provided by Articie 112
etermined by the Remuneration Committee. .
by offering market of the Company's artcles
competitve fec levels The fees pad to the olther Non Exccutive of ussociaticn, A
that recognise the time Directors are determened by the Chairman _:
that the Non Executive  and the Executive Cammittee. 2]
Dircctors commit to . =
thetr varioue ol Fees are »¢t taking into account the time o
commitment required to fulfil the role and =
typical practice at other similar companics. S
The policy i relation to Non Executive
Direclors’{ees s 1o pay a basic fee for
membership of the Beard, and additional
fecs for the Senior Independent Director
and for charmanship of a Committee to take
Into account the additional respensibilities
ard tme commitment of these roles.
Additioral fees may be paid Lo
reflect additional Baard or Committee
responsbilitios as appropriate (such as
lasing with farmily sharcholders}
Benefits To provide suitable Reasonable costs in relation to trave! and There 1z mo maxmum Not applicable.

arrsngemants to accommodation are reimbursed to the benalL opporturity.
allow Non Executive  Chairman and Nen Executive Directors

Directors to discharge The Company may meet any tax labihities

their duties effectively.  that may anse an such expenses.

The Chairman and Nor-Executive Directors
do not partcipate inincentive schemes,
MNone of the Non-Exccutive Directors are

-
members of any Group pension scheme with 2
the exception of Michael Turmer and Richard S
Fuller who are both pensioners of the i‘a
director’s section of the defined benefit by
pension plan. Both also receive Iife g
assurance cover. T
The Chairman also recerves prvate <
medical nsurance.
Additional non-significant benefits may
be introduced if considered appropriate
Information Supporting the Policy E
Malus and clawback .
Cash annual bonus payments may be clawed back for a period of three years from the date of payment. Malus and clawback provisions g
dpp\y Lnder the Banus and Deferred Barus Plarn BOBP™) and LTIP Gnc|udiﬂg Rccovery LTIP Awards) fram award to the thrd =
annwversary of the grart date in the case of BOBP awards and sixth annrversary of the award date far LTIP awards. The circumstances in %
wihicn rralusic awback may apply are a materiil misstatement of firuncul resulis, an error in d55ChaINg perfermance orin the informat ond i
assumphions used, 0 mater al failure of ¢ <k m anagement, serious reputalional damage, serious misconduct by the participanrt, or sny othor =
o
a

similar circurrstances.



GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Share plan operation
The Committes will operate the snnual borus, B2BP, LTIP and E50S in accardance with the Rules of the plars Awsrds under any of the
Caompany’s share plans may:

have any performarce conditions appiicable to them amended or substituted by the Committee in circurist inces where the Commuttee
determines an amended or substituted performance condition wauld be more appropriate and not raterially less difficult to satisfy
incorporate the r.ght to receive an amount equal to the va'ue of dradends which would bave beer paid on the shires urder an award that
vests up to the urne of vesting (this prowision does not appry to the ESQOS) Tris amount may be calculated dssuming that the dividends
have been reinyested in the Company's shares on 3 cumulat ve basis

be settled in cash at the Committee’s discrenion (this pravizion dacs not apply to the ESQOS). For Executive Directars, this provis on
will anly be used in cxcoplional circumstances such as where for regulatary ressons it s rot possible to settle awards in shares

- be adjusted in the event of amy variation of the Company's share capital or any demerger, deliszing, special dvidene or other event
that may affect the Company'’s share price.

Summary of Decision-making Process and Changes to Policy

Dunng 2020 the Committee undertoak a full review of the Policy to ensure that sur approach remain. appropriate to support our
strategy of achicving long term sustanable shareholder value creator The Committee continues Lo belicve that in narmal years the
overall lramawork of an annual bonus and LTIR i appropnate for the Company

Tne Cov d 19 pancermic has, howaver, bad o significantimpact on tre business and ir | ght of this the Comm tlee considered that it
woula be appropraate Lo grart s Recovery LTIP Award during FY22 te incenuvine mansgement to re-buld the business and profit levels,
The Remuneration Poticy has therefore beon revised to allow for the grant of such um award Mincr other changes have bean made ta
the wording of the policy to nerease Meubil ty, to wd operation, to rerease tansparency and to reflect typical market practice.

I determining the new Remuncratior Poliey, the Commitiee foloned a rabust pracess which ncluded discussians on the cantent

ol the Polcy ot Revureraton Committee meet ngs dunng the year, Tne Commitles corsiderad input from Maragemen: and our

ndependent aduisars, s well 3s considerning best practice and guidance fram rmajor shareho ders The Committee alse consulied
with major snarcho-ders wher corsidenng the structure of the Recovery LTIP Award

Approved Payments
The Committee reserves the right to make any remureraton payments and/or payments for oss of of fice including exerzising any
discrotions avalable to it in cornection w th such pdymt’,‘ﬂt‘i) ﬁo[wwt"#standmg that ‘Lht‘y arc nctin.ne with the pohcy set oat dboue
wibere the terrrs of the puymant were agreed U] befere the palicy set aut sbave came inte effect, provided that tne terms of the paymrent
wer e conastent with any apolicable sharehalder spproved airectars’ remuneration pohicy in force ut the time they were agreed or where
otherwiae aporoved by shaehalders; or 1] al g ure when the refevant indiadual was rot a Director of the Company (or other persors
te vhom the Palicy set cut avove appres) and, . the eoinicn of the Committee, the payment vias not n consideration far the irdividual
becoming a Dircctar of the Company or such other persen. Far these purpases “payments” includes the Committee satisfying awards
of wariable rermunerazion and, in relation to 3n award cver skares, the terms of the payment are “agreed” na liter than the time the awsra
;

1s granted. Ths Pelizy applies 2qually to any ndividus. wne s required to be treatec as a direclor under the applcatle regulations

Selection of Performance Measures

Annual bonus

The annual borus performance measwres are interded to neersase Executive Direciors to achieve tne firanc 3l object ves

of the Groap snd deliver the bus ress strategy. “he part colir Bonus metr s are selected by the Committee each year to ensure

that Executve Directors are appropniate y focuscd ar the key obecties for the rex: twelve marths

LTIP and ESOS

Ourlorg term sLrategic sbrective s taprovde lo

term sosta nadlo retorns for a'l of our snarehaldery 'ty ntendsa that awards made

g
n 2021722 will be bysed or pre-tac ad ustec B9S performurce Lo pre.cde o cleamincentiie “or exacuties 1o deler on this objectie,

Serforranze tagers forthe srraa bonus, 712 and ESTS areset tak rg ats sccouns mrarne sus Srecdnte, OXIOMAA DADECTANOMs

ard tne noed to ensure tha Larormar S0T.aTena

5]

g

Recovery LTIP Award

o rtarged that the Recover, LTI2 anrd s cond 2275 wpar e schic,emert of 23 TOA tiraety The Cormt

5 TCA !C;}):'j-_jd\r‘g FI51 s tres el porfermarcn for the Razover, LTIP Anaed 350t 51rIrg, MOENLL 4SS TDErsuGre

reTc.e, tTrzughaut 2ur basness and proades sirang ire ol agnt for manugement
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Remuneration arrangements throughout the Group
Remunerationr arrangemaents are determined throughout the Group hased on the same prmclp\c, that the Remuner stion pohcms and praclices
should be ahpned Lo Campary purpase and values and support the delivery of the strategy ard promote larg-tarm sustanable success

Remuneration outcomes in different performance scenarios
The charts below sat out anillustration of the Palicy for FY22 The charts provide anallustration of the proportion of tatal remuneration

made up of each cormpaonent of the Remunerstior Policy and the value of each companent

Four performance scenarios have been illustrited for each Exccutive Director:

Below threskold performdrce o Tised rernon e slios [Base m\.)r'y‘ Eencfit, ard pcnman)
Nz annual bonus pay out
Ne vesting under tae LTIP and urder the Recovery LTIP Award

In line with expectations - Fixed remurcration (base salsry, benefits and pension)
50% arnual bonus pay out
50% vesting under the LTIP and under the Recovery LTIP Award.

Max\”\um pCrFOrml]ﬂCe . leed remuneration {baﬁe Sd‘dry, beqe{ltg ﬂﬂd PEHQV\OHJ
100% annual boaus pay-out
100% vesting under the LTIP ard under the Recovery LTIP Award.

Maxmum performance plus 50% - Fixed remuneration (base salary, benef’ts and pension)
share price growth « 100% annual bonus pay out
100% vesting under the LTIP and under the Recovery LTIP Awaro plus 50% share price growth,

The charts have been prepared on the followang bases
Base salary  the base salary in place at 1dune 2027
Bencfits  based on the disclosed berelits value in the smg\e F‘gure for FY 21
Pensions  based on g contnbation of 17 5% of base sa\ary
Bonus  the mormal masurmum annual bonus 15 1007% of base salary
LTIP  based or the maximum aviard of 125% of buse salary (mote the ESOS has net been inc uded on the basis that awards are not
granted at regular riervals)
Recovery LTIP Award  based or the mmaximum one off award of 250% of base salary.

No payment of dividend equivalents has been assumed. Potentia benehits under all employee share plans have rot beerincluded
No share price growth has been assumed other than where stated.

Simon Emeny - CEQ Adam Councell - Finance Director Fred Turner - Retail Director
£000 £000 £000
4,000 2,600 2480 1,800
4,000 r e oy 1613
P ¢ 1,600 "]
3,500 q I I ;
3004 | | 2190 1890 | | 1,400 im0 | |
- [aiuaiy | .
3,000 "_ £3% _; | | ) 62% | | | 1,200 r EZ; = | |
2500 | Pl | 1600 | Pl | RGN !
' | 1! 1 I )| I 1,000 | (. |
2,000 1832 1 | 1100 R 1o \ 800 | [ [
2% | [ | | 2% | | [ I } (. l
1500 : : \ I I | o Pl [ 600 I Lo |
1,600 600 400
500 200
100
0 Minimum  In line with  Masimum  Maamum Minimum  In line with  Maximum  Maximum 0 Minimum I e with - Maamum Masmum
expectatian p|u§ share expectation p\us share expectation plus share
price grawth price grawth price growth
(50%) (50%) (50%)

1 “Fixed" includes salary, benefits and pension.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Remuneration Policy for Newly Appeinted Directors

When detarmim.ng the remuneraton paccage for o newly appointed Zxecutive Director, the Committee weula seek to apply the
& P E ¥ dpp PPy

fallowing principles

The package should be market compentive to facil tate the recru tment of individua's of sufficiert cal bre to lead the business
At the same ume, the Committee would ntend ta pay no more than it believes i necessary ta secure the required tilent

New Zxecutre Directors wll normraly receive a base satary, benefits and persion conteibaticns in inc with the pelcy descr bed

an pages 56 1o 82 and would wiso be cligib'e wojoin the bonus snd equ Ly incertve plans up to the lirits set aut i the Policy

In addition, the Commuttee has discretior to include any other remurceratior component or award which it Feels 15 sppropriate taxing
, ¥ p PpProp 8

into account the speaific arcumrstances of tne recruitment, subject to the Lrmt an v arable remureration set out below The koy

terms and razicnale for any such componant would be disciosed 15 appropriste in the Remuneration Report for the relevant yeo s

Where an ndiadual Torfeits outstand ng variable pay opportunities or contractual nights at a previous employer as a reult of their
sppaintment, the Cormmittee may offer campensatary payments of awards, ir such form as the Commuttee conuders sppropriate,
tdkmg nta sccount 3l relevant Tactors inc\udlrg the form of awards, expecled wilue and vesting umeframe of forfeitad oppartunities.
When aetermining any ~uch "bu\,aut“, the gutdmg prmciple would be that awards waould gcr\emﬂy be an a "lke for ke basis unioss

this is corsiderad by the Comrmitiee not o be practical or appropriate

The maxirue level of vanab'e rermunerat on which may norma'ly be awrded (excluding any “buysut” swards referred to abovel in raspect

of recrutment 1 225% of salary, which s nling wth the current rmaxmam it under tne annual bonus and LTIP In addivor, any new
Execative Director may a'o be granted a Recovery LTIP Award, Any Recoveny LTIF Awara would normally be pre rated Lo reflect the
time nrole during the performance pericd unless the Remureration Cormmittee determines otherwise

Wher e an Executive Director s requirca to relocate from their home locanion to tike up therr rele, the Committec may prow'de
asmistance wth re'oc ston {ether viz one of for on going payments or benefits)

In the cvent that an nternal cand date 15 pramoted Lo the Bourd, legacy terrrs and zonditions would rarmally be hencured, inclod n
p £3CY ¥ g
any accrued pensior entitlements and any outstanding incentre swards.

T facihtate any buyout swards cuthned above, in the event obreciuitment the Commuttee may grant awards to w new Execotive Director
relying o the excrption in the Lisirg Rules whicn aliews far the grant of awards, to faail tate, in unususl crcumstances. the recrurmens
of an Execut ve Director withaut seekirg prior shareholder spproval or under uny sther appropraze Compary ircente plar.

Tha remurcration package for 4 newly sppainted Non-Executive D rector weula nermal y be e line w tn Lthe structure set sutin the pahicy

table for hon Exezutee Directors an page 63

Service Contracts/Payments on Loss of Office
When aeterTining \eavlng arrangements for ar Executive Cirectar, the Cammitres takes iIrto account any contractua dgreements

meluding the provisions of any ircentve arrangemenrts, Lyp oo’ marke: practice ard the perfarmance and conduct of the inardudl

Executree D rectors have ralling service contracts terminable on ne more than one year's nonice served by the Company or Director
Our Bolicy 15 thst in the event of arly terminstior o payment egual te the salary due far the wrexpired penad of ther rouce would
pe made. payable n monthly instalments, subjectto mitgat or The Committee reta ns dscretion to pay any Lacxpectad notice in
the form af a lump sum paymertif this 1s cansidered approprate

Simen Emery’s contract has been in place for a number of years, In the event of eary ter~unation, ne would be entitled to a payment
equal to hrs base salary ard tne sa'ue of allbenef ts for the unexpired period of hu notice, wathout any reductior for mitgat ar.

Tre Comm tree =3y mske any otaer payTents inconnaction v th 3 Director’s cons it ar of of fce or omploymert where the pay—ents
are mader goaa fath i ancharge af an existing egs oBhigstion {or by way of damages fer preach of sucn an cbagaton] or by way of
sett'ernart of 3=y coam ar sing i cornest 90 vtk the cessatien of a Dreciar’s office or emp'oymant. Any such payments may inc'ude
but sre notbmited to payirg ary *ses for cutp acemert aussiance ara'or the Oirccior's legal andior professanal adace fecin connect on

sotntber azssanor of off ce ar a—p'oyvent

Annual Bonus

The Cormritten —a, daner

Ac that am Exscy

o Dreciormay rerman e able e racene a pra-rataborus for the T ninc al pearinrespest of the
g

cyrent ra Corres rrag o Il 22

ponos ey rermancec e et i mrcthe ave of bonus 3k Tg nizaciourt e o Emp|5yﬂ‘on; she circomstancos

~d perforeance
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Share Plan Leaver Rules
The tre steaert of leavers under Lthe Company's long termincentive plans s determined by the rules of the relevant plans.

[T EEEEPEL B e B F I
BDBP

I£a participant dies, their BDBP award will vest 1f a partaipant becomes Aoaras lapse

a good leaver for amy other reason, BDBP awards weuld normally continue and

vestir full om the normal vesuing date. The Committee may exercise discretion
to alow awards Lo vest at the time of cessaton of employment or to pro-rate
Lthe vesting leve' to reflect the proportion of the vestung period served.

LTIP (including the Recovery LTIP Award)
If & participant becames s good leaver, LTIR awards will not tapse, but wil' Awards lapse

nornally be pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the performance pencd
served and remain subject to performance conditions LTIP awards will

If a participant ceases employment during tre ho'ding

198l
=
“
-
[l
a9,
3]
Ey
)
o
s)
=
2

penod (other than in the event of gross risconduct)

rormally vest on the normai vesting date, The Committee may determine tnat | ‘ )
ther awards will normaliy continue and be releasea at

LT F award shoutd vest as soon as practeal following cessaucn of employment, ) .
the normal release date. Tne Committee may exarcise
discretion to al'ow awards to be relessed at the tme

of cessation of employment.

ESOS

If & participant dies, ESOS Vawcards will not lapse, but may be exerciscd for s Awards lapse,
period of 12 months following de stk If 4 participant becemes ¢ good leaver for

imy otnar renscn, ESOS derds V\'I“ not |<‘!PHC‘ bUL may bC’ CXC’rC\th Uml.\l akx
months after the third anniversary of grant (or sic months after cessation ot
later) ESOS awards will cont.nue to be subject to perfarmance conditions,

All-employee share plans

Leaver provisions are determinea in aceordance with HMRC -approved provisions,

* Death, ll-health. injury, disability, redundancy. retirement, the sale of their employing entity out of the Group, or for any other reason at the Committee's discretion.

Terms and Conditiens for the Chairman and Neon-Executive Directors
The Chairenan and Non Exccutive Directors serve the Company or the basis of renewable letters of appaintment which car be
worminated by wrilien notice by either party. No compensatior 15 awarded on termiranien. Letters of appeintment are avalable for

inspection st the Annual General Meet ng and at the Company's reg stered office.

-
3
Service Contracts and Fee Letters ]
Tne following sets out the date of Directors service contracts and fee letters a
- (vl
Seaonlbue drent i FIREIW STl ATl o
Simor Emeny 13 January 1999 12 months S
Ndam Councell 15 March 2019 12 months 5
— w
Fred Turner 23 May 2019 12 months
Neil Seith 16 June 2021* 12 months
* Effective date of employment at a date to be confirmed, but no later than 1 December 2021,
A LT UV R T ot apne oo Tor oAl el g
o
Michael Turner 1 July 2013* Jung 2022 <
Sir Jumes Fuller 1June 2010 May 2022 z
Julietle Stacey 21 March 20718 July 2024 %
Helen jones “Z March 2019 March 2623 E
Richard Fulier 1 Febraary 20207 Fenruary 2022 5
. 3
Robin Rowland 23 March 2020 March 2024

Michael Turner was first appointed to the Board as an Executive Director in January 1985 and became Non-Executive Charrman on 1 July 2013, Richard Fuller
was first sppointed to the Board as an Executive Director in December 2009 and was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2020,
** Al directors are subject to retirement by rotation as detailed in the Directors’ Report on page 42.
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GOCVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Change of Control

Inthe event of a tskeover or wnding up of the COfﬂPdﬂy, share awards may vest car\}t, subd\ec,t (where relovant] to the extent to which
performance cond Lions have seen sansfied Awards (othar than awards under the BDBPF) will normally be pro-rated for ¢ me sirce award
unlcos the Committee determines otherwise Ir the case of o demerger, spec al div dend or simifar circumistarces, awards may, at the
Commitiee’s d scretion, vest carly on the same basis o+ for a takeover,

Consideration of Employment Conditions Elsewhere in the Company

The Committee is advised of the propased annual pay review for stalfin advance of therm considering the propesed pay reviews (o
Diraciors, so that this can be taken into account when determining Directars remuneration for tne relevant Ninarcial year, Salary increases
will ardinarity be (ir percentage terms) inline wite those of the w der workforce, ard significant v sr inces would only be expectod where
there had been s sigificant change ran ndwidual’s respensbilivies or a market review had beer conducted which suggested that an
individual’s salary was no longer competitive, or where the Committee wanteg to take accourt of ar indwidual’s performance or expericnce,
The Commitiee would alse be advised f there were ary other key charges Lo Lhe terms and conditions or which sLsff are emplayed

Consideration of Employee Views

The Cammuittee does not formally consu't directly with errployees or executine pay ot w draw ng up the Remureration Policy but aoes
recerve per odic updates from the People & Talent Director Sharc owrership amongst the Company’s employzes 1s enceuraged througn
the SAYE Scheme and SIP These tax-advantaged schemes allow employees 1o parucipate as shireholders amd align thair interests wth
those of the shareholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

[ devcloping this Remuneratior Policy snd in considering tae structure of the Recovery LTIP Award, the Committee consulied in detall
with our lsrgest sharcholders und was pleascd with the leve: o suppert receved for 1ne changes. Our intention is that sharchalder views
will be sre sought when trere s any significant change to Directors remuneration Shou'd sharghoiders have any concerns about the
Remuneraticn Paicy, the Committee Chairman would endeavaur wo roeet with them, as 4pprons ate, to understind and respand to

any 1§5d0s they may have

Annual Remuneration Implementation Report

The informatien on pages 68 to 78 has hean audied.

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commi'tiee consists entrely of Independent Non-Executive Drreciors ano the memoers during the pered were
Holen Jones (Cha v, Juiette Sracey and Roowr Rowland The Charman of the Cempany, Mickael Tarner, and the Chiel Executive,
Siman Emery, are ryited to attend the Commitiee meet ngs snd to advse, where 1ppropnate, o the rermunerat on and performance
of the Executive Directors and related matlers Tne Commitzec s adv sed ritornally by the Company Secratary, Rachel Spencer
(Sever ne Baquin untd 8 Januwary 20210, who avo scts as Secrotary to the Commritiee

The Commuttee’s teems of reflerence are svai'ab c or the Company’s websize - state that the Committee i responsible for deterrrining
the total remunerat on package Grcluding pensions, service agreements ard termication payrments) of the Executive Directors. The
Committee 1ho ~eniews the remuneration of the rembers of the Exccunive Committee in corsuitat on with the Chiel Executre.

thembers o the Comrittee have no persanal financial interest ntne Campary, at~er than as shareholders and Dreciors
: Firy,

The Committee’s Advisors
Delone LLP was apponted oy the Comm tee in Jure 2079 ard duning the year unger rewce cont 1ued to provide the Comittee
and the Camsary w b= aduice 1n €onnect on with remunordnea Matters o5 wel as the Company s LT'P and share opticr schemes.

Dectiz 53 ound ng member of the Rerurerat on Corsultants’ Groun ("RCGT), whick 15 resporsib e for tne de.elaoment and

manterarce of the voluntary Code of Canduct trat cloarl, sets oot tre re e of execit .o remuneration corsuliants 2nd tre prolessizral

1142550 (plas VAT, dur =
The Cormittee s saus’ eq that ad nce

stardards by whonthey ad. se thar cients Fees ase charged ora tme and expersas bas.
22021 Dur ng the -

-

car Deloitze a 5o proaded sther unrc ated Tir advce Lo the
t

- . ‘
rC‘CeMS’j ey JC"C‘::G au roLdegremonerat Zn 1dace
Coriteebine no o : may mosr tnerirgeoenderze e Committee re, ened the polorni

Farconficts of rierestand judgea that tacre sece appropniace

N
Laroy agAamst such corfizns

XPE Perian Grounoroadas the Tampin, vtk ad, caor matiars «olas ~g 12 pars

reds ab ok omciuee

LAl €% 272 350 5804700 4 “2quated 5 4k do by Actuinal Fratoas o S

tne regquirermoar for tremi b proade obectie and rdecendert 54, ca
g
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Staternent of Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2021/22

The last year has been a difficult one for the hospitality sector. The outbreak of Covid 19 has had a significant impact or tne business with
pubs closed for 4 v gnificant portion of the last linsncial year and the early part of this financ o year. Many of our sites are now open but we
ure operating st » much reduced capacity in ine wilth government guidarce. In hight of this, the Cornrmittee intends to grant an addmional
Recovery LTIP Award in FY22 to incentivise management Ls rebuild the business and prafit levels, Further details on the structure of the

Award are provided below.

Base salaries

The CEC snd retal Director’s base salaries have beer increased by 2% in line with tne ncrease receved across the wider werkforee
On 26 February we annouriced that Adam Ceounce | would be stepping down as Finance Director and his < slary will therefore not be
increased. Salanies fraen Tupe 2027 are therefare as fallmvs

Chief Executive - £5°3,000
rinance Director £3'5,000
Retal Director - £204,000

There has been no change to the fees payable to the Non-Execut've Derectors which were last reviewed in January 2075,

As arnounced on 11 June, Nel Srith will be joining us as aur new Finance Director. His salary hus been set at £352,500 per annum
We appreciate this salary 1s abave the salary for the former Finance Directar, however, it s positicred sorme way below the salary he receved

inhis previous role of £430,000.

Annual bonus
As noted above, gven the closure of the business and our re 1ance on government support we did not operate an unnual bonus for FY21

For FY22 we irlend to operate ar arnual bonus in-line with cur nareal policy. "he maxium annual bonus willbe 100% of base salary
for all directors The snnual banus wil be based 70% on Group EBITDA performance and 30% based on ind-wdual stratagic performance

linked to the successful recovery of the business.

Targets are considered to be cemmeraially sensitive and have therefare not been disclased Qurintentior is wo disclose targets in the
F¥22 Annual Rermunerat on report provided thot these are no longer considered to be commercislly sersit ve at that time.

LTIP

The Cemmittee intends tc contnue to grant LTIP awards for 2021722 te ersure that management are al gned wath shareholders and
Incentivsed to deliver \Oﬂg rerm peFPDﬂTMﬁ:C Awards will be granted at the policy level of 125% of pase salary to the CEQ and the
Retal Director, The rew Finunce Diractor will recaive an award of 100% of base salary followng hus joining, Itis intended that his award
for FY22 will be pro-rated to reflact his time in employment during the performance period, The Committee 1s aware of shareholder
gurdance regarding reviewing award levels where there has been @ fall noshare price. We are not planning to reduce grant sizes given the
swgrﬂﬂcart need to cortinue to motivate dand retam Mdnagerment Haowever, the Committee retains discretion te adju&t ve’itmg cutcomes

ifit considers that there have been any “windfall” gains.

The LTIP will be based on pre. tax adjusted EPS performance as the Committee considers that this provides a clear objective for
managerment and supports our strategy. The portion of the LTIP award that vests for threshold performance will be 25% of maximum
For 2021/22 LTIP awards, EPS targets have been set as abso‘ute pence targats for 2023/24 in light of the impact of coranawirus on the
base year and to provide a clear locus for management on the required lever of performance.

We wanl Lo measure the performance of our Executive Directors against a critenion that aligns the Executive Diractors’ interest with the
lorg Lerminterests of our snarcholders We believe that an earnings per share measure 1s more appropriate than a sirple profit measure
as the latter could be improved by, for exammple, the issuance of shares to raise cash or to finance an acquisition having a consegquent
diluuing effect on exisbing sharcholders'interests Additionally, gnen the am of encouraging leng-term performance, we beleve that the
earnings per share figure should not reflect short term nen trading impacts on profir, whether positive or negative, for example, profits ar
lwaes on the sile of frecha!d propertics, or profits or ‘osses on the disposdl of a component business such as the Beer Business, and such
‘Lo should be adiusted for Lastly, given that changes in tax rates are unrelated to Executive Directors’ perfarmance, we believe thot ary

earrangs per share medsura for the LTIP should be based on pre tax carrings
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Pre-tox adjusted EPS targets for tne 202122 awards are proposed as fol ows:

et

54.68

FPre-tix adiusted EPS pence in 2023/24 7~

1 Vesting increases on a stralght line basis between Target and Maximum.
2 The targets set are the same as those for the 2020 LTIP award (as adjusted for the equity raise in March 20211 Given the extended lockdown periods throughout
2020 and 2021, the Committee consider that these targets remain appropriately stretching and aligned with the ¢creation of shareholder value.

Recovery LTIP Award

lvhgnt of the challenges the business faces, the Board s concemed sbout the mot vation and ratenuion of the Executive Directors and s
therefgre, intending to grant 3 ana-off Recovery LTIP Award in FY22 1o incentivise management tare build the business and profitlevels.
This award will be in aadiuen to the rormal LTIP awsta outlined above

The Qecovefy LTIF Award will west BEaved upen the achievemeant of stretehing EBITDA targets for FY24 which are a\\gr\ed with de"iverwg
a ful recovery cf the business as out ined below. The Committee has selected Groun EBITDA as the sole messure of performance

for tne Recovery LTIP asit strangly incentivises operational recovery throughout ous business and provides stramg ire of sight for
managermenl Awards vl pe aubject Lo A holdmg periad for two years Fo”ow-ng the end of the per\cormunce pcrlod

For Excoutive Directars, the award will bave a valug of 250% of base salary. [t s interded that tne award to the rew = rance Diracror
for FY22 wll be pro-raied to reflect fus tme in erploymrent during the performance pened, Other sevar executives wil also particpate
ir the p|.jr‘. recerving lowear lovels Of‘award,

The vest ng of Awards wil pe subject to schic.ing the lollovang targats

it = v

Threshald [25% vosting) Th s represents re buldimg to our pre panderic performance

T-ﬁrget 50% payout) This represants our stretch budgetc—d pe"Formfmce far Fy2? prerpanderr-\c

and s corsidered by the Camrmittee to represent a strong recovery

Very strong (75% payeut) £676m

a2l £73.0m 372% inzrease sbove thresheld performance

Maamum (100% vesbing

Trus teve of performarce woula exceed our EBITDA performance vl from
wnen we swred the beer busiress and s considered to reprasent siznifizant
value for snarchalders

Pension and benefits

There are no charges Lo the porsion and beaef.ts provision far Executive Directors Execunive Direciors receive a pergion al'owsnce

ol 17.5% of base salary The Comm ttee s aware of shareho der guiaance thai pensians for Executive Directors should be aligned with the
wider workForce. However, given the current rate for the Executize Direclors represents an existing centractual cormmitment and that
their overall pay i towards the lower end of market practice, tne Committer does not consider that Lis approonate to make 4 reduction
at tus stage, The Comem tzee wil keep this approsch under review

Forsny new Executive Directors appairrad to the Board fram 1 Aprl 2027 the pension appartunity w1 bein ane with the aasirmuem

ermo'oyer contnibunicn a.2lable for tne Tajcnly af tre workforce

ne new Firarce Directar wil mece ve 3 parsion of 3% of ase salary 0 Ine wib the pens on reconcd by the ma 3ty of cumvader

morxbarce and n-linz wits sur Directors Rerueerazior Policy
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Implementation of Remuneration Peolicy for 2020/21

Single Total Figure of Remuneration Table
The folloving table ~hows a breakdown of the remuneration of ndividual Directors who served in all or part of the year:

salar a0t Taxaute or it R TEWE I SR [ [REITRETEN T [ onalt st Total e siaa e
2021 201 201 PN 2021 201 2021 Fo AT 201 z 2 2021
€000 £000 fgo0 . £000 £000 tooo  -OC0 f000 i £000
Simon
Emecny 469 489 25 25 - 1 B - B8 85 590 500 581 599 9 1
Adamr
Cauncel” _295 189 ) 23 13 - - 6 - 55 33 379 235 374 234 5 1
Fred
Tarner 188 167 23 19 - 1 8 - 35 30 254 217 245 216 9 1
Muckael
Turner 235 250 26 26 - - - - - - 261 276 261 276 - -
Sie James
Fuller 47 50 - - - - - - - - 47 50 47 50 - -
Richard
Fuller 42 162 1 20 - 1 - - - 27 43 210 43 209 - 1
Julette
Stacey 70 1 - - - - - - - - 70 n 70 " - -
Heler
Jones 58 61 - - - - - - - - 58 61 58 61 - -
Robin
Rowland™ 52 3 - - - - - - - - 52 3 52 3 - -

1 Salarylfees for 2021 include the Board members’ voluntary temporary 25% reduction in salary and fees from 1 Apri! 2020 unt 30 June 2020,

2 Taxable benefits include car allowances and private medical insurance.

3 Bonus refers to the annual bonus scheme based on performance in the period under review and the value of free shares awarded under the SIP of £nil (2020: £993).
4 LTIP/Options includes the value transferred to Directors from the LTIP, ESOS and SAYE Schemes. The benefit is calculated as the share price at the vest date
less the exercise price multiplied by the number of vested awards for LTIP and ESOS. For SAYE, the benefit is calculated as the share price at the grant date
less the exercise price, multiplied by the number of options being purchased. LTIP and ESQS awards are considered to have vested if substantisliy all of the
perfarmance criteria have been met in the financial year, in which case the number of vested awards is estimated based on performance against perfarmance
measures. The table below sets out how the award is linked to performance of the Group.

From his appointment on 27 August 2019,

From his appointment on 1June 2019.

Richard Fuller was an Executive Director until 1 February 2020, when he became 2 Non-Executive Director for which he received fees of E7.500 in the period
to 28 March 2020, included in the figure above.

8 From his appointment to the Board on 23 March 2020.

~ h o

Base Salary

During the 2020/21 financial year the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors wolunteerad to tempoaranly reduce their salary
and fees from 1 Apnl 2020 1o 30 June 2020 by 25% to support the business in managing costs With the estate gradually recpening,
sal sries and fees reverted to normal with effect from 1July 20230,

Annual Bonus
As noted abeve, given the closure of the business and cur rel ance on government support the Committee and the Executive Dircclors
agreed Lnat it was not appropriate to cperate an annual bonus for FY21.

LTIP
LT'P awards grarted in 2018 were based on Group ad usted carnings per share ("EPS™) performance for the financial year 2020721
The EPS targets were not met and therefore those awards will lapue The following sets out detals of performance against targets ot

[ERT Y
3

oo AT Mg oee

LaTLt AT Le.TAa o Ypallenr 3wiits cart o I, a3 L0 T awan
T LT et g 2 il ot ael Lo s W3 it award

LTIP EPS vs RPI EPS excoeds EPS excoeds Dcrccmtage vest of M growth MNil% of muaximum sward
RPI by +3% R2lLy +24% Drlgmd\gr-mt
Minmum 40%
Maxamum - 100%

Tne Comrmrittee did not exercise any dezretion n relation to the LTIP outcormes. No portion of the LTIP awards relatas to share price growth
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Total Pension Entitlements
fhichael Turner and Rickard Fuller are pensicners of the defned benefit Company pension plan, wh chis closed to future accrua!, under
the Directors’ section

Simen Emeny became a deferred mamber of the defined banefit Cormpany panson plar, under tne man section wher the plan closed
te future acerusis on 1 dsauary 2015, Prior to closare, he received a salary supplement of 17.5% of the excess of his base salary over the
sarnings cap for use as part of his retrement plsrning. Following closure of the persian plan, Siman Emeny 15 paid 1 salary supplement
of 17 5% of his salary by the Company which he s required to use as part of his overall retrement planning

Durng the year, Adam Courcell and Fred Turner were pard 4 salary supplement of 17 5% of therr walanes by the Company which they
ara required 1o use as part of ther cveral “etrement panring They are also required o contribute 8% of ther- salary e the r pensian
or anather investment wehicle.

The Commuttee considers that tne Policy operated as intended during the year.
Percentage Change in Remuneration of Directors and Employees

The table below shows the percentage change in the remunerat on of the Board of Directars compared to that of the average of all of the
Company's employees taken as 3 whole betweer the financial years ended 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021,

/worage of all employess

Simen Emeny

Adam Courcell - -

Fred Turner - -

Mickacl Turner -8.2% 1.5% n/a
Sie James Fuller -6.2% nif% nla
Richard Fuller” ' 739% -93.8% e
Julette Stacey? -0.7% A% nia
Heler Jores” -4.5% nil% n/a
Robin Rowlord - - nfa

1 F\gures excluded where prior year comparator is less than 3 full year as this distorts the percentage change.
*Change in annual benus” reflects theincresse or decrease in the percentage of annual salary pard out as bonus and excludes the value of free shares awarded
under the SIP. The employee comparator group excludes pub staff who are employed by another Group company. It also excludes The Stable employees who
transferred on the disposal of The Stable Pizza & Cider Limited on 7 June 2020.

3 Anumber of Directars had role changes dur\ng FY2020 (Richard Fuller, Juliette Stacey and Helen Jones), all of which have impacted the year on
year companisen.

4 The change in taxable benefits for the average of all employees has gone down year on year due to the comparatively smaller group of staff wha receive
acompany car due to therr role, compared to FY20 which included brewery staff Benefits offered to Fuller's empleyees have not :hanged year an year.

External Directorship Fees

The Boarc may g ve approval far Exccutives to hase are Non-Executive rele and to retain any ra'sted fees paid. Simon Emery, was
sppe nted s Non Exezutive Directar of The National Gallery Corrpany Limited on & February 20'8 Tor which he does not recene any
remurersticn Heis the Senor [ndepencent Director of WH Smith BLC and during the yesr be received urd retained remuneratior

of £59,000
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Scheme Interests Awarded During the Financial Year'?
Inrespect of the 52 week period ended 27 March 2021 the Tollowing LTIPs, share aptions and 5= awards weere granted

Poo s b b Nomam ob R e Faer coor o Taey Listr 2 g aore bt omgnea
(AP e ot harzs per sk ae B ke g feare
S Emeny i3 83333 208,333 - _ 625000 05/10/2020  1/04/2023
SAYE 6,896 B 435 T 37,497 30/09/2020 nla
Total 90,229 208,333 662,497 y
ACouncel  LTIP" 52,500 131,250 - _ 393751 05/10/2020 110412023 40% )
SAYE 4,137 - 435 ~ 22495 30/09/2020 nfa a &
Total 56,637 131,250 416,246 :p
F Turrer RIES 33333 83,333 B 249998 05/10/2020  1/04/2023 40% g
SAYE 6,896 B 435 ~ 37,497 30/09/2020 na nfa -
Total 40,229 83,333 287,496

1 Face values have been calculated using the actual grant prices also shawn in the table except for SAYE. For the SAYE Scheme this 1s based on an average price
for the three days before grant (shown above) although aptions are granted at a 20% discount.

2 Under the tax-advantaged ESOS only optiens worth E30,000 may be held at any time.

3 Adam Councell hasindicated his intention te resign as a Director, at which time all awards will lapse.

4 The LTIP awards granted in October 2020 are subject to a pre-tax adjusted EPS performance condibion, with the targets set on an absolute basis and measured
over a period of three years. 25% of the awards vest for pre-tax adjusted EPS of 50.16p in FY23, with 100% vesting for pre-tax adjusted EPS of 61.09p
{straight-lne vesting in-between). Further details of the actual targets zre set out in the 2020 Annual Report. The Remuneration Committee is considering the
impact of the equity raise on these awards to determine whether it is appropriate to adjust the current EPS targets. {f relevant, further details will be disclosed in
the 2022 Remuneration Repart.

Share Scheme Interests Qutstanding at the Year End

Shares
The Company has Share Ownership Guidelines far Directors which state that Executives should hold shares worth at least 200% of their

aalary Accordingly, untl ther guigeline is met, Executives arc expected to retain,

all shares they hold in the SIP

all shares they acquire as a result of exercising SAYE options

all shares that they acquire as a result of exercising options under the tax advantaged ESOS net of the cost of those opt'ons

al least 50% of any shares that they acquire as 4 result of exercising opt ars under the ron-tax-advantaged SESQOS net of the cost

of those options and the costs of setthng related tiax.and Nauonal Insurance C*NI™) thercon 3!
alleast 50% of any post-tax and NI vested shares under the LTIP and the BDBF. %
Based on the share price on 27 March 2021 of £8.60, Simon Emeny held shares with & value of 391% of salary, Fred Turmer held shares w
- E . o

with a value of 622% of salary and Adam Councell held shares with a value of 18% of salary. All of the Executive Directors' shareholdings Py
therefore already meet the puideline with the exception of Adam Councell who only joined the Campany in August 2019, g
3
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Directors’ Shareholdings

GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Ben!f‘lcial Nun-_l:eneficial Peneficial Non-‘ber\eﬁcial
interest at interest at interest at interest at
7 July 7 July 27 March 27 March

Directars' share interests 201 2021 2021 2021
Simon Emeny
‘A ordinary 4Cp sharcs 130,472 - 124,448 - 113,509 500
‘B’ ord nary Ap shares 1,055,684 - 1,055,684 - 1055684 .
'C ord nary 200 shares 2,000 - 2,000 - 2,000 -
Adam Councell
AN ord nary 40p shares 5800 - 5,800 - 2,250 -
Fred Turner
‘M ordinary 40p shares 1,47 - 1,471 - 1,471 -
‘B ordimary 4p shares 7 492,473 - 452,667 - 447633 -
T ordinary 40p shares 100,819 - 100,819 - 99,065 -
2nd preference £1 shares 4,324 - 4,324 - 4,324 -
Michael Turner
A erdinary 40p shares 211,378 - 271,378 — 271378 -
"B arcinary 4p shares 3,036,586 - 2988394 - 2988394 =
‘Clorainary 40p shares 624,260 - 624,260 - 624,260 -
2nd preference £l shares n - n - 71 -
Sir James Fuller
W ordinary 40p shares 88,942 - 88,942 - 88,942 -
B ordinary Ap shares 10,486,379 - 10,438,187 - 10,415,881 _
"Clerdinary 40 sha-es 2,702,003 621,050 2,702,003 621,050 2,702,003 612,050
Richard Fuller
‘N crdinary 40p shares 13,267 872,937 11,460 500,000 10,591 7 -500,000
B ordinary dp shares 3,065,726 10935015  3,065726 10935015 3065726 10935015
"Clordinary 40p shares - 20,000 - 20,000 - 20,000 -
2rd preference £1 shares 303 7,499 303 - 303 -
Juliette Stacey
‘A ordinary 40p shares 2,454 - 1,250 - 1,250 -
Helen Jones
‘N ordinary 40p shares 2,970 - 1,766 - - -
Robin Rowland
‘A ordinary 40 shares 7,165 - 3,551 - - -
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Directors’ Share Options

As at -
27 March  Faoieo P roxz 2 s3ble vy 0T r
e cee =] e no - ol e oo 5o jie e
Simon
Emeny  ESOS| 3296 - - -| 3,296| £910 010772013 01/07/2016 30/06/2023
SAYE 3410 - (3410) - ~ £774 01092016 0Q1/09/2021 01/03/2022 -
SAYE 467 _4en - - [770 O1/09/2018 C1/09/2023 01/03/2024 7
SAYE - - _ 6896 6,896 £4.3530/09/2020 01/12/2025 01/06/2026 -
Total 7,473 10,192 N
Adam
Councell  ESOS 3121 - - - 321 9.6 15/01/2020 15/01/2023 14/01/2030 .
SAYE _ B _ 4137 4137 £435 30/09/2020 01/12/2023 01/06/2024 B
Total 3,121 7,258 _
Fred
Turmer  £50S]| 2,590 - - _[ 2,590] £9.65 30/C6/2014 30/06/2017 29/06/2024 -
SAYE 3975 - (3979 - _ €774 0U09/2016 01/09/2021 01/03/2022 _
ESOS 520 - - _ 520 £961 15/042020 15/01/2023 14/01/2030 —
SAYE I - 689 6,896 £4.35 30/09/2020 O01A12/2025 01/06/2026 -
Total 7,085 10,006 N
Richard
Fulle?  ESOS 869  (869) . - - E578 12/07/2010 12/07/2013 12/07/2020  7.36 6,395.84
ESOS 2,588 (2,588 - ~ £9.65 30/06/2014 30/06/2017 29/06/2024 -
SAYE 2713 - @3 - - £774 010972076 C1/09/2021 01/03/2022 _
SAYE 779 ) - _ £770 0VC9/2018 0109/2023 0103/2024 -
Total 6,949 - -

1 Adam Councell has indicated his intention to resign as a Director, at which time all outstanding awards will lapse.

NN

Richard Fuller’s outstanding options lapsed on 31 July 2020 following his resignation as Executive Director an 1 February 2020,

3 The Executive Share Option Scheme (*ESOS") and Savings Related Share Option Scheme (“SAYE™) are both tax-advantaged share option schemes.

o J Vested but umexcraised options
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ Long-Term Incentive Plan Allocations

s e Dt

Total held at

AA

- et LR FIN RV K ’ 27 March 20217 ”’:m"v:;’
Simen Emeny
‘AN ordinary 40p shares 131,307 83,333 (40,860} 173,780 n/a
‘B ordinary 4p shares 328271 208,333 (102,152} 434,452 n/a
Adam Councell?
‘Al ordinary 40p shares 28,844 52,500 - 81,344 nfa
‘B erdinary 4p shares 7212 131,250 - 203,362 n/a
Fred Turner
A ordinary 40p shares 20,568 33,333 (1,381} £2,520 nla
‘B'ordimary 4p shares 51,424 83,333 (3,454) 131,303 n/a

1 Or date of appointment if subsequent.
2 Or date of resignatian. Adam Councell has indicated his intentien to resign 35 a Director, at which time all cutstanding LTIP awards will lapse.

The performarce condibans for the LTIF are set aut in the table on wage 71of this repart,

Payments to Past Directors
There were no payments made Lo past Directors in the penicd

Payments on Loss of Office in Prior Year
Ne payments wiore made i respect of loss of office in respect of the firaneiat year ended 27 March 2021,

Performance Graph and Table
The graph below shows o compsnison of ihe Total Shargholdes Return ("TSR™ for the Compary's Istea N ordin sry shares for the lust 1on
financ.a years aga nst the TSR for tne compan.cs n the FTSE Al Snure, The Compary i a constituen: of this Index and therefore it s an
appropriate choice fer this report,
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The tadle below shows the total remuneration Ngure far the Chief Executive over the lost ten financial years and the annual bonus and

LTIP pay out far each year as o percert sge ef the maximum available:

At PR A0 JR SO v P St 22 201
Single figure total
~ermuneration (EQ0OQC) 944 SN 977 1,244 1,418 1,097 1,089 687 600 590
Anrresal bonos- 56% 4% 7% 76% 85% a1% 48%  48% il il
TP 92% S6% 64% 96%  100%  100% 56% il il nil

1 Simon Emeny was appointed as Group Chief Executve in July 2013. This single total figure comprises the remuneration recerved by Simon Emeny in the
financial year, hence includes remuneration for the three months prior to this promoetien.

Chue-thind ol the annual bonus was due 1o pay out retlecting the Company’s strong like for like sales performance vs. the Peach Tracker. However, in fight of the
broader business circumstances following the autbreak of coronavirus, the Committee and the Executive Directors agreed that it was not appropriste to pay this
portion of the annual bonus.

Annual bonus as a percentage of the maximum available.

L)

W

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The graph below shows the total remuneration for the Group’s employees compared Lo other key financial ndicators:

120 -
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Taxes éemuneratlon Cap\tal - Wb\wdends 7
payable to expenditure & and share
HMRC business huy-ba:ksE

combunatians’

W 202 [mp{skis]

1 Taxes payable ts HMRC is based upon tax incurred in the year and includes corporation tax, VAT, PAYE, NI, duty, stamp duty, nen-domestic rates, property
licences, enviranmental levies and machine game duty. Duty on the sale of beer only relates to one month for 2020 unti the sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business
on 27 April 2019,

2 Capital expenditure (including business combinations) represents cash paid in the year.

3 Dividends for 2020 represent the one-off ‘D’ share dividend paid in October 2019 as part of the return of capital to shareholders and the interim divdend far
2020 paid in the year. No dividends were paid during 2021 due to the coronavirus pandemic.

CEO Pay Ratio
The following Lable sets out CEO pay ratio figures, in respact of the financial year ended 27 March 2021,

2 sr CR Mo A
ACES Motnd pIerat s L ret
2020021 Option B 3571 3320 23.8:1
2019/20 Option B 33.0:1 32,61 31.6:41

The movement in pay ratio between 2079/20 and 2020/2% 15 dr ven by a cembination af pay on furlough far the 25tk percentite und
rrediin being lower thun norma' pay. but CEQ pay hawing alsa reduced due to the Board's voluntary pay reduction from 1 Apnl to

30 June 2020,

The relenantind vdvals have beer idennfied uang Cpuon B, as deflined under the relevint regulatians, as .t s conaderad to be the mast
appropr ate methodolagy for Fuller’s based on the avlibility of dats st the wre the Annual Report was pub.ished. The respective single
figure wslues for eachindivdual for 2020121 have then heen calculated. No ostimates veere required, and ro elements of pay were omitted
n Cd!CUln‘tng the relevant '\'ng\e F\gurcs The ﬂgures da not include arrounts Pmd to indnaduals in respect of ther trane skare The F\‘E‘Juros
for 2020021 have beer distorted by the impact ef the coronawrus pandemic. with the fiaures for the respective percentiles anly
represerting hours worked for a small nurmber o” open weeks durning the year, plus furlsugn pay recerned.
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GOVERNANCE

Directors’ Remuneration Report continued

The single figure « slues for ndiiduals immediately above and be'ow the ident” ed emp.oyee at cach guart le within the Gender Pay Gap

analysis were alsa rev ewed

The chasan individuals were reviewed to determine f they were epresentative of the Z5th percantle, median and 75th percantle
employees If the chosen indinodual had lef: the business or bad charged roles during tne financia yeo- an alternstive employec would be
used for the calculsbions The alternatve employee used in eack instance was the closest employee to the reievant percentie, who was
considered represcatative of that porcertle, For the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2027 no adyustment was recded for the 75tk percentile.

but alternstive emplayzes were selected for the 25th percentilz and median.

;:.' F':r b \d"\—.: E 7:‘"‘ ",T\":=l'\| .

Tt Snps g tere gl os Ty s Pi
2020/ Salary £16,235 £17,788 £24,230
Total pay £16,540 £17,788 £24,762

Statement of Voting at Annual General Meeting
At the Arry sl General Meeting neld on 10 September 2020, vates casl by praxy 1nrespect of the approvel of the Direcrory
Remuneration Reporl were a5 [ollows

Gel Ut T

Appraval of Remureraton Report 2020 96,950,017 98 .07% 905,613 0.93% 97855630 36,661

a LA UL

At the Arnual Geners' Mecting neld en 10 September 2020, votes cast by proxy in respect of the appreval of the Directors’ Remuneraron
Policy wera as follows

Nt oy (R I S 2Tige Tors Nbe
EETRINERATS e et A EE R T I ET LA ST . N
Approval of Remunerstion Paliey 2020 54,559,027 97.04% 2,881,462 296% 97,440,485 451801

The Directors’ Remuneraton Report, encompassing pages S8 to 753, was approved by the Board ard signed on its benalf
4
e
‘-/-r

(,44
g

HELEN JONES
CHAIR OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

8 )y 2027
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Opinion

|ﬁ our op‘mor\_

~ Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.Cs Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the “linancial statements”) pive a true and fane
viow of the state of the Group's and of the Compary’s aflTairs ¢s at 27 March 2021 snd of the Group™s loss far the 52 week period (the ‘penod’)
then ended;

- the Group finanaial stazements huve been properly prepared in accerdance with International Accounting Stardacds in corformity with the
requircrrents of the Companies Act 2006 and Internatenal Financial Reporting Standards adepted pursuant to Regulition (EC) No1606/2002
awitapphes in the European Unien,

- the Compory financia statemerts have been properly prepared in accardance waith International Accounting Standards in confarmity with the
requirerments of the Companies Act 2006 45 aoplied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Art 2006, and

- the financial statemenis have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companios Act 2006

We have audited the finarcisl staterments of Fuller, Srith & Turner PL.C. (the ‘Company’) and its subsidianies (the 'Group} for the 52 week period
ended 27 March 2021 which comprise

Group Company

Group balance sheet as at 27 March 2027 Balance sheet as ar 27 March 2021

Group income statement for the 32 week period then ended Staterrent of changes in equity for the 52 week penod then ended
Graup statement of comprehensie income for the 52 week period Statzment of cash flows for the 52 week period then ended

then ended

Group statement of changes 1 equity for the 52 week peniod Related notes Tto 34 to the financial statements, including

then ended a sumnmary of wignificant accounting policies

Group cash flows for the 52 week per\od then ended

Related notes 110 34 to the financial statements, includirg
3 summary of s gnificant accourting policies

The financial reporting frameviork that has been apphed in ther preparator s apphcable law and International Accounting Stardards in confarmity
with tne requirements of the Campanies Ace 2006 and, a~ regards Lo the Group financial statements, Internaticnal Finaneat Reporirg Standards
sdopted pursusnt to Regulatior (EC) No. 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Unior and as regards the Compary Dnancul statements,

as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies At 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internatiora Standards on Auditing (UKD (1ISAs (UKD snd applicable lav. Our respons bil ties under
Lhose standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the firancial statements secuon of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordince with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our sudit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethicel Standard as apphed Lo lsted public imterest entities, and we have fulfilled our other cthizal responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained s sulficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Caontnued

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1 the finanatal statoments, wh ch ind-catas that the ongomng Coronavirus pandem ¢ contmues to resultin uncertainty

aver the Group's ability to cperate its pubs and therelore whether the Group witl be able to comply wath its barking covenants from ure z
Groug's abiity 1 o oubs 3nd theref her the Group wil be able to comply with kng fram 30 Jure 202

onwards under a severe but plausible downside scer srio, As stated in note |, these events or condibions, along w.th the other matters a5 set out in

rote 1, indicate that a matenial uncertainty exists that may cast »ami¥ cant doubt on tne Group and Company™s abilty to contiriue as 4 geing corcern,

Chur opimion s not medified in respect of this matter

We draw atrenbion to the wiabilily statement in the Arnual Report on page 26, which ndicales that an essumption Lo the statement of wiahulity

15 that the Group will complete a refinance of ity debr faclites by February 2023, The Directors consider that the matenal uncertanties referred

tein respect of going concern may zast ~ign ficant doubt seer the future v ability of the Group and cempany should thesz events not camplete

Ouropiruga 15 not mod fied i respect of this matrer.

In auditng the financuas’ statements, we have concluded that the direcior s Lse of the gong concern bas.s of accourting in the preparation of the

Francial staternents s approprate Qur evaluation of the directors assessment of the Group and Company's ability to contirue 12 adopt the going

concern basis of accounting included.

Obtuiring an urderstanding of maragement's basis for use of the going concern basis of accounting Te cnallenge the completeness of this
assessment, we ndependently denbfied Factors that mayindicate svenis or conditions that may cast s.gnhicant daubt on the Groun and
. ¥ ¥ Y
Comgany's ability Lo comtinue as 4 going concern. Events or condilions were identified, and we designed our audit procedures Lo evaluate the
effect of these risks o tie Group’s and Company’s abiizy to continue a5 a gang cancerm,
Cenfirrming sur undarstanding of the directors’ gong concern gasessment pracess,
o b

Assess ng Lhe adequacy of the gang concern assessment penod to 27 December 2022 and considering the exstence of any sigmificant events
or conditions beyond this perioa:
The audit angagemenit partner ncreased her lime directing and suporvising the sudit procedures on going concern and ubilsed corporate
finance specialsts, witn relovant hospitality sector expertise, 1o assisbin wsossing the ntegrity of tne made! and the ALSUMpLions employed,
Agresing tne Group's av alable ﬂnanc‘ﬁg ard related termis, mcludmg the chonges it the penod, and the post year-end amend and exterd,
1o ihe cmgmal daht agrecmen:s and covenant WA DTS, ang ISy Ralate) the £52 rruilion et Cff.xoensfsjl equit}/ a5 :omplsied n f\pn‘; 201

ack to supporting cwidence, Including share issue gocurmentation and cash receipt,
back t port d luding sh tat dcash £
Obtanmg the cash flow forecast models to 27 December 2022 used by the Board in ity assessment, test.ng thar anthrmetical accuracy,
ascortaining whether they have beer spproved by the Bourd and conwdening the Group's histoncal forecasung sceuracy,
Testing the assessment, including forecast iquidity and covenant compance under base and dewnside scerar oy, for elerical accuracy,

- Challenging the assampuions particularly over the urming and extent Lo whien trading would recever 1o pre Corarasrus levels, were realistg,

!

ackievab't and cansistert witn the external ardfor interna' ervironment as wail 4s other mstlers dentfiad in the audit;

Nszessing, whetner assumplions made were reascnable and ir the case of the downwde scenar o, sporopnately severe.in ighs of the Group's
relevart prw\:\pa\ rsks and uncertainbies, This included COMparing man:igemanl‘z forecasts 1o indeperdoent and\y;t COMMaNTaTy on the recovery
of the pub sector:

Conwdenng the likelhocd of management’s ability ta oxecute mitigating actions based on our understanding of the Group and the sectar,
.ridudung whotnar those m.tfgdtmg ACons wers controlable by mdnagcmerﬁt This aesessment was $upportcd by our rJﬂa’y'Sl\' of nnmdgemcrwtls
histerical abil ty te take conteo'lable actiors such as suspension of dividends, defaral of nor-essentul ap.id expenditure and iInventory orders,
as weli as the [kelihoed ef non controilable actions such as obtaiming further covenant waivers ar rasing addit onal funds through debt, equity
or sale of pubsin the portfois being plausible;

Applying professisral scept aismar perfarmng cur own independent reverse stress Lesting of tne Group's cash flaw farecast models and their
impacl o forecast iguidity and barking coverants toidertly under what circamstances the Group™s laudity would be compromised. ard
whether the scerano bas na mere than 3 remote possibhiny of accurnng:

Conwdenng the impact of o aigmficant event beyord Lhe gong concern assessment pencd that was denthea by the d rectors and the sud t tearm,

pe ng the nead to comp'ete a refinanc ng of the Groop's debt Facl ties pric- toits expiry 00 13 Februsry 2023 We challerged whetner there vias
3 real st prospect that the Group wauld be able to complete this refinarcrg Qur aud tprecedures inciuded assesang the congiusisas o the
Grooo's axtornal debt advisor, 3nd tne inve' cement 67 an EY debt ag. SOy %pcma‘h[ ] F‘E‘p us form am \ﬁﬂcp{’”}deﬁt aowl and

Asacosing tniz

approoristenaas of the going corcern d.sciosures in descrb rg the rists assoc ated with the Groups and Coempzry s an ity Lo

cortirugas 3 going corcerr for tne pe~od to 27 Jecemiper 2022
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Cur key observations

- The GFDLP I Cxpcrier\cmg a H\gh lewve! of'dwqruptwon from the Impact of Lthe par\de'nic given the sector in which it operates. Therelore, there
1s uncertanty about the impacts of COVID 19 on mnm‘lgemem"n forccasts in the gong concern assessment perlod, with the key assurrplions
relating to further potential lockdowns and/er extensions to socal distsrcing rules.

- On 31 March 2021, the G’Uup dgreed an Amend and Exterd Reﬂn(mcmg of ity oxisting debt Facilities e>cteﬁdmg the maturity of the £192 mil ion
faciltes to 19 February 2023 and amending the financial covenants to a m mimurn hquidity level of 10 mill on (tested monthly) untl 31 March
2022 and then from quarter ending 25 June 2022 reverting to 4 soverant suite of not debt to EBITDA and EBITDA ta ret finarce charges
Based cn manasgement’s dawns.de case, the Group would breach its banking covenarts from June 2022, therefore requinng further covenant
wawers to be negotiated

We confirm that we are sausfied with maragement’s conclusion that the Group and Company are a geing concern, but that thera v matar.al
uncert Nty ower this ds:uu‘-},‘L\UH, and [)"r.j'[ maﬂ.}gement has i]ccuf.]te\y described this rraterial uncertam{y wathin the financial statements We a'so

determined going conzern to ke g key audic matter,

Inretation Lo the Group and parent company's reparting an how they hawe applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing matenal
1o add or draw atiention toin relation to the directors’ statement in the financie statermnents about whether the directors considered .t appropriate

1o adopt the going concern bass of accounting
Our responbilibies and the respansibilties of the directors with respect to gaing corcern are described in the relevant sections of this repart
However, because not sil future events or conditions can he predicted, this statemert s not 2 guarantec as to the Group's and Company™s ability

to continue 45 4 going concern.

Overview of our audit approach

Audit scope - We pcrfoffnod an audrt of the :omp[ete firanci' information ol the Group, which accounten
far *00% o' loss before taxation, 100% of revenue ind "00% of total assets.

Key audit matters - Going corcern
- Imparrvent of Lamgible and intangible assets
— Deferred taxation on the pub estate

- Management override in the reccgmition of reverue

Materiality - Cueral' Group matenality of E0.9 million (2020 the predecessor aud tor set thair matenality
threshold at £1.045 millan). We used professiors! judgement Lo determine matenality given
the impact of COVID-19 on the Group's relevant matenahty measures,

An overview of the scope of the Company and Group audits

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, sur evaluation of material'ty and our allecation of performrance matenality deterrmire our audit scope for each
cormpany walhur the Group. Taken toget’her: this enables us to form an opmion on the consohidated financial statements.

The Groups operstions are based selely 1n the United Kingdem with a single head office and finance function and thercfore all audit procedures
are completed by one audit team at this location. The audit tearn includes tax specialists.

Ir assessing the rise of matenal misstatement to the Grouwp Nirancial statements, and to ensure we Fad adequate guantitalve coverage of significant
accountsin the financial statements we performed fulf scope audit procedures over 100% of the Group's results for the 52 week penad ended

27 March 2021 and 100% of the Group's toral assets at that date We obtaired an understonding of tha entity level comirols of the Group which
assisted us inidentfying and assessing nisks of matcral misstaternent dus to fraud or error, as well as assisting us 'r determiming the mast appropriate

audit strategy
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Key audit matters

Corunued

Kay autht roatters are thase matters that, in our profess onanjudgmend, were of most sgnificance incur audit of the Ninancial statements
b : F J ,

of the current pened and include the most sgrificant asseased risks o matensl misstatement (whetker or not duc to fraud] that we identflied.

These matters neluded those which had the greatest &

ect on: the overall audit sirategy, the allocation of rescurces -n the aud L and direcling the

efforts of the engagement team. Tnese matters were addressed in tha context of our sudit of the fnancial statements as 1 whole, and e our op.rion

theraen, and we do not provide g separate oprion or these matters In addition to the mateer descrbed i the material uncertainty related to going

concern section, we have determined the ratters descrbed below to be the key audit matters to be cormmunicated in our report:

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key abservations communicated to the Audit Committee

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
Refsr to the Audit Committee Reporf (poge 53);
Accounting policies (page 100); and Nate 13 of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (page 120)

AL 27 March 2021 the careying Jalue of tungble
3seets s E672 7 million whichw made up of
property, plant 4na equiprent (PP&EYand
L{ROUA) Intang ble +usets
nase 3 carry'ing e of £27 4 milon of which

nght of-use 2

£26 7 million relites to g}ood-.mH recorded on

Business combimnAatiors in previcus years

The continued uncertamties aver the currert
sccnomic enronment caused o, the

Ceranaurus pandemic.inclad ag the closwre
ar restreted trading of sl pubs e tne UK has
been aentified 33 sn indicator of mparment

Irmpairment for tingble awsets (property olant

ard Cqummgﬁtqr‘d the rléHL-oF use i\:.eta]
are tested on the basis of cachiind vidu sl cash
cenerstrg unit (CGUY - 30 pdiidual pub site
Forntanzible assets [goodwl) the testing s
pe-formed st the relowant groun oF COUs that
benelit from the zaodall

There s 2rskth i ziven the uncertainves

m.erfuture rrading cavsed by the Coronaarus

Fubs may nat ache.e the ant cip sted buuness
oerfarmance o Support their CATTVIng alue
Thscouldlesd ta an mparment charge that

has rotbeon sesznsoc by rrandgement

S grificart judzements reauirsd n forecset g
futura cash flows of each pub. the long term
érO‘-*e'_h rate 300 the rate st whauch cash llows
are discourted Foracortion of the pub estate
whergthe (3'ue-in use —odzlindicates 5 -mall
wnpaiment chirge am ouorty based on the
moarket v3lue approsch s perfarmied shich
nsleen s grificant wdgoment r actermining
tha fair s v'ue of thesz pubs

We gained an understanding through 1w ilkthrough of the
process ans controls mar agement has in place cier the

Iimoairment process

We cahdated thot the methodalogy of the imparment
2xercine s cans skent wetn the requiroments of IKS 35
Imparment of Assats, including appropriite denuficatiaon
of cash zenerating unit and tne allocacen of central

service costs intie ¢ilueinuse calculat ony
We conf rned the mathematuca sccuracy of the medels

Beigw we surnmi 4 5o the procedures perfermed in relation
to the key judgements for the tangibie (PESE and ROLUA)
and inta

&

e assets (goodw! D impairment review

- We snalysed management < forecasts underly ng the

mpaIrmert ren g 3g3imsL past 3nd current perfermanc

snd exter-al future econam™ic forecasts m:o”pc;r]:mg

5 COVID 19 impsct on the hosotalt, sector n the UK
- Wecompared tre expact it on o performance af the

pub sitas reopeing ta the recent government

anacuncemaerts and other external market ndicators

of eccmomic recovery suen 3s forecast GO0 growth,

searching for contrary evdence

'

E]T‘I‘FUPHé@rFCV’Z[ S ECD, Oy 3SAUMPIIS T Hnd past-
CCiD-19 assumplions with the sssatsnce of cur

EY sector specialiniy

'

We also perfarmed sensitivity aralyss based an
ressanable possble charges to kay 3ssumptions
determined by mansgoment baing revonae discount
rate snd long term groath rate. Weo assessad that the
reasonsbl, potaible change in assumpt ons apphed by
managerment wore approonate by reference to the
ranzes independentl, establshed by our werk

- Weengaged our EY internal spezishisis 1o irdependently

calzy ate the d scount rate and compsre f to the

discount rate sppl 2d n the modsals by rmaragement
- Where management’s pub mpsrment 44
base
Frapety
4pplied 3rd 1ud tthe e, 3s~amptions that form part of

danthe far .4ye sporeich

dluation spaci s to reacs tho methodslogy

the .awation ~ patof recert transact ons - the marks:

Yie 33-cusad the @nCigures ir notes b the

aZarst ke

ranttz d wlose furtmes

b

ik, ocsubie crargze

L=l T Lo S TebubolV ol B aog

srd ke FS T sy azree
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We cntizally challenzed and 43sessed the resuorableness

27 IAS 35 I parment

Basad or aur audit pracedures we bave corcluded
the wrparment chﬁrge sf €11 2 mulen {bomg

£9.0 millien PPRE mparment 16 mill on ROUA
impaireant 39d ED 6 millior éoodwul imp 1 rment)
15 appropriately determined We highlighted that

3 rzasonby pasaible chsnge i certan key
assumptions inclading sales “orecants and nsk
adjustment factors could lead Lo mater al addit.onal
imparment charges Wa concluded 4ppropriate
disclosures had been ncluded by mans
the sho e 4ssumptione,.

gement for



Risk

Our respanse to the risk

Key observatians communicated to the Audit Committee

Deferred taxation on the pub estate

Refer to the Audit Committee Reporl (Puge 53);
Accounting policies (poge 105): end Note 7 ond
Note 34 of the financial statements (page 1 and
151 respectively)

At 27 March 2021, the Group had deferred

Lo« assets of £17 0 million [Restatad

2020 100 milon] and deferred tax habihties
of £22 3 million (Rostated 2020 E23 71 million)
3nd the Cempany had deferred tax assets of
0159 mtion (Rastated 21020 £95 m lion) and
deferred tax lsbilities of £22 3 millign (Restated
20200820 3 mullion)

A gnificant level of mandgerrent judgement
and comp'ex caleulatiors are required in
accourting for the deferred tax Tneswe 4re

focused on-

- N‘.Cr]xur'né deferred tax on pu':s oM a dmpox il

in wse of adualbasie

- The deferred rax treatment of fair value
uphfrs and rolled over gairs 4nd ther
interactian with ingexation allowances

- Tracking which comporents of deferred tax
n each pub should not be recogrised urder
the irutial recognition exemption of A5 12

- The recogmition ar nor-recognibion of
deferred tax asuets on realised capital losses

Wa performed awilkthrough of the Groups process for
determining the deferred tax arsing en the pub estate

In conpunction vath our tax special.sts, we tested the
deferred tax calcalstuons on the Group's fregheld and
leasehold pub portfalieo This focused on venfying the inputs
nte the deferred tax calculsticn testing the mathematical
accuracy and recaleulating the deferred tas far a sample

af pubs scros« thz estate Thisincluded a review of capital
losses rollocer reliel indexation allowances and it
recogmition cxemphgns, as well 4y man Lrlalula, H

caleulat on of the impact of 3 historical errorin the
caleulstian, which has been sdjusted as s prior

year adjustment

Additionally, we verfied the deferred Lix caleulatiors are
consistent with UK Tax l3ws and the Groups practice in

filirg tac returns

YWe challenged managerant or the assumptions used in
caleulaung the deferred tax b i'arces including whether the
deferred tax application was conwstent with the Group's
intended manner of recovery for esch pubin the deferred
Lax calcu'abiors and wis conwistent sath the assumptions
concerning deprecistian and residual walue e the fued

assel TEE‘SLEF

We carsidered whethor the related deforred tax
disclosures, included in rote 7 ta the Group finarcial
statements, were inine sith IAS 12 requirements

We denufied am errer in the current year deferred
tax workings relating to the urderlving methodology
applied by management This has also resulted ' the
prior year adjustmant af £4 0 million in the Group
and £3 € millon for the Company that has been
ceflected in the aceounts Foilowing correction

of the meathodology we conclude management »
Judgement ansing on the deferred tax calculation to
be appropriate We lso canader that the disclosares
nnote 7and nate 34 to the Graup and Company
financil staterments, including the descripticn of
the prier ye i adjustment. are appropriate

Management override in the recognition

of revenue

Refer to the Accounting policies (page 104) and
MNote 3 of the financial statements (page 108)

The Group recorded revenue of £73 2 mullen

nthe penad (2020 £316 3 mllan) including
£64.0 millhonn the Maraged houses segment
(2020 £286.3 millon)and £9 2 million in the
Tenanted lans segment (2020 £29 7 millior.

The vast majority of the Groups revenue
trarsactions are non-complex, with no
Judéoment dpphed over the smount recorded

We conwder the s.lénlﬂcpmt risk relating to
revenue to be around management overnde
of controls and topside journals to reverue in
the Managed and Tenanted estate

Far Managed houses. revenue s typicaliy
comprised of alarge nureber of low vAlue
transactions Although theres hittle
mAnggerment judgement involved, there iy

a rsk that manual topade adjustments could
te posted which could result in revenue baing
averslazed or not recorded Far Tenanted [any
there s alvo a3 risk that manus! topﬁldc
adjustments could pe posted to reenue

We performed 3 walkihrough of each of the Group
swgmf:can[ revenue processes, mcludmg the recordmg
cf manual ournal sdjustments, and ssaessed the design

effectisonens af the koy controls that are in place

We applied correlation dats analyss over the Group's entire
re.erae journa' pepulat on to dentify how much of the
Group'\ revenue Is converted to cash postings and Lo solate
non standard revenue transacligns for Further .-ma\ys:\,
focusing our testing on Pigher nsk transactions dentified

We wearched for any topside journals to revenue. but none

weredentified

We pecformed cut-off testing pracedures ncluding revien
of post period end eash receipts and journals, and an
analytical revicw GFSIEanICdﬂL Sriances to the priar yeAr,

o assess for completencss

We did rot deatify any instances of management
avernde of controls. including through topside
Jourrals Based or cur work, which included using
data anaiysr tools to test 100 % of the Group'
revonu tratsactions 3nd the cxtent to ~hich they
conwerted 1o trade recenables or cash we cons der

that reverue i Fairly stated
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Continuad

The key audit matters set out sbove are conwstant with those reported by Fuller. Smith & Turrer pic's pravious external auditor with the
axception of:

- Addion of the key audit matter sround the deferred tax on the pub estate given the compleuty araund the caleulsbon and the price yeor
adjustment dennfied which inereased our audit effortin this area

- Removal of the key audit matiers in relation 1o the adeption and accounting for IFRS 16 as the risk in the current year has reducad as lease
chunges ave lower in frequancy and value

- 5im \a'|y, tha previoui audior inciuded a kcy oJudt maizer i relancn to scpardte|y dsclosed items, for which we da not consider there 1o a k-:‘y
audit matter gven the guantum of the halance excluding impairments 15 we have idertified thal as s KAM above,

+

Lastly, the previous auditor included a key audit mratrer in relaticn 1o the disposal of the brewery business As this s a non-recurnng transaction,
there i no such key aud t matter for the current perad.

Our application of materiality
We aoply tha concapt of materahty in olanning and perfarming the audr, in evaiugting the effect of idertfied m sstatements 01 Lhe duert snd in
Forﬁ]lng Sur ElUd\t coInion.

Materiality
The mcgmfude of on amission or musstatement that. mdividually or 1n the aggregate. could reasenably be expected roinfluence the economic decizions
of the users of the finoncial statements, Alateraliry provides o basis for determiming the nature and extent of sur audit procedures

Wa determined matenaity for the Group and Company to be £E0.5 million (2020 £1C5 milhon deterrined by the Group's predecessar auditor],
based on aur profeswona' judgernent on reicvant metrics used by vestors and ather usars of the finarcial staterments, Materiasty in 2020 was
based or ou- judgament of normalised carmings of the Group. To forn the basis of this assessment we have conwdered the avorage sdjusted profit

before tax for cormmmg coeratons fer francial years 2019 - 2020 and resincted the percentage apphed to that basw ta 3% {from the uaual 5%
apphed for isted entites) o Factor in the dechne in trade wr 2021 driven by the Coronaviras pandemic,

During the course of our audit, we reassessed imitial marenanty e relees tne imoact of COVID 19 on Fulier, Smith & Turner P LC. We cancluged
= Y .
that no charge s requred Lo our Frar matenality.

Performance materiality
The apphcaticn of matenaiity ot the indwidual account or bolance level [tz set ot an amount to reduce to an epproprintely low level the prabability thar the
aggregote of uncorrected ond undetected misstarements exceeds matencity

O the basis of gur risk sssessmerts, together with cur assessmens of the Grouph overal contrel environment, sur judgement was that performance
materiality was 50% of our planning materiarty, ramely £0 4% million (22026 5% o planning mateniality deterrmined by the Groups oredecessor

auditor). We have set performance maien dity at this percentages as this year s 2 frstyear auart

Reporting threshold

An arnount below which dearified misstatements are considered as being clearly trvial

We agreed wilh the Audt Commitiee thal we woula repert to them alf uncerrected duait differences in excess of FEAS,000, which s set 5t 5%
of planning materrshty, as wel os differences below that threshald that, in our view, warrantad reporting on quilitaliee grounds.

We evalusie any uncoreciod misstateTents sganst both the quantizstie mreasures of matena by d scussed sbove andir ligh: of otner releant
q J‘]||[1t|\dc ;,’J’"lbld'_‘r At or- M F"'”"”ﬁg L ’_‘p‘ arzn,

Other information

The sther aiermal on comprises the nformauar raluded i tng annua' repert otner tran the liranc.al sLatements ang our sud Lo-s report thareen

Tra directars are “espansble for the cther informaton conta ced w the the 3003’ epart

(@RS apiFior 5 the < Flal

fotal

~die this czoart,

ceot (o the axtent othorane exphat!, 573

~ . .
Dhorresocrab by irfarmiton amater any moorssatett e ththe

Frarc dl spatemer ater iy misstaiog 1F e \oem-r', ~.ch

aro rothe fingncia

goribo nore wnboper gr”"cc]- L omsstataerent of the r:ti"er rfsrmaren,

Groport Lt s regid
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinion, the part of the dircctors’ remurneration reporl to be audited has been properly prepared in accordunce with the Companries

Act 20086,
I cur opiman, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit
- theinfarmation grven in the slrategic report and the directsrs report far the finarcial penod for which the finsncil statements are prepared

15 consistent with the f.nanciat statemcnts; and
- the strategic report and the directors’ report have been preparzd in accardance w th applicable legal reguirements.

w
Matters on which we are required to report by exception =
In the hight of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Lthe Company and its orviranment obtamed in the course of the audit, we have Ul‘;)
not idenuficd materal misstatements in Lhe strategic repart or the directors’ repart 5
-
We have nothing te repart in respect of the following matters in relstion to which the Campanies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, S
nour OP\HlGn
- adequale accounting records have not been kept by the Campany, or returns adequale for our audit have not been receved from branches not
visited by us, GF
- the Company financisl statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are notin agreement with the sccounting
records and returns; or
- cortain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are ot made; or
- we have rot received all the nformation and explanations we require for our audit. Q
3
Corporate Governance Statement 3
The Listing Rules require us 2o reveew the directors’ staterent in relat-on Lo going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate 2
[ev]

Governance Staterment relating to the Group and Company's complance with the provis.ons of the JK Corporate Governance Cede speafied for

QU FCVITW.

Aside fram the impact of the matters disclosed ir the maternal uncertainty related to going concern section, based on the work undertaken as part
ol our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Carporate Goverrarce Statement s miter ally consistentweth the
firancial statements ar our knowledge obtaned during the sudit:

- Dhrecters statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopling the going concern basis of account'ng and any matenal urcertarties
identfied set out on page 25,

- Directors explanation as to its assessment of the Compary's prospects, the peniad this assessrent covers and why tne period s appropriate
set out on pape 96;

- Directors’ statement on fair, balanced 1nd understandable sel aut on page 43;

- Board's canfirmation that it hav carried out 4 robusL assessment of the emerging and principal nisks sel out an page 45;

- The section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set out on page 54,
and

- The sect.an desenbing the work of the Audit Committec sel out on page 52,

Responsibilities of directors
As explanad more fuliy in the direcors’ responsibilitics stazement set out on page 45, the directors are responsble for the preparat'on of the
financial statermnents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the drectors determrine 1 neeessary

ts erable the preparation of finuncial stalements that are free from materiol misstaternent, whether due Lo fraud ar error.
prep \

Ir preparing the financial staterments, the dilectors are responsible for assessing the Group and Campany's ability to continue as a going conzera,
d sclosing, as appheable, matters related Lo going cancern and usirg the going concern basis of account ng uniess the directors either intend Lo
hiquidate the Group or the Company or Lo coase operations, o have na realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial staternents

Our chjectives are to okt un ressonable assurance about whether the finamcial staterrents as 1 wholo are free from matenal misstatement,

whether due to fraud or arror, ard to ssue an aaditor’s report that mcludas aur opinion Feascnable assurance s a nigh level of assurance, but s not

a guarantee thal an audit conducted in accordance with 15/, (UKD will always detect @ materal missiatement when texsts, Misslaterments car anise
from Mraud or error and are considered material findividually ar in the aggregate, they could reasonatiy be expected Lo nfluence the econoric

decimians of users taken on the bass of these financial statemerts.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Fuller, Smith & Turner P.L.C.

Centinued

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, ncluding fraud
irregulanties, mc\udmg Fraud, sre instances of ror -compliance with laws and regulations. We dEmgﬂ proceduras inline with cur respansibilities,
autlned abave, to detect rregularitices. mcluding fraud. The risk of mot detecting 4 mistenal misstatement due to fraud is ugher than the nsk

of not detacting ore resulting from errar, as fraud may invalve delibe: ate carcaalment by, for example, forgery or intenticnal misrepresentaiions
or through cellusion The extent te which our procedures are capatble of detecting irregulanit es, nciuding raud s deta led below.

However, the prmary respansibility for the prevention and delection of fraud rests with both those charged vith governanze of the compary
and maragement

- We obtained an urderstand ng of the lega' ard regulatery frameworks that are apphcable to the G-oup and determined that the mast significant
are Companies Act 2006, Health & Safety and food hygiena laws, Morimum Wape regulstions, Money Laundening repu’ations and the UK
Corparate Governance Code 2018,

- We understood haw the Comp.my s complying with those framewarks by mdkmg inguinias of rmdnagement, thaose charged with governance, those
responsible for legsl and camplisnce procedures snd the company secretary We corroborated our inquires through inspection of board minutes
and correspondenca wath regulstory authorites and through attendsnce at Audiz Cemmitles meetings

- We assessed the susceplibihiny of the Group's firancial statements to materal risstatement, including how fraud might occur by making inguinies
of manasgement. those charged with gavermance ana variaus ather individuals within the financial reporting furcuion, We corroborsted these
inquines by nspectrg board minutes, nternal audit reports and findings, reports to the Group's mternal whist'eblowing hothne and by
understanding bein the Group's barmus scherme struclure and the expectations of investors and analysts, to understand areds in whizh individuals

may be incentvised to commit fraud.

Basedonths under;;ar\dmg we designed Qur dudit Pro(,edure& Lo identify ror compliance with such laws and reguiations, Our procedurcs
inyolved makmg inquines as descnbed above, MPECLOE Mtes o all :wgmﬂcam board and commuitee meetings, reddmg correspc-ndence wilh
regulatcry authorities, festing m muanurn.‘aI entrics wth hg%cr risk characlensucs and testing unusual or non standa-d transactions,

A Fuether deseripucn of our responsibilitios for the auds of the financaai statements is lacated on the Finarcisl Reporuing Councils webane at
teps Hunaw, i org ukfaud torsmesponsibiities This description forms part of our auditor’s report

Other matters we are required to address
Fo'lawing the recommenddatian from the Audit Commitiee, wa were appoirted by the company on 27 Janusry 2021 to audit the financial
stalernants for the 52 weck period ended 27 March 2027 and subsequent “inancial periods.

- The non audt ~ervices pronibited by the FRC's Exhical Standard were nat provided to the Group of tne Campany snd we remain ndeperdent
of the Grewp and the Company i conducting the audi
- The audt opinior s consistent vath the add.bonal report Lo the Audit Committes

Use of our report

Thi, reportis made so'cly to the Company's members, 24 4 body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companie> Act 2006 Our audt
work has been uadertsken wo that we might state to the Compary’s members those mallars wa are required to state to themn an auditor’s report
and far ne other purpose. 7o tne fullest extent permitted by inw, we do not accepl or assume responsibilily to anyone other than the Company and
the Compar\y's members ay 4 body, for cur audit wark, for this repart, er for the spin.ons we have formed

M ymptll

RACHEL SAVAGE

SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR

for and on bebui of Ernat & Yourg LLP, Statumery Auaie-
Lerdan

Ry, 2000

86



Group Income Statement

O
for the 52 woeks ended 27 March 2021 7
z
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 E
Noe— Em L
Continuing operatians
Revenue o 3 732 316.0
Opamtmg costs befare scpdrdtc\y disclesod items 4 (113.7) (2927
Ctner income o 3 0.; 37 [
Adjusted operating (lass)/profit (40,3} 270 %
Operating separately disclosed items - 3 (14.8} o (20.1; A
Operating (loss)/profit (55.1) 69 éa
Finance costs & (8.4) (76} 8,
F}n{]mcmg SEPHrdte‘y dl\cl@‘)ed items 5 6 (0-1) (05]
Prafit on disposal of properties 5 5.8 96
(Loss)/profit before income tax {57.8) 824
Adjusted (loss)}profit before income tax (48.7} 194
Total separately drclosed items 5 9.1 (1.0
,Eoss]lprofit before income tax o (57.8) 84 oy
T 7 9.6 (5.2) 2
Analysed as: :‘i’
Underlying trading - 7 8.9 (7.2) 3
Separately disclosed items 5,7 0.7 2.0
(Loss)/profit from continuing cperatians (48.2) 3.2
Net (los-}profit fram discontinued operations after tax 2 (1.4) 1577
(Loss)/profit for the year (49.6) 1605

1 Refer to Note 34 faor details of restaternent.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Income Statement
forthe 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021

Contnued

52 weeks
ended

27 March
Group 2021
(LossHearnings per share per 40p ‘A" and *C’ ordinary share Nt Pence S
Bawie R, 21 {89.84) 291 K9
Chiluted 8,21 (89.84) 239121
(LossHearnings per share per dp ‘B ordinary share
Basic 3,21 (8.98) 2519
Diluted 8, 21 (8.98) 2312
Continuing eperations
(Loss)earnings per shace per 40p ‘A" and *C ordinary share
Basic 8 (82.31) R
Diluted 3 (87.31) 579
{Lass)/earnings per share per 4p ‘B ordinary share
Bawic 5 (8.73) 0.58
Diiuted 8 8.73) 058

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

O
for the 52 woeks ended 27 March 2021 (QD
o
=
Ractared
52 weeks L
ended
27 March Ry
o1 Y]
Noie Em [
{Loss)/profit for the year (49.6) 1609
Items that may be reclussified to profit or loss in subsequent years (net of tax)
Net gns N valuation of linancia' assets and habilties 28 0.5 0.z
Tax related ta tems that may be reclassiflied e prefit or loss 7 0.1 on o
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent yeurs (net of tox) ;L:J
= - s
Net actuar sl Uosse%)/gmm‘ an penwicn schemes 25 (1.0) 58 o
- . s
Tax related to iterns that will not be reclassified to profit ar lows 7 0.2 un &
Other comprehensive (‘osses)fgains for the year, net of tax (04] 40 :2_
Tatal comprehensive {expenses)/income for the year net of tax (50.0) 1658
1 Refer to Mote 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Balance Sheet

27 March 2021

Graup
201
N £m -

Non-current assets } L

\mtdma\b\e asacts - 10 . 273 275
Property, plant and equipment 1 590.2 6177
nvestrent properties ] ] R . 31 48
Otner non -currenl gssets 15 - 01
Right of-use dassets 17 B1.9 1070
Total non=-current assets 702.5 7571
Current assets

Irventories i 9 21 4.0
Trade and other recevables ’ B 20 1.5 12.6
Current tax receivabic ) 4.0 &0
Cash and short term deposits 24 171 203
Total current assets 34.7 429
Assats classfied as hald for sale 22 9.6 26
Total assets 746.8 5026
Current liabilities

“rade and other payab es ' ] 23 (28.7) (37.7)
Dih’)\;'ISICfT\ . 27 (4.0) {41
Borrowirgs 24 (207.7} a7 7
Lease ab lities 17 6.7} (89
Total current habilities (247.1) (222.4)
Non-current liabilities .

BOF’CWWé: ) _ 24 (27.5) (275
Lease molities 7 (83.2) (04.03
Osher finanaial lab hues a4 {0.7) 7[71_\
Rztirzmert benefit chhigat ons 25 (3.5) A7)
Deferred tax habliues 7 (5.3) az2n
Total non-current liakilities (120.2) sS04
Net assets 379.5 4298
Capital and reserves

Share capita 29 22.8 228
Snare premiLm dccount 29 o 4.2 4.2
Capitsl redemprion reserve 29 3.7 37
Own sk ares 29 (17.0) (170
Fedaing reser .2 ) o 29 (0.5) (0%
Retaired earrings 366.3 4171
Total equity 379.5 4298

1 Refer to Nate 34 for details of restaterment

Appre.ed by the Basrd and sigred or 8 0y 2021

Modead ~Toinss

M JTURNER, FCA
CHAIRMAN

=egaterad Numbar 247352
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Company Balance Sheet

%
27 March 2021 5
E
Company
2021 o
Mot Em Lo

Non-current assets R
intangble assets i 10 4.0 26
Property, plant and equipment n 590.2 477775"93,8
lnvestment properties B ) 17 31 48
Other ron-current ussets 15 - 01
Right-o*-use as»ets 17 81.4 966 %”
Investments in subsid ares 16 109.3 1224 =
Total non-current assets 788.0 8203 A
Current assets 2
Inventories B 19 21 i5 -8!
Trade and other recewvables ) 20 1.4 194 -
Current tax recevable 3.9 59
Cash and short term deposits 24 16.9 16.2
Total current assets 34.3 480
Assets classilied as held for sale 22 9.6 2.6
Total assets 831.0 5709
Current liabilities )
Trade and other payables 23 (161.6) {16527 %
Prowisions 27 {4.0) “4n =
Borrowmgs 24 (207.7) (717 ;3:
Lease labilitiey 17 (6.5) (797 ©
Total current liabilities (379.8) (348.9)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 24 (27.5) (275)
Lease liabihities 17 (81.8) (.73
Other firancial hak htes 14 (0.7) an
Retirement benelit obligatiens ~ 25 (3.5) 477
Deferrad tax labilitios 7 (5.4) 10.8)
Total non-current liabilities (118.9) (135.83
Net assets 333.2 386 2
Capital and reserves .
Share capital 29 22.8 228
Share premium dccount 29 4.2 4.7
Coapital redemption reserve 29 3.7 37
Owr sharcs B 29 (17.0} (171}
Hedging reserve 29 (0.5) (C.9)
Merger reserve (1.6)
Retained earnings 3.6 3735
Total equity 332.2 3862

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.

Loss attributable to Drdmdr)« sharehclders and included in the financiil statemenss of the Parent Compe‘my was L2907 million
(2070- 67420 million proﬁtl

Approved by the Boaro and sigred on & July 2021

s
M J TURNER, FCA

CHAIRMAN
Registered Number 247882
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 weeks ended 27 Marcn 2021

Group I i . - y fe

At 30 March 2019 (restated)’ 3 (:9.8) 0.8} 3324 3425
Profit for the year lrestated) - - - 1609 1508

Other comprehensive income for the yer - - C 4.8 49
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - o1 165.7 165 8

besue o share capitat (note 29 0.5 c.e - -

Reclassif-cation of deferred shares B

(note 29) (06] - 0.6 - -

Cancelation of deferreg shares [note 290 - 0.4} 05 -

Shares purchased Lo be held in ESCT or

as treasury - - (0.9) - (0.3]
Shares released from ESOT and treasury - - 3 - (1 21

Disdends (noe 9) - B - (20.5)  80.5)
_Shdrc'based payment cnarges - - - 0.5 O?
Transfer to retaired esrnings - - - (0.2) .2

Tax deb-tedd\rch\y 1o equity {ncte 7) - o - - on {amn
Total transactions with owners (0.6] - 08 27 (0.2 (8101 (78.5)
At 28 March 2020 (restated) 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 (17.1} (0.9) 471 429.8

Loss for the yeasr - - {259 6) 496)
Gther comprehensive incomeflexpense)

for the year - - - G4 (G.8] (043
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the

year - - 04 (50.4] (50
Shares purchased Lo be held in ESOT or o

35 treasury - - -

Shares released from ESCT and treasury - - 07 [€oRy! -

Dividends (note 9) - i : -

Sharc based paymert credits - - - (G 3) (0.3
Total transactions with owners - - - 0" - c.4) (0.3)
At 27 March 2021 22.8 4,2 - 3.7 07.0) (0.5 366.3 3795

1 Refer to Note 34 for detalls of restatement.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021

_— o e
S s L e bosgrg Mo 6 )
Company R o - L
At 30 March 2019 (restated)’ 228 48 - 37 (12.8] 08 3077 378
Profit for the yodr (restated) - - 1420 1420
Cther comprehensive income for the ye.a‘r“ - - - 01 48 49
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 01 146 8 1469
lssue of share capital (note 29} 0.6 (0.6) - -
Reclassfication of deferred sharas (note 29) 0el (6)6) -
Cancellation of deferred shares (note 29) - (0.6 06 - -
Shares purchased to be held in ESOT or N
as treasury - - : {05] - - - (RS}
Snares released from ESOT and tressury - - 32 - - a1 21
Dividends (note 9) - - - ~ (805) (305)
Transfer to retained earmings - - - - 0.2) - 0.2 -
Share-based payment charges - - - - - 0.5 05
Tax debited directly o cquity (note 7) - - - ©n O
Total transactions with owners - 0.£) - 06 27 (0.2 - B81.0) (78.5)
At 28 March 2020 (restated) 22.8 4.2 - 3.7 (17.10 (0.9} - 373.5 386.2
Loss for the year - - - - (507) (5073
Other comprekensive ircome for the year - - 0.4 (08} (0.4)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 0.4 (515) (51.1)
Shares purchased to be held in ESOT or
as treasury - - - -
Shares released from ESOT and treasury - - 021 ((OR)] -
Disdends (note G} - - - - -
Hive up of Bel & The Dragen - - - (16) - (.6}
Share-based payment charges - - - - (0.3) (0.3}
Total transactions with owners - an - ae) (0.4 (19}
At 27 March 2021 22.8 4,2 - 3.7 {17.0) (0.5} (1.6) 321.6 333.2

1 Refer to Note 34 for details of restatement.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Cash Flow Statement
for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021

Group
52 weeks
ended .
17 March NS
2021 N
N e Em F

(Lass)profit before tax for continuing operations (57.8) 8.4
Net finance costs before scparstely disclosed dems 5 8.4 76
Separately disclosed items 5 9.1 10
Degreciation and amorisatior 4 27.2 269

(13.1) 539
Ditference between pension charge and cash pad (2.3) (2.3)
Contribution to pension fund - 240
Share-based poyment (creditlicharges (0.3) a5
Change in trade and other receivables B (0.4} an
Crange ninventorics - 1.7 I
Change in trade and other payables (6.4) B
Cashimpact of operating separately disclosed items 5 (1.5) (5.0;
Cash {absorbed by)/generated from operations (22.3) 216
Tax recenved(paid) - 3.4 (10.1)
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities - continuing aperations (18.9) 15
Cash (absorbed by)/generated From operating activities — discontinued operations 21 (0.4) 1.5
Net cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities (19.3) 13.0
Cash flow from investing activities
Business combirat ans - (328)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (16.5) 46.7)
Snaeof property, p ant and equipment, night-of -use sswcts and avsets he'd for sale 10.8 14
Cash absorbed by investing activities — continuing operations (5.7) 68.1)
Cash generated from investing activities - discontinued operations 21 0.3 2245
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities (5.4) 564
Cash flow from financing activities _
Purchase of own shares ) - 05
Recepts on release of own shares to opticn schemes ; 29 - 2.3
Interest paid - (4.5) 47
Preference dividends paid (0.1) on
Equily dividends paid El - (22.5)
Crawoewn of bank loans 24 99.4 -
Repaymert of pank ioans 24 (64.0) B5.4)
Repaymert of ob'igations under leases 17 (9.2} 10,33
Cash generated/(abserbed by) financing activities - continuing operations 21.6 (15%.21
Cash absoroed by n.esting act. dities - discontunued opeations 2 (0.1) 03]
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Financing activities 21.5 1160
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (3.2) G3
Csshoare cash equ wdlents st tre start o7 tme yedr 24 20.3 10
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 24 17.1 203
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Company Cash Flow Statement

O
for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 g
E
Company
52 weeks
ended -
27 March JEN
2021 20
Note Em .
Loss befare tax for continuing operations ] (60.3) (178)
MNet finance costs belore sepdrdtely disclosed items - 121 10.3
Separately disciosed items 8.5 358
Depreciation and amortisation 26.8 256 o
12.9) RE) &
Difference between pcrmo_n charge and cash paid (2.3) (23 Ug
Contribution to pension fund - (24.0) )
Shara-based payment {gredit)icharges (0.3) 05 E
Change in trade and other recevables 71 (109) -
Ch.‘mge In Inventories 1.7 T
Change in trade and ather payables (14.7) 08
Cashimpact of operating separately disclosed -tems 5 (1.5) 4.8
Cash (absorbed by)/generated from operations (22.9) 14.3
Tax received!(paid) - 36 fon
Cash (absarbed by)/generated from operating activities — continuing operations (19.3} 4.2 g
Cash absorbed by operating activities - discontinued operations - g
Net cash (absorbed by)/generated from operating activities (15.3} 42 ;3:
Cash flow from investing activities =
Business combinations 0.2 (34M
Purchase of property, plant and equipruent (16.5) (46.2)
Sale of property, plant and equipment, right of usc asscts and assets held for sale 10.8 n4
Cash absorbed by investing activities — continuing operations (5.5 (689)
Cash generated from investing activities - discontinued operations 0.6 2254
Met cash (outﬂow)iinﬂow from investing activities (4.9) 156.5
Cash Flow from Financing activities
Purchase of own shares - {0.5)
Receipts an release of own shares to ootion schemes, 29 - 2.3
Interest paid (4.5) 4.7)
Preferance dividends paid (0.1) on
Equity dividend- paid 9 - 809
Drawdown of bank loans 24 99.4 -
Repayment of bank loans 24 (64.0) (571)
Repayment of obligations under leases 17 (8.9) aomn
Cash generated/{absorbed by) investing activities - continuing operations 21.9 {150.7)
Cash generated from financing activities - discontinued operations - -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities N9 507} §
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (2.3) 10.0 g"
Cash acquired on acquisitian - - 2
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 24 19.2 9.2 g:
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 16.9 192 3
G
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounpng Policies

Authorisation of Financial Statements

The financal statements of Fuller, Smuth & Turrer P _C. and 4 subsidianies (the “Group™) for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 were authorised
far 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 8 July 2021 and the Balance Sheet was signed on the Board's behalf by M) Turrer Fuller, Smitn & Turner
P.L C s a publchimited company incorporated snd domicled in Erglsnd and Wales, The Company’s ordinary ‘A shares are tradec on the Londan
Stock Exchange

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The Group’s and Company’s financial statements have been preparec in accordance with international accounting szandurds in cenformity with the
requremerts of the Compan es Act 2006, 2nd in aczordance with [aternational F nanc al Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation
(ECYNe 1606/2002 55 1t applies Lo the European Union, and apphed to the firanc al statements of the Group and the Company for the 52 weeks
ended 27 March 2021 The principal accounting policies adopted by tne Group and by the Company ate sct outin the accountirg palicies below,

The Group and Campany financial statements are presented in Starlirg and o'l values are shown i enllions of pounds (Em) reunded ta the nearest
Fundred thousand, except where otherwise indicated,

A permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 a separate ncome Staterent for the Parert Compuny has not been orepared.

Going concern

The Group's busiress activilies, topather with the factor likely to iffect iLs future aewe spment, perfarmance and position are set oulie the Straregic
Reportan pages A t0 38 ind rclude the secuon entitled *Principd’ risks anc uncartambies” on pages 28 to 30 I the Financ al Review section on pages
22 to 26 .1 acscrines the financial powt on of the Group, its cash flows ang hquidity positisn, In addiion, note 28 1o the financidl statornents ncludes the
Group'x objectives, poicios and orcces-es for Matsging its capital, ts fimancial r sk management objectres, detals of its financannstruments and )’wcdgmg
activitios, borrow ng facilies, and s axposure 1o credit nsk and liquienty risk

The Directars have prepared the 2021 f pancisi stalements or 4 going corcern bass after avscsung tne cortirued impact of the corenarus pandemic
reiuding further lockamwes and restrictions as well as the Group's financing arrangement and otner principal ros<s and uncerta nties.

AL27 March 2021, the Group had a strorg Balance Sneet with 1% of the eslate baing freehole properties ard ava lsble headroom on faclit es
of £84 G million and U171 miluer of cask ana resultng netdebt of £2°3 1 millon excluding leases.

The Group had ex sting faciliies o” £292 reilicn, D192 millen was due to expire » Augosl 2027 vatn the rest being tne £100 million CCFF, which expred
n May 2021 Post yearend, the Grouo agreed ar Amena snd Extend Refinancrg of ity exsting aebt “acilit es with it refatiorship barks, extending the
matury of the £192 millien S3cilt es 1038 February 2023 and amerding tne firare al cavenarts Lo a mimimam hquidity level of E10 milan 1o be tested
monthly urt 31 March 2022 I June 2022 the Carrpany wil revert 1o a coverant suite of net debt to EBITOA (leverage) and EBITDA to ret

Frarce charges

)

After year end, the Group proposed placing now N shares up to appropnistely 20% of existing issued ‘A ord nary share capizal The refirancirg of the
laciht es was cond-uonal on the successful equity rase On 20 Apn 2027 the equity ~mse was approved by the sharehcleers at the Extraordirary Gerera
Meeting ("EGM™ and the net oroceeds of £52 mlar were recaived the same day. The procreds of the equity raise, along with the Group's existing
facilties, viere used tao repay the CCF=on 12 May 2021

s well as extending the bark fsailitios and ras rg funds througn sr 2qu by rase, the Graue has implemented & number o mit pating act ors o reduce
cash outflzes and mantaia hqudty as felloas

- Afiny diadend .

- Parbicipatad in gossrn—ontiritaties to pratecs the visnihity of the buamess, inzluding the CIRS, Eat Out to Help Out scheme and Suairess

25 rot dec ared for FY2C ror was sne beer declared for FY 21

Rares Relief and grants, and was confirmed as an ehgible ssuer under tne CCFF
- Rgntsized 313°F 3cos: tne entire pup estate and stresmy med the support furctior to rocuce the cost base

- Board snd Erecut..e Team memoers took a temperiry o'urtiry s ary rec.cton
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A downsde cane” assumes there will be three months of full lockdown in FY22, being Decernber 2021 through Lo February 2022, and a further three
maniths with severe restrictions akin to those experenced . October 2020, In FY23, there wil be one further month of severe restrictions in place ara

then from N\ay 2022 tmdmg will rosume i line with the base case

Under the “gowns.de case” without addiional miligating sction, the covenants on resnstatement in June 2022 through to December 2022 would be
breached. The Directers conader the significant reduction . sales madelled under this scenaro, which largely ceflects » repent of FY211n the second hall
ol the year, to be unhkely gver the continued suceessfulroll vt of Lhe vaccine. However, with the cont nued threat o varnts and the unknown impact
that these could have, this downside scansrio whilst sevara s plausible

Although the made! shows there would be adequate hiquidity headroem even under this scenano, the Directors would reed to seek waives for debr and
interest coverage coverusnts thit will be reinstated from Junc 2027 under the terrs of the loan extensions, The Directors are confident thatin this cave
it weld be possible to agree wawvers for these cavenanls with iLs tending banks (as has been the case n pror lockdown scenarios). In uddinior, the Group
could alse implement further mitigating actons before this point in ume compnsing deferring capital expenditure, further disposals of parts of the Group's
valuab'e freehold property estate and cost reductions such as redundancies Uis possible that the extent of these mitgating actions would negate the need

to get WANETS 1IN P‘dCE'

After due conaideratior of the matiers st out above, the Direeters are saLsficd that there 1s areasonatle expectation that the Group and Company
have adequate resources Lo continue In aperat onal exislerce for at least the going concern assessment penod to 27 December 2022 However, a5 the
downside scensrio shows that the covenants would be breachea when reinstated from June 2022 through to December 2027, withir the going concern
period, ard not all the mit gating actien- required Lo prevent this are within management’s control, there is a materal uncertanty that may cast doubt on
the Groups and Company s ability Lo continue a5 4 going concern The finanaial statements da not reflect any adjustrments that would be required to be
made, \Fthey were prepdared on 4 basis other thar the going concern basis,

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumpticns
The aress of estimation ard assumption which are consideraed to be significant in the preparation of the finarcial statements are as fallows

The Group detarmines whether geodwill s impaired on an annual basis and this requires an estimaticn of the value n use of the cash generating units
(*CGU") to which the goodwill 1s allocated. This imvolves estimation of future cash flows and choosing & sutable discount rate Full details are

supplied in note 13, together with an analysis of thase key sssumptions,

The Group reviews for impairment of all property, plant and equipment and right of-use assets at CGU level where there s any ndication
el imparment This requires an estimation of the value in use and im ol ves est'matior of future cash flows and choowing a suitable discount rate.
Sce note 13, which describes the assumptions used together with an analysis of tne key assumptions.

Measuremert of defined benefit persion cbligations requires estimation of future changes in inflation, as well ey martshty rates, the expectad return
on assets and the selection of a suitable discount rate, These have been determined on advice from the Greup's qualified acivary The estmates usea

and the key assumptions are provided in note 25,

The caleulation of lease habikties requires the Group ta determing an incremental borrowing rate ('IBR™) Lo discount future minimum lease
payments. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group woulda have ta pay Lo borrow over a similar Lerm, and with a similar secunty, the funds
necassary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in 4 sim lar economic ervironment The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation whenr na cbser vable rates arc avalable or when they need Lo be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease. A sensitinty analysis has been conducted on the lease lisbilities which shows that incredsing the discount rate by 1% wi'l
decrease the lease hability by £5.9 million and decrease the night-of- use avact by £6 0 mil'on. See note 17 for further details on leases.

Estimation s required to determine the expenditure that will result from a prosent legal abiigation areing from s past event. In the current year, the
Group have estmated the expected expendrture for alegal claim The Directors beliove the recagnised provision i relat.on ta this specific matter
reflects the best estimate of the most likely currert outcome at the reporting date, based on a probability weighting with a material range of
potentul cutcomes. The clum has stll ot been resolved at the dawe of sigring and any further details have nol been disclosed for serious

prejudicial reasans.
The areas of judgement which are conadered ta be signifizartir the preparstion of the finuncia statements arc as followy

In comcluding that there was a matenal uncertanty over gaing corcern tne Directors had to consider s number of possibic scenarios due to the
uncertanty of how the panderic will cantinue to impact the busness, They also needed 16 use Lnair judgemeant to assess the maosthike'y scenanc
ard the rrpact this weuid have on the zovenants ard the facilitios 1o gssess what the matermi unzerta'rty was, Re'er to going concern on page 96

for detals of the scenancs judged most likely
Judgemcm Is used to determine those stems, that should be iepirdtdy disclosed to a'low g better underst mdmg o the under\ymg erdlr\g

performance of the Graup The judgement includes assessment of whether an iter s of a nature that 1 not conwistert with normal trading
activities or of sufficiert size ar infrequency. Sec nete S for furthes details
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Centinued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Pelicies continued

Zudgement was required In assessing whetner o rent concessior given by the Group to 115 lessees constituted - lease modificat or o7 was covered by
the or gina' contract. The cantract needed to be assessed in [ignt of the circumstances that gave rise to the concession It was determmined that given
the Tenants could not legal.y use the premises the concession was permetted wthin the contract |t was therefare nat trested as a madification and
sproed over the lease term but instesd recognised in the financial year.

The Group has exercised signif cant aceounting estimation 4ana judgement in the recogniton of deferred tax habihties in respect of praperty, plant
and equipment. Significant accounting estimates and judgemants nclude those used to determing the amaunt of ret book value o property, plart
and 2quipment to whieh the initial recogn.tion exemption applies, the calzulat on of the Lex base an saie {which is subject to certain restnictions under
tax isw) and the oTserting of inherent losses against rherent gans where tax losses are expected Lo be utilised against future profits and gains.

Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of Fuller, Srith & Turrer PL.C. and the entities it contrels (its subsidisnies)
drawn up Tor the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2027 (2020: 52 weeks endcd 28 March 2020). Subsidisnes are corsol dated from the date of

therr acquisit on, beirg the date or wh ch the Group obtains cantrol, and continue to be conselidated until the date that such control censes.
Control comprises the power to d rect the relevant actwbies of the subsidiary which swgr\.Fuc.mUy affect the return of the subaidiary, 59 as te abtam
benefit from ity activit es, and 15 achicved through direct or indirzct ownership of voling nghts; currently exarcisable or convertible potential voting
rights; ar oy way of contractual agreement. Allintercompany balances and trarsactiens, incloding unrealised profits arising from them, are curminated.

Adoption of new standards and interpretations
The Greup applied for the first time certain standards and amendments, which sre effectre for snnus’ perieds beginming on or after 29 March
2C20. The Group kas not aarly adopted any other stardard, mterpretation or amendment that has been issaed but s nor yet effective.

- Amendmenis to IFRS 7 IFRS 9 and IAS 39 irterest Rate Benchmark Refarm

- Aracndments to 'AS ) and 'AS B Defimton of Maiorsl

- Amendmentste IFRS 3 Definition of 3 Business

- Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

- Cond 19 Rewiea Rent Concessions - Avendmeant 2o IFRS & - The amendmeat spples Lo annual reporting penods beginning on or afte
iJune 2020, Earher spotication s permitied The Group has elezied to not take the practical exped entand instead has treated ret concessions
recerod i ‘e:_]\e "ﬁOOl\: Cations

The Directars do not neheve the adoption of new standards has bad any significant impact on the amsunts reported in the financial stazements

Business combinations and geadwill

Business comp nations sre accourtec for under IFRS 3 Busincss Combinations uaing the ourchase rmetnod Any exceoss of the consideration

of the businass combinatior. over the Grouo's nterestn the not fair value of theidentfisble assets, hamlities and coantinger: Fabilit-es s recogrised
in the Balarce Sheat a5 goodwill and 1w nct amortred. To the extert tnat the net fair valae of the acqured enuty’'s ientifigble assots, Labil ties ana
contngent hisbilinies s greater tnar the cost of tho imvestmert, a gams recognised immediately in the Ircome Statemient,

Any cantngart cons derslion to be transferred by the. acgurer s wil. be recogrised at falr va'ue 4t the acqu&mon date Connngent considersuen
classified as equity -s not remeasured and ts subsequent scitiement 1s accounted for within equity. Corungent cons deration classified a4 an asset
or lisbility that s a inancial inst-ument and vatkin the scope of IFRS 9 Firancial Instruments 1s measured at fair value vath the changes in fair s3lue
recagnised inithe statement of prafit erloss in sccordance with IFRS 3 Orher cont ngent cons deratian that s na: withir the seope of IFRS 9

a maasured 4t fair value At cack reporting date with charges in farr vilue recs grisedin pl’Or torloss

Alerirnml recogrinor, gondal o stated 2t cost less any accumulstedimpair—ent osses, w th the carrying value baing rev ewed For impairment,
ateastannaal y and whene.er esenls o7 changes in ¢ rcursiances rdicate that the carrying v3lue = 1y be repared Anyimparment of gooansli
~ade cannat be rasersed 1If ¢ reumstances subsecuently change.

Fortne purps hmpwmem ‘tﬂc gowdal s i gested ta the relsiec CGUs lor growp of CGilod men tarea by management, Wnere the

ST EMan ity CarTyIng Amount, imclamrageadall ar ImE3Tment =5 5 recagrisec e the meame Statemears

gocow ' a'oe nad 1o 1 CGU s taken nigaccount whon cetermiming the gar =+ 1938 on dapzsaiof the ©
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Frechold buldings - Hotal sccommedation and offices Up to 50 years

Frechold buldings  Licensed retal property and unlicensed praperty 50 1o 100 years

Leaschold improvernents The term of the lease

Roofs From 10 1o 50 years

Plant, machinery and vehicles, containers, fixtures and ittings From three years up te 25 vears

As required under 1AS 16 Property, Plant ana Equ prrent, expected useful lives and res dual values are reviewed every year Land s not depreciated, Anitemn
of property, plant and equipment and amy, significant partinitally recogrised 1s derecagrised upor disposal (e L at the dute the recip ent abtains cortra) or
when no future economric benefits are expected fromits use or dissasal. Any gain or lass ansing on derecogniticn af the assat (caleulaled 3¢ the difference
between the net d spow\ p\'ocecd\: and thec Arrying amecurt of the asset) s included in the Inceme Suatement when the assctis derecogmscd

Government grants

Governmenit grants are not recognised until there s reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the cond-Liors attached ta them and that
the grants will be received. Gavernment grants are recegnised in profit arloss on a systematic basis aver the periods in which the Group recegnises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate, When the grant relates to an assel, it is recognised 4s ncome in equsl

amounts over the expected useful life of the related ssset.

Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (“CJRS")

Under this schame, HMRC will reimburse up Lo 80% of the wages of certan employees who have boen asked 1o stop working, but whe are being
kept on the payrol ("furloughed”) The scheme s designed Lo compensate for staff costs, so amourts receved dre recognisedin the Income
Ststerrent over the seme peried as the costs to which they relate In the Income Stalement payroll costs are shown net of grant income,

Eat Out to Help QOut
From 3 to 31 Acgust 2020, HMRC offered a 50% discount of foed and non alcokolic drinks, capped to C10 per person, when dining our between
Monday and Wednesday. Revenue includes ameunts re‘mbursed from HMRC in respect of the scheme.

Business rates
Susiressesin tne reial, hospitality and ieisure secters in Engand do not beve 1o pay business rates for the 2020 to 2027 tax year. No business rate
charge has therefore been recogmised . the lncome Statement for the pened ended 27 March 2021, Income relating Lo the business rate grants has

bean recogn sed n operating expenses n the Income Sratermort.

Covid Corparate Financing Focility (“CCFF”)

Commercizl Paperissued ta the Bunk of Englind at o favaurable yield -« deemed te constitute a governmert grart The debt has been recegrised
within current borrowings on the Balarce Sheet at far value, with the grant element, reflect ng the favourabie yield, recogrised as deferred ncome
within trade and other payables. Or amartisazion, the grant clerment has been recognised withie finance costs, conuistent with where the costis
racognised, as the Group’s pol.cy is to present the income as a deduction from the related expense.

Hive-up transaction
When 2 subsidiary transfers its business to ita parent immediately aflte- acquisit.on (hive -up transaction) the assets are transferred at market value
and the investment is raduced to reflect the net effect of & return of caoital in the form of the underlying net assels with any difference taken ro the

merger reserveg

Investment property

The Group owns properties that are not used for the sale of goods or services but are neld for capitai sppreciation or rental purposes.

These propertigs are classifiod s investment properties and their carrying va'ues are basved on costiess imparrment. Deprecration s calculated on
wstraight iine basis to write down the cost to the estimated residual value over the expectad uselul lfe of the asset, which far investment properties

s between SO ta 100 yaars,

Intangible assets

Intangib.e asnets acquired sepirately are measured onoritial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assels sequired in 4 busingss combination

i~ tneir farr value at the date of scquiaton Followang initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost loss any accumulated amortisatior and
accurnulated imparmert losses. nternally generated ruangbles, excludirg capitahsed development costs, dare nat cupiz shsed and the reiated
expendiure « reflected in prefit or loss in the period in which the expenditure 15 incurred. The useful lvas of intangible assets ara susessea s either

finite or indefirite

Intang ble asscts wtk fimite lves sre amort sed over the useful economic life ard asseossed Tor impa rment whenever there s snirdication that the
intangible ssset may be impaired The amortsatior perod and the amoruisation method for arintang ble awset vatk o finite useful ife are reviewed
atleast at the erd of cach reporung period
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cantinued

1. Authonsabion of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

Intangble assals with indelinite usefuilives are rol amortsed. but are tested fer imparmant annua'ly, either indiaduslly or a2 the CGU level
The asscssrment of 'ndefiriie he s reviewed annually to deterrming whether the indefin te e continues Lo be supportable. W not. the change
i wseful fe from indefinite to finite 1s made on 1 prospective basiy

Arintangible ssset s derecmgmscd upon dsposdl (e, at the date the rec'pient cbtains control) or when ro future econamic benefits are oxpected
from ts use ar dispasa’, Any gam or 105« arising upon darecognition of the assot {calculitaa as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the ¢ carrying amourt of the asset) s inzluded in the staterent of pmi’ torloss,

Research and development costs
Reuearch costs are expensad as ingurred Developrent experditures on onindividual project are recognised as an intangibie asset wher the Group

can demonstrate

- The techrical leasibility of completing the ntangible asset 5o that the asset will be avalsble for use or sale
s intertion to compfete and %5 db{f\ty nd niention Lo use or sell the auset
Haow the assel will generate future econcmic benefits

- The availability of resources to complete the asset

- The ablity Lo messure reliably the expenditure during deveicpment

Followng in.uad recogrition of the devclopment exporaiture as an asset. the asset s carnea at cost less any accumulated amartisat-on and
accurmulated imparment losses Amort.sauon of tha asset begins when developrment s camplete and the asset 13 avaiable for use and vell be
= &!
amartised over rhe period of expected future benclit. Amort sation s recorded in cparating costs. During the pericd of deveiopment, the asset.
,

15 tested far mpairmert annwually.

Impairment

Carryng salues are roviewed forimpareoent Feventsind.cate Lhat the carrying value of the asset may not be recavecaple. IT suck anindicatar

exists ard whera the carrying values exceed tne ealimated recoverabic amourt, the assets or CGUs are witien down to therr recover sble amounts
An aseet’s recoverabie amount s the greater of the Farr value less costs to sell, and the value in use, ir assesaing value In use, the estimated future
cash flovis urc discounied 1o present value using a pre i3x discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the ime value of money 1na
risks specif ¢ Lo tha ssset In determiring fair vaiue less costs of dispesal, recent market trarsactions are taken nte account. I no such transactions
canbe dentilied, sr aperopniate valustion model s used. For an asset tnat does not gerer e largely ndependent cashinflaws, the recoverable
armoart is determined for the smallest CGU to wnich the asset belongs

The Group pases 5 mmparment caculation on mest ~ecent manageent spproved pudgets and forecast ¢ sleuiators, which are prepuared separazely
for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the ma v dual assets are atocated Tnese budgets and ferecust caulitions generaliy cover a per od of two
years. Along term growtn rate s calculated and appicd to pregect Tuture cash Flows aftor the secand yeor

For assels exc'uding gocdwil, an assessmant s made gt cach reporaing date to detormine whethar there is an indication that pre nously recogrised
imparmert losses na longer exist or have decreased. IF sach ind.catior exists, the Group estimatas the ssset’s or CGLs recoverable smaumt, A previously
recogrised imoairment oss s ravarsed only f there hiss been a change in the assumptions sed to determing Lhe astet’s recoveranle ammount since the last
irparment loss wis rocopnised. The reversa s imited <o thal tne carry'ng smount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, rer exceed the

carrying amoont that would have been determired, net of depreciation, had no imparment loss been recegnised for the assetin prior years
Impa-ment [sses, ard any reversal of suchk [asses, are recogrised v the [ncome Statement

Leases
The Group assesses b contract inception whether a contracl s, or cartans, 2 lesse, Thst =0f the cortract conveys thar ght to control the Lse

f
of s adert Tion asser For 1peroc o” nme e excrange [or considersusn

Group as a lessee

be Gr:hp a0oles 3 single eccaninor 4nd ToasreTent App3 ach “or gl leases sscept for shori-terr cases ard sancs of aw . slue asecls
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b) Lease liabilities
At the commencement dae of the lease, the Group recogrises lease hablities measured at the present value of lesse payments to be made over the
lease term Tha lease payricnts include fixed payments less any lease incentives recevable, variab'e fease payments that depend on unindex or @ rate,

and amounts expected Lo be paid under residual value guarintees Vanable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recagnised
as expenses in the penod in which the cvent or condition that tnggers Lthe payment occurs. The fease payrment 4'sc includes the exarcise price of
a purchase option reqsendbly certain Lo be exercised by the Group and payment of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the

Group exercising the oplicn Lo Lerminate. Extensions ta leases are recognised when it is reasonably certain the option 15 going to be exeraised.

In calculating the present value of [ease payments, the Group uses itsincremiental borrowing rate at the 'ease commencament date because the nlerest rate
& :
imphcitin the lease s not readily determenable. The carmy g amount all lesse liab ities is remeasured il there s o madific 4t on, a chengein Lhe lease term

orachange n the lesse pay=nents (e g, changes ta future pryments resulung rom 3 change in an index or rate used to datermine such lease pay ments)
The Groups lease labilit es areincluded n Cash. Barrowings and Nat Debt Gee note 24),

c) Short-term leases and legses of fow-value assets

The Group apphes the shor: term lease recogntion exemption to its shorl term feases of equipment (e, thase leases that have a lease term

ol 12 months or less [rem the commencement date 4nd do not contain a purchase optior). It also applies the ledse of fow value assets recogmition
exernption to leases of alfice equipment that are corsidered to be low value Lease paymenrts on short-term leases and leases of tow -value assets

are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially alt the risks and rewiards incidental to ownership of an assel are classified as operating
lenses. Rental income ansing is accounted for on a straight Ine basis over the lease terms and s included in revenue nthe Income Statement

due to1ts operatng nature,

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Assets are elassified as held for sale when the carrying amount wil ke recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use
The critena lor heid For sale classification are regerded a5 mol or‘\y when the sa'e s Highly prcbab\e and the asscl or d‘gpowﬂ group s avallable for
immediate sale in its present condition, Actiens required Lo complete the sale should indicate that it s unlikely that sigrificant changes to the wale
will be made or that the decision ta sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the plan Lo sell the asset and the sale expected to
be completed within one year from the date of the classification.

Assets heald for sale are valued at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs Lo sell. Ne depreciation is charged whilst assels are

classificd as ha'd for sale.

Inaccordarce with IFRS 5 Non cuarrent Assets Held far Sale and Discontinued Qperdtloms, rosults for the discantinued operaticns are presented
separately in the Group’s Income Staterment. (for which the comparatives and related noles have been restated), Additional disclosures are provided
in note 21, All ather notes to the financial statements relude amounts for contiruing operations, unless indicated otherwise

Inventories

Inventories are stated ut the lawer of cost and net realisable value, Cost 1 caculated uairg the “lirstin first out” method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business fess esumiited costs of compretion and the costs to be incurred i marketng, selling
and distribution.

Financial instruments
Imitial recognition and derecognition

A financial instrument s sny contract that gives nse te a financia

awset of ene entty and a financial hablity or equity instrument of anotner entity,

Financiat assets and Ninancial labiities are recognised when the Group becomes 4 party Lo the contraciuat provisions of the financial nstrument.
Financm! gasel~ are derecogn sed when the contractual nghts to the cash llows from the firancial asser expire. or when the financial asset and
substartially all the risks and rewards are translerred A financial lisbility 15 derecogrised when it s extinguished, dise arged, carceled or expires

Financial assets

Recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classifred, at iminial recogrition, ds subscquemtfy measured at amiartised cast, fair valae thrcugh other comprehensive
income (COCT), and fair walue through prafit erlass The class-hication of Fmancial sssets ot inital recogrinon depends en the finarcial assot’s

contractua’ cash flow characrenstics and the Group's business model for managing ther With the exceptan of trade recarvakles that do nat
COntam slgn\f—icarw[ Fl'ﬁdﬂ(:mg corvpor‘emt or for wh ch the G'oup s apphed the prdc{‘c-ﬂ expedlent, the Group mwt\-i“y mredaures d finsncial assel
atits Fair value P|u’w, inthe case of a Fnancial asset not at far va'ue Lkrough proﬂt O 0sS, transashion Costs. Trade receivables that do rot contain

d ﬁ\gr‘irr cdant F\’Mﬂ\’.lﬁg comporent are meqssured at the transaction price n accardance with IFRS 15
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

1. Authorsation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued
There are tnree measurement categones nto which the Group class fes ity debrinstrumerts

= Arrortised cost, Assets that are hold For collection of contractual cash fiows, where those cash flows reoresent solely payments of principal and
mterest, are measurcd At umortieed cost Inzerast ncome from these finarcal assets s included in finance income uaing the efioctve interest rate
method Any gan or loss ansing on derecognition s recognised drectly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/{losses) together with foreiar
excharge gains and losses impairment losses are presentad as separate ine stemin the statement of profit or less The Group’s cash and cash
cquivalents, rade and other recavables fall irta this category

- Farvalue through OC! CFVOCI™): Assats thal are hed for collection of contractug! cash flows and far seling the finoncial assets, where the
asvets eash fiows represent solely payments of princpal and 'nteest, are messured at PV Movements in the carrying amaunt s takan
through OCi and will be recycled upon derecognition of the asset

- Farvalue througn profit or loss "FVPL™). Assets thit do not meet the critena for amortred cost or Far value through ©Clare measured at
FVEL A gam or toss on a debt investment that s subscguently measured at FVPL « recogrined in prafic ar loss ana presenred net wathin other
gans/losses) inthe peniod imwhich it arses.

Impairment

IERS 9% impairment requirements use more forward losking infarmanan to recognise expected credit lasses — the expected cred.tlass (ECLY
maodel Recogniten of credit losses 1 no ionger dependent on the Group first idernfying a creditloss event. Instead the Group considers & bradde-
range of information whon assessing credit sk srd measunng expecied credit losses. including past events, currert corditicns, reascnabic and

sapportable forecasts thut sffect the Turure cash flows of the mstrument,

When ASLESSING ITEA rment Farirade recovables, the Group has apphed the &Imp‘\Fde approach to expested croant losses as per RS9 Firancial
Irstrumens T he madel focuses on an appr isal of the sk that a recenvable will defallt rather thar wnether afoss bas beonineurred. This nechies an
unbiased assessment of a range of possibic outcormes and their prebabl bes of sccurrence. and v supported by past experience of collecting payments
as well as changes i ecanemic condiions that carrelats with default on recaivibles Expected credit losses are wnivally determined bused or the
Grouph histonic ol credit 'oss experience, any ferward (coking factors specific ta 1 particular trade recen sbie and the current sconomuc environment,

The uming of imiual recogrizion for impa rment losses is the same period thot tne assels recognised. Meverments i expected credit losses are
recogrrsed i the lncome Statement wathin cpemt‘r‘g costs. At the pount 2 srade recevalio s wotien of f tne \ejgef as unco”-:ctnbb, the cost

i> chargea ags mst the allowarce account and any subseguent receveries of amaurts previcusly written off are credited 1o the Incoma Statement.
I the Parent Corrpan,, arrounts due from sobsidiary undert skings are recogrised &t ther orgiral armount jess allewasnce “ar mpairment based
or the ECL mader. In determiring the madel the Corrpuny considers the net assals and ine resources available ko thal subsidiary

Financial liabilities

Recognition and measurement

Financial bablbities are class.Fied, stntial recogriton, as Dinsnom hao hoes st Far valug through profit or loss, loans 3nd borrawings, pay1Bies,
or a3 dorwatives designated as hedging nstruments in 2n effective bedge. 35 approprinie,

Al aanc 4t habilities are recognised imtaly ot fair vilue and, n tne case of loans snd borrowings ard payadies, net of drectly attributable
trdnsachion costs,

Tre Group's financil i lities include irade and ather payables, 'oars and borrow ras inclueng bark o.erdralts, der wative financil instruments
P Fay , g g )
and leasz b abdisies,

For purposes of subsequent measarement financis! abies sre classifizd intvo 2

Sflo ]

— Firancial lsbil tes at {30 alue through prefis e 'oss which are measured subsequertly at fair s2lue witk gars arlosses recogniseain tme

Inzome Ststament

- Uranc . abdites at amorticed 2ost {curs 4rd barrowngs) whezh are me tsured uvng tne efectie rie

Bank loans, overdrafts and debentures

lmrarest boanrg bark ioarms, ooecdralts ang d

1
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Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and firancial hsbilites sre offset and the net smount i reportco in the corsohdated statement of financial posuen i there s
a currently enforcenble legal nght to offset the recognised amounts and there s anirtention to settle on g net basis, ta realise the sssots and settie

the habilities simultanecusly

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Recognition and measurement

The Group uses interest rate sw.ips Lo hedge ity interest rate nsks, Such derative financiatinstramenits are mitially recogrised at farvailue on the date
orowhich a dernative contract w entered inte and are subsequent’y remeasured at far value Dervatives are carred as financial assets when the fair value

5 positive and as financial labinties when the fairvalaeis negate
For the purpose of hedpe arcrinting, hedges are claswiled as:

- Farrvalue hedpes when hedging the cxposure to changes i the fair value of 4 recognised asset or liabinty or an unrecognised firm commilment

- Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variaoihty in cash flows that s aither attributable to a particular sk associated wath a recognised
avset or lability or 3 Righly probable Torccast transaction or the foreign currency risk in sr unrecognised firm commitment

- Hedges of 3 net investmert in 4 foreigr operaticn.

At the mception of a hedge relationship, the Groun formally designates and documnents Lhe hedge relationship to which it wishes 1o apply hedge
accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.

The documentanion includes dentification of the hedgng instrument, the hedped item, the nature of the risk baing hedged and how the Group will

‘ gngns g g "eag » P
assess whether the hedging re'ationship meels the hedge effectiveness requirernents (includng the analysis of sources of hedge ineffoctiveness ard
haw the hedge rotio is deterrmned) A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounling f it reets all of the following effectiveness requiraments:

- There s “an economic relatonship” between the hedged item and the hadging instrurrent

- The effect of credit risk docs not “deminate the value changes” that result from that econamic relationship

- The nedge rutio of the Fedgirg relat.onship s the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged .tem that the Group szLually hedges
and e quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses te hedge that guantity of hedged item

FHedges that meet all the qualifying eriteria for hedge sccounting arc accounted for, as described below,

The Group has interes? rate swaps which are ¢lassified as cask flow hedges The effective partion of changas in the lair value of derivatives that

arc desgrated and gualfy as cash flow hedges s recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve within aquity The gain or loss relating to the neffectve
portion s recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other gains/{lasses) When s hedging instrurrent expires, or i seld or termingted, or wher
a hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge sccounting, any cumnulstive deferred gain or foss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported
m equity are immediately recizssihied to profitor loss 1 the hedaing reiationship ceases to meet the effectiveness conditions, hedging account'ng
5 discontinued and the related gain o loss 1s held in the equity reserve unnl the forecast transaction occurs

Classification of shares as debt or equity
When shares are issued, any componant that creates 4 Ninancial habiity of the Company or Group s preserted as a hablity in the Balance Sheet,
measured intially at fair value net of transaction costs and thercafter at amartised cost until extinguished on comversion or redemption.

The carrespanding dividends relating to the habilily componert are charged as interest expense 11 the Income Statement. The ininial fuir value of the
liability component is determined usng & market rate for an equivalent hiability without 4 cenversion feature.

The remainder of the preceeds on issue i sllocated to the equity component and included in sharchalders’ equity, net of transaction costs.
The carrying amount of the equity component s not remessured i subsequent years,

The Group‘s ordmary shares are classified as equity instrurments. For the purposes of the disclosures given in nole 29, tne Group consders its
capital to comprise ts ordinary share capital, share premiumn, capital redemprion reserve, hedging rescrve and accumulated retained esrrings plus
its preference shaces which are classified s o finsncst hability m the Baiance Sheet. There have been na changes to waat the Group conaders Lo

be capital since the prior year,
Preference shares

The Group's prefarence shares are reported under non current liebilities The cor-espandirg divideras on preference hares are churged ssinterest

ir the Inceme Statement. Preforerce share draidends are at fixed rates
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Conunued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued
REVE"UE
Revenuc s recogmsed under IFRS 15 upen appheavon of the following steps

- ldentfy the coniract with 7 customer

- ‘dentify the perfarmance obiigaticns in the contract

- Determine the transacuon price

- Allocate the transaction price to cach performance cbligation

- Recognise revenue when a performance obhigation 15 satstied by transfernng a promised good or ser vice to a customer.

Maraged Pubs and Hotels revenue primarnly zonsists ¢f foad, drink and accommedation siles. Food and drink revenue is recognised when controf
of the goodsiservices has transferred, kaing at the pant the customer purchasas the food or drink. The Group also takes bookings for events and
gocommadat.an whech require J deposit to secura tne bockrng, N contract H-:ibdrty for the depositis recognrsed at the trme of the sale The contract
Jrab*h{y 15 released and revenue iy recogm»ed G d 5tra¢gh: linc basis over the duratiop ol the room ozcupatlon or cvent, A coniract erbdny I

recogmised unpl the event s complate or the guest has sccupied the room

The GTOUP dlSD 24rns revenue througﬁ SE”W‘S dr‘r‘\k Lo lhc TenFJnLed |ﬂﬁ*} dlw\alﬁlof"‘ \Nhich 1% ﬁupp‘IEd to FAJHEW‘S by A‘;H]}‘H undcr '\’,He LOFg'TE'rrP SCTA,HCE
Agreement ("LTEA"). Revenue is recognised as though the Group is the prineipsl as it has prmary responsibilisy o.or the product and alsc bedrs the
NvenLory risk

Following the sale of the Fuller's Beer Busmess to Asabi Europe Lid, the Group enterad inte a TSA to prowide certain services to feclitile the
succassful separation of the two campanies The revenua s recognised o.er the pencd the services are prowded.

Revcrue s recogrsed under IFRS 16 wheve the Group recerves -ertal mcoma fram Temanted and unhicensed properties This s recogrised on a straight
line haws over the lease term, Sarme rontal -ncame includes turaover rant which s based on the percentage of the ncome generstad by that pub.

Thsis mecogrised when the -ovenue 5 earned. Resérue 1§ recogrised for machine meome wher nat Lakings are earned.

Borrowing costs

Borroving costs directly atlrbutable ta the scquistion o constructon of an asset thal takes a substanoal period of time to get ready For use are
cap Lalised o5 parl of the cost of the ussct bang created This i appled te dovelopment projects where the de.elopment is expected to last in excess
of s moanths ot the commencemant of the proect. All othar borrowing costs are expersed r the period n which they secur Borrawing cosis
consil of interasl and athe - costs that an entty incurs in zennectior wib the borrowing of funds

Separately disclosed items

The G‘Oup prosents as ﬁepd'(ﬂe‘y disclosed iters an the face of the income Statement those material toms of inceme and Blielalablsl whoch, Because
of the nature or expected nfroquenay of the everts gang rise 1o them, mant separata prasentation o ailow sharcholders to undarstand cetler the
clemants of financul performance in the year, 30 35 o faciitate comparisor with prior periods and to bettar assass trends in francia performance.
Separately dsclosed items are a key element used to demensirate the underlying perfarmance of the Group and reported as an slternatve
performangce megsure within the man sgement commentary for the reporting periad,

Share-based payments

The Group has ar errplayee Share Incentive Plan that swards shares 1o employces based on Lne reported prefits of the Group for the vear, and

3 Long Term Incentive Plan that awards snares to Directors and Seror Execut ves subject to specific performance enitera The Group also issues eguty-
settled share-based payments ta certan emplayees under approved and unaoproved sk are aption schemes snd + Savings Relsted Share Option Scheme

The cost of equiny-sett'ed transactions w th emp oyces s mamured by reference to the far value of the equity inslrurmarts at the date at which they
are granted ard » recagrised 25 a0 cxpense over the sesung penad, whizn @nds on the aate on whick the relesant empioyees become fu'ly enttied

tothe award. Fa- value s determined waing am aporapriste pricing madel In vawng equety-settled transacbors, ne decoartis taken of ary vesting

cordinans The Group has roequity-settled transacusrs thal are hneed 10 the erice oF Lne snares of the Company (market conditions]

No expensais recogr sod (37 qaards that donot 'umate 'y vest. At esck Birce Sreetagate perorevoseng, the carvuiain e cxpanag s 2aculstaa,

fL”*C’SEf"Uf‘g the extert b testmitea EHG aihe =17 oF Gthorwise ’37— AT mratrol

ik the vest g par 95 B s exgrcd 2nd ~iarag2miani s b
EF £ £

cérait ons ard of the pumber o egu by mstruments that will ultrm siely vest Tme mosementin cumuab.e axpenie s rie the pres gos Ba'ance Shest

darzisroccgased tne lrcome Statamont wtt g correspordng ortepar gguily

1rrepamaing s tancelea zrsetter anae, the zostea

: 5 oan ne ngna Losirgpat oz o 2ddiiar 10 expensz s recogn.eod oeet the rorma rder of
reeoLestrgoencd Forthorgromcntd far sddue of oo, mea cvior based o tre A ke ta- Lalueal e :f‘gr‘al aeird ara the Tar
w2t anara botk g measarac 2o tme date of the madi caton Nereductionisrecogs sse Trb adferorce s megatios




Where an cquity-settled award 15 cance'led Gneluding when 2 non-vesting condition witrin the contral of the entity or employee s not met),

it treated as if 1t had vested on the date of cancellstion, and any cost not yet recognised 1n the Income Stalement for the award s expensed
immediately. Any compensation paid up to the Tair value of the award at the cancellation or settlement date . deducted from equity, with uny
excass over fair value being treated as an expenie in the Income Statement,

Own shares
Shares to be awarded under erployec incentrve plans and these that have been awarded but have yet Lo vest uncanditionally are held at cost by
an employee share ownarship trust ("ESOT") and shown as a deduction from equity in the Balance Sheet. ESOT 15 an independently managed trust

and not controlled by the Group.

Ir aadition te the purchase of shares by the varous £50Ts for Spccvplc awards, Lthe Grcup also from tirme to time ATQUIres Qwn whoires to ba held
as o asury shdres. These shares are accasionally but not exclusvely used to satisty awards under varicus snare opt.on schemes. Treasury shares are

heid at cost ard showr as a deduction from tetal equity in the Balince Sheet

Consideration recaived for the sals of such shares v alse recagnised in equity, with any d-ffererce between the procends from sale and the ariginal
cost being taken to reserves. No gain or lass 15 recognised in the profit orloss o the purchase, sale, 1ssug or cancellation ol treasury shares

Taxation
Income tax expense reprascnts tne sum of Lhe Lax currently payable and deferred tux.

Current tax
The current tax payable s based on taxable profit for the year using UK tax rates enacted or substantive'y enacted at the Balance Sheet dste ana

any adjustrment Lo tax paysble in respect of prewvious years. Taxable prafit differs from net profit as reparted in the Income Statement because it
excludes tems of Income or expense that are taxaole ar deductible in sther years or are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tox

Deferred tax s recoprised an temporary differences at the Balarce Sheet date between the tax bases of assots and habiities and ther carryin
g perary ying

amounts for firancial report'ng purposes.

Deferred tax lsbiluies are recogrised for all taxable temperary differences. Doferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
carry forward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses. to the extent that 1Lis probable that taxabic profit will be avalable aganst which they can be utilised

Such deferred tox assets and habilities sre not recognised where the asset or iabilty anses from the iritial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
hability in 2 trarsaction that 1s act a business combinatior. and. at the tme of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabre

prefitarloss. The carrying amount of deferred tax awsels s reviewad at each Balance Sheet date

Deferred taxis rot recognised i respect of Laxable temperary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the trming of the
reversal of the termporary differences can be contralled and 't 15 prebabie that the temrparary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets ard habilities are of fset where there s g logally enforceable right to offser current tax assets ard habiiitios and where the deferred

tax balance relates to the same taxation entities,

Deferred tax assets and habilitics are medsured at the tax razes that are expected to apply in the peniads when the asset s realised o the habilty
15 settled, based on Lax rates and laws enacied or substantively enacted at the Balunce Sheet date

Current and deferred tox for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Income Statement excepl when they relate to items that are recogrised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income or in equity, in which case the current and deflcrred Lax are also recognised in the Statement of Comprehansive Income

or directly in equity respectivery.

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
Defined contribution schemes
Payments to defired contnbution retrement benalit schemes are charged Lo the Income Statermnent os they fall due.

Defined benefit schemes
The Group operated a defined benefit panaicr plan far eligible cmployees where contibutions were mage into a separate fund administered by
Trustess. The Scheme closad to future sccrualin Jaruary 2015

The cost of providing Gerefits under the defined benef it plan v determuned using the prejected unit credit method calzuinted by qualfied actuaries.
This attributes ent tlement to benefits to the curcent period {Lo deLermine curren: service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine
the presert value of defired benefit obligatian and s based or actuanal advice Past service costs are recognised n the Income Staterent an

astraight Lre basis over the vesting penod orimmediately if the bonef L have vosted.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Conunued

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies continued

When i settiermant [efim nating all obligstiors for benef1s aleady acerued) or a curtaiment {reducing future obfigations as @ result of 3 ratenial reductior
in the scheme mermbership or a reduction in fulure entitlement) occurs, the obligstion and related plan assets are remeasured using current actuarial
assumptions and the resultant gain or loss 15 recogrused inthe Income Statement during the perod in wh ch the settlement or curtadment occurs

The Group detormimas the net interast C‘WJrger’CQredrt) on the net defined benel fr-]b#rty-’(:isﬁet) for the perrod b\, .ippfying the discount rate used
to measure the definad bensfit sbligation at the begnnng of the period 1o the net pension Pabilityflisser) at the beginming of the period. The net
interast chargedleredit) is recognised immediately as a separately disclosed finanze cost/liricome) i the Income Statement Aciuanal gawrs and
lossas are recogrsed in full in the Statement of Camprehensive Income in the period in which they occur,

The defined bernef 1 ponyon as-et or habiity 10 the Balance Sheet Comprises tha to14! of the prevent salue of the defined benefi ob‘mgahon

{using a discount rate based on high quality corparate bonds), lews the fair value of plan sssats sut of which the obligatons are to ke settled directly
Fair value is based on market price information and in the case of quoted secunties is the published bid price The value of avet pension benef t asset
15 restnctad ta the sum of the present value of any amourt the Group expects 1o recover by way of refunds fram the plan or reductions i the

future contribut.ans

Foreign currencies
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recarded at the rotes of exchange ruling st the dares of the transactions. Manetary assets and
lizbil\ties are tramsiated at the ye 1 end exchange rstes and the resuluing exchange differerces are tiken te the Incorme Staternent.

Dividends
Dwidends recommended by the Board but unpaid at the year end are not recognised in the financig! staternents untl they a<e paid (in the cose
of the interi-r dividend) ar spprovad by shareholdars at the Anaual General Meeting U the case of the final dvdend)

The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
In s separate financias staterents, the Parent Company rECOERISEs IS INACSIMENt N Ly subsidhanies on the bass of 2ost less provision for mparment,

New standards and interpretations issued but not yet apphied
Tha IASB and IFRIC ba.e ssued the Fo/‘vowmg standards and interpretatiors wth on ef foctive date for periods starling on ar atter the date on which

theso financial stalerants starl

~ Amendmens 1o A 1 Claswficaron of nab iLey as current ard pon current Bffecove 1 Jansary 20233

- Reference 1o the Conceptusl Framewerk -Arrendmerts 1o IFRS 3 {effective 1 Januany 20227

- Property. Planl and Equiprnert Proceeds before irtended Use  Amendrments to [AS 16 (eflective T January 2022)

— IFRS 9 Fingraial Instruments Feesintne 10 per cent” tesi for deracagmt\oﬂ of Frarcisl Labihiies (eifective ! Jaruary 20220

DOther new standards and interpretaions i ssuc tut not yet effective arc nat apphicable to the Company and therefora ara not expecied to have
raienialimpact on the Group's finarcinl position and reaults.

2. Segmental Analysis
Operating Segments

Far management purposes, the Grcup's operaling segments arc,

- Managed Pups ard Hateis, which compriees managad pubs, maneged hotels, Bel & The Dragen and Catsnald inns & Hatels

- Teranted Irns, which comprises pubs sperated by tnird paruies under tenancy or le sse agreements.

The most mporisrt measers wsed to eva’uata the parlormance af tne busness 1y adwsted profit, which s tre profit before tax, adusted for weparately

ES
dizcineed items The aper 1Lif\€; 2gTronis are org,‘-rwged g rhansged sop -;r-?:tQiy accard na o the mature of the products and sar . cos pros ded, waith

od 1o ore reporiable

cach segment representing o sirategic opsratng unit. The Managed Pubs and Hoteis operatrg sogmerts Pa.c boer aggreg

Na.g v lar econgruc charactensncs, Seonamig ind Cators assessed n determining tnat the agaregaicd operating

v

Qgment o the hass

axpectad future f rancie! perform s sperating ard comoozine ki, ind reirt or Cap 1 As suzh

3

L= [P, . .
JaLDr ST LD i parsgragt 12 FES A Cper g 5-3@‘:5%@ f3merded; 4 s o' ihese segments arc

25 of it repart.
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Managed Tatal
Pubs and Tenanted continuing
Hotels Inns  Unallocated' operations
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 £m Em Em fm
Revenue o
Sale of goods and services 56.6 6.9 - 63.5
Accommedation income 59 - - 59
Total revenue from contracts with customers 62.5 6.9 - 69.4
Rentalincome 1.5 2.3 - 38
Revenue 64.0 9.2 - 73.2 £
Other income - - 0.2 0.2 3
Segment result _ (26.1 1.2 (15.4) (40.3) ?U
Operating separately disclosed items (14.8) 5
Operating loss {55.1) S‘.
Profit on disposal of propertics 5.8
Met financa costs (8.5)
Loss before income tax (57.8)
Other segment information
Addivons Lo property, plant & equipment 12.6 0.7 0.5 13.8
Depreciation T 247 18 0.7 272 g
Impairment of property, right-of-use assets, assets held for ~ale and goodwll 1.3 1.6 - 129 %
5
Managed Total 8
Pubs and Tenanted continuing
Hotels Inns Unallocated' operations

52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 fm fm fm fm
Revenue
Sale of goods and services o 261.5 21.7 - 283.2
Accommodation income 23.3 - - 23.3
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2848 1.7 - 306.5
Rental ncome 1.5 8.0 - 9.5
Revenue 286.3 29.7 - 316.0 J
Otherincome - - 3.7 3.7 ;
Segment result 30.6 .8 (15.4) 27.0 2
Operating separately disclosed items, (20.1) ‘—‘
Operating profit 6.9 ,?
Profit en disposal of properties 9.6 ;
Net finance costs (8.1
Profit before income tax 8.4
Other segment information o T
Additions to property, plant & cquipment 236 3.6 23.6 50.8
Business combinations 32.8 - - 32.8
Dcprocidt\on 24.8 2.0 0.1 26.9
Impairment of property, right of use assets and goodwill 14.4 0.7 - 15.1

1 Unallocated expenses represent primarily the salaries and costs of central management. Unallocated revenue represents Transitional Services Agreement (“TSA"} income
while unaflocated capital expenditure relates te the purchase of a new head office,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continucd

3. Revenue
Geographical Information
All of the Group’s business is within the UK ard therefore the Group enly has oz distinct geog aphical market,

52 weeks

ended

27 March
201 N
£m o

Revenue disclased in the Income Staternent is ana'ysed a5 foligws:

Sale of goods and services 63.5 283.2
Accormmodation income 5.9 23.3
Total revenue from contracts with customers €9.4 3065
Rental income 3.8 95
Revenue 73.2 316.0
Transitional Services Agreement revenue: 0.2 37
Qther income 0.2 37
Revenue and other incomne 73.4 319.7

1 Revenue includes £2.0 million receved from the Government under the Eat Cut to Help Out Scheme.
2 Following the sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business to Asahi Europe Ltd, the Group entered into a TSA te provide certain services to facilitate the successful separation of the
two companies. Thisincluded finance, IT and payroll services. The TSA was completed during the financial year on 27 April 2020.

4. Operating Costs

52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
im
Praduction casts and cost of gonds used ir retailing 19.4 802
mats - - _—_H a mao
-RTPEHTS and mamtenance - o ¥§—8? : ?3.677
Cepreciaton of propacty, plant and equipment L i 18.6 1865
Depreciston of nght-of Use 4sset - o 7 8.6 T 100
Rental expense relat ng to short term and ‘aw value leases 0.2 N
Ermbf& lease paymeants 0.9 1,?
Preperty costs 3.5 16.2
Uuhties 4.8 20
Sepirately disclosed items (note 5) o —‘W 201
IT. retail and communication casts 3.7 4.4
brc-Fexswor.Lil fee. 2.5
Pub operationsl costs 3.8 158
Tramng 0.2 2.0
Grant income- 4.7)
Other operating costs 34 87
128.5 23

1 Varable lease payments are dependent on turnover levels.
2 Grantincome is amounts received fram the Goverament to support businesses throughout the pandemic that were eligible depending on their rateable value.

Cotans 3t rooe and direct capen-esre alrg o rents! acame fram roastmerl Dranerles 2 ShCA M NCED 2
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a) Auditors’ Remuneration

52 weeks
ended
27 March
201
fm FRY
Fees payable to Company’s auditors.
- Statutory audit fees of Group financial staternents 0.4 0.3
0.4 03
w
Other audie related services of £1,650 for covenant reparting and ron aud't sery'ces of F1LEC0 for XBRL tagging wore also nuurnred in the o
prior period. ol
0
b} Employee Benefit Expenses' £y
ploy p 4
Em (_D\
anes and sularies " 316 957
Social security costs 5.8 70
Pensior berefits 1.7 2.0
Other staff costs 1.7 £3
40.8 1.0
1 Includes Executive Directars, Q
2 Includes share-based credit of EQ. 3 million (2020 expense £0.5 millien). %
3 Staffcosts are stated net of £41.2 million claimed from the Government through the CIRS. 3
5
¢) Average Number of Employees' =
The average monthly number o persens employed by the Group (ncluding oart-tirme staff) was 3 fallows:
Cantinuing aperations Number Noaracr
Pub, hotel and restaurant teams 4,046 4957
Support office” 173 209
4,219 5,165

! lIncludes Executive Directors.
2 Support officeincludes Finance, People, IT and other support staff.

d) Directors’' Emoluments
Full detalls are provided in the Directors’ Remuneration Report and tables on pages 56 to 78
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

5. Separately Disclosed ltems
The Group proserts separately disclosed 1ems on the face of the Incorme Statement for those mstenaliters of ncome and expense which, because
of the nature or expected infrequency of the cvents gving nse 1@ tnem, mar't separate presentation 1 allow sharcholders ta understand better tha

elements of financial performance in the year

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
£m Lo
Arounts included in operating (loss)/profit:
Acquisition costs - 1.4)
E{E&jm%’d("oﬁ casts a 1.9 (2n
Impairment of intangible aswets, properties ard night-of -use assets 12.9) (1513
IT mantenance, support snd rectification costs - 0.5
Total separately disclosed items included in operating {loss)/profit (14.8) 2on
Profit on disposal of properties 5.8 94
Separately disclosed finance costs:
Finance charge on net persion lsbil.ties (0.1 Q&
mcc crodit on the concellstion of interest rate swaps - . N - 01
Total separately disclosed finance costs [GR)] (G 9)
Total separately disclosed items before tax 9.1} (.0l
Exceptional tax:
Prafit on dispasal of properties o 7 - (0.2} (7.93
Orther iterms 09 39
Total separately disclosed tax 0.7 20
Total separately disclosed items (8.4) (9.0}

The reorgansaucr costs of £19 millien duning the 52 weoks enoed 27 March 2027 (28 March 2020 £21 millien) were largely ncurrad a5 a resull of
a corporate rear ganisatior of the Group, specifically the br.e up of the truce and assats of Bel & e Dragan and Cotswold nns & Hotels, ind redurdarcy

costs as a result af restrugtor rg due ta the corpravirus pandormic

The total imparment cha=ge of [12.9 m 'ton during the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 relaies to the wite down of 37 licersed propert es te ther
reconerable value (£9. 0 million relsting 1o property, p'i7t and equiprment and L1 & rulior to nght of-assers) as weli as the wite down i value of
prenously acquired goodw | recogrised on acquisition of Jacemb Guinpess Limited of £0.6 mullian, assets held for sale imparment o £0 2 mulion
and iease recoiwable mparment of £1.5 million (28 March 2020, £15 1 millien)

The profiz on disposal of properues of 5.8 m luon dur.ng the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 (28 March 2020 £5.6 millordrelstes 1o the drpesal of severs
hicensed and unl cemsed propert &5 (2020 three properyes)

The cashimpact of oper sing soparately d sclesea tams befare wx Far the 52 weess enced 27 Maren 2021 was 1.5 millon cash outflow, (253 March
2020 ESOmil oncash our™ o
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6. Finance Costs

52 weeks Ssove ks
ended ;
27 March b
201 R
fm e
Finance Income o
\_mc'rch incorne from finarcial assets - 0z
Finance Costs T
Interest expense drming on. - T _ W
Financial liabihties a7 amorticed rost lnans and debantoros (5.3) (53] ‘-__
Finanrcial hab lit.es at amortised cost - preference shares 0.1 on o3
Financial hablities at amorised cost - lease liabilities (3.0) (2.4] ?D
Total interest expense for financial Labilities (8.4) (78] _g
Total finance costs before separately disclosed items (8.4) (76) =
Finance charge on net pension liabilities (note 5) (0.1) (0.6)
Finance credit en cancellatien of interest rate swaps {note ) - 07
Total finance costs after separately disclosed items (8.5) (81
1 Interest expense on |oans and debentures s shown net of £0.6 million of grant income recogmised in relation to the CCFF,
7. Taxation o
Tax on Profit on Ordinary Activities é
52 weeks g
ended 2
27 March
201
Group Em
Tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement
Current Income tax o
Current tax on (loss)iprofits for the year (1.0} 08
Ad:ustments Tor current Lax on prior per.ods ] (0.5} 0.3
Total current income tax (credit)/expense (1.5 11
Deferred income tax:
Originauon and reversal of temporary differences 8.1 22
Change in corporation tax rate - 16
Adjustrments for current tux on prior pcriodsm B - 03
Total deferred tax (benefit)/expense (8.0 41
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Income Statement (9.6) 52
Anglysed as.
Before separately disclosed items (8.9 72
Separately disclosed items (0.7) (2.0
(9.6) 52
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

7. Taxation continued
Reconciliation of the Total Tax (Credit)/Charge

The tax credit in the Incorne Statement {or the year islower (20201 tax expense s h gharl thar the standard rate of corperaton tax in the UK of 19%

{2020.19%) The differences are recanciled below

52 weeks
ended
27 March
20
£tm e
{Loss)/profit from contiruing coeraticns before ncome tax (credit}fexpen-c (57.8) 8.4
Accounting (loss)profit multiphed by the UK standard rute of corporation tax of 19% (2020 19%) (11.0} 16
lterrs not deductible for tax purocses 19 16
Current and deferred tax lover)iunder provided in previous years (0.5) 20
Total tax [credited)/charged in the Income Statement (8.6) 5.2
Deferred tax relating to items (credited)/charged to the Inceme Statement
Deferrad tax depreciation (G.6) -
Unrealised copitsl Uosses)fgains (on PP&ED (0.4) 3.5
Retrement beneflit ohligations 1.6 06
Tax lomscs (7.4) -
Otber (0.1 E
Corperate interest restiction 1.2) T
Deferred tax in the Income Statement (8.1 A1
Tax relating ta items (credited)/charged ta the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Defarred tax
Viluation gans on financial habil ties 0.1 CA
Net aciuarnl (gansilasses or pensicn schere (0.2 1
Total tax (credited)/charged in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (0.1} 12
Tax relating to items charged diractly to equity
Deforred tax; ~
Share-based payments - c1
Total tax charged to equity - 01

12



Deferred Tax Provision

The deferred taxc rcluded in the Balance Sheet s as [cllows

Deferred tax

Zoefarao i asenty D sk,

Iy

B rmred

BISENIIDE

MOV\JO/\Q

NI Popme Tl -
- “l e . P b= 0
. ol - o s stiedeg s v
Group - £ o o~ e i i
Balances at 30 March 2019 61 06 0.3 c3 40 {16.6) Q2 a4 =t
(Chargelicredit to Incame Statement an on (3.2 3_? 0.2 “n c%
(Charge) to other comprehensive ncorme an - .0 - a2 ‘;
{Charge) teken directly to equity o1n - - - 0n =
Acquisitions o - - (3.3 - (33l i
Balances at 28 March 2020 08 0.6 03 0.2 O (231 35 a7 (13m0
{Cnargelicredit to Income Statement 4 7.4 - - 0.6 .4 123 1. 8.1
Creditilcharge] to other comprehensive o
Income G.2 - on o)
Charge taken directly to equity - - -
Disposals - (0.2} (0.5 04 - mnn (0.4] o
Balances at 27 March 2021 0.7 78 0.1 0.1 4.1 (22.3) 2.3 19 (5.3 %
3
1t Includes £1.2 milhon of corporate interest restriction. 5
2021 "
Em
Ceferred tax assets 17.0
Deferced tax liabilties (22.3) (2310
(5.3) (131]

Baroamesr as s Fap e
berctht  rared
Crngatians Zor et 1
Company i £
Balances at 31 March 2019 61 03
{Charge)icredit to Income Statement “@n -
{Charge) ta other comprehensive incoma 1
(Charge) taken dicectly to equity - (07 - -
Acquisitions - (2.8)
Balances at 28 March 2020 0.9 03 01 0.2 ER] (20.3)
(Chargel/credit to Income Staterment (04 74 0.6 04
{Charge) to other comprehensive income .2 - - on - ol 5
{(Charge) taken directly tc equity - - - - - %_
Acquisitions - - - 04)  2.4) (2.8) 5
Balances at 27 March 2021 0.7 77 0.1 0.1 41 (223) 2.3 19 (5.4) s
a
I Includes £1.2 million of corporate interest restrictien. g
2021 oo 5
Em r =
Deferred tax asscts 16.9 895
Deferred tax labil tios (22.3) {20.3)
(5.4) (10C.8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8. (Loss)/Earnings Per Share

Conlinued

52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021
Group Em ‘-
(Loss)profit attributable to equity shareholders (49.6) 1609
éoparateﬁy disclosed tems net of tax 93 (1208
Adjusted {loss)/earnings attributable to equity shareholders {40.3) 113
T This includes separately disclosed items ss per Note 5 and Note 21
Mumber S
Weighted average share capital $5,207,000 55724000
Dilutiee outstanaing options 4nd share gwards 139,000 128,C00
Diluted weighted average share capital 55,346,000 55252000
40p A and C ordinary share Pence .
Basic Uoss)edarnings per share (89.84) 29189
Diluted Uoss.ie irrings por share (89.84) 291 21
Adiusted (loss)iearnings per share (73.00 2030
Diluted sdjusted {oss)/earnings per share o (73.00) ZDE
4p*B ordinary share Pence e
Bawe (ssslizarn ngs per share (8.98) 2519
Diluted (ID;Q;’Qa'nmg'\ per share o (8.98) 2912
AdJus'.od (10\1::‘/’e‘1rr\mgs pe” chare B (7.30) 2 Of:
Cilured ad ustec (ows)/earmings per snere {7.30) 205
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2021 ;
Continuing aperations Em 0
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders (48.2) 32
Separately disclased tems net of tax 3.4 o 50
Adjusted (Joss)/earnings attributable to equity sharehclders (39.8) 12.2
Number NoamTan
Weighted average share capital 55,207,000 55124000
Dilutwe outstanding opticns 2nd share awards 139,000 128,000
Diluted weighted average share capital 55,346,000 55752000
40p ‘A and 'C" ordinary share Pence -
S amic Uosslizarnings per snare (87.31) 5.4
Druted {loeslieasn ~gsper share (87.31) 575
Adjustec Jossilesrrings porsnare (72.09) 2z TS_
Ciluted ad-wsted U'ass) aarmirgs ner snare (72.09) 2208
4p B ardinary share Pence -
Basc Usuainarrings per share (8.73) 05%
Ciluted Casslierrr ngs per shars (8.73) o=
Ad Lsted {ossiearn m g oer sk e (7.21} Z2
Drated adjusted Tossl ez rgs er share (7.21) 2
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For the purposes of caledlating the number of shares 1o be used above, ‘B shares have been trauted as ene terth of an A or 'Clshare The carmirgs
per share calculution i based on carnings from continung operations and on the WCIgl"Ied average ordinary share capital which excludes shares held

by Lrusts relating to employee share options ard shares held in treasury of 1,777,248 (2020.1,860,777)

Diluted carnings per share amounts are calculated usIng the same earnings rr\gur-:‘ as for basic e.jmiﬂg\' per Ehdre, divided by the wmghlod average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion

of all the dilutive potential ardinary shares into ordinary shares.

Adjusted earrings per share are calcu'aled or profit before tax excluding separately disclosed items and on the same weighted sverage ordinary
share capital as for the basic ind diluted earmings per share. Adjusted earn ngs per share measures have beer included 15 the Directors consider

that these measures better reflect the urderlving earnings of the Granp

9. Diwidends

52 weeks ended 7w

27 March
2001
£m
Declared and paid during the year
Equity draderds on ordinary shares:
Final divdend for 2020 Op (2019, 4 35p) - 24
Sccond interim dradend for 2020: Op (2019: 8.00p) - 7 - 4.4
Firstintenm dradend for 2021, 0p (2020 7 80p) - 473
‘D share single dividend for 2021: Op (2020, 125p] - 69.4
Equity dividends paid - 805
04 0.1

Dividends on cumulative preference shares (note 6)

The pence f.gures above are for the 40p A ardinary shares and 40p 'C ordinary shares. The 4p "B’ ordinary shares carry dividend rights of
one Lerth of those applicable to the 40p ‘A ardinary shares. Own shares held in the employee share trusts do net qualily lor dividends as the
Trustees have waved their nghts, Dividends are also not pard on cwn shares held as treasury shares.

As irdicated in the circular published on 28 March 2019 relat.ng to the disposal of the Fuller's Beer Business, the 3eard made an addivonal cash
return of £1.25 per 'A"and "Clordinary share and 12.5p per 'B' ordinary share through a "D shars scheme Each ordinary shareholder as at the record
date wasissued with ten ‘07 snares for every ox'sting N und 'C’ ordinary share and one ‘D’ share for cvery one *B' ardinary share held at the tirme.
Numis (acting as principal, and nat 4+ agent, nomince or Trustee for the Companyl made an of fer to purchase the ‘D shares for an armount of 12.5p
per ‘[ share (fres of all experses and commissians). The Company accepted the offer on behalf of sharcholders and paid @ single dividend to Numis
as holder of ail the ‘D7 shares of £69 4 million representing the sum of 12.5p per ‘D share plus the stamp duty payable by Numis n connection with
the purchase of all the ‘D’ shares inissue.

Following the approval of alf the resclutions presented to the Company’s Extraordinary Genera' Meeting on 1 October 2019, 552,030,154 D'
shares of 0.1p each were dllotted and 1ssued to sharchelders on 2 October 2019 on the basis af ten "D shares for every exsung ‘A'and ‘Cordinary
share of 40p each and ane ‘D’ share for every exsting 'B' erdinary share of 4p each held at the record date. Following the purchase by Nurmis of 4l
of the ‘D" shares, snd payment by the Campary of a single dividend to Nuris of £69.4 millisn as holder of alt of the D shares or / October 2019,
the ‘D shares wera reclassif od as deferred shares of O.1p and were mmediately repurchased and cancetled by the Company on 8 Octeher 2019

No final dividend for 2021 has been proposed for approval at the Annua' General Meeting as a result of the business being clesed for the majonity
of the 52 week period ended 27 March 2021 due to the continued impsct of the coronavirus pandemic,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

10. Intangible Assets

Continuad

sl

.
Cost
At 30 March 2019 2972 131 - 423 131
Acguisitions {note 18) 26 - 26 26
Transfer to right-of use sssets (nate 17] - (3.1 - asn 13y
At 28 March 2020 3.8 - 31.8 26
Additons - - 06 08 0.6
Hive up of Bel & The Dragon - 1.0
At 27 March 2021 31.8 - 0.6 324 4.2
Amortisation and impairment
At 30 March 209 06 48 54 48
impatrmient durng the year 7 - 37
Trarsfer to nght of use awets lhote 17) 48 - 48 o 4.8
At 28 March 2020 4.3 - 473 -
Prowded dur.ng the year
Imparment o 8] - 0.8 T 0.2
At 27 March 2021 5.1 - - 5.1 0.2
Net book value at 27 March 2021 26.7 - 0.6 27.3 4.0
Net book valueg at 28 March 2020 275 - 275 26
Net baok vaue at 30 March 2019 286 83 365 23

The Compary balance compases £3 4 milion of geedw | and 0.6 ~ikion of desclopment costs Imparment o7 £0 8 mill'on relotes toirp srment

of £0.6 7illon of gooovall on Jacamt Guiness Limited to its recoverab'e value and an agjustment te gacdwill or acquiition of Cotswold lans &

Hotels of £0.2 mullion

Development costs

Development costs relste to the implementation of 2 new finance sy stem and are made uo o icerce casts. consulting bire ard internal employes

costs, Amornsation of the asset will begin when development i« complete and the assat s avalable for use.

Goodwill
2021 2l

Managed Tenanted Total
Goodwiil is alfocated ta CGUs as follows: tm fm fm
Gales oslate 9.1 13.6 22.7 227
dazorb Guimness eslate 0.6 . 0.6 2
Bel & Tre Dragom 1.0 - 1.0 o]
Cotsae o lrrs & Hooals o 2.4 e 2.4 2

13.1 13.6 26.7 5
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment

ool s

od g 1
Group o '
Cost
At 30 March 2015 534.C 62 156.6 £96.8
Addiions 360 0.3 15.4 517
Acquiaitions (note 18) 422 2] 4473
Disposals (22 - 5o (7.2
Tramsfer to investment property (note 12) 02 - 0.2)
Transfer to assets held for sa'e (note 22) o 22 - (0.2 {(z24)
At 28 March 2020 6076 65 1689 7830
Additions 0.6 132 13.8
Crsposals (1.7) - (0.6 23
Dlﬁpo%d\x of discontinued operations {£.8) o (78] (145}
Transfer Lo assets held for sale (noze 22) o2 on (2.33 (11.6)
At 27 March 2021 590.5 6.3 171.6 768.4
Depreciation and impairment
At 30 March 2019 397 13 1031 1441
Provded duning the year 3.8 05 136 179
Disposals (c.7] - (4.43 (51
frmpairment loss 8.5 - a1 8.5
Trarsfer to assets held for sa'e (note 22) (a0 - Koh)! (0.5
At 28 March 2020 5.2 18 123 163.3
Pravided during the year 46 - 14.0 186
Lisposals } 0.2) 0.6) (0.8
Disposals of discontinued operations 47 - 58 (10 5;
Impairment loss 9.0 - 9.0
Transfer Lo assets held for sale {nowe 227 (1.3 on (12) (3.0
Reclassificauon of imparment te night-of-use assets (note 17) (0 4) - (0.4)
At 27 March 2021 58.5 1.7 118.0 178.2
Net book value at 27 March 2021 532.0 4.6 53.6 590.2
Mot book value at 28 March 2020 5564 47 56.6 6177
Net book value at 30 March 2019 494.3 49 535 552.7
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11. Property, Plant and Equipment continued

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

ol

Company .

Cost

A 30 March 2019 5055 1479 658.3

Addivans Pl 165 909

Azguisitions - 37 S *?
Disposals (20 49 ¥49)]
Transfer to invastrment property (mote 12) : 0.2) - (0.2)
Transfer to assets held far sale (note 223 (2.2) (OB (2.4)
At 28 March 2020 5791 4 159.3 7433

Additions’ 18.9 RER 337

Disposals 08 08 (24
Transfer Lo avseLs held for e (note 22) ICE EE )
At 27 March 2021 587.0 171.2 763.0

Depreciati‘oﬂ and Empa:rment T -
A 30 March 2019 326 96.3 131.5

Provided durng the year 3.2 126 158

Disposals ()] 4 3] (500
imparrment loss net of reversals g 3 o o1 - 74

Trarsfer to assats nald for sale (note 227 on on 0.2;
At 28 March 2020 423 048 143 5

Provided during the year AG 138 184

Disposals ez 0.5 0.7
'Tmpanrment loss %.0 - 90
Teansfer to avsets held for sale (rote 22) B (‘.CT} i 9; 307
Reclassfication of mparment 1o night-of use assets (note 17) 04 - (0.4)
At 27 March 2021 54.3 116.0 172.8

Net book value at 27 March 2021 532.7 552  590.2
MNet book value at 28 March 2020 536 8 54 7 5538

Net book vaiue at 30 March 2019 4729 516 5268

1 On 6 June 2020, the net assets of Bel & The Dragon of £19.9 million were hived up to the Company at fair value.



12, Investrment Properties

Cost at 31 March 2019

Transter from property, plant and equipment

Cost at 28 March 2020 57
Transfer to asset held for sale (2.4)
At 27 March 2021 33
Depreciation and impairment at 30 March 2019 and 28 March 2020 0%
Provided during the year

Transfer to asset held for sale (07)
At 27 March 2021 0.2
Net book value at 27 March 2021 - - 31
Net book value at 28 March 2020 4.8
Net book value at 30 March 2019 46
Fair value at 27 March 2021 15.0
Fair value at 28 March 2020 201
Fairvaluc at 30 March 2019 15.4

The far value of investment properties has been estmated by the Directors, based on the rental income eurned on the preperties during the year
and average y\e\d\ eqrned on comparable properties from pub|=c|y available information, which s 4 Lovel 3 fair value vsluation Lechniquc,

Anindeperdent vsluation of the properties has not beer performed.

Impairment

The Group corwiders each trading cutlet to be a CGU and each CGLY is reviewed annuilly for indicators ef mpairment In assessing whether an asset has
beerimpared, the carrying armount of the CGU s compared toits recoverable amount. The recoverable ammount i< the tugher of its fair value less costs
ta sell and ity value in use. During the 52 waeks erded 27 March 2021, the Group did not impdir any imvestment properties (2020 Enif).

Management have deterrmined that the highest and best use of the proparty s its current use
Investment Property Income

Tre properties are let on both landlord and Tenart repaining leases. Amounts recognised in the profit for the financisl year relating to rental income

from investment propertics arc as {ollows:

2021 Zli
Group and Company Em Cey
Rental income 0.7 05
Direct nperating expenses (0.1) (0.3)

All direct operating expenses re'ate Lo propertios that generate rentalincome.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

13. Impairment
Durmg the year, Imparment 1o sses of E10F rrellion £2020 €139 millior] were recogmsed wilhin ':ep&fﬁmiy dieclosed temy

021
Group fm
Impairment losses
Inangble assers 06 37
Proparty, plant and equlpme—;—;—; S ﬁ. 56
Right of use assers 1.6 66
Assats held for sale o T o 0.2
Lease recevable 1.5
Total riet impairment charge 129 189
2021
Company Em L
impairment fosses
Property, plant and equipment 2.0 74
Right-of-uve assets T 0.7 4.1
Assels held for sale o ) 0.2
Lease receivabie N T 1.5
Imvestments in subsid anies o 6.9 ]—ET
Total net impairment charge 18.3 155

1 Investrments in subsidianss in F Y21 was impaired on hive up of Bel & The Dragcn and was recogrised through the merger reserve.

Lease recon thles huee been avsessed forimparment under IFRS 9 All arher sssets abose were assessad for mpairment under (A5 38

Property, Plant and Equipment and Right-of-use Assets

Tne Group cong ders 2 sch trading outlei to be « CGU and each CGU s reviewed annually for naicators of imoairment. [m acsessing whather an
gssct hss boor lﬂijWEdj the CArry g Amount af the CGUL s \:ﬁmpdred toits recoverdble amount. The recaverable smount i the nghe’ aFits fair
value lews costs 1o sell PFVLCS" ) and s walue nouse inthe absence of any irfermaot.or sbaut the Far wslue of 3 TGU, the recovershle smount

15 deemed to be s value nuse For the purposes of estimating tne value in wse of TGUs management have used a dscounied cash flow approach.
The caleulations use cush flow proectians based on the following plans cavening a fiie year perind.

The 2021722 forezast shows that irading will cantinue to be adversely impacied by the coransy rus pandermic, intarnstiondl sales are forecsst to be down
by 75% and corparate sales dowm by 457 as people ey slawly slart toretarn to work It also assumes tnat consumer confaerce wil Lake 3 while Lo return,

impacting sales with a reducton of 5% i Hand 2 5% in 2

The 2022/23 forecast shows some growtn but this will -emain a'fected by the Lsting impact of the pandermie internatioral <sles w il be down by 15% and
corporate sd'es down by 20% a5 the oxpecial on s that peeple will work from nome more regular’y 1ts ther sssumed that rormal trad.ng wal' resome in
P ¥ pecp g ¥ g

2023124, o takeng twa years to U’y recover fram the pandernic

Otnerkey assumpt ons used by rmanggermentin the w5'ue inuse calculatons ware as

- Theancaunt rate s bases on the Groups weoghied average cost of caprdl which s used acrois 8 CGlLs duc to thair simia- charactar sties
Theore tax dirount rae s 6.9%,
- Adorg-term growih e

o

25t fipws subsequent to tne 2022/23 suage:r

=

TSe S TRASE 3SR TLC D the asLmibtiers rrespect of achieiemen va grovch e ard dicourtrate,

s wsc Jeso~dert on tne s margn pmaraged premsas barrelage and rery

Srearcsic.e’s The KOy 135Urininns

2] snbisior o' pe

oy Brass T

wrawledge sed ratoncd infzerat or Goserreo 2f MAT raducs onmd

Viroreire siLe.ruse shigner thim tae ZATy g aTourt st tre TG, e further s T reau
I

thoaetuatonof the croperty perfarnea o 2e

mreame =TS

Lo lamd gt sk ZF'MFG"m

of ferzcant 25 70A Inanumber o7 ooy, tne calue of tho property dered purel, from or income
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approach understates the underly ng property value. In these cases the oxpert has spphed s <pot value to the property rathes than g value derved
fram a multiple uppled to the ncarme The Group bas alo obtaned valuations for 4 subset of these CGUs from s third party property valuation expert
The far value valuat'on technique 1s Level 3 as it used an unobservable far value input.

Impairments are recognised where the property valuation s also lower than the CGU's carrying value for those deterrrimed to be at nsk of
imparment. This 1s measured us the difference between the carrying value and the higher of FVLCS ard its value in use. Where the praperty

valuation exceeds the carrying value, no impairment s required

During the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2023, the Group racogrised an imparrmant foss of £9.0 million (2020 £8 & mulien) on property, plant and
cquipment and L1.€ million (2020 £6 & millen] of imparment on right of -use assets n respect of the write down of a nurmber of licersed properties
where therr asset values exceeded the fugher of Far value loss costs 1o seil or their value n use. The imparment Insses wera driven prinupally by changes
ir the local competitive environment in which the pubs dre situated as weil os the S\gmﬂcant impact coronavirus wiil continue Lo have on these pubs.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
The value 1n use ca'culations are sensitive to the assurmptions used, The Directors consider o mevement of 1.5% in the discount rate and 0.5% in tre
growth rote to be ressondable with reference to current market yield curves and the current econamic condinians. The impact is set out as follows

2021 PN
Impact an impairment of assets at risk - increase/(decrease) £m e
Increase discount rate by 15% 22.3 13.6
Decrease dscount rate by 1.5% (13.6) (245)
Increase growth rate by 0.5% 5.9 (G
Decrease growth rate by 0.5% o 7.0 50

The increase in discourt rate and decrease in growth rte would lead Lo tne CGUs represented by the vaue sbove being subject o further review
by the Group The value in use calcutstion 1= also sensitive to vaniations in the budgeted cash flows, which represents the rate of recovery from
coronavirus. Applying the ‘downside case’ cashfiow forecast, as discussed in the going concern drsclosure within Note 1, te the value in use
calculavon results in an increase to impairment by £2 8 million. The CGUs represented by the "mpact en impairment of assets at risk™ would have
their FVLCS determined in order to conclude on whelher amimpair rent is required. A general decrease in praparty vaiues across the portfols
would have a similar effect to that set out above 1e any reduction in praperty values would lead to assets being at ask of imparrment In the current
year, a decrease of 5% in the FVLCS would have led to an addibonal impairrrent of £1.2 million for the CGUs where recoverable armount bas beer
assessed on FVi CS.

Goodwill

Gaoodwill acquired through business combinations hus been allocatad for imparment testing on an estate and divisional CGU level. This represents
the lowest level within the Graup at which goodwill ts moniLored for internal management purposes. An uralysis of goodwill by operating segment

is included within note 10 Recoverable amount 1s based on a calculation of value n use based upen the same cashflows a5 discussed under property,
plant and equipment. Cash flows beyond Lhe oudget peried are extrapolated in perpetuity on the assumption that the growth rate does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the celevant markets The same assumptions to calculate the velue in use are used for goodwill as those for
property, plant and equipment

Dunng the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2021, the Group recognised amimpairment logs of £0O.6 millionin relation to Jacomb Guinness Limited as the
recoverable amount being the va'ue in use for these pubs of £0 & milhon could not support the carrying value.

Sensitivity to Changes in Assumptions
Managerent have considered reasonsble changes in key assumptions used in thewr calculations of value in use Anincrease of 1% in discount rate
would increase the impairment by E0.6 million. A decrease in growth rate oy 0.5% would increase the impairment by £0.6 mllion

Investment Property
The Group conaiders each trading cutlet to be a CGU ard each TGU s revewed annually for indicators of imrparment. Duning the 52 weeks ended
27 March 2021, the Group did not IMp-r any investment properlics (2020 Eril) Refer to note 12,

14. Other Financiat Liabilities

Group s Company iy

2021 RSP 2021 PRV

Group and Company £m e £m e
Interest rate swaps (0.7) (11 0.7} (i
Total financial liabilities within non-current liabilities (0.7} nn {0.7) nn

Cetars of the interest rate swaps are provided in note 28¢ (1)

121

ME}\AJOAO

uodoy oidoteng

DZ)LJPUJDAOE)

>
Qo
0
=
5]
]
=N
>
)
o
=
2
=
o
3



15, Other Non-Current Assets

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

202

Group and Company £m
Loans to customers due after one year - Ot
16, Investments in Subsidaries
Company - e
At 30 March 2019 1225 2 1223
Adduions - e 304 - 304
Retura of capital (13.3) (i3.3)
Dispasals - (130 - (30)
Impairment - 4.0y (40
At 28 March 2020 1266 a2 122.4
Return af capial (1)) 69 0275
Dispos s T e @ 4 0.4
At 27 March 2021 120.8 (1.5) 109.3
Principal subsidiary undertakings Hoiding Propertion hetd Natyre of business
Criflin Cdtermg Services Limited Eiordinary shares 120% Ondirect) Mannged houses service company
Gecrgo Gale & Company Lirnited Elordinary shares 106% Nom trading subsidiary

750 N ordiary sharos 100% o

£10 preference shares 100%
FST Trustees Limited {1 ardinary shares S 10C% Non trading subsidiary o
Fuller Srth & Turner Ectatos Limited £'ardinary shares 100% Non-trading subsiaary
mgwccd Lirited ET ardirary shares - 100% - Mon trading subsidiary o N
Griifin Inns Lem ted Olordinary shares  100% T Non wvadngoudiary T
Jacamb Guirrews Limited Eiordinary shares 1C0% Nan trading subsidary
45 Woodfield Limited - TTardinary shares 0o (ndroct] Non-trading subsidiary T
Grand Canal Trading Lienited £l ordinary shares 100% Undirect]) Non-trading subsidiary
BED Country Ins | Limitad Liordinary shares o 100% Holding cormpany
B&D Country nns il Limitad Elordinary shares T 00k Helding company
BAD (Cackham] Limited {1 oramary shares 100% Lrdirect) Non trading subsidiary
BAD (Farnham) Limited £ ordinary shares i 100% (md‘recﬂ—_k Non trading subsiciary o
B&D (Kingsclere] Limitad E1ordimary shares 100% Ondrect) Non tradimg subydiary
BED {Cdinam} Limited Bl ordinary sharas 100% Lrdirect] MNon-trading subsidiary

320 "Readingl Lim.tea
B&D (Win) Lirntad

£ ordinary shares 1C0%

(indirect)

Non-trading sucuduary

R5= 200 L tad

Caotswong 'nns & Hotels Limuted

{irdiract)

Nor-tradieg subsidiary

Hold'rg company

E1ord mary shares 1007
Y ordinary sharas 103%
Evardirary shares AT

(imdirect)

Hotel and restsurart owrersnip

erate i England ara Vis'es Treregatered offze af i subs diary companies s the same s Fuler,

e 3NN

trard on the Green, London, England, ¥
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7. Leases
T#is note provides information fer leases where the Group 15 a lessee For lesses whare the Group 1s a lessor, see note 31

a) Amounts Recognised in the Balance Sheet

Group Company

201 2021
Group and Company Em Lo Em
Right-of-use assets L L
properlwes e 81.3 1251 30.8 34.7
Equipment ) ) 0.2 0.8 0.2 0.8 o
Vehicles 0.4 11 0.4 Al 5

81.9 107.0 81.4 565 B
Lease liabilities s
Current 6.7 8.9 6.5 79 éj
Non current 83.2 1040 81.8 1.7 ]

89.9 129 88.3 296 -
Setout below are the currying smounts of right of use assels recagnived and the movements during the period:

e, [y SRR ,

Group Lo o o
Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 1051 11 0.8 1070
Additions 2.6 - - 26 o)
Leﬁf\e ameﬂdmer‘t‘: = rent Concessiens (TOOJ - - 130) %
Lease amendmerts  other! 13 (0.4) 01 10 =
Disposal _ (81 R
Depreciation (76) {0.3) 0.7y (8.6) -
|mP.J|rment - transferred from property, p\amt and equipment {04 - (0.0
Impairment (1.6) - - 06
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 81.3 0.4 0.2 81.9
Company Luév-‘r‘ ’ L' o L\r :i
Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 947 11 0.8 266
Additiors 2.6 - 258
Lease amendments - rent concessions (9.0] - - (9.0] 3
Lease amerdments  other’ 13 wa 01 1.0 ?
Disposals (04 - - (0.4) ;
Depreciation _ (73 03 on (8.3) _
\mpa\rment - Er;]rlaFerred from praperty, olant and squipment (0.4) - (0.4) d
Impairment 0.7 - - o7 ;
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 80.8 0.4 0.2 81.4 i

1 Lease amendments include lease terminations, madifications. reassessments and extensions to existing lease agreements.

o
o
=
[a)
=l
=
o
2
3
=
-
o
3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Contnuad

17, Leases continued
Set out below are the carrying smaunts of lease habihves (nzluded under nierest bearng loans and borrowings) and the movernents dunng the period

Sk

ERv

Net carrying value as at 28 March 2020 1125 99.6
Mdditions o o 28 26
_%ﬂs&ﬂ (10.5) -
Leasc amendments — rent concession, - ooy B
Logse amandmants - ather 10 1.0
Accreton of interast 34 30
Payments (5.2) (3.9)
Net carrying value as at 27 March 2021 §9.9 88.3
A rmatunty analysis of gross loase lability payments s incluged within note 78
b) Amounts Recognised in the Income Statement
52 weeks
ended
27 March
2071 .
Group £m
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
Froperties o - o 7.6 38
Equipment 0.7 0¢
Vehicles 0.3 Q.2
8.6 10.6
Interest oxponse {rcided in Minance cost) 3.0 27
CxpEnse rabt@ﬁarl term 'eases and low -value assets [nciuded m—o__;rang Costa) 0.2 08
Expense relaung to vanablz lease paymerts rot included inicass labilvies Crefuded in operating Conto) C.g 2C
impairment cfrwgh;ﬂ L5 A%SChY 1.6 56
Income fram sub-leasing right-of use assers - {05}
5.7 b6

The Graup's total casm outfows for leases in 232 were £9.3 millien (2020 £11.2 milliorl,

Wariaple lesse payrrents

Same property leases contain sarigbla payment tarms thot are linked te sales genorated from a pub. Vanable payment terms are used for 4 variety

cof reasons. mciuding minimining the fixed costs base for newly establishied pubs Varablelease paymenty that deperd or sales arc recogrisea

prefitor [oes mthe pericd im whizh the cord tion shat trigges tnese payments occurs. Vanakle lease payments recogn sed in the Income Stuement
20 O

N the year ended 27 March 2020 were £E0 G malror (2020 £2 0 millon
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18. Business Combinations
During the 52 weers ended 27 March 202", there were no buwiness combinatians.

During the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2020, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of Catswald Inns & Hoteh for tatdl conmderation

of £30.4 million, a business incorporaled in the UK and consisting of seven premium hotels and two bars The acquisition was completed on

31 Oclober 2019, A further pub was baught for £3.7 million and treated as o business combiration as 1t was operating as a business at the peint
the Company acquired it

2021 L
Pubsand -t g1 ] w
Restaurant Lo RN -
Number of pubs/hotels/restaurants purchased - 9 1 og
=
Fair valus m ‘a 3
Met assets acquired - 280 37 -
Goodwll - 24
Total consideration paid - 304 37
Net outflow of cash
Cash consideration paid - 304 27
Cash ard cash cquwvalents acquired - .3 - g
Net cash outflow from investing activities - 291 37 g
Repayment of third party lzans on acquisition - o3| _ %
Net cash outflow from Financing activities' - B4 °
Net cash outflow in respect of purchase of businesses - 375 37

1 Included within repayment of bank foans in the Group cash flow statement.

19. Inventories

Graup Company Zorr
2021 200
Graup and Company Em Em .
Stock at pubs and hotels 2.1 2.1 35

Amounts recognised in prof tor loss
Inventories recognised as an experse during the year ended 27 March 2021 amounted to £15. 8 rmillion (2020: £66.4 million). These were included
inoperaung costs, Inventory s stated net of a provision for obsclete stock of £0.3 milion (2020: £C 4 millan),

20. Trade and Other Recevables

2021 ERR
Group tm Cr
Trade recewvablas 24 2.4
Other recevables 6.6 72
Frepayments and accrued income 2.8 3.0
1.5 126 g
o
2021 Sl 3
Company Em s =
a
Trade recewabies 21 z24 g
Amounts due from subsid ary undertacngs - 75 z
Other recevab'es 6.5 6.7 g
Prepayments and accrued income 2.8 28
1.4 19.4
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20. Trade and Other Recevables continued

A5 at 28 March 2020, Lhe Company amounts owed fram subsidiary undertakings of E7.5 mllon had ro fxed repayment date Interest vas payable
on the balance at the higher of either the Bank of Englana base rate pius 3% or 8% Duning the year the subsidianies that owed the Company
amounzs were hived up into the Company and as part of the restrucluring the intarcompany balances were settled,

A ar 27 Moreh 2021, the Group has accrusd £4 O rilior (2020, E0 9 rrillion), shown in other recevables, i relation to the CIRS Alsainciuded in other
recevatles s F0.8 milhon (2020: £2.7 million) of 2 sse recaivable for subieases £1% million of lease recerabie was impored during the ye o based on the
expected cradit loss madel and recorded in separately disciosed items gien s ane off nature.

The trade recamvables balince above is shown net of the ‘oss aliowsnze. The Group and Compnny proqade aganst Lrade receivables based on an
expec[ed credit joss model, calculated from the probab f\ty of defaull for the remaining e of the asset,

In measuring the expected cradit losses, the trade recervables have boan assessed on a coliectise basi as they possess shared creda risk
characterstics. They have been groupea based on the days past due and a'so sccorong to the gecgraphical locuuon of customers which s the

sdme fof ﬂ!bl

The expected loss riies are based or the payment profile far sales aver the past 24 months before the Balance Sheet dawe, The histencal rates
sre agusted to reflect current and forward-looking macroeconarie factars ol fecting the custemers ability to settle the amount outstanding,
the most sigmificani factor being the coronavrus pandemic A Francial asset s weitten offwhen there s no reasenable expectalon of recovening
the contractual cask flows )

The movernents on the loss alowance durng the yesr are summarnsed below

2021 P
Group and Company Em Lo,
Opening balarce 09 04
;‘E i lose 5//ownrzc$wscmcﬁt and lase - 0.3 o o] 5-
mta written of f during the ye—;_;—__; T T T (0.2) T -
Closing balance 1.0 s

The loss allowancs for Lrade recery sbles s recorded in the accounts scprate'y from the gross raceable. The contractual agerng of the wrade
recai ahles talance 15 as fallows

Group Company - v .-,
20 200 20z
Group and Company £m F A £m
Current 1.3 05 1.3 08
Overdue up to 30 days - S *—BT 1.2 “—(_)T o 1.2
Overdue between 30 and 60 days a.1 a1 o.1 a1
Overdue betweer 60 and 90 days o T N [¢A] ? *_;DT 03
Overdue rmore than 90 days 1.2 08§ 1.2 08
Trade recevables before 1053 allowance EA 23 341 33
Loss dllovone I N T e 0.9 ©05)
Trade receivables net of loss allowance 2.1 2.4 2.1 24

21. Discontinued Operations

O 7 Lure 2020 the Group sold Ls subadiary

Staple Pizza & C ser Lt suraough South Limied [ Thees Joes ) Far ar

enterprice Lalue of £0.3 m e or 3 debs tod ngary 2ask gl o

@ 7 March 2020

2rd rgny 17 Dusness has pean repertad as d seoni ruen

raneis s ore Annua’ Regort Tor the 52

Doaaholy avnes subsciany of Asam Group Haldings Lid

2s2'd tvertre Beer S oaars

{3As2n 0 for e emrernrne cdlae of 257 O miion or 5 debi-free bass mcludimg amy casr e m the buseess
BTy

L7 Teor O

Lo
i
3
0
B
I

Sdrekepreang ird croduct on, e ng whalendirg s vl 1 ine dstenulor

o~ S T S e Semanam arA N a
ey, LI A LTS, et DT Dreeing ars Ne

ors Dear B _uns

ok 2020

LD absz roodes tre Grffin B cferigdtoastng =

draly thuee s

1A Impers

socbeen ropnried sy dacort rued gperatars rire Areu Reportfor tre 52 wmesks erdad 22 M
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a)} Financial Performance and Cash Flow

The finanzial performance and cash flaw information presertea for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 refiects the operations for the period ended
7 Jure 2020, The financial performance and cash low presented for the 52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 reflects the ful' year of The Stable and
the pened ended 27 Apnl 2016 for the Fuller s Beer Business.

52 weeks S e
ended end
27 March S e
201 ACAL
fm ey
Revenue
Segment revenue o T 264 (i”
Inter segrent sales - «“n G%
Revenue from third parties - 223 m:U
E
Segment result (0.5) (03s))] -
Operating separately disclosed items - (3.8)
Qperating loss L (0.5 (4.3)
Net finance costs - (03}
Loss from operating activities - discontinued operations {0.5) (46
(Loss)fgain on sale of discontinued operation’ (0.9) 1624
Income tax on (lass)/pain on sale of discontinued operation o - - 9
(Loss)/profit before tax — discontinued operations (1.4) 1578 é
Taxation - 0 ;
Analysed os: e
Underlying trading - wnn
Separately disclosed iterns -
(Loss)profit from discontinued operations (1.4) 1577
Net cash loutflowd/inflew from operating activities (0.4) 15
Net cash inflow from investing sctivities 0.3 2245
Net cash cutflaw fram financing sclivities - 0.1 (09)
Net (decrease}/increase in cash generated by discontinued operations 0.2) 2251
Other segment information
Additions to property, plant and equipment - 09
Depreciation and amortisation 0.3 16
Impairment - 3.8
(Loss)earnings per share — discontinued operations
40p ‘A’and ‘C’ ordinary share -
Basic (ossliearnings per share (2.54) —58}3.0?
Ciluted (lowsYearnings per share (2.54) 285.42
Adjusted {ossi/esrnings per share (0.91) 1.63)
Diluted adjusted (ossliearming per share o o o (0.91) (1.63) 5
4p ‘B’ ordinary share e
Basic (loss)learnings per share B (0.25) 3.6 g
Diluted (loss)fearnings per share (0.25) 2854 2:
Adusted Loss)iearnrgs per are B 009  ©w® £
D luted adjusted (lass)icarming per share (0.09) (R[] %,

1 Thisis treated as a separately disclosed item.
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21, Discontinued Operations continued
b) Details of the Sale of the Subsidiary

52 weeks
ended
27 March
200
£m
Consideration received

Cash 0.4
Carrying ameunt of nel assets 5ol 1.2
Loss on sale before income tax (0.8)
Transscoon costs (0.1)
Loss net of transaction costs (0.9}
Incame tax expense on loss -
Loss on sale after income tax (0.9)

22, Assets held for sale
Group Company
2o 2021
Assets held for sale at the start of the year 2.6 2.6
Assets disposed of during the year (3.1 (3.1)
Assets rarsferred fram Investment Propertics 1.7 1.7
ssets transferred from Property, Plant and Equipment 8.6 8.6
Impatrment of assets (0.2) 0.2)
Assets held for sale at the end of the year 9.6 9.6

A 27 March 2021,17 propertes have been classified as held for sale (2020: 2 properties) The properties are predeminately unlicensed properLies
Sale . expecled wibin 12 months from the reperting date. An imparmant of (0 Z millon was racognised on reclassifying the property te held for
sale to recagnie the assets at the lower of carrying amcunt and far value less cost ta sell Vaiuations performed are based on observations of
teansaztons wohang proparties of 4 simiber nuture, locat.on and conditian. Since ths vatuat.on was performed usng 3 sign ficant non -observable

wput, the far value messurament can be categorised a4 a Level 3

23. Trade and Other Payables

Due within one year:

2021 .
Grovp fm .
Trade payables 12.7 i26
Other tax and sagial socurutyhhh‘___‘__- - 1.6 o 5.
Dther payables T o S 5.7 6.7_
Accruals 73 1039
Contract hatulities - T ‘ﬁ S 24
28.7 a7y
Due within one year:
2021 :
Company £m .
Trade payan'as 12.6 15
Arhourmm subsien sy urdertakings N B 1331 - 1322
Cter tax ard soziz’ secunty 1.5 47
Diher gayab'es - o - 5.7 R
facraals 73 3.4
Cortract skl ex T T - 1.4 2.4
161.6 1652
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Company amaourts due to subsidiry undertakrgs of £133 1millon (2020, £132.2 rmllion) have no fixed repayment date Interest -« paysble on the
balarce at 3% above the Bank of England Base rate. Company amounts due to subsdiary undertakings are ursecured

Contract habilities relste to deposits receved from customers te seeure bookings for events and accormmaodatien. The balance will unwird and be

recognised as revenuein the following Firancial year.

At 27 March 2027 £01 imillion has been recognised as deferred income within accrusl in relation to the COFF, represennting the fuvourable
conditions grantea by the Government. This s berng unwound cver the term of the loan.

24. Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt
Cash and Short-Term Deposits

Growp ST Company Ty

2021 ZolL 201 T

Em Fim fm T

Cash al bank and in hand 171 20.3 16.9 19.2

For the purposes of the Consclidated Cash Flow Staiernent, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash ot bank ard in hand. s+ above Cash at bank

earns interest at F‘Odtlﬂg rates.

Group Company

2021 2021

Barrowings £m o £m
Bark loans 107.9 1717 107.9 1717

CCFF 99.8 - 99.8
Debenture stock 259 259 25.9 255
Preference sharcs 1.6 1.6 1.6 16
Total barrowings 235.2 199.2 235.2 169 2

Analysed as.

Borrowings within current habilities 2077 1717 207.7 1717
Borrowings within non-current habil'ties - 275 T 275 275 275
235.2 1992 235.2 1992

All borrowings st both year ends are denominated in Sterling srd where appropriate are statad net of issue costs Further information on barrowings
5 gven in note 28,

Bank Loans

Group and Company

The Group had facilities of 2917 million at year end imcluding the CCFF. Post year end. the CCFF expired on 12 May 2021 and was repaid on that
date. The remaining £1917 millior of the Company's total existing main bank facilities were due te expire in /\ugus[ 2027 but on 20 Aprit 2021 the
bank facilities were amended and extended 1o Fobr yary 2023,

At 27 March 2027, E83.7 milhon (2020: £53.0 million) of the tatal of C291.7 million (2020 £225.0 milllor] committed bank facilty wis available

and undrawn.

As a result of corenivirus and the temporary closure of the entire estate for a :\gmflczmt portizn of the pericd, the two man querterly covenants,
being net debt ta EBITDA {leverage) and net debt ta { rance charges, were waned for the whale peniod and revised Le @ more appropriate test based
on hquidity for each of the quarters duning the Ninanaia' year. The nquidity covenants are in glace untl March 2022 and then wil resert to the
leverage and interest coverage covensnts from Jure 2022

The bank loans at 27 Mirch 2027 are unsecurad, srd are ropsyable as showr ir the table on the followng page. Interest 1s payable at LIBOR p'us

amargin, which varies dependent or the rat o of net dakt te EBITDA bul s rce the covenanis were waved in March 2020 and repliced wath
alguidity test the interest rate margin has been bixed untl March 2022
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Ceontnued

24, Cash, Borrowings and Net Debt continued

The bark loans and CCRF arc repay sble as follows:

201 2
£ -

Oﬂ di‘m:]nd cr V‘./"thlr\ one \/G‘lﬂ' 208-0 1720
Less: bank loan arrapgement fees - B w.n (3
Less: CLFF amorttsatian fees and Far va've adjusiments - (0.2)
Current liabilities 207.7 1717
Debenture Stock
The depentured stacks are secured on speified fixed and floating assets of the Cempany and are redeemable on motarty
Debenture stock 15 repayzble as follows.

2021 PR
Geoup and Campany Em
Ir the thrd to f Ith year inciusive - 10.70% st Morigage Debenture Stock 2023 6.0 60
in greater than five years - 6 875% Debenture Stock 2028 (15t floating charge) 20.0
g discount on 1ssue (0.1) {on
Non-current liabifities 259 259

Preference Shares

The Company's preference snares arc ciassificd as debt The shares are not redecmab'a ard are included in barrowngs w.thin ror-currert habilives.

See rote 26 for Turther detals of the preferance snares.

Analysis of Net Debt
Group
Ar
- 27 March
2921
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 o v Em
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and short term deposits 203 (3.2} 171
203 32 - 171
Financial Labifities:
Lease liabiloes 29l 9_i 138 (89.9)
(Mz.3} 9z 13.8 (89.9)
Debt:
Bk laans. (17 640 D (1079
CCrF - (99.4) 04 (99.8)
Deberiure stock 259 T (25.9)
Preference shares T o 1.8 - o 1.6)
Tetal berrowings 193.2) 4] oRs): (235.2)
Net debt (29° 1) 2943 ‘32 (308.0)
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28 Man
st oo H " Nt otaer 2L
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 1M =15 h i Le
Cash and cash equivalents: o
Cash and short Lerm deposits 1o 93 20.3
1.0 - 8.3 - 203
Financial liabilities:
Loase habilties S (100.4) 1.2 Q37 9
o0 4) 1.2 (23.7) (m293
Debt:
Bank loars (228.5) - 570 (0.2 (1717
Other loans {023 - 0.2 -
Debenture stack (259) - - - 259
Prefarence shares (1.6} - - - (1.6)
Total borrowings (256.2} 5/0 (199.2)
Net debt (24523 (100.4) 775 (23.7) (291.8]
1 Non-cash mavements relate to the amortisation of arrangement fees, arrangement fees acerued, movements in lease liabilities and corporate scquisitions.
2 Bank loans net of arrangement fees.
Company
At At
sEMar 27 March
2225 Ta o ocrsh 0
52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 Er [l T tm
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and short-term depasits T 19.2 (2.3) - 16.9
192 (23] - 16.9
Financial habilities:
Lease nabilities (39.6) 8.9 24 (88.3)
(99.6) 89 2.4 (88.3)
Debt:
Bank loars- N7 640 (0.2) (107.9)
CCFF - (99.4] {0.4) (99.8)
Debenture stock (259 - (25.9)
Prefererce shares o (.63 - - (1.6)
Total borrowings 199.2) 35.4) 0.6l (235.2)
Net debt (279.6] (28.8) 1.8 (306.6)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Cont.nued
24, Cash, Borrowngs and Net Debt cantinued
d LEM u:,\:
. NIt P
52 wenks ended 28 March 2020 T o ro
Cash and cash equivalents: L .
ash?wd shart-term deposils o - 10.0 19 5
10.0 - 19,2
Financial liabilities:
Levc hnbrlit.e B (88.6) 101 QI ©998)
(8R.6] 101 vy [99.6)
Debt
Bank loans (226.5) 57.0 0 ann
Ceobanture stock (25.9) - (259}
Prefererce shares - e il
Total borrowings (256.0] 57.0 (0.23 (199.2)
Net debt (246 8) (BR.6) 771 13 (279 6)

1 Non-cash movements relate to the amortisation OFarrar\gemer\t fees, arrangement fees accrued and movementsin lease labiliies,

2 Bankloansnet DFarrangEmeﬂtFEes‘

25. Pensions

a) Retirement Benefit Plans - Group and Company

The Group sperates one closea funded defined benefit pensian scherme, the Fuller Smith & Turner Pension Plan. The plan s deflinad benefitin

natare, vith assets held in separate professiona’ly managed, Trustee admiristered funds, The Scheme v HM Revenue & Customs registered pension

plan and subject to standard Un tod Kirgdom penvion and tax law On* January 2013 the pian was closed te future acerual.

ine Group alvo operates three defned contnbution sti<eho'der pension plans fo- its employees. The Fuller’s Stakeholder Pension Plan was set

up for new employces o Lhe Parert Company afier the clesure of the Fulier, Smith & Turrer Pension Pian to new entrants on TAogust 20075

The GriFfia Stakeholder Perven Plan operatas For thowa employess of g Group aubs dmr;,t Tre Gales 2001 scheome wis set up ‘:O“owvﬂg the clowure

of tha Gales defined bercehit schame in 2001,

The Group offers workplaze pensions to ol employees wha are not mermbers of the three definea cortnbution stakeholder penvon olans The Group

offers these peﬂ\\'or\s through the Nat.onal Empfoyrﬂoﬁt Savmgs Trust C"NESTT]

The Grous also aays benefits, which ame unfunded, to a number of former empioyees Tne Directers conwider these berefits to be defined berefit

i nature and the ful deflined berefit habuty s recogmised on the Balance Sheat

52 weeks
ended
27 March
20
Group and Company fm -
Total amaunts charged in respect of pensions in the year
Charged to Incorme Statoment.
Oefined verafit scharme  met firance charge - separate y disclosed e 041 79
Ue’ nog contrbunion schaes ara NEST - 1o speraling crarge 1.7 21
1.8 27
De’ nod bere tachemes  retuctuar 3l csses/{gans) 1.0 (55
Total pension charge/(credit) 2.8 (52

b} Defined Contribution Stakeholder Pension Plans - Group and Company

Trotstil costcharged 1o acsme A rzapeas o7 tne dof res contr but or stacehnder sche

¢) Defined Benefit Plans - Group and Company

R it

TheSeremrzproades prrsans 30d wep sums o mermbers or ret roert s Lo ther copanaanis on Seth
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Trustees are appontad by both the Company and the Scheme'’s membership and actir the interest of the Scheme and bl relevant stskeholders,
including the members and the Company The Trustees are also responsible for the invesiment of the Schere’s assets,

The Company pays the casts as determined by regular actuarial valuations The Trustees are required Lo use prudent assumptions Lo value the
liabil ties and costs of the Scheme whergas the accounting assumptions must be bast estimates.

Respanability for making good any deficit on the Scheme lies with the Corﬂp:my and this introduces a number of risks for the Company.

The Major rs<s are:

- interast and investment risk - The value of the Scheme’s assat s dre subject to valda Ity 1IN cquiby prices. The Scherie nas diversified s
investrments to reducs the impact of volatility und varsble mletrest return rates

- nflation risk - The defined benehit obhigstion s linked to irflation sa higher rates would resultin g highar delired bonelit obligation

- longzuity nsk - Anncrease over the assumptians sppiied will increase the def'nied benefit abligatian.

The Campany and Trustees ire aware of these risks and manage them through appropriate investment and funding strategies. The Trustees manage

governarce and operstional nisks through a rurnber of interral cantran policies

The Scheme s subject to reguhr actuarisl valuations, whick are uau.—;”y carried aut overy three YOdrs. Ir Jure 2021 the 2019 triennal valustior was
cencluded ard the CDF‘WPdHY have dgreed tocont.nue Lo By 1N line with the cxmung recovery p\an, Under this p‘dﬂ‘ deficit reduction contributions
started a1 £2.1 milliorin Ju?)/ 2019 and ingresse per annum nhing with CPI Subscquﬁ-’n Lo the yoar end, Fxed secLrly gver cortain of the Compaﬁyls
freenhold properties (with 1 net boak value of £27.3 mithon), has been prov ded e the Scheme as additianal secunty, the value of which wiil be reviewed
at each trienmal valuation. The next triennial vslustion is due on 30 July 2022,

The figures in the following disclosures were measured using the projected umit credit methed.
The Scheme has not invested i any of the Groupls own financial instroments or i propertics or other assets nuse by the Group

Key assumptions
The key awumpt}on\ used in the 2021 valustion cf the Scheme are <ot out below:

2021 Zlat
Martality assumptions Years Vairs
Current pensioners (at 651 males 22.2 221
Current pensioners (at 65) - fermales 24.4 243
Future penwionars (at 65} males 23.5 234
Future pensicners (st 65} - females 259 258

The Schemrea s now closed to future accrual. The average age of the members who were active at closure is 56 for ma'es and 52 for females.
The average age of all non-pensionersis 56

Key financial assumptions used in the valuation of the Scheme 2021 202
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.35% 2.85%
Discount rate 1.95% 2.40%
Inflation assumplion  RP 3.40% 285%
Inflatior assumption - CP: (pre 2030/post 20330) 2.5%13.4% 195%

The present value of the Schome liabilities 1s sensitive to the assumplians used, a+ follows.

201
Impact on Scheme liakilities - increase/(decrease)’ £m
Increase discount rate by 1% (2.6) (2N
Increase infiatior assumption by C.1%: 2.1 1.2
Incressc life expactancies by * year 73 57

1 The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption whilst holding all of the other assumption constant. In practice this s unlikely to occur and changes in some
of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity ta change, the same actuarial method has been applied as when caleulating the pension liability within
the Balance Sheet. Due to the Scheme closing to future accrusl on 1 January 2015, there are no longer any active members in the Scheme, As the members who were
active at closure did nat maintain a salary link on their past service benefits, the future szlary increase assumptions na longer bave animpact on the Scheme's lisbilities.

2 Formembers who were active at closure, their pensions now increase in defeement in line with CPHinflation,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

25. Pensions continued

Ceontinued

27 March AN
201 SLE
Assets in the Scheme fm v
Corporate bonds 25.5 265
ndex inked debt imstruments 283
Glts _ - 24.0
LK equinias ) - 170
Owerseds equities 30.6 205
Allernatives ] ) o 53.7 305
Cash 1.9 05
Annuities W 36
Total market value of assets 143.8 1233
1 Alternatives s composed of holdings in diversified growth investment funds. 201 P
£m Je
Fur value of Scheme assets 143.8 123.8
Present value of Scheme Labilities (147.3) (128 53
Deficit in the Scheme (3.5) 4N

Included within the total present value of Graup and Cempany Scheme hablhives of C147 3 mill on (2020 £128 5 million) are habilities of E21 million

(2020 2.4 milon) which are entireny, wrfunded.

2021 - P 201 2021 SN
£m = Em £m s
Bu'ance at begirring of the yer (128.5) 48 3) 123.8 ms 4.7) 364
Included in profit and loss o o
Current service cost - - -
Netintorest cost (3.00 (37] 29 3 (0.1 (06)
3.0 (3.7] 29 EN (0.1) (05}
Included in Other Comprehensive Income
Actvanal goins{lossesl relabing Lo, - o
Actudl return less expected retuqn on Scheme's assets - 19.5 13 2} 18.5 13.2)
Experence gins/llasses) snvng on Scheme hisbil ties . (20.5 N 191 - (20.5) '\;
(20.5) 19° 19.5 (13.2; (1.0) 5.3
Other
Employer special contrbuticns 7 - - 24°C - 24.0
Srmoicyer coatrbulions - - 2.3 24 23 24
Berefteps o a7 44 @7n @4 - -
4.7 44 (2.4) 220 23 26 4
Balance at end of the year (147.3) 128 %) 143.8 12373 (3.9 (2.7}

Lot anon s 2ae e 3

Anal L alozten 2015 June 2027 0

wthe scheme inthe rest fiaamcal year arg cxpested tobe 02 3l
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26. Preference Share Capital

Group and Company
First 6% Second B%
cumulative cumulative
preference preference
share of share of
E1each £1each Total
Authorised, issued and fully paid share capital Number Mumber Number
Number authorised and in issue: 000s 000s 000s
At 30 March 2019, 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021 400 1,200 1,600
W
Monetary amount: fm £m £m !
At 30 March 2019, 28 March 2020 and 27 March 2021 0.4 1.2 1.6 a8
ol
Y
The first 6% cumutative preference shares of £1cach arc entitled Le first payment of ¢ fixed cumulative diadend urd on winding up to a return of pad Z
capital plus arrears of dvidends, Tne second 8% cumulative preference shares of U1 each are ertitled to second payment of 3 f xed cumulative dividend =
and on wirding up 3 return of capital paid up (plus a prermium ca'culated by reference to an average quoted price on the London Stock Bxchange for
the previous six morths) p\os arredars of dindends.
Prefererce shareholders may only vate in hmited circumstances: principally on winding up, alteratior of class nights o on unpaid preference dividends,
Profererce shares cannct be redeemed by the belders, other than on winding up,
27 Provisions
S Lol 2dsd gj
N . <
2021 AN 2021 2000 Q
Group and Company £m L fm s 2
Balance at beginning of the year 41 42 - 26 a
- ©
Utilised 0.1 on - -
Transferred to right-cf-use assets - - (2.€)
Balance at end of the year 4.0 41 - -
201 201 2
Analysed asi Em £m
Duc within one year 4.0 - -
Due in mare than one yaar - - -
4.0 41 - -

Further information has not been disclosed about the legal elaim as it s an ongoing dispute
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

28. Financial Instruments
Detals of the Graug’s treasury function arc ingluded in the Financwl Rev.ew's discussion of financil risks and tressary policies on page 25.

The accounurg treatment of the Group's Nirancial instruments s det aled 1n note 1.

a) Capital Management - Group and Company

As descrbed i note 1 the Group considers its cap tal 1o comprise the Following:

2001 20z0

Group Em B
Ordinary share caprial 22.8 228
Share premium ) o !H 2 2
Capital redemption reserve 37 3.7
Hedging reserve (0.5 09
3663 4170

Retained carnings

Prelarence shares 1.6 1.6

Company

Ordinary share capizal

Share premuum

Coapitai redemption reser ve

Hadging -esere V 7 (0.5) 0w
Merger resere {1.e)

Retamed earmirgs - 320.7 373?
Fraference snarcs 1.6 16

3509 4049

IR MAnagirg irs caoital the onim iry obJ»:ctue i to erisurs that the GIO‘UP 15 akle to contnue to operile a5 4 gong concern and to maximise relurn
to sharehclaery through 3 combination of capital growin, distr butons ard tna payment of pre‘crence diaderds io ts preference shareholders

The Group seeks to mantan a raua of debt and equity tnat balarces nisks and returns at 4n accepisble level and mamtans sufficient Fungs ta meet
werkmg capitai Largats, investrment cequiremants and compfy with fendmg covervinta. Tne Group did not buy back any shares in the 52 waeks ernded
27 March 2021 (2020, £0 5 ~ilion) As g mimimurn, the Board re news the Greuo's dradend palicy twice yearly and reviews the treasary posiion

at overy Boare meeting,
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b) Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Groug’s financial assets and llabilties as recognised at the Ba'ance Sheat date muy dlso be categarsed as folows:

2021 R

Group £m
Non-current assets
Firancial assets at [:r:ortisud cost: S -
Loans and cther recaivables in scope of [FRS 9 - G
Total nen-current assets - 01 %
Current assets =
Irade ard other recevables in scope of IFRS @ 21 24 Cg
Total current assets 2.1 2.4 S
Total financial assets 21 2.5 E
Current liabilities -
Finarcial “dbﬁ\-tlc‘h ab amoartised cost: N o

Trade and otner payables in scope ol IFRS 9 25.4 300

Lease habhtics 67 89

Loans 207.7 1717
Total carried at amortsed cost 239.8 2105 o
Total current habilities 239.8 21086 2
Nen-current liabikities B g
Dervative financial instruments used for hedging 0.7 E
Financial labilities at amortised cost:

Leasc habil.ties 83.2 104.0

Loans and debenture stack B 259 259

Preference shares 1.6 1.6
Tots' carried at amortised cost 110.7 1315
Totalror current hanilities m.4 1326
Total financial liabilities 351.2 34372
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued
28. Finanaal Instruments continued
Company B
Non-current assets o - o
Financial .ﬁS\Etmz,ed cost o -
Loans and other recervables in sc?[;;ﬂrﬁgg - OT
Total non-current asseks - 01
Current assets
Trade and othor receivab'es in scope of IFRS 9 241 93
Total current assets 21 99
Total financial assets 2.1 10.0
Current liabilities
F nancial lizbilibes at amortised cost:
Trade and cther payakies in scope of IFR5 9 158.4 1596
Lease habilities 6.5 79
Loans - 2027 M7
Totsi carriad at smartised cont 372.6 3392
Tota current habihties 372.6 3392
Non-current liabilities
Dervative financrl instruments used for hedging o B 0.7 ‘ﬁiT
Financial iabilties st amort ~ed cost o
Lease hakibties - 81.8 97
Lonns and debenture stock o o o 259 259
Praferenca shares 16 16
Total carnied at amorused cost 10%.3 ne.z
Total mor current habihbies 110.0 203
Total financial liabilities 482.6 4595

There s ne set of fof francea 3sscts and nab hves as shown above.

<} Financial Risks - Group and Company

The mair r sk associated w th the Groupys Frarea assets and | ablities are set out balow, 4y are the Group's poucies for ther TanageTent
Derivative mslrumerts are usaa ta changa the econormic characierstics of financial instruments naccordance with Growup policy.
pehes

i. Interest rate risk
The Growp manages .

cost of borrowiras uairg 5 riecure of Tixed rates, vanshie rates snd interest ~ate swaps. ©xed raics de not cxpese the Graup

o cash Flow interest rite rise, but do Aat 2nay 1 reduction in barrswing costs in markets where rates are fa'ling “loat ng rate barrowngs, althougn
Y = © '

not exposed to charges niar «slue exposc tre Group 9 casn flow rink Follos ng ~ seviminterast rates and cost

The detantures t21a'hng E25 % m 1 an (2020, £25 % il 2a) ard the COFF 1053 rg £99 2 mllon (2020 £nl), nex o interest pad im aduance,
o)

(2020 £°71 7 eralor), net of srrangeTont Tees. are at flostng rates At the year end, after
5 ne Group's b4re cars amg 3% 1 :

zre at Fred rates The bare [o375 totalirg 075 me

faking sceourt of aterest rate snape, 1770 (2020, 2 rrovangs wore al fxod rates
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Interest rate swaps

The Group has entered into interest rate swap agreements, where the Group pays a Teed rate and receves one month or three ronih LIBOR, i
order to hedge the nisk of varatior in interest cash flows on its borrowings At the Bulance Sheet date {20 0 million of the Group and Company's
borrow.ngs (2020: £40.0 rmillian) were hedged by interest rate swaps at o blended fixed rate of 2.20% (2020, 2 42%), The swip active at 27 March
2027 expires in 2022,

The mlerest rate swap < expected to impact the Incorre Staterrent inline with the hquidity fisk table shown in section () below The interest rae
S iID C,dﬁh HO‘-{V hedge m QFFCCt at 27 Mf]rch 202’1 WS A‘]\‘:CS\OC‘ a4 bC‘\r‘-g hghly eFFECtIVE NC.L u"]lCd‘“%Cd gﬂ‘ﬂ OF an ml“\@n (2020 EC2 TYH”|DFI:]
has been recorded .n Other Comprehensive Incame Aniatecest rate swap for £20.0 mlhon expred in August 2020 and resultea in £0 2 milion

net realised gain,

Sensitivity - Group ond Company
Ihe Group borrows in Sterhng at ket rates Three manth Sterling LIBOR rate during the 52 wecks ended 27 March 2027 ranged between
0.09% and 0 58% The Directors convider 100 % to be a reasonable possible increase in rates and O 50% to be a reasonable possible decranse

inrates, with reference to market yield curves and the current economic conditions

The annuahsed effect of these changes to 1nterestrates on the floating rate debt at the Balance Sheet date, all other vanables being constant,

arc as follows:

e SITEEW
2021 N P
Impact on post-tax profit and net equity - increase/(decrease) Em £m -
Decrease interest rate by 0.5% 0.4 a5 0.9 11
Increase interest rate by 1.0% o (0.7} (1n (1.8) (21)

1 The Company has substantial interest bearing payables due to subsidiary companies (note 23).

ii. Credit risk
The risk of fnanc.al loss due to « counter party's failure to honour its obligations arses prnaipally in relation to transactions where the Group

provides goods ard services on deforred payment terms, depasits surplus cash and enters into derivative contracts,

Group polcies are aimed at minimizng losses and deferred terms are only granted to customers who demenstrate an appropriate payment history
and satisfy credit warthiness procedures. Individual custemers are subject to credit Imits Lo control debt exposure and goods may a'so be wold er

a cash with order basis.

Cash deposits witn financial insttutions for short periads and dervative transactions are oniy permittea wath finarcial nstitutions spproved by
the Board. There are no significant concentraticns of credit risk within the Greup. The maximurm cred.t nisk expasure relating to finsncial assets
15 represented by their carrying value as at the Balance Sheet date

Trade and other recaivabies
The Group records impairment fosses on its trade recewvables separately from gross receivables Further detadisincluded 'n note 20

iii. Liquidity risk

The Group minimises hiquidity risk by managing cash generation, applying trade recevables callection targets, monitoring daily cash recaipts and
payments ond setting railing cash forecasts Investments have cash payback penods aoplied as pact of a tightly controlled investment spprasal
pracess The Group's rating with credit agencies is excellent,

The Group bas a muxture of long and short-term borrowirgs and overdralt facilities. 5% (2020 11%) of the Group's borrowings are repayable after
mare than lve years, 3% {2020: 76%) wihin the first to Bifth years and 88% (2020:13%) within one year,

The tables o the follewing page summurise the matunty profile of the Group's financial habilities at 27 March 2021 based on undiscounted
cantractual cdsh flows, including interest payable. Floating rate interest 1s estimated using the prevailing interest rate at the Bulance Sheet date,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Conbinuad

Z8. Finanaial Instruments continued

sl RIS ERELE - Total
Group at 27 March 2021 L wr o o fm
Iterest bearng loans ard bortowings 09 210.0 124 229 246.6
Broference sb sres” - o1 __LS 34 4.0
:\mde and cther payabies o - 127 87 £.0 T 25.4
lease tiablities - 72 0.2 0.4 809 108.7
1 Bankloans are included after taking account of the following cash flows in relation to the interest rate swap held in respect of these borrowings:
Inforest rate swaps 01 3.3 0.2 - a.6
: o Total
Group at 28 March 2020 = B £m
Interast bearing loans and borrowings 601 12 229 - 243 215.5
aeference shares” T - - 01 “5_; 34 “4‘(;
Trade and other gayables 12.6 3.3 4.1 - - 30.0
Lesse hobrities - - 30 9r a7 94y 1485
i Bankloans are mcluded aftec tskng account of the following cash Flows m relstron to the interest rate swap and cap held 1 respect of these borrowings:
Intorast rate swaps - 0.2 C.3 0.4 - 0.9

2 The preference shares have no contractusl repayment date. For the purposes of the table sbove interest payments have been shown for 20 years from the Balance Sheet
date but no further

The £160.1 millian has been restated from the 1 to 5 years bucket to the on demand bucket. This s because at the end of FY20 there was 2 technical breach of the covenants
and therefore the bafance should have been disclosad within the on demand bucket,

w

The Company higures are oy for the Group, excapt as follovs,

Rt z Total
Lompany at 27 March 2021 ~ S £m
Amcunts due to subaidasry undertakng.” 1321 - 1331
Trade ard cther payabies 2& 87 40 - - 25.3
Lease bt S n 9y a2 795 1067
Campany at 28 March 2020
Amounts due to sabsidiary urdertakings 132.2 - - 132.2
Trade and othar payables T s 8 a4 - - 714
Lease Labitties 27 81 353 B30 1321

3 Amounts due to subsidiary undertzkings have no fixed repayment date. Interest 1s paysble on the balance at 3% sbove the Bank of England base rate.

Security - Group and Company

The 10 7% derertures 2023 are secured or property. plant 3nd equiorment vt arat bzok valie of EN O mlior (2020 E11 0 —i'hior) Tno £ 2757

Tra Group 2nc Company are sal,mcl to 5 number ¢

lgav~ becom ng mmed sty fenay

3mmortaynnr, and evr e g s
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Whan it came apparent that as a resalt of zorenavirus the Company's pubs and Fotels would need to tarmpararly clase, Fuller’s begar discuss.ons
with its lenders and formally apreed appraprate smendments Lo its birking agreements with its ienders The revised covendnts focus on hquidity
headroom metrics, which are more approprate under the curcent coronavirus canditions. The agreement was initially through Lo September 2020
and vy later extended Lo March 2021, As part of the smend and extend of the fuclities, as agreed on 20 Apnl 2021, the covenants were warved
through to and including March 2022 and replaced with the hqu-dity Lest.

d) Fair Value

Bros i LR _
2021 ool 201 ‘
Group £m i Em e o
Financial assets =
Loans ard other recervables due in more than one yaar in seope o IFRS G - 01 - 01 3 U§
Financial hiabilities X
Lease liabil ties (89.9) M29) (89.9) 129 3 g
Fixed rate borrowings ) (125.7) (2591 132.7) (33.4) 3 -
Floalrg rate berrowings ) (107.9) 77 (107.9) ana 3
Prefarences shares (1.6) *a) (1.6} 2.0) 3
Interent rale swaps 0.7) o 0.7 an 2
The Company figuras are as for the Group above except for ) i ~
LTI Thisus . %
01 PR, 2o ,I'j.—* g
Company Em o £m S 3
Financial fiabilities o E]
Lease habilties (88.3) (59.6) (88.3) (99.6) 3

Level 1Tair values are valuation techriques where inputs are quoted prices n active markets for identical uasats or habilities that the entity can access

atreasure data,

Level 2 fair values are va'uation techniques where all inputs whoch have a sigrif cant effect on tne recorded fair value are observable, cither directly
orindirectly, but are not derived direct!y from quoted prices in active markets The Group bases its valuatiens o infermation providec by financial
mstitutiors, who use avarety of estimation techmques based an market conditions, such as interest rate expectations, cxasting sl cach Balance

Sheet date.

Level 3 farr vatues ace valuation technigues for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded lair value are mot observable.
g F 5
Dervative Farr vatues are obtained from gquoted market prices in active markets. The fair values of borrowings have been calculated by discounting
q P g ¥ 2
the expected future cash flows at prevalling interest rates. Interest rates for borrowings range from 1.3% to 10 7% The Tair values of preference
p P g g g p
shares have been culculated using the market intorest rates.
Management assessed that the fair velues of cash and short-term deposits, trode recenvables and other recaivables, and trade and other payzbles
Approximate therr carrying amounts \drgcly due to the short term matunities of these instruments.

There were na transfers batween levels in the Tar value hierarchy as at 27 Mareh 2021 and 28 March 2020
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continued

29. Share Capital and Reserves
a) Share Capital

Authorised, issued and Fully paid ' o

Number inissue T0. Too e RO . ST

At 30 March 2019 33,578 14,503 89,052 - 137133

lssue of Share Capital - 552,318 - 552,318

Reclass:Fication to Defarred shires - - [552,318) 552.3'8

Conceliation of Deforred shares B B T EEe (552318)
Egrc conversions E 42) - - - R

At 28 March 2020 33,620 14,467 89,052 - - 137133

Share conversians

At 27 March 2021 33,620 14,461 89,052 - - 137,133

Proportion of total equity shares at 27 March 2021 24.5% 10.6% 64.9% - - 160%

Monetary amount T £ c L O S

At 28 March 2020 3.4 FR=1 36 228

Share conversions T 7%7—_" _“—. T - m_T_ T - )
At 27 March 2021 13.4 5.8 3.6 - - 22.8

Shure capityl represents the nommal value proceeds recer.cd on theissue of the Cerrpany’s equity share capital, comprnang 40p and 4p ordinary
shares The Company™s preference shares are chassified 15 non current lubhites in accordance with IFRS lses note 26).

The ardirary sharehalders arc erutled 1o be paid 3 dindend out of any surpius profts and Lo parbicipate in surpius 2ssels en vanding up v progorion
Lo the nemingl value of each class of share (B’ shsres bave one tentn of the nomunal value of 'Alornd 'C' sharey)

A CQuity shgees i the Comp.my Crfy Ore Vol per share, sS4, tHat shares held treasury hava ther vaing rf‘gh'ﬁ <uspeﬁded Tre Algnd 'O shares
huve ¢ 400 raming value and the "B shares have a 4 narima) dlas so that 3 B uhare dwidend will be paid 2t 107 of the rate applyrg to W and " C
shares, The ' shares ura lited on the Londan Stock Exchange The (T shires carry a rght For the holger to canvert them Lo Y shyres by written
reteein the 30 day peried folicwing the hall year and preliminary wrnouncements The ‘B shares are not leted and have no conversion rights

In most crcumsiarces the value of 2 "B share 1, deemed Lo be 104 of the value of the lsted "4 shares, The Tructee hoiding shares for partoipants

af the LTIP currently waves deadends far shares heid during the imual three year peniod. Urrdends are not paid on shares held in treasury

The Articles include provsicns relating 1o the Company’s ‘B and 'Cshares which provde that shareholders who wish to transfer therr shares may
only do wof the trarsfer s to ancirer "B ar 'Clshareholder, or i the trarsfer v to certan of that shareholder's family members or their execulors
or administrators or, where shares are neld by Trustess, to new Trustees, 07 to the Trustees of ary employee share schome, or f the C’Jmpmy <

urble to dertfy arothor shaeholder of that clasy wiling to purchase the shares within the specfied per.od, to sny persan.

The ‘0" share wih noming vaive of Olp were ssued to the ordinsry sharebolders in the follovang proportons. ten "0 skares for esch WY ordinary
! -

.
sharo and ' crdirary share mssun and anc ‘D skare For 2ach "B ardinary share in sssue The DY shares were reclassiited as 5 deferred shares and

submeguentiy cinceliad upon paymert of 2 sngle D' shace diidend (noie %)
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b) Own Shares

Chwn shares re'ate to shares held by independently managed ESOTs togather wath the Company's helding of trassury shares Shares are purchased
by the ESOTs in order 1o salinfy potential awards under the LTIP and SIP. Treasury shores are used, inter alis, to satisfy options under the Company's
share oplions schemes, The LTIP ESOT ks weaved its nights to dividends an the shares it holds Treasury shares have voting and dividend nights
suspended All own shares held, as below, are axcluded from earnings and et assets par share caleculations.

RETIILSRCRTEN Ir-r=7 ENEE-T vy

Acdore 5 oamw, B oo

Alp 2o KPR £ om
Number o Lol A
At 30 March 2019 1567 4558 s} 6,373
Shares purchased 49 - 21 140
Shares transferred a1 41 - - - -
Shares relessed (294) - (43} {337) {337)
At 28 March 2020 1,281 4,558 326 &) 5 1,286 4,384 & 6176
Shares refeaved (7 (7 7
At 27 March 2021 1,274 4,558 326 6 5 1,279 4,884 3 6,169
Maonetary amount = b =T - s s o e -
At 30 March 2019 149 46 0.2 a1 14.9 4.8 01 19.8
Shares purchased 04 - 01 - - o4 01 - )
Shdres transferred (0,5) 05
Shares released (2.4 - - - 0.4 3.2 - - (3.2
At 28 March 2020 12.0 4.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 12.1 4.9 0.1 171
Shares released <n - - - - on - - {01
At 27 March 2021 1.9 4.6 0.3 0.1 0.1 12.0 4.9 0.1 17.0
Market value at 27 March 2021 1.0 39 0.3 0.1 - 1.0 4.2 0.1 15.3

) Other Capital Reserves

Share premium account

The balance in the share prermium account represents the proceeds receved abave the norinal value on the issue of the Commpany's equity share
capital. In the prior year, share premium was capitalised oy 0.6 mihion in order to issue "D shares with the norminal value of Olp each te ordinary
sharcholders The ‘D’ shares were reclassified as a deferred share and subsequently cancelled upen payment of a single ‘[ share dividend (note 95,

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve balance anses from the buy -back of the Company's own equity share capitat,

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve cortains the effect ve poruon of the cash flow hedge relat'onskips incurred at the Balance Sheet date, netof tax,

Merger reserve

The merger reserve arises on the hive up of A subsidiory at market value vath ary difference belweer the reduction i investment and the underlying

assets being recognised in this reserve,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Caortinued

30. Share Options and Share Schemes

The key pants of each of the Groups share schemes for grants up to 27 March 2027 sre summanised pelow All schemes wre equity selied
Ail disclosure relates to both Group and Company. For the purposes of aption and LTIF schemes, "Adpasted EPS will nermally e consistent
with the post Lax aarmings per share excluding separately disclosed items as presented in the financisi slatements Hawever, the Remuncration
Cormmittes 1s autherised to make appropriate adustmants to Adwusted EPS as applied to these schemes

Savings Related Share Option Scheme (*SAYE™)

Thr scheme grants optiors over shares at a discount of 20% on the average market price aver the three days immed.stely prior 10 the dare of of fer.
Employess must sava 1 reguisr amaunt 0ach month. Savings are made aver thiee or bue years, al the particpant's choice. The nght 1o buy shares al the
drscoumcd price ‘d-,b; For six maﬁth\_, arter t‘\e Q'\d orthe Sd4NEs cantracet, Thcr’e aAre g perﬂ:‘rmfmcc EO“idEC\GfT\, atier than contmucd empicymerzt

Senior Exscutive Share Option Scheme
This is an urapproved Executive Share Opuion Scheme. Mo new grants have been made under this scheme wnce 2013 and sl remaning optons were

exercised during the year erded 28 March 2020,

Executive Share Option Scheme

This 15 ar appraved Exgcut've Share Oguon Scheme, Far the grants up to the yeq” ended 28 March 2020 the opt ons vest if grawth in Adjustad
EP3 axceeds the growth in RP1 by 3% or mare, over the three year performance penad of the oplion. From the grant made during the year endad
7 March Z021 anwards, the optors vest if the set pre tax Adusted EPS targetis schieved The options must then be exercised within seven years
after the erd of the performance period,

LTIP

This glan awards free shares. Up unnl the LTIP granted duning the year endad 27 March 2027 yestbing 1 condiional o0 growth in Adjusied EPS
sxcecding growth in 3= by 9% ar mare ovar the threg year intral performance period af the award, with vesurg levels an a shding seale from 40%
bl growth n Adjusted ERS grceads growthn RP! by 247 or rrare

up to 100
From the LTIE granted dunng the year ended 27 March 2021 vesungis cond.uonal upon pre -tax Adjusied EPs targats, with vesung icvels an
ashding scale from 257 up ta100% dependent on the ieval of EPS achieved. Anindependert fiem of advisors senfies the vesting level cach year
The nitial vosting penod iy three years After this ume the shares may be passed Lo the plan participants, as |or'g as vasting conditians are met.

SIp

This plin awards Free shares An 2qua aumber af shares are awerdad 3 cach eligible empiayee. The maximarm valug of the shaes sllowable under the
scheme s £3,000 par year, per person with at least e months servce ay a1 15 May sach year The basis of the yward was changed with effect fram
the 2018 sward 5o that «ff el gible employess ~ecelve the same number of shares. There s no requirement for perfarmarce targets (aitheugh there
Muy Ce Lax conseguences 1F =eid within flyg vesrs of the aviard)

Share-based payment expense recognised in the year
The expernsa recogrsed for whare-caved payment. n respect of employee services receved durng the 52 weeks ended 27 Maren 2021
< E0.3 miltien eredn (2020 £0'5 midior charge), The whole of that zxpense anses from equity -setried shure -based paymeat transactions.

Market value
The market value of the shares at 27 March 2021 was [8.60 (2020, £6 50)

Meovements in the year
The F2llzenng tabies llustrate the rumber and vz ghted s.erage exerzise prces IWALDT) of and mosemenis in, each category of share instrument

dunrgthe year

Volatility

Tre expected alat oy < basag or the hintancal volathity o.er the exoactza e of tre nghis
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MIIAION (D)

a) SAYE
2021 P
Number 2021 N T
000s WAEP TN
Cutstanding at the beginming of the year 167 £7.98 485
Granted 410 £4.35 - n/a
Forfeited (78) £7.54 (129) F790
Expred (38) £8.06 nfa
Exercived ) £8.12 189 £780 o
Qutstanding at the end of the year 460 £4.79 167 £79% ;
Cxerasable at the end of the year 9 £8.51 - U§
Weighted average share price for options excraised in the year £8.99 £1013 &
Weighted average contractual hfe remaining for share options outstanding at the year end 3.1years 2.2 years _8\
Weighted average shore price for options granted in the year £5.59 nfa
\Ne\ghted dverage fair value of options granted durmg the year £1.38 nta
Range of exercise prices for opticns outstanding al the year end
from £4.35 E770
- to £8.70 £8.70
. e o
Outstording share opt ons grented to employees under the SAYE scheme are as fol'ows. ¢
Number of &
‘A’ ordinary 3
x>z w3 sharesunder 5
Sed L option i
“higres 2021
Exarcisable at - 000s BN
Septamber 2020 B.70 6 26
Septernber 2020 812 3 40
September 2027 774 17 35
September 2021 776G 24 S0
September 2022 812 3 5]
Septemuoer 2023 770 4 19 .
November 2023 435 228 2
Noverber 2025 435 175 - c
460 167
b) Share Option Schemes
T o Segaieen Bhacnfopr e Sorer s
20
Number 201 2Le
000 WAEP g WALS
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - nfa 73 £7.00
Exercised - nfa {75) £700
Outstanding at the end of the year - nfa - nfa
Weighted averape share price for oplions exercised In the year nfa E9 67

a
o
=
S
=
3
=
=
=
=
Q
a
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Centinued
30. Share Options and Share Schemes continued ) o
Faroate Sl o on
2024
Number 2021 Al
000s WAEP [ PeAL T

Cutstanding at the begnning of the year 159 £9.69 88 £9.50
Granted T 163 €692 34 (96
Lopsed - @4)  £1024  4n 0024
Surrendﬁrcd‘ . (65) E9-71
Ecrosed T T T s () €284
Qutstanding at the end of the year 212 £7.46 159 £9.69
Exercisable at the end of the year 26 £9.03 47 £943
Weighted average share price for options exercised in the year £7.38 010.05
Waghted average cantraztusl hfe remaining far share opl.ans outstanding at the year end 8.63 years 6.93 years
Weighted average share price for options granted in the year £6.92 £2.70
Weighted average fair value of opuiors granted during the year £0.94 £0.84
Range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the year end

from £6.92 £5.78

to £10.90 1090

* Dunng the year ended 27 March 2021, 65,073 options were surrendered and replacement options granted, shown within the number granted above, This was treated as
& modification of the original grants and as such the fair value recogmsed for the replacement opticns was reduced by the calculated fair value of the surrendered options
as at the date of surrender, the average of which was £0.35. The farr value calculation for the surrendered options was perfarmed consistently with the inputs disclosed at
section e)(1) below except as follows. The expected remaining ife ranged from 2 to & years, the volatility ranged from 17.7% to 20.9% and the risk-free interest rate used
ranged from -0.1% to 0.05%

Cutslanding aptions which are capabie of baing exercined between three and ten years from date of issu2 and thew exercise prices are shown in the
table belaw:

PP ST

MNumber of N_meer -
‘A ordinary iy e
feere sharesunder oo '
el s option '

WAt 02

Exercisable infbetween = 000s
2073 and 2020 578 - 1
2014 and 2021 7.09 2 2
2015 and 2022 705 5 5
2016 and 2023 910 9 10
2017 and 2024 G 65 S 17
2018 and 2025 10.50 5 13
2020 and 2027 10.34 - 32
2021 ard 2028 9.46 19 42
2022 and 2029 351 4 31

2023 and 2030 €52 163
212 159
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c) LTIP
2021 2021 p
‘A’ shares ‘B shares
Number Number
Shares 000s 000s Lo
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 288 2 360
Granted 220 549 15
Adjustment far ‘D shares impact - - 14
Lapsed (104) (261) (205) 513
Qutstanding at the end of the year 404 1,009 284 727
Weighted sverage share price for shares vested in the year nfa n/a ria nia
For sharcs outstanding at the year end, the weighted aversge contraciual Ife remaining s 1 H years 191years 160 years 1.60 years
Weighted average share price for shares granted in the year £5.90 £0.59 £9.70 £EQ.97
Weighted average fair value of shares granted during the yaar £5.75 £0.58 £8.95 £E0 30
AlLLTIPs nave a vesting price of Ll LTIP shares do not receve dividends untl vested,
d) SIP
2021
Number
000s
Qutstanding at the beginning of the yaar 150
Granted -
Lapsed - 0.
Released (38} 46}
Outstanding at the end of the year n2 120
Weighted average share price for shares relcased in the year £7.22 £5.61
For shares outstanding at the year end, the weiphred average contractua li'e remaining 1s 1.88 years  2.61 years
Wenghted average share price for sharcs granted durng the year - E10.34
- £10.34

Weighted average far value of shares granted during the year

Qutstandirg SIP shares represent shares allocated and held by the SIP Trustees on behall of employecs. which remain in the trust for between three

and five years All 5105 bave 3 vesting price of Eail. SIP shares receive dividends once allocated.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Continuad

30. Share Options and Share Schemes continued

e) Fair Value of Grants

i. Equity-settled aptions and LTIPs

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted s astimated 35 at the date of grani., tak nginte account the terms and conditicns upan

which the awards were granted The following table Ists the inputs to the modeal used for the 52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 and 52 weeks ended
28 March 2020, excepl for exercise price and the we\g‘ﬁte:{ average share price for praatsin the year, which are disclosed in sections a) to dJ above

Ui rove S Fesoaten S anc

Fair value inputs 2021 v 0o PRI 0

Dradend yeld (e nil% 8% nil% nfa nil% 1.8%
Expected hare price volat hry (%) nla nia 17.2%-19.1% nis 18.7% 15.8%
Rick Free nterast rote (%) O em 04% (0.1%) nta 0.1%) 0.4%
Expected ife of cpt.on/award (years) 3 years 3 years 3toSyears nén 4 years 4 years
Rﬂ’\odei used o Black Scheles " Black Scholes  Black Scholes nis  Black Scholes  Black Scnoles

i, SIP free shares awarded
The fair vaive of free shares swarded under the SIP s the share price ot the date of sllecatian Tne Lotal value of $1Ps awarded 15 3 “ixed rate based or the
Group's porformance n the proceding financial year, The number o shares awarded s therelore dependent on the share price at the date of the award.

31. Guarantees and Cormmitments

a) Operating Lease Commitments

Operating leases where the Group is the lessar

The Greup garns rental incarme from two sources, Licensed property inc'uded within progerty, plant and equipment i rented undor agreements,
wherc lessees must slse purch ise goads from the Group Adartionaly there are 3 smaller number of agreaments in cospect o imsastrnert properties
where there s no requirement for tne lessee Lo purchase gocds.

Investment properties sre let Lo third parties on leases tnat have remaming terms of between one and N7 teen years

At 27 Marcn 2024 future mimimum reniats receivable are as follows

i i as Tasarg o and gl
2021 2021 .
Group fm . fm cr
Within one year 0.5 0.7 7.8 ER
Between one year 410 five years o E 7 ﬁ - 43
After five years 0.3 05 0.8 33
1.5 23 15.8 1.2
Company
With.n one year 0.5 08 7.8 26
Between one yeirand fve peirs ~ 07 o n2 47
Afier fve years 0.3 G5 0.8 a5
1.5 23 19.8 121

The Group ard Compiny s commencial laases or praperty are orncip slly for hicensed outlors. Tne terms of tnefessos are norm sly for ether three

- : - : e
fourc-fie years Toe agreements allow For aanss nilyucnany increases and full rental ress ocour on renewal of the 'osse

Ar 27 Mharch 2070 foture o rorts s recoieahie arder ror-cancei bl sun !

ease-ncheed i the figores sbe o were 1611 0 2040 £5 4 milkor)
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b) Other Commitments

Group and Company

2021
Em

Capital commitments  authorised, contracted but not provided for

2.4

32. Related Party Transactions
Group and Company

Dluring the currert and prior years the Compary provided vanous sdministratee services ta the Fuller, Saith & Turner Peasion Plan free ef eharge
In addition, the Compary settled cosis totelling £368,000 (2020 £497,000) relating to the proviwer of actusrial, consuling and admirustrative
services by third parties ta the Fuller, Seuth & Turner Pension Plan,

52 weeks

ended

27 March

201

Compensation of key management personnel (including Directors} fm

Short-term employee benefits 3.0
Termination berefits 0.1 1
Post errployment benahis 0.3 0.4
Share based payrents - 0.7
3.4 6.0

Company Only

During the year the Company entered intc the following relatad party tramsactions:
8 ¥ pany B party

Sales to Purchases  Interestdue  Interestdue Amountsdue Amountsdue
related  fromrelated  from related ta related to related  from related
parties parties parties parties parties parties

52 weeks ended 27 March 2021 tm £m fm £m tm £m
Subsidiarics - 21.0 - 4.2 (133.1) -

R TR R IR B
Tzt
par -
52 weeks ended 28 March 2020 o
Subsidiaries 44

Interest « payable on the majority of the armounts due to subs diar es at 3% above the Bank of England base raze. All amounts cutstanding are

unsecured and repayable on demand.

The Company receved rertslincome from subsidiaries of Enil during the year (2020, £0.3 mllon) The Company also incurred rental expenses
fror subsidiaries of £0.3 million (2020, £10 1 rrullion).

In sdditien, the Ccmp-my has re:hargod an amount of Lril (20200 £1.4 millica) to its subwdiaries and reurred £0.1 million (2020 £01 millian)

of recharges fram its subsidiarios during the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

Conunued

32. Related Party Transactions continued

Sub~diaries of parent campanies estab! shed within the Suropean Econormic Arca are exempt from an auditif a guaraniee s proviaed by the pareat for tne
subsidiary habilit 23 and the shareholders are in unanimeus agreemert The Group will be exempling tha fol'owing compan e (rem an audit in 2027 for the

period endod 27 March 2021 under Scction 479A of the Corrparies Act 2000, all &f which are fully consolidated in these financial szaternents:

Company Company Number
Grton Cater ng Services Limited 01577632

Jacomb Guinness Lirmited 02934979

George Gale & Company me\te-d 00026320

45 Woodfield Limited 04275254

Grand Canal Trad ng Lirmited 04271734

BED Courtry Irns | Limited ) 07292333 B
B&D Country Irns 1l Liruted ORO2GZ80

BED (Cooknam Limited | 07320065

B&D (Odiham) L\-rwmd - o 08377455

B&L (Reawng) Limited 07309587

BAD (Wi} Lrited ' 07320245

B&D [(Faranam) Limidted 08392963

B&L (Kirgsclere) Lirmited CR75762 o
RSH 200 Limites ' ’ 12035987

Cotswold Inns and Hotels Limited 0330%17%

The Group wlt oe exermpung the follow ng comparies from the prepar stion and ge venng of sccounts to Comoanies House under Section 3944

of the Comparies Act 2006, ol of whicn are fuly consalidated in these financ al stslements.

Company Company Number
Griffir Inns Lirmited 00493934

Zingwoods Limited ' 20174336 N
F5 T Trustee Limitad 03163480 -

Ful'er, e th & Turner Estalos Limited 01831674

33. Post Balance Sheet Events
On 31 March 2021, the Group sgreed on Amend ang Extond Refiranaing of its 2estirg debi facil ies wath 12s relauienship banks, extending the
maturity of the E192 mill on facihinies 1015 Febiuary 2023 and arrencing the F nancial casenants toa mrimum hgudity level of £10 millon 1

3 Muargh 2022,
Orthe same doy 1t was also srneunced that the Groug proposed placing new A snares up to approxirately 20% of exsting ssuad ‘Al ordirary
snare capizal, Tne retnancing of the fachities vas cormitioral on the successful eguity rase. On 20 Apn 2021 e aqu ty rase was approred by

theamarcko ders 4t the EGM and the net prozeeas of £52 v Il on were "ecaed the sume day

Or "2 May 2021, wang the Group's 3. akle faail b es ind Lhe procsed- of the equity raise, the Group reca d the CC=F n full
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34. Prior year adjustment

The Groupidentlad an error wath'n s sssessment of deferred tax which dates back prior Lo the earliest prior peniod presented within these
financial statements, In ine with IAS 8, the Group has restated balances s st 31 March 2019, and restated .ty finsncial results for the period erdeg
28 Muarch 2020

The issue dentiflied as at 31 March 2019 related to how deferred tax was bemg calculated on property, prant and equipment ('PRP&E") and the
assurmptons used for the intended marncr of recovery of cach pub Maragement hod understated the base cost of PPRE rocovergb’'e on g sales
bus's and not recognised a deferred tax lubiity an a use basis Additonally, ¢n adjustment was recegnised Lo goodwal. for the acquisiion of

Bel & The Dragon 45 a result of incorrect apphcat-ar of the iniLial recognizon exemption,

Toe Movncial mipact of the errors dentifiec are as follows:

P A
B Sa opare . =S
GrauP o o m Lim
Deferrad tax awvset/(hability) azn 4.0 a3n (5.2 48 4.4)
Retained carnings @4 (3.0) ICAFAD (328.4) am (332.4)
Corporataoh tax 6.2 [O?J 50 (Z,SJ - (28:
Goodwill 28.2 (R3] 275 29.4 oa 286
Income Statement for 52 wocks ended 28 March 2020:
Haprn Aoy st St
Profit before tax 166.2 - 166 2
Tax 4.3) 0.0 5.3
Profit after tax 1619 o 1609
A

Company N ::‘ L
Oeferred tax asset/{habilicy) 73 44 (31
Retuined earnings (3700 3.4} (3735} (303 3) 2.4 (3077)

Corporation tax &1 0.2 59
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Directors
Chairman
Michael Turner, FCA,

Nan Exccutive Chairman

Executive Directors

S'mon Emeny, Chief Excoutive
Adarn Courcel', ACMA

Fred Turner, ACA

Non-Executive Directors
S'rJames Fuller, B

Richard Futlar
Helen jones®
Robin Row'and”
Julette Stacay, ACAS

Indeperdent

Shareholder Privileges

Indrvidual sharehalders watk at least 300

Al or ' Clordinary snares or 2,000 B ordinary
shares arc elpibie to recer e a sharsho'cer
Jandulgence card entithng them te 4 15%
disccunt an Faoa and drrks in any of our
maraged pubs ind hete s including Bel & The
Dragon and Cotswolds Inrs % —otely 1t alse
offers a 5% discourt on the Bes: Flesible Rate
ar Standerd Flexible BAB Rite for Brautiful
Bedrooms by Ful'er’s and Bel & The Dragan
accemrrodation. There s currently no
asccommadation discount ava lable wath the
Sharcholder Inndulgence Card st any of the
Cotswold 'nrs & —ael sites.

infarmat on s avalabic from tne Company
Seeretanar or D20 8996 2105

a8t company secratarat 1 fulle s 2o ok

Redesignation of ‘C’ Shares

Clord ngry shares car ke

rrc.

G, 5000 g ir your corll 23tes AN 3 g b1

STl i 1 redoslg COr S Le Srdur rg

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholder Information
a5 at 7Ju\y 2021

" Stockbrokers

Nurris Secanities Lirmited
10 Paternoster Sguare
Londan EC4M 7LT

President
Anthory Fuller, CBE

Charman frem 1982 1o 2007, Anthony Fuller
retirac from the Board in 2070 after along :
" Registrars

Computershare Inwestar Serwces PLC

career with Fullers and continues as Presidant

Secretary and Registered Office

Rachel Spencer

The Puvilions, Brldgwater Road
Brisron BS99 677

Pror House Tel: 0R7C 889 4096
26 93 Strand on-the-Green
_ordon W4 3NN

Tel: 020 8995 2000
Regs:ered Number 241832

Pleasc nate that you car adwvise
Computershare of changes ta your
address or set up a d wdend mardate onlime

at www camputarshiare comiinvestoriuk

Auditors i
Ernct & Young LLP

1 More Londan Pluce

Lonzor SETZAF

ShareGift

Tre Orr Mackintash Foundanen coerates

3 charity share donaton scheme for
sharcho.ders with small parges of skares whose
silue makes it unecorom c o sel them, Fyou
nawea srnall asmber of shares snd would ke to
donate tnam 1o chanity, detals of the scheme
car ke fourd an the ShareGift website

wras shareift org. or oy contactng the
Comoany Secretanat on 020 8996 2105

Financial Calendar and Key Dates
23 Septemper 2027

Annaal General Meeting (1"a m 3

18 Naserrber 2021

EV22 Half yoar results srraurcament

sune 2022

FY22 Full yoar rosults arrourcemert
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Glossary

Adjusted earnings per share (“EPS”)  this is carnings per whare, sdjusted for separately disc'osed ters. Tnz Directors believe that this measare
provides weeful information for sharehelders as to the performunce of the Group

Adjusted profits  thiwis profit belore tax and before separately diclosed items.
CCFF  thisis an HM Treasury and Bank of England lending facility

CJRS - thiv s a clum for 80% of employees wages plus any emplayer National [nsurance and pens on cortributons for staff on Furlough through
pray gesp y employ P g g

the Government's Coronavirus Job Retertion Scheme.

Drinks, food and accommodation like for like sales growth  thic i< measured on the same bas o as “Managed Pubs ard Hetelsirvested ke for ke

sales growth”

EBITDA - the s the carmings belore interest, tax, depreciation, profit on dispasal of plant ard equipment, and amortisation, adjusies for soparately

disclosed items.

LTIP  Long Term incentive Plan,

Managed Pubs and Hotels invested like for like sales growth - this is the wales growth caleulsted to exclude those pubs which bave not been trading
throughout the twe yedrs for the corresponding peried in both years. The principal exclusions from this sreasure are: pubs purchased or sold in the
last 12 manths; sites which are closed; and pubs which are transferred to tenancy. The caleulation excludes The Stable stes.

Market capitalisation  cnly the Company’s 40p A’ ordinary shares are l'sted The Company eslculates its market capitahisation as the total of all
classes of ordinary shares: e listed 40p 'A erdirary shares, unlisted 4p ‘B ordinary shares and unlisted 40p 'Clardinary shares plus all potentislly
awdrdable share aplions and LTIP awards less any shares held n tressury. ror the purposes of the calculstion of market capitansation, 3 4p g
ordimary share 15 treated as having 10% of the market va'ue of o quoted 40p ‘A ardirary share and 3 400 "Clordinary share s treated as having

an equivalent value Lo a £0p A ardinary snare,

Net debt this comprises cash, bank loans, other loans, debenture stack snd preference shares,

Operating profit  this s profit before finance costs and tax and prefit on disposai of properties.

SIP - Share Incentive Plan,

The disposal of the Fuller’s Beer Business —tne saiz of the entre issued share capita’ of The Fuller’s Beer Company {which was incorporated to
acqure cerian of the assets and bilizies of the Fuller's Beer Business)

The Fuller's Beer Business or the “Beer Business” - the cntirety of Fuller’s beer, aider and soft drinks brewing and production business, wane
wholesaling business, as well as the distribution thereof, ¢nd also includes the Griffin Brewery, Cornish Orchards, The Dark Star Brewing Cempany

and Nectar Imports Limited.

Total annual dividend - the total annual dividend for a firencial year comprises intenm dividends paid during the firancial yoar and the final dividend
proposed for approval oy shareholders at the Annual General Meeting after the completior of the Financial year.

TSA - Transitonal Services Agreement with Asshrsubsequert Lo sale of the Fuller’s Beer Business.

Working capita| - calculated as current assets (trade recervables and lnv-:’ﬁtory) fess current labihties {trade and other pdydbk‘ﬁ].

153

FULLER'S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 201

MAIAIBAT)

]JOdO&j 3\3G]L‘J]S

C):]UPUJ(:MOD

n
2
o
5
o
=
U
o
=
o
o
>
=4
<




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Five Years’ Progress

2021 PR 7

Group Income Statement Em P e T B
Revenwe and other ncome 73.4 319.7 324.7 4035 3920
Operating prof beforc separate’y diszlosed Lems o (40.3) ) 270 40 O_ 492 _Z;
Firance cosls before weparately aclosed tems (8.4) (7.6} 63) (5.0] GRS
Adjusted profit before income tax (48.7} 194 331 432 429
Exceptional items ard disconunued operations 7 7 {10.5) 468 —“(?4_) _W (3.0
Profit before income tax (59.2) 166 2 247 436 399
Taxation ' %6 (53 (52 (B8 04
Profit after income tax (49.6) 1609 195 348 325
Non-controling ‘nterest o - - 0.23 - 1.0 0 2—
Loss/profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Parent Company (49.6) 1609 163 358 327
EBITDA' (13.1) 539 59.5 709 705
1 Continuing operations only.
Assets employed
NMon-curiert aswets 702.5 7571 595 3 6232 6121
Ec—r‘torwe% 2.1 40 5.0 13.5 o 14.0
Other current assets 15.5 5.6 784 229 216
Rss-‘:ls clasafied as held Tor sale 7 - 9.6 h% 570 o T 592
C b 3rd cash equrvalents ' 171 203 o n7 153

746.8 8026 7067 6734 6689
Current bor-owings 0770 (77 500 (300) (2000
Oi:her current 1abilit ey (39.4) (52.7] (629} (718 (737

4997 5802 593 8 5716 575.2
Nor currant borromrgs @S (78 (062 (&36) (014
Oiher ron current habilinies 92.7) 11223) 4%) (5315 (B4
Net assets 379.5 429 3 3385 3349 3097

2021 LR Z PO P

Per 40p ‘A’ ordinary share
Adjusted carn ngs  (73.00)p 2050p  6278p  6290p  &.3%
Basic earning, (89.84)p 291.89p 3572p  548%9% 59.21p
Deidenas [interir and prapased fingl) - 13280 4‘201*5;3 19.55p 15.80p
Net assats £6.87 £7.20 £516 £6 07 £5.41
Net debt (E million)? (308.0} (291 8) 245 2] (2019 (2067
Gross capital expenditure (£ million) o 16.5 243 586 406 558
Average number of employees 4,219 o155 5.39% A 513 £.722

2 2020 ncludes ‘D’ share deadend.
3 Net debt from FY20 onwards includes amounts relating to leases under IFRS 16.
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